To:

Public Document Pack

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

All Members of the Council

Town House,
ABERDEEN, 27 October 2023

ADJOURNED COUNCIL

The Members of the COUNCIL are requested to meet in Council Chamber - Town

House on FRIDAY, 3 NOVEMBER 2023 at 12.00pm. This is a hybrid meeting therefore
remote attendance is also available.

8.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.6

9.7

JENNI LAWSON
INTERIM CHIEF OFFICER - GOVERNANCE
(LEGAL)

BUSINESS

BUSINESS PLANNER AND OTHER MINUTES

Council Business Planner (Pages5 - 14)

GENERAL BUSINESS

Options Appraisal on Working Arrangements with our ALEOs - CFS/23/315
(Pages 15 - 30)

Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2023 - Proposed Aberdeen Planning Guidance
and Supplementary Guidance - COM/23/303 (Pages 31 - 150)

Finalised Draft George Street Masterplan - COM/23/304 (Pages 151 - 574)

Annual Procurement Report 2022-2023 - COM/23/309 (Pages 575 - 624)

Council Delivery Plan, Annual Review Report 2022-23 - COM/23/310 (Pages 625 -
654)




9.8

9.9

9.10

10.1

Aberdeen City Population Needs Assessment 2023 - CUS/23/312 (Pages 655 -
750)

Community Planning Aberdeen Annual Outcome Improvement Report 2022/23 -
CUS/23/314 (Pages 751 - 828)

Community Planning Aberdeen Locality Annual Outcome Improvement Reports
2022/23 for North, South and Central Localities - CUS/23/313 (Pages 829 - 894)

NOTICES OF MOTION

Notice of Motion by Councillor Cooke
That Council;

1. Notes the Lord Advocate’s statement ‘that it would not be in the public
interest to prosecute drug users for simple possession offences committed
within a pilot safer drugs consumption facility.”

2. Agrees that safer drug consumption facilities are an important public health
measure that could save lives, and supports all options within the existing
legal framework being explored to enable the delivery of these facilities to
prevent overdoses and reduce harm.

3. Notes the Minister for Drug and Alcohol Policy, on 19 September 2023 in the
Scottish Parliament, stated “In the past two years, the University of Stirling
has undertaken work to look at how we could roll out a drug-checking pilot
within Scotland. During that research phase, several potential locations were
identified. We know that Aberdeen, Glasgow and Dundee have expressed
their wish to be part of the pilot. The research was published at the end of
July and we are now helping those areas to apply for licences. We await a
final communication from the United Kingdom Home Office that will help us
to ensure that those licensing applications can go in and will be met with the
most sympathetic ear possible.”

4. Welcomes the Scottish Government's commitment to tackling drug harm as
part of a public health approach and will work with partners to support and
assist in applications for drug-checking facilities being made available in
Aberdeen.

5. Instructs the Chief Officer - Health and Social Care Partnership to engage
with relevant partners, in particular, the Aberdeen City Alcohol and Drugs
Partnership, to support delivery of a drug-checking pilot in Aberdeen.

6. Encourages all Council Members, where comfortable to do so, to be trained
and carry naloxone during their councillor duties, in the event that they
encounter a member of the public in an overdose situation and to promote
naloxone within their communities.

7. Instructs the Chief Officer - Health and Social Care Partnership to report to
the Aberdeen City Integration Joint Board by March 2024 on the progress of
those discussions with partner agencies, the Scottish Government and
Home Office.



10.2 Notice of Motion by Councillor Cooke

That the Council:

1.

Notes the report of the external auditor, Audit Scotland, into the audit of
the 2022/23 North East Scotland Pension Fund Annual Report and
Accounts;

Notes in particular Recommendation 3 of that report, namely: “we
encourage Aberdeen City Council, as the administering authority, to fill
the vacancies on the Pensions Committee and for members to work
together for the benefit of the fund”; and

Deeply regrets the Labour Group’s continued failure to participate in the
Pensions Committee contrary to the recommendation of the external
auditor, noting that the interests of the 77,000 members of the Pension
Fund would be best served by participation in the Committee being from
across the political perspectives that make up Aberdeen City Council, the
Administering Authority.

EXEMPT /CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS

11.1 Options Appraisal on Working Arrangements with our ALEOs - CFS/23/315 -

exempt appendices (Pages 895 - 1030)

Website Address: www.aberdeencity.gov.uk

Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Martyn
Orchard, tel 01224 067598 or morchard@aberdeencity.gov.uk


http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/

This page is intentionally left blank



G abed

A B C D E F G H
COUNCIL BUSINESS PLANNER
The Business Planner details the reports which have been instructed by the Council as well as reports which the Functions expect to be submitting for the calendar year.
Delayed or
Recommende
Report Title Minute Reference/Committee Decision or Purpose of Update Report Author | Chief Officer Bl Terms of d for removal |Explanation if delayed, removed
Report Reference or transfer, or transferred
enter either D,
R,or T
11th October 2023
Broad Street At its meeting of 14 December 2022, the Council David Dunne | Strategic Place | Commissioning 21 R Further to feedback from both the

instructed the Chief Officer - Operations and Protective
Services to report back to Council on the implications of
closing permanently the section of Broad Street between
Queen Street and Upperkirkgate to all vehicles.

Planning

bus operators and the Disability
Equity Partnership raising
significant concerns about the
proposed closure of Broad Street,
and in the context of the upcoming
works to Union Street and the
ongoing modelling work in relation
to both the Beach and City Centre
Masterplan and the Bus
Partnership Fund project, it is
recommended to remove this item
from the planner. The purpose of
the report can then be addressed
through those other work streams,
reporting back once more detail of
transport routing is known

T'8 Wa)| epuaby



9 abed

Report Title

Electoral Boundaries

Minute Reference/Committee Decision or Purpose of
Report

To seek approval of potential changes to polling districts
for Aberdeen North and Aberdeen South following a
review by the Electoral Boundary Commission of the
Westminster constituency boundaries.

Update

Report Author

David Gow

Chief Officer

Governance

Director

Commissioning

Terms of
Reference

Delayed or
Recommende
d for removal

or transfer,
enter either D,

R,or T

Explanation if delayed, removed
or transferred

The new boundaries come into effect
at the next UK Parliamentary General
Election. However, in the event of a by
election or recall petition occurring
after the order to bring the new
boundaries into effect has come in to
force and before the next general
election, those events must be run on
the current boundaries. This means
that Electoral Registration Officers
must have the ability to publish
registers on both the current and new
boundaries until the next General
Election. Despite the report being
drafted in collaboration with our
electoral registration colleagues and
despite seeking assurance several
months previously that they would be
able to produce registers on both sets
of boundaries as needed, they have
contacted us only very recently to say
that they cannot. This means that the
proposals will need to be re-drafted
and the revised report will be
submitted to members at the first
available opportunity.

Council Delivery Plan
Annual Report

To present the annual report in respect of progress
against the Council Delivery Plan

A report is on the agenda

Alex Paterson

Data and
Insights

Customer

13

ALEOs Options Appraisal

At the meeting of the Finance and Resources Committee
of 5 July 2023, the committee instructed the Chief
Executive to carry out an options appraisal on all potential
working arrangements with our ALEOs and develop an
Outline Business Case with the output from that options
appraisal, and for that Outline Business Case,
accompanied by a draft project plan underpinning the
preferred option(s), to be submitted to Full Council at its
meeting on 11 October 2023.

A report is on the agenda

Eleanor
Sheppard

Education and
Children's
Services

Chief Executive

21




) abed

December 2023, including any recommended revisions to
the Draft Mini Masterplan.

Planning

A B C D E F G H
Delayed or
Recommende
Report Title Minute Reference/Committee Decision or Purpose of Update Report Author | Chief Officer Director Terms of d for removal | Explanation if delayed, removed
Report Reference or transfer, or transferred
enter either D,
R,or T
| 2 |
Annual Performance To present the annual performance reporting of the Areport is on the agenda | Craig Innes | Commercial and| Commissioning 24.13
Reports - 2022/2023 for  |Council’s four Tier one Arm's Length External Procurement
all Tier 1 ALEOs: Organisations (ALEOs) covering financial year
Aberdeen Performing 2022/2023: Aberdeen Performing Arts (APA); Aberdeen
Arts; Aberdeen Sports Sports Village (ASV); Bon Accord Care; Sport Aberdeen
Village; Bon Accord Care; |(SA).
e Sport Aberdeen
Population Needs To present the Population Needs Assessment every two |A report is on the agenda | Anne McAteer Early Customer 24.1
Assessment years to understand the needs which public bodies must Intervention and
address. Community
Empowerment
9
CPA Annual Outcome To present the annual report for the Local Outcome A report is on the agenda Allison Early Customer 24.11
Improvement Report Improvement Plan Swanson Intervention and
2022/23 Community
10 Empowerment
Locality Annual Outcome |To present the Annual Outcome reports 2022/23 against |A report is on the agenda | Jade Leyton Early Customer 24.11
Improvement Reports the North, South and Central Locality Plans published in and lain Intervention and
2022/23 for North, South [July 2021. The plans underpinned the refreshed Robertson Community
and Central Localities Aberdeen City Local Outcome Improvement Plan, as well Empowerment
as individual partner plans, to cement a joint and
coordinated approach between public services and local
communities to improve outcomes city wide and at a
locality level.
11
Annual Procurement To present the annual procurement performance report  |A report is on the agenda | Mel Mackenzie | Commercial and| Commissioning 24.14
Performance Report Procurement
12
George Street Mini At its meeting of 14 December 2022, the Council A report is on the agenda
Masterplan instructed the Chief Officer - Strategic Place Planning to
report the outcomes of the public consultation on the Draft Strategic Place
George Street Mini Masterplan back to Council by David Dunne Commissioning 21




g obed

Structural Model

the Chief Executive to review the Scottish Government'’s
preferred structural model for Children’s Services when it
is published (anticipated to be later in 2023) and report
back to Council, providing advice on the implications for
the Council, and specific proposals in relation to the
requirements for the Council’s organisational structure
going forward; including the impact on the Interim Director
of Children’s and Family Services role.

A B C D E F G H
Delayed or
Recommende
Report Title Minute Reference/Committee Decision or Purpose of Update Report Author | Chief Officer Director Terms of d for removal | Explanation if delayed, removed
Report Reference or transfer, or transferred
enter either D,
R,or T
[ 2 |
Aberdeen Local At its meeting of 14 December 2022, the Council A report is on the agenda
Development Plan - Draft |approved the draft Aberdeen Planning Guidance and
Aberdeen Planning Supplementary Guidance documents and instructed the
Guidance and Chief Officer - Strategic Place Planning to publish them,
Supplementary Guidance [subject to any minor drafting changes, for a six-week . Strategic Place L
period of public consultation and report the results of the David Dunne Planning Commissioning 2
consultation and any proposed revisions to Members at a
subsequent meeting of Full Council within 12 months of
the consultation ending.
14
North East of Scotland To outline and agree governance arrangements for the A report is on the agenda
Investment Zone development of an Investment Zone proposal and seek
Proposal authority to submit to the UK Government within the Julie Wood City Growth Commissioning | Introduction 6
timescales they have set out.
15
Appointment of an To seek the appointment of an external adviser to the Anti{A report is on the agenda
External Adviser to the Poverty and Inequality Committee to replace an external
Anti-Poverty and adviser who has stood down. Ear_ly
Inequality Committee Paul Tytler Intervention and Customer 7
Community
Empowerment
16
17 13th December 2023
Review of Community To present the Revised Scheme for the Establishment of
Council Governance and [Community Councils including boundary proposals for
Boundaries - Stage 2 various Communlfy Councils anq to seek approval for the Karen Einch Governance Commissioning 19
documents to be issued for public consultation.
18
Children's Services At its meeting on 13 October 2022, the Council instructed Angela Scott | Chief Executive | Chief Executive 21




6 obed

20

Report Title

City Centre - Streetscape
Programme

Minute Reference/Committee Decision or Purpose of
Report

At its meeting of 14 December 2022, the Council
instructed the Director of Resources to progress with
developing the remaining streetscape programmes,
including options for the provision of physically
segregated cycle tracks/lanes, and bring forward for
consideration and approval an update to the Full
Business Case following conclusion of design, planning
and consultation stages on the following programmes by
December 2023:

(a) Union Street East and Castlegate and Justice Street;
(b) Union Street West and West End;

(c) Market Streetscape Phases 2 and 3

Further design work to be funded from the City Centre
and Beach Masterplan budget.

Update

Report Author

Steve Whyte

Chief Officer

Director of
Resources

Director

Resources

Terms of
Reference

21

Delayed or
Recommende
d for removal

or transfer,
enter either D,

R,or T

Explanation if delayed, removed
or transferred

21

Beachfront Masterplan -
Outline Business Case

At the adjourned Council meeting of 4 May 2023, the
Council approved the findings of the Beachfront Phase C
Projects and Coastal Management in the prepared
Strategic Outline Case (Appendix 7) and instructed the
Chief Officer - Commercial and Procurement to progress
to an Outline Business Case and report back to Council
by December 2023

Craig Innes

Commercial and
Procurement

Commissioning

21

22

Treasury Management
Mid-Year Review

To update the Council on Treasury Management activities
undertaken to date, during financial year 2023/24.

Neil Stewart

Finance

Resources

5and 6

23

Governance Review of
Trusts - 2023

At its meeting of 14 December 2022, the Council
instructed the Chief Officer - Governance to bring a
further update report to Council no later than December
2023 on future activity in relation to trusts to which the
Council is connected.

Steven Inglis

Governance

Commissioning

21

24

Organisational Structure

At its meeting of 1 March 2023, the Council instructed the
Chief Executive to review the existing organisational
structure, in light of the approved budget and to report
back to Council by December 2023 on any suggested
amendments to ensure the sustainability of Council
operations.

Angela Scott

Chief Executive

Chief Executive

21




0T 9bed

33

1 April 2024.

A B C D E F G H
Delayed or
Recommende
Report Title Minute Reference/Committee Decision or Purpose of Update Report Author | Chief Officer Director Terms of d for removal | Explanation if delayed, removed
Report Reference or transfer, or transferred
enter either D,
R,or T
[ 2 |
Funding to Cultural At its meeting of 1 March 2023, the Council instructed the
Organisations Chief Officer - City Growth, in consultaton with partner
organisations, such as Aberdeen Performing Arts (APA),
to bring back a report on how best to allocate funding to ) o
cultural organisations from both the General Fund and Mark Bremner | City Growth | Commissioning 21
Common Good budgets and to report back to Council
before the end of the financial year 2023/24.
25
Council Annual To present the annual effectiveness report for Council, as
Effectiveness Report and |well as the annual effectiveness reports of the various o
Committee Annual committees, which have been considered by those Martyn Orchard| Governance | Commissioning 14
26 Effectiveness Reports committees.
Housing Revenue To provide members with information to enable the
Account 2024/25 Council to approve a revenue and capital budget for
2024/25, including th_e setting of the rents and other Helen Sherrit Finance Resources 2
charges on the Housing Revenue Account for the
financial year.
27
Budget - Phase 2 At its meeting of 23 August 2023, the Council noted that
Consultation Phase 2 consultation would be based on the central
scenario shown in the Medium Term Financial Strategy Jonathan .
2023 and the results of this would be reported to Council Belford Finance Resources 1,2,3and 21
in December 2023.
28
29 7th February 2024
Treasury Management To outline the Council's Treasury Management Policy for
Policy 2024/25 to 2026/27 for approval. Neil Stewart Finance Resources 5 and 6
30
6th March 2024 - Budget
31
Council Delivery Plan To present the Council Delivery Plan for 2024/25. Martin Murchie | Chief Executive | Chief Executive 2
2024/25
32
General Fund Revenue  [To provide information on both the revenue budget for
Budget and Capital 2024/25 and capital programme for the period 2024/25 to
Programme 2028/29 in order that approved budgets and Council Tax Jonathan ]
value can be set by the Council for the year commencing Belford Finance Resources 1,2and 3




TT obed

43

A B C D E F G H
Delayed or
Recommende
Report Title Minute Reference/Committee Decision or Purpose of Update Report Author | Chief Officer Director Terms of d for removal | Explanation if delayed, removed
Report Reference or transfer, or transferred
enter either D,
R,or T
[ 2 |
Common Good Budget  |To provide Council with details of the draft Common Good
2024/25 budget for 2023/24, to enable the Council to approve a Jonathan ]
final budget that will take effect on 1 April 2024. Belford Finance Resources 2
34
35 17th April 2024
Review of Community To present the Revised Scheme for the Establishment of
Council Governance and [Community Councils including boundary proposals for
Boundaries - Stage 3 various Community Councils and to seek approval for the Karen Finch Governance Commissioning 19
(April 2024) documents to be issued for public consultation.
36
37 3rd July 2024
Treasury Management To update the Council on Treasury Management activities
Year-end Review undertaken during financial year 2023/24. ) ,
Neil Stewart Finance Resources 5and 6
38
Aberdeen Market - Project|At its meeting of 11 September 2023, the Council
Update instructed the Chief Officer - Corporate Landlord to report Corporate
to the July 2024 Council meeting with an update on the Stephen Booth Landlord Resources 21
capital project.
39
20 21st August 2024
City Centre and Beach At its meeting of 23 August 2023, the Council instructed
Masterplan - Annual the Chief Officer - Strategic Place Planning to keep the . Strategic Place o
Update Masterplan report under review, and to provide another Claire McArthur Planning Commissioning 21
» progress report to Full Council after 12 months.
North East Population At its meeting of 23 August 2023, the Council agreed that
Health Alliance Strategic [Aberdeen City Council be a signatory to the strategic
Partnership Agreement  [partnership agreement and requested the Chief Executive ) ) Data and
to provide Council with an annual progress report on the Martin Murchie Insights Customer 21
strategic partnership agreement.
42
Council Diary 2025 To approve the Council Diary for 2025.
Martyn Orchard| Governance Commissioning 18

44

2nd October 2024




2T obed

50

Effectiveness Reports

committees.

A B C D E F G H
Delayed or
Recommende
Report Title Minute Reference/Committee Decision or Purpose of Update Report Author | Chief Officer Director Terms of d for removal | Explanation if delayed, removed
Report Reference or transfer, or transferred
enter either D,
R,or T
2 |
Beach Connectivity At the adjourned Council meeting of 4 May 2023, the
Project - Full Business Council instructed the Chief Officer - Commercial and
Case Procurement in conjunction with the Chief Officer - Capital
to join Justice Street, Beach Boulevard and Commerce
Street/Beach Boulevard junction projects into a single .
Beach Connectivity Project and to progress detailed Craig Innes Commercial and Commissioning 21
design and other preparatory work for the Beach Procurement
Connectivity Project and provide a Full Business Case
within an indicative timeline of 12-18 months.
45
5 11th December 2024
101-103 Union Street At its meeting of 14 December 2022, the Council noted Due to continued Stephen Booth Corporate Resources 21
the content of the Strategic Outline Case Upper Floor use [uncertainty over Landlord
options at 101-103 Union Street and instructed the Chief |development costs and
Officer - Corporate Landlord to continue to review and returns there has been no
report back by August 2023. significant change to the
risk in the development
appraisal. On this basis
officers would seek seek
authority to delay any
further reporting until
December 2024.
47
Beach Masterplan - At its meeting of 23 August 2023, in relation to Phase 2 of Claire McArthur| Strategic Place | Commissioning 21
Phase 2 Development the Beach area, the Council noted the summary of Planning
Framework comments received on the initial public consultation
exercise on how people currently use these areas, and
instructed the Chief Officer - Strategic Place Planning to
prepare a Development Framework for the Phase 2
areas, which would be reported back to Full Council
before the end of 2024.
48
Treasury Management To update the Council on Treasury Management activities Neil Stewart Finance Resources 5and 6
Mid-Year Review undertaken to date, during financial year 2024/25.
49
Council Annual To present the annual effectiveness report for Council, as
Effectiveness Report and |well as the annual effectiveness reports of the various
Committee Annual committees, which have been considered by those Martyn Orchard| Governance Commissioning 14




¢T abed

Report Title

Minute Reference/Committee Decision or Purpose of
Report

Update

Report Author

Date to be confirmed

Chief Officer

Director

Terms of
Reference

Delayed or
Recommende
d for removal

or transfer,
enter either D,

R,or T

Explanation if delayed, removed
or transferred

52

Sport Aberdeen

At its meeting of 1 March 2023, the Council instructed the
Director of Commissioning in conjunction with the Director
of Resources to begin discussions with Sport Aberdeen to
review their assets and their business delivery model,
with a view to Sport Aberdeen becoming financially
independent from the Council and to report back to
Council before the end of the financial year 2023/24.

Gale Beattie

Commissioning

Commissioning

21

53

Beachfront Masterplan -
Castlegate

At the adjourned Council meeting of 4 May 2023, the
Council noted that “Working in Partnership for Aberdeen”
included the objective of making the Castlegate a
gateway to our city’s beachfront and instructed the Chief
Officer - Strategic Place Planning to carry out consultation
with key stakeholders on creating an active travel and
public transport link through the Castlegate to deliver this
objective as part of the Beach Connectivity Project and to
report to a future Council meeting on this.

David Dunne

Strategic Place
Planning

Commissioning

21

54

Revised Council Climate
Change Plan

At the Council meeting on 3 March 2021, the Council,
amongst other things, instructed the Chief Operating
Officer to report back to Full Council with a revised 5 year
plan in 2025, or earlier if required.

David Dunne

Strategic Place
Planning

Commissioning

21

55

Energy Transition Zone -
Land Options

At its meeting of 11 September 2023, the Council
instructed the Chief Officer - Corporate Landlord to report
the outcome of discussions regarding St Fittick's OP56
and Doonies OP61 sites to the earliest appropriate
meeting of Full Council.

Stephen Booth

Corporate
Landlord

Resources

21




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Agenda Iltem 9.2

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

COMMITTEE Council
DATE 11™ October 2023
EXEMPT The covering report is not exempt; however

Appendices B to F are exempt under paragraph 6 of
Part | of Schedule 7A to the Local Government
(Scotland) Act 1973 because they contain information
relating to the financial or business affairs of other
organisations

CONFIDENTIAL No

REPORT TITLE Options Appraisal on working arrangements with our
ALEOs

REPORT NUMBER CFS/23/315

DIRECTOR Eleanor Sheppard

CHIEF OFFICER Craig Innes

REPORT AUTHOR Eleanor Sheppard

TERMS OF REFERENCE | 24.6 and 24.7

11

2.1

2.2

2.2

PURPOSE OF REPORT

At its meeting of 6% July 2023, the Finance and Resources Committee
instructed the Chief Executive to undertake an Options Appraisal on all potential
working arrangements with our ALEOs (Arms-Length External Organisations)
and develop an Outline Business Case with the output from that Options
Appraisal, and for that Outline Business Case, accompanied by a draft Project
Plan underpinning the preferred option(s) to be submitted to full Council at its
meeting of 111" October 2023. This report, and subsequent delivery of the
associated recommendations, help satisfy the instruction.

RECOMMENDATIONS
That Council:-

note the process undertaken in order to determine advantageous working
arrangements in collaboration with ALEOs; and note the closer working
relationships evident across ALEOs and Aberdeen Sports Village Joint Venture
and the potential to realise shared objectives in the longer term by maintaining
regular joint working;

note the exempt Options Appraisal documentation in Appendices B to F;
in relation to Aberdeen Heat and Power Company Limited, Sport Aberdeen

and Aberdeen Performing Arts, agree to maintain current working
arrangements;

Page 15



2.3

2.4

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

in relation to Bon Accord Care (i.e. Bon Accord Care Ltd, and Bon Accord
Support Services Ltd), note that the Options Appraisal process has highlighted
potential benefits in bringing the associated services in-house and integrating
them into the Council structure; and instruct the Head of Commercial and
Procurement Services, following consultation with the Managing Director of
Bon Accord Care, to outline the benefits of this potential option and provide
indicative delivery milestones within an Outline Business Case for consideration
by Council in December 2023; and

in relation to Aberdeen Sports Village Ltd (ASV), instruct the Council’'s Chief
Officer — Finance, following consultation with the Head of Commercial and
Procurement Services, to explore the potential for the Council and the
University of Aberdeen to amend the shareholder agreement and ownership
and report back to Council in February 2024 to align with Council budget setting
process.

CURRENT SITUATION

As per the report to the Finance and Resources Committee of 6 July 2023
(Reconfiguration of working arrangements with Arm’s Length External
Organisations (ALEOs) - COM/23/218), an Executive Steering Group
comprising Managing Directors from each of the in scope ALEOs and Joint
Venture was established in July 2023 and chaired by the Chief Executive of
Aberdeen City Council.  The Group agreed a Project Definition Document
(PDD) outlining the purpose, goals, roles and responsibilities, governance
arrangements and high level project deliverables (Appendix A). The Group
committed to meeting on a monthly basis to oversee progress.

The Executive Steering Group agreed the establishment of a Working Group to
progress work in keeping with the PDD with membership nominated by the
Managing Directors. Working Group members committed to regular meetings
and engagement through an established Teams site to enable collaboration
around the Council instruction.

The Working Group established a set of clear objectives and weightings to help
measure the strength of the different working arrangements being explored
through the process. Objectives were agreed to be:

e Increased financial efficiencies

e Decreased duplication and increased synergies

¢ Increased performance in meeting the health and wellbeing needs of the

population

e Increased focus on harm reduction

e Ability to add social and/or economic capital to the city

¢ Ability to deliver on net zero targets.

The Working Group met to enable each ALEO/ASV the opportunity to present
an outline of their business and share how they currently support improved
outcomes for citizens, this information was then transferred into the ‘current
state’ on the Options Appraisal documentation. The Working Group analysed
the information and data made available by each ALEO/ASV and used this to
agree the different working arrangements to be considered through the Options

Page 16



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

Appraisal process. Each of the Options was then fully considered through a
series of meetings with individual ALEOs/ASV and more latterly with groups of
ALEOs/ASV where potential benefits from more aligned working practices had
been identified.

Options for each ALEO broadly included (i) a maintaining the status quo option,
(i) an improving performance and financial efficiencies within the status quo
option, (iii) a considering readiness for the merging of some/all of the
organisations into a more efficient entity option, and (iv) an aligning ALEOs to
the Council/Group structure option.

The unique nature of each ALEO/ASV was taken into account in agreeing the
options to be explored. Good collaboration between ALEOs, ASV and Council
Officers was evident throughout the process and these stronger relationships
now present an opportunity for further collaboration and on-going
transformation.

As options were more fully scoped, each option was scored against the agreed
weighted objectives by individual ALEOs, ASV and Council Officers with a ‘best
fit sought for the recommendations presented to Council. Taking this approach
helped ensure transparency and secure broad agreement on
recommendations. All ALEOs/ASV were encouraged to look at the scoring
undertaken by others and to offer support (by way of further synergies that
might offer further benefits) and challenge.

Assurance was sought from Internal Audit on the impartiality of the scoring
process post completion. Internal Audit confirmed that they did not identify any
major concerns or challenge how the process was carried out based on their
sampling of the data provided by the Interim Director Children and Family
Services.

The Working Group presented the completed Options Appraisals to the
Executive Steering Group for approval on Monday 18" September. The
Executive Steering Group endorsed the output of the Options Appraisal process
undertaken by the Working Group.

As a result of undertaking this Options Appraisal process, it is proposed that
Aberdeen Heat and Power Company Ltd, Sport Aberdeen and Aberdeen
Performing Arts remain as ALEOs with efficiencies considered as part of the
Council budget setting process in keeping with current practice.

The working group identified that there may be benefits to be realised by
winding up BAC Ltd and BASS Ltd and bringing the associated services in-
house and integrating them back into the Council structure. It is proposed that
the Head of Commercial and Procurement Services, following consultation with
the Managing Director Bon Accord Care, outline the benefits of this potential
option and provide indicative delivery milestones within an Outline Business
Case for consideration by Council in December 2023.

The current shareholder agreement in place between Aberdeen City Council
and Aberdeen University prevents changes to current working arrangements

Page 17



3.13

3.14

4.2

for the Aberdeen Sports Village Ltd (ASV). It is suggested that the Council's
Chief Officer — Finance, following consultation with the Head of Commercial
and Procurement Services, explore the potential for the Council and the
University of Aberdeen to amend the shareholder agreement and ownership
and report back to Council in February 2024 to align with Council budget setting
process.

One of the direct benefits of undertaking this process has been the building of
stronger relationships across the ACC Group. Maintaining these close working
relationships has the potential to realise further efficiencies and benefits to
citizens of Aberdeen in the longer term and this planned collaboration has been
built into the Project Delivery Plan. A number of key Council priorities have
already been identified for exploration including:

A need to better articulate the role of the ACC Group in delivery of the

Council Delivery Plan and associated Local Outcome Improvement Plan

e A need to establish a multi-agency group, similar to the Physical Education,
Physical Activity and Sport (PEPAS) Group associated with the Children’s
Services Board, to ensure a coordinated response to the physical wellbeing
needs of our adult citizens

e A need to work together to review potential efficiencies by contracting
services together in order to realise more favourable terms

¢ Aneed to work together, along with Aberdeen City Council, to more routinely

consider assets and explore opportunities for co-location to reduce costs.

These will be taken forward as part of the Transformation Programme.

Given the importance of ensuring that ACC resources are focussed around the
prevention agenda and that resources are more fully aligned to upstream
activity, some focussed work will be undertaken with Public Health Scotland to
fully explore the extent of the preventative work currently undertaken with
Council funding to help inform our work around prevention. Mapping/auditing
all activity focussed on prevention to determine how working together across
the Group and with NHS Grampian and Public Health could elicit a stronger
response, will help the Council further demonstrate best value and improve the
provision of preventative services.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is a 5 year plan which sets out
our commitment to provide services that meet the needs of people locally and
represents value for money. The MTFS is aligned to the Council Delivery
Plan, which in turn aligns the Council’'s commitments to the vision and
priorities of the Local Outcome Improvement Plan. The MTFS presumes a
saving from ALEOs as part of the Transformation Programme.

Given the importance of working within available budget, a considerable

weighting of 40% of the total points available to score within the Options
Appraisal was allocated to finance savings.

Page 18



5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Under section 14 of the Local Government and Planning (Scotland) Act 1982,
the Council has a duty to “ensure that there is adequate provision of facilities
for the inhabitants of their area for recreational, sporting, cultural and social
activities”. The Council also has a duty under section 1(3) of the Education
(Scotland) Act 1980 to secure for pupils in attendance at schools in their area
“the provision of adequate facilities for social, cultural and recreative activities
and for physical education and training”. These duties require adequate
provision and do not stipulate precisely what facilities must be provided.

The Council does not have a statutory obligation to provide heat networks or
heating, however it does have the power to produce and supply heat and
electricity under the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

The Council has a variety of duties and powers in relation to the provision of
care for the elderly. These powers and duties come from a number of different
pieces of legislation including, but not limited to, the Social Work (Scotland) Act
1968, the NHS and Community Care Act 1990, the Adult Support and
Protection (Scotland) Act 2007 and the Social Care (Self-directed Support)
(Scotland) Act 2013.

AHP, APA and SA are private companies limited by guarantee without share
capital. BAC and BASS and ASV are private limited companies (i.e. limited by
shares). Each of APA, SA and ASV have charitable status.

ASV was established in 2007 as a limited company with charitable status and
is a joint venture between ACC and the University of Aberdeen (‘AU’). The
current operating agreement with ASV cannot be terminated before 2034
unless the Joint Venture Agreement (containing annual Grant obligations) with
AU is terminated, which would require to be negotiated with AU. Such
negotiation has not been within the scope of this project to date.

In terms of section 16 of the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act
2005, an ALEO with charitable status may be amalgamated with another body
only with the consent of OSCR (Office of the Scottish Charity Regulator). Such
consent would need to be sought at least 42 days prior to any proposed
amalgamation.

If either APA or SA were brought in-house, OSCR consent would similarly be
required under the 2005 Act to wind them up and any assets owned by them
would, in terms of those charities’ governing documents, require to be
transferred to some other charitable body (or bodies) with similar objects. Any
current benefits of charitable status would be lost.

For any ALEO being brought in-house, the company would require to be wound
up after novating any necessary third-party contracts to ACC.

Page 19



5.9

5.10

5.11

7.

if AHP were to be brought in-house, the Council would require prior consent to
trade from the Scottish Ministers, in terms of the Local Authorities (Goods and
Services) Act 1970.

In terms of the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment)

Regulations 2006, employee rights are safeguarded when the business, or part

of the business, in which they work changes hands from one employer to

another. When the TUPE Regulations apply, their effect is that the employees’

contracts of employment transfer automatically from the current employer

(Transferor) to the new employer (Transferee). There are two types of TUPE

transfer, namely (i) the transfer of a business or undertaking, and (ii) a service

provision change. TUPE covers the following scenarios:-

+ Outsourcing — where a contract to deliver services is awarded to a
contractor.

* Re-assignment —where a contract is re-let to a new contractor.

* Insourcing — where services are brought back in house.

Directors of a company owe certain statutory duties to the company under the
Companies Act 2006. These duties are to act within powers, to promote the
success of the company, to exercise independent judgment, to exercise
reasonable care, skill and diligence, to avoid conflicts of interest, not to accept
benefits from third parties and to declare interests in proposed transactions or
arrangements with the company. Similarly, the trustees of a charity must act in
the interests of the charity, operate in a manner consistent with the charity's
purpose, act with care and diligence, manage conflicts of interest and otherwise
comply with the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005. A
director of a charitable company will also be a charity trustee.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS
The Council and partners continue to work towards ambitious net zero targets.

Given the importance of this, a weighting within the Options Appraisal was
allocated to net zero.

RISK

Category Risks Primary *Target *Does

Controls/Control Risk Level | Target
Actions to achieve (L, Mor H) | Risk

Target Risk Level Level

*taking into
account Match

controls/control | Ap petite
actions
Set?

Strategic Risk that the Considerable time L Yes
Risk

current provision | has been invested in
of services looking at efficiencies
delivered and synergies to
through ALEOs | enable more efficient
is reduced to delivery of services

Page 20



Category Risks Primary *Target *Does
Controls/Control Risk Level | Target
Actions to achieve (L, M or H) | Risk
Target Risk Level Level
o™ | Match
controls/control Appetite
actions Set'7
take account of | in keeping with the
reducing Council Delivery Plan
resource and in order to mitigate
that this impacts | this risk.
on the delivery
of our strategic
outcomes
Compliance | Risk of not This risk is being L Yes
complying with mitigated by working
legislative duties | to identify options
concerning which will enable the
provision of provision of services
sport, leisure, to continue within a
cultural and smaller funding
adult care envelope.
services.
Full integrated impact
Risk of not assessments will be
complying with undertaken as part of
TUPE, charity the process to
legislation or ensure our Public
company Sector Equality Duty
legislation. IS met.
Project Plans would
make allowance for
the time needed to
ensure compliance
with such legislation
(e.g. seeking OSCR
consent and
arranging for any
transfer of assets
and liabilities).
Operational | Risk that staff Mitigated through on- | L Yes

are uncertain of
the implications
of any change in
working
arrangements

going engagement
with Trade Unions
and staff

Mitigated through the
instruction to refer

Page 21




Category

Risks

Primary
Controls/Control
Actions to achieve
Target Risk Level

*Target
Risk Level
(L, MorH)

*taking into
account
controls/control
actions

*Does
Target
Risk
Level
Match
Appetite
Set?

and this impacts
on morale

Risk that
services to
citizens are
reduced.

through the budget
process which will
ensure that decisions
are taken in the wider
context of the full
budget.

Mitigated by
recommending that
further more detailed
planning be
undertaken for BAC
before decisions are
taken.

Closer working
arrangements
amongst ALEOS will
help realise further
efficiencies.

Financial

Risk of negative
impact on the
Council in terms
of non-domestic
rates.

Delivery of the
recommendations
within this report will
help mitigate this
risk.

Budgetary
implications of
bringing ALEOs back
in-house have been
considered as part of
the Options Appraisal
process. This has
included tax
implications and non
-domestic rates
implications. These
implications have
influenced the
scoring of options.

Yes

Reputational

Risk of citizens
perceiving a
reduction in
services.

The report
recommends that
some of the options

Yes

Page 22




Category Risks

Primary
Controls/Control
Actions to achieve
Target Risk Level

*Does
Target
Risk
Level
Match
Appetite
Set?

*Target
Risk Level
(L, MorH)

*taking into
account
controls/control
actions

are referred to the
budget process.

The savings required
through more
efficient ALEOs
delivery will be
realised over a
number of years.
This will enable
services to continue
to be shaped and
prioritised around
demand.

Risk that
decisions taken
do not contribute
to Net Zero
targets.

Environment
/ Climate

A weighting within L
the Options Appraisal
was allocated to net
zero.

Yes

8. OUTCOMES

COUNCIL DELIVERY PLAN

Impact of Report

Aberdeen City Council Policy
Statement

Delivering services in keeping with the

financial envelope will enable the
continued delivery of a broad range of
Council services and more

comprehensive delivery of the Aberdeen
City Council Policy Statement.

Aberdeen City Local Outcome Improvement Plan

Economy stretch outcomes:
¢ No one will suffer due to poverty
by 2026
e 400 unemployed Aberdeen City
residents supported into Fair
Work by 2026

All three economy stretch outcomes are
impacted by this report.

Aberdeen Heat and Power play a major
role in supporting those most impacted by
poverty through the provision of

Page 23



https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2019-04/Council%20Delivery%20Plan%202019-20.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/Final-LOIP-2016-26-Refreshed-July-21.pdf

500 Aberdeen City residents
upskilled/ reskilled to enable
them to move into, within and
between economic opportunities
as they arise by 2026.

Prosperous People:

90% of children and young
people will report that their
experiences of mental health
and wellbeing have been
listened to.

95% of care experienced
children and young people will
have the same levels of
attainment in education, health
and emotional wellbeing, and
positive destinations as their
peers

Healthy life expectancy (time
lived in good health) is five
years longer by 2026

Rate of harmful levels of alcohol
consumption reduced by 4%
and drug related deaths lower
than Scotland by 2026.

Prosperous Place:

Addressing climate change by
reducing Aberdeen’s carbon
emissions by at least 61% and
adapting to the impacts of our
changing climate

affordable heat. All other ALEOs offer
subsidised or prioritised provision for
those most in need. All ALEOs offer
training and employment opportunities to
local people and offer arange of pathways
into employment.  All three of these
stretch outcomes are reflected in the
Objectives and scoring matrix.

Four of the prosperous people outcomes
are particularly impacted by this report
although, in real terms, all have the
potential to be impacted. Supporting the
health and wellbeing of citizens and more
vulnerable groups has been reflected in
the Objectives and scoring matrix.

Climate change is a key area of focus for
this ALEO review and this has been
reflected in the Objectives and scoring
matrix.

Regional and city strategies

Climate Change Plan 2021-2025

Council strategies

Medium Term Financial Strategy

The proposals within this report support
the delivery of the Climate Change Plan
2021-25 as net zero has been a objective
within the process.

The Medium Term Financial Strategy
assumed a saving has been realised by
our ALEOS and therefore a 40%
weighting was applied to financial saving
as part of the process.

Page 24




9. IMPACT ASSESSMENTS

Assessment Outcome
Integrated Impact Stage 1 impact assessments have been completed for
Assessment all options. These will continue to be developed as

options are presented to the Council budget or are
brought back to Council for formal approval.

Data Protection Impact | Not required
Assessment

Other None

10. BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

11. APPENDICES

Appendix A - Project Definition Document

Appendix B — Options Appraisal: Aberdeen Heat and Power
Appendix C — Options Appraisal: Bon Accord Care
Appendix D — Options Appraisal: Aberdeen Performing Arts
Appendix E — Options Appraisal: Sport Aberdeen

Appendix F — Options Appraisal: Aberdeen Sports Village

12. REPORT AUTHOR CONTACT DETAILS

Name Eleanor Sheppard

Title Interim Director Children and Families
Email Address = esheppard@aberdeencity.gov.uk

Tel 01224 522707

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



VIS . . el Project Stage
i Project Definition Document _
ABERDEEN Define
CITY COUNCIL
Reconfiguration of working arrangements with our Arm’s 06/07/23

Length External Organisations (ALEOs)

Purpose of To consolidate and summarise the purpose of the project, whatit is trying to achieve and
document its governance arrangements.

1. Project Purpose

The above project, agreed as part of the transformation programme within TOM 1.2, stated that the project
would be “a phased approach looking at key strands, starting with a fresh review of all SLAs, ALEO Business
Plans and usage of estate, toinform an option appraisal on potential alternative delivery models. The project
will alsolooktodeliverclearsocial outcomesthrough enhanced collaboration of early intervention
programmes”.

This Project Definition Document (PDD) outlines the approach to deliverthe next stage of the project, which is
to carry out an option appraisal and complete an Outline Business Case identifying the preferred delivery
model for each of the ALEOs:

= Sport Aberdeen
= Bon Accord Care
= Aberdeen PerformingArts
= AberdeenHeatand Power

Aberdeen Sports Villageis ajointventure between Aberdeen City Council and the University of Aberdeen.
Therefore, ithas a differentlegal formfromthe council’s ALEQ’s. Giventhe Jointventure is withinthe council’s
Group structure and there are concerns about its financial sustainability, partnersin the jointventure have
agreedto participate in this project. Both parties to the Joint venture, recognise that any variation to the
currentjointagreementwould require the agreement of both parties to the jointventure.

2. Project Goals

= The Council’s working arrangements with our ALEOs is managed and delivered to support the achievement of
Local Outcome Improvement Plan (LOIP) outcomes and improved performance levels, as agreed within
revised Service Level Agreements (SLAs).

= The Council’s ALEOs workin collaboration with each other, the Council, and partners (both third sectorand
private), with an operating model thatis able to easily flexto shifting demands without compromising other
areas of the business. The model includes aclearframework for what work is delivered in house and what
work is commissioned through partners.

= The Council’s ALEOs have clear budget accountability and ownership, with increased efficiencies and income
generation, and reduced reliance on subsidy from the Council.

= The Council’sjointventure, Aberdeen Sport Village, contributes to and benefits from any revisions made to
the Council’s group arrangements.

Page 27



VAT ] L. Project Stage
Wy Project Definition Document _
ABERDEEN Define
CITY COUNCIL
3. Project Roles and Responsibilities
Role Responsibility Person(s)
Executive Steering | = Approvesthe PDD. CEO, Managing Directors of
Group = Agreesoptionsto be taken forward as part of the options | ALEOs/ASV and
(Project Board) appraisal. representative fromthe

= Responsibility for overseeing the options appraisal and
delivery of an Outline Business Case (OBC).

» Providesstrategicdirectiontothe Working Group.

= Allocates resources and approves any changestothe
objectives, governance, and deliverables.

= Championsthe projectand embed effective and
meaningful partnership working.

= Lead onengagementwith Sport Scotland.

UoA

SeniorResponsible
Owner

= Ultimate accountability for successful implementation of
the project, following the required approval by ACCfor
changes affectingits ALEQO’s and following the required
approval of all parties to the Aberdeen Sports Village
JointVenture.

= Member of the Executive Steering Group (Project Board).

= Provides progress updates, and any required escalations,
to the Executive Steering Group (Project Board).

= Chairsthe Working Group.

= Directsthe Working Group and has responsibility for
achieving project deliverables.

Interim Director Children
and Families

Project Manager

* Implements agreed project governance arrangements,
including ownership of the projectteam’s site.

= Developsand ownsthe project planand progress
reporting arrangements.

= Leadsand supports the Working Group in any aspect of
the delivery of project tasks.

= Leadsthe delivery of the optionsappraisal, in
conjunction with the Working Group.

= Leadson the developmentof the Outline Business Case.

= Responsibility for day-to-day management of the project.

= Facilitatesthe Executive Steering Group (Project Board).

= Supportsthe Senior Responsible Ownerwith the
progress reportingto the Executive Steering Group
(Project Board).

Service Manager PMO

Working Group

= Collate all datarequirementsforthe completion of the
options appraisal.

= Carry out analysis of all datarequirements.

= Participate in workshops as part of the options appraisal.

= Deliverthe options appraisal outlininga preferred option
for each ALEO.

= Supportthe Project Manager with the development of
the Outline Business Case.

ALEO/JV representatives
ACCFinance
ACCPeopleand
Organisation

ACC Legal

Page 28




7=,

& E]

.;;:;, Project Definition Document
ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

Project Stage

Define

4. Programme Governance Arrangements

= Keydeliverablesand actions will be documented, updated, and monitoredinthe Project Plan.
= Project Manager, in conjunction with the Working Group, are responsible forensuring the planis ontrack

and updates provided as necessary.

= The Working Group will meetas and whenrequired with separate groups being established as necessary

dependingonthe requirementsto best meetthe needs of delivering the options appraisal.

= Meetings of the Working Group, and/or separate groups, will be facilitated by the Project Manager.
= Executive Steering Group (Project Board) will meeton 7 July 2023, 14 August 2023, and 18 September

2023.
= The Project Manager will own the governance documents.

= All project documentation willbe held inthe dedicated Microsoft teams’ site, and project collaboration

should be through the teamssite.

5. Project Deliverables

Key Deliverable Date
= Agree Project Definition Document 07/07/23
= Agree Executive Steering Group (Project Board) and Working Group members 07/07/23
= Agree options fortaking forward as part of the options appraisal 07/07/23
= Agree datarequirements 07/07/23
= Define options appraisal criteria 14/07/23
= Schedule all required workshops 14/07/23
= Receive all dataand complete initialanalysis 21/07/23
= Complete options appraisal workshops 07/08/23
= Complete options appraisal documentation with preferred option(s) 07/08/23
= Project Board consideration of options appraisal and preferred option(s) 14/08/23
= Draft Outline Business Case and Delivery Plan 09/09/23
= Project Board consideration of Outline Business Case and Delivery Plan 18/09/23
= ASV consideration of Outline Business Case and Delivery Plan 19/09/23
= Engagementwith Sport Scotland 20/09/23
= Finalise Outline Business Case and Delivery Plan 20/09/23
= Submit Outline Business Case and Delivery Plan for Council pre agenda 20/09/23
= Finalise Outline Business Case and Delivery Plan 28/09/23
= Submit Outline Business Case and Delivery Plan forfinal report deadline 29/09/23
= Council meeting 11/10/23
6. Document Revision History
Version Revision description and reason By Date

Page 29




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30



Agenda Iltem 9.3

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

COMMITTEE Council

DATE 11 October 2023

EXEMPT No

CONFIDENTIAL No

REPORT TITLE Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2023 — Proposed
Aberdeen Planning Guidance and Supplementary
Guidance

REPORT NUMBER COM/23/303

DIRECTOR Gale Beattie

CHIEF OFFICER David Dunne

REPORT AUTHOR David Berry

TERMS OF REFERENCE | 11

11

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

PURPOSE OF REPORT

This report updates Members on a recent period of public consultation on
proposed Aberdeen Planning Guidance and Supplementary Guidance to
support the Local Development Plan 2023. It presents a summary of the
comments received during the public consultation along with officer responses
to the consultation comments. It also outlines the modifications to the Aberdeen
Planning Guidance and Supplementary Guidance documents that are
proposed following the consultation.

The report seeks approval to adopt the proposed Aberdeen Planning Guidance
as non-statutory planning advice to support the Local Development Plan 2023.
It also seeks approval to submit the proposed Supplementary Guidance to
Scottish Ministers for formal ratification and to thereafter adoptit as part of the
statutory development plan alongside the Local Development Plan 2023.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Council:-

Note the comments received during the recent public consultation on the
proposed Aberdeen Planning Guidance and Supplementary Guidance
documents, and approve officers’ responses to the consultation comments, as
outlined in Appendix 1.

Note that officers have reviewed the draft Aberdeen Planning Guidance and
Supplementary Guidance documents to take account of National Planning
Framework 4 (NPF4) and have suggested minor technical changes to the
documents as a resullt.

Note the ongoing partnership working between officers within Strategic Place

Planning and Public Health Scotland and NHS Grampian to understand how
each document relates either directly or in-directly to improving health and

Page 31



2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

3.1

3.2

wellbeing and working towards achieving the Public Health Priorities for
Scotland.

Agree the proposed Aberdeen Planning Guidance documents in Appendix 2
and approve their adoption as non-statutory planning advice to support the
Local Development Plan 2023.

Agree the proposed Supplementary Guidance on Planning Obligations in
Appendix 3 and adoptitas Interim Planning Advice until such time as it can be
formally adopted as statutory Supplementary Guidance in accordance with
recommendation 2.6 below.

Instruct the Chief Officer — Strategic Place Planning to submit the proposed
Supplementary Guidance on Planning Obligations to Scottish Ministers for
ratification and, once this is received, adopt the document as statutory
Supplementary Guidance to accompany the Local Development Plan 2023.

Instruct the Chief Officer — Strategic Place Planning to update the draft
Aberdeen Planning Guidance on Wind Turbine Development in light of
consultation responses received and the policy shift within NPF4 and
incorporate it within draft Aberdeen Planning Guidance on Renewable Energy
Development, a draft of which should be reported to the Planning Development
Management Committee within 12 months.

Agree that the following historic non-statutory planning advice notes, which
supported the 2017 Local Development Plan, are no longer required and should
be revoked:

e Hillhead Campus Planning Brief

e Pinewood / Hazledene Planning Brief

e Murcar Development Framework

e Fire Station, North Anderson Drive Planning Brief
CURRENT SITUATION

Members will recall that the new Local Development Plan 2023 was formally
adopted on 19 June 2023. The Local Development Plan focuses on the vision,
spatial strategy and key policies and proposals for the future development of
Aberdeen.

The Council can also adopt additional supporting guidance in connection with
the Local Development Plan and this can be used to provide more detail on
how its policies and proposals will be implemented. At present, this guidance
can either be statutory or non-statutory. Statutory guidance, known formally as
Supplementary Guidance, has the same status as the Local Development Plan
for the purposes of planning decision making. The Local Development Plan
must contain a specific statement to confirm any topics that are proposed to be
covered by statutory Supplementary Guidance. Non-statutory guidance, whilst
not part of the statutory development plan, can also be treated as a material
consideration in planning decisions and is a more flexible type of guidance

Page 32



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

which can be more readily prepared and updated to reflect changing
circumstances.

Under the terms of the Planning (Scotland) Act 2019, local authorities will not
be able to produce statutory Supplementary Guidance to support future
development plans. As such, it is considered appropriate to respond to this
emerging change in legislation by developing a suite of non-statutory Aberdeen
Planning Guidance documents to support the Local Development Plan 2023.
In addition, one piece of statutory Supplementary Guidance is proposed to
cover the topic of planning obligations (also referred to as ‘developer
contributions’), as the Local Development Plan specifically states that this
subject will be covered by statutory Supplementary Guidance.

A series of draft Aberdeen Planning Guidance documents and a draft
Supplementary Guidance document on Planning Obligations were agreed at
Council on 14 December 2022 and approved for a period of public consultation
(report number COM/22/284). Two additional draft Aberdeen Planning
Guidance documents were also approved for inclusion in the public consultation
at the February 2023 meeting of the Planning Development Management
Committee (reports PLA/23/046 and PLA/23/050).

An eight-week period of public consultation on the draft Aberdeen Planning
Guidance and Supplementary Guidance documents was held from 24 February
2023 to 21 April 2023. A total of 30 respondents submitted comments during
the consultation period. A number of the respondents commented on multiple
Aberdeen Planning Guidance and Supplementary Guidance documents.

A summary of the comments received on each of the draft Aberdeen Planning
Guidance and Supplementary Guidance documents is set out in Appendix 1.
Appendix 1 also sets out officer responses to the consultation comments and,
where necessary, outlines proposed changes to the draft Aberdeen Planning
Guidance and Supplementary Guidance documents — a “you said, we did”
approach to consultation feedback.

Officers have also reviewed the draft Aberdeen Planning Guidance and
Supplementary Guidance documents to take account of National Planning
Framework 4 (NPF4), which was adopted by Scottish Ministers on 13 February
2023. NPF4 has replaced the former national planning guidance and policies in
NPF3 and Scottish Planning Policy (SPP), which were in force when the draft
Aberdeen Planning Guidance and Supplementary Guidance was written.
Technical changes are therefore proposed to the Aberdeen Planning Guidance
and Supplementary Guidance documents to replace outdated NPF3 and SPP
references with updated references to NPF4 wherever possible. These
technical changes are minor in nature and have not changed the basic policy
intent of the documents. The only exception to this relates to the draft Aberdeen
Planning Guidance on Wind Turbine Developments. NPF4 sets out a
significantly different approach to wind turbine developments when compared
with the former SPP. As such, the draft Aberdeen Planning Guidance on this
topic is considered to require more substantial review. Given the importance
that NPF4 places on renewable and low carbon energy generation as part of a
wider response to the climate and nature crises, it is recommended that the

Page 33



3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

draft Aberdeen Planning Guidance on Wind Turbine Developments should be
subjected to a more comprehensive review and incorporated into a wider draft
Aberdeen Planning Guidance document on Renewable Energy Development.
It is recommended that this draft document should be reported to the Planning
Development Management Committee within 12 months.

A general statement has also been added to each of the long-standing site-
based documents to draw attention to the adoption of NPF4. Notwithstanding
the adoption of NPF4, the content of the site-based documents remains
relevant and up-to-date as an expression of the key principles which should be
taken into account in the development of each site.

In reviewing the draft Aberdeen Planning Guidance and Supplementary
Guidance documents, officers have also taken the opportunity to further
develop the health in all policies approach, which helped to shape the Local
Development Plan 2023. Working with colleagues from Public Health Scotland
and NHS Grampian, each document has been reviewed, firstly to understand
how the content of each document relates to health and wellbeing and which of
the six Public Health Priorities for Scotland it can help to achieve. All of the
documents relate either directly or in-directly to improving health and wellbeing
and towards achieving at least one of the six Public Health Priorities for
Scotland. Secondly, the documents have been assessed to determine their
potential level of impact on health and wellbeing; this will help to frame any
possible health impact assessments should they be required. Additional text
has been added to each of the documents to reflect this. It isthe intention of
officers to build on the successful partnership working with Public Health
Scotland and NHS Grampian in order to monitor the impact and effectiveness
of these documents and to assess whether amendments or further detail will
be required in future reviews.

Finally, a small number of other technical updates and clarifications have been
incorporated, where necessary, to reflect changes in circumstances since the
draft Aberdeen Planning Guidance and Supplementary Guidance documents
were written, such as changes to other national guidance and good practice
advice.

The proposed updated suite of Aberdeen Planning Guidance documents is set
out in Appendix 2, and a proposed Supplementary Guidance document on
Planning Obligations is included at Appendix 3. A summary of the key changes
in each document is set out in Table 1 below. It is worth noting that the list of
documents in this Table will be added to throughout the period of the Local
Development Plan 2023 as new policy or site specific documents are produced,
for example the proposed Masterplan for the Energy Transition Zone and
proposed further guidance on health impact assessments for new
developments.

Page 34



Table 1: Proposed Changes to Draft Documents

Document Title

| Key Change/s to Draft Document

Topic Area: Health an

d Wellbeing

Air Quality

Updated references to sometechnical guidance. Otherwise,
no significant changes.

Noise

Hyperlink updated. Text added to Appendix A giving context
to Noise Management Areas / Quiet Areas.

Topic Area: Placemak

ing by Design

Energetica

Minor technical changes.

Temporary Buildings

Minor technical changes.

Amenity Merged with Space Standards (see below). Minor
(New) typographical changes and reordering to ensure clarity.
Space Standards Merged with Amenity (see above).

(New) Minor text changes to add clarity regarding affordable

housing.

(NB - this document was approved for consultation
purposes by the Planning Development Management
Committee on 9 February 2023 [report no. PLA/23/050] and
was incorporated within the overall consultation)

The Sub-Division and
Redevelopment of
Residential Curtilages

Minor typographical changes.

Conversion of
Buildings in the
Countryside

No significant change.

Development Along
Lanes

Minor cartographical change.

Materials: External
Building Materials and

Minor typographical changes.

Their Use in

Aberdeen

Aberdeen Minor changes to reflect new legislation and processes.
Placemaking Process

Big Buildings No significant change.

A Guide to Planning
Consents for the
Aberdeen Inner City
Multis

No significant change.

Landscape

Minor text changes to increase clarity.

Stonecleaning

No significant change.

The Repair and
Replacement of
Windows and Doors

No significant change.

Shops and Signs

No significant change.

Repair and
Reinstatement of Cast
Iron Railings

No significant change.

Topic Area: Vibrant Ci

ty

Hierarchy of Centres

No significant change.

Harmony of Uses

No significant change.

Serviced Apartments

No significant change.

Topic Area: Supporting Business and Industrial Development

Page 35




Document Title

Key Change/s to Draft Document

Aberdeen
International Airport
and Perwinnes Radar

Change in the title of the APG to include Perwinnes Radar.
Number of minor updates to the text throughout.
One map updated and four maps added for clarity.

Topic Area: Meeting Housing and Community Needs

Householder
Development Guide

Minor amendments to increase clarity.

Affordable and
Specialist Housing

Increased emphasis on need for early engagement with
Council’s Housing Strategy Team to agree mostappropriate
approach for providing affordable housing .

Clarification that affordable housing should broadly reflect
the mix of dwelling types and sizes in the open market
element of residential developments.

Houses in Multiple
Occupation and
Overprovision
(New)

No significant change.

Children’s Nurseries

No significant change.

Gypsy Traveller Sites

Minor terminology clarifications.

Student
Accommodation

Removal of requirement for student housing developments
to contribute towards affordable housing.

Topic Area: Delivering Infrastructure, Transport and Accessibility

Transport and

Accessibility

Changes throughout to improve layout and readability of
document.

Additional diagrams and images.

Technical information largely moved to an appendix section.
A designing accessible places section has been added
which has a design focus.

Building standards electric car charging data updated to
match most up-to-date regulations.

Reference to wheeling added and requirement to keep
pavement passable where EV charging points are added.

Topic Area: Protecting and Enhancing the Natural Environment

Open Space and
Green Infrastructure

Added definitions of green and blue infrastructure and
clarifications around maintenance to reflect NPF4.
Clarification that minimum open space standards might not
be deliverable on all brownfield sites, and that financial
contributions towards off site open space enhancements
may be sought instead in such cases.

Natural Heritage

Minor technical clarifications.

Flooding, Drainage
and Water Quality

Minor text and technical clarifications.

Trees and Woodland

Minor technical clarifications.

Food Growing
(New)

Minor technical clarifications.
Amendment to guidance for major developments to ensure
consistency with guidance for local developments.

Outdoor Access
(New)

Minor technical clarifications.

Topic Area: Sustainable Use of Resources

Waste Management
Requirements for
New Developments

Minor technical clarifications.

Resources for New
Developments

No significant change.
(NB - this document was approved for consultation
purposes by the Planning Development Management

Page 36




Document Title

Key Change/s to Draft Document

Committee on 9 February 2023 [report no. PLA/23/046] and
was incorporated within the overall consultation)

Site Based Guidance

Countesswells
Development
Framework and
Phase One
Masterplan

No significant change.

Dubford Development
Framework

No significant change.

Former Davidson’s
Mill Development
Framework and
Masterplan

No significant change.

Friarsfield
Development
Framework

No significant change.

Grandhome
Development
Framework

No significant change.

Maidencraig
Masterplan

No significant change.

Newhills Development
Framework

No significant change.

Oldfold Development
Framework and
Masterplan

No significant change.

Persley
Den/Woodside
Masterplan

No significant change.

Rowett North AECC
Development
Framework

No significant change.

Bridge of Don AECC
Development
Framework

No significant change.

Statutory Supplement

ary Guidance

Planning Obligations

Revertto 7 year period for spending developer contributions
(as per 2017 Supplementary Guidance) rather than 10
years as proposed in the draft document. This will strike a
more appropriate balance between allowing sufficient time
to spend contributions whilst retaining a clear relationship
with the contributing development.

Threshold for seeking contributions towards education
facilities amended to instances where relevant school is
operating over or is forecastto exceed 95% of capacity. This
reflects the upper limit for efficient school operation as
outlined in the School Estate Plan.

Amendments to education mitigation rates in response to
consultation comments and publication of updated data.

Minor technical clarifications.

Page 37




3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

4.1

4.2

4.3

Subject to approval, the Aberdeen Planning Guidance and Supplementary
Guidance documents will be enhanced visualy by the Council's
Communications Team.

The final versions of the Aberdeen Planning Guidance documents will be
published on the Council’'s website and their adoption will be advertised via the
social media platforms and the Local Development Plan Newsletter. On
adoption, the documents will become a material consideration in the
determination of future planning applications.

Subject to approval, the final version of the Supplementary Guidance on
Planning Obligations will be submitted to Scottish Ministers to seek ratification
for it be adopted as Supplementary Guidance alongside the Local Development
Plan 2023. Subject to such ratification, the adopted Supplementary Guidance
will be published online and advertised via the Council’'s website, social media
platforms and the Local Development Plan Newsletter. On adoption, it will form
part of the statutory development plan alongside the Local Development Plan
2023.

It is also worth noting that several non-statutory planning advice notes which
previously supported the 2017 Local Development Plan are considered by
officers to no longer be required and it is therefore recommended that these
documents be revoked and removed from the Council’s website. These mostly
comprise guidance for sites that are now either complete or substantially
complete. They include the following:

Hillhead Campus Planning Brief

Pinewood / Hazledene Planning Brief

Murcar Development Framework

Fire Station, North Anderson Drive Planning Brief

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report as the cost of
preparing Aberdeen Planning Guidance and Supplementary Guidance is met
through existing staff time and resource budgets.

As a major landowner in the City, proposals for the development of land and
assets owned by Aberdeen City Council and any planning applications for
development undertaken by or on behalf of the City Council will, where
applicable, be subject to assessment against the Aberdeen Planning Guidance
and Supplementary Guidance. This may have financial implications for the
Council as a developer.

The proposal to retain the existing 7-year time limit for spending future
developer contributions (rather than increasing it to 10 years as proposed in the
draft version of the Supplementary Guidance) will need to be taken into account
within the Council's future capital planning processes, such as the School
Estate Plan. However, this does not represent a significant change to existing
practice, as the Council currently applies a 7-year period for spending most
developer contributions.

Page 38



5.1

6.1

7.1

7.2

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct legal implications arising from this report. Whilst the
proposed Aberdeen Planning Guidance will not form part of the statutory
development plan, itis important that this guidance is retained in a new non-
statutory form and it will be a material consideration to inform decisions on
future planning applications in Aberdeen. Any person who is aggrieved by the
content of the final adopted supplementary guidance may submit an application
to the Court of Session to question its validity and to request that it be quashed
in whole or in part.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

Having an up-to-date suite of Aberdeen Planning Guidance and Supplementary
Guidance to support the Local Development Plan 2023 will lead to positive
environmental impacts by helping to ensure that all new developments in the
City are appropriately sited and designed to avoid adverse impacts on the
environment. Each of the proposed Aberdeen Planning Guidance documents
has been subject to a Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) pre-
screening process in accordance with relevant legislation. The Planning
Obligations Supplementary Guidance was assessed within the Environmental
Report: Strategic Environmental Assessment and Habitats Regulation
Appraisal for the Local Development Plan 2023 in accordance with relevant
legislation.

RISK

Risk Appetite

The assessment of risk contained within the table below is considered to be
consistent with the Council's Risk Appetite Statement.

Management Of Risk

The Local Development Plan 2023 was recently adopted. A new suite of
proposed Aberdeen Planning Guidance and Supplementary Guidance
documents therefore now needs to be adopted to support the new Local
Development Plan and ensure continuity inthe provision of comprehensive, up-
to-date and relevant planning frameworks.

Category Risks Primary *Target *Does

Controls/Control Risk Level Target
Actions to achieve (L, M or H) Risk

Target Risk Level Level
*taking into

account Match
controls/control Appetite
actions
Set?

Strategic Ensuring up to | Ensure that final L Yes

Risk date and versions of the
relevant Aberdeen Planning

Page 39



planning
guidance to
support the
new Local
Development
Plan.

Guidance and
Supplementary
Guidance documents
(as modified following
the recent period of
public consultation on
draft versions of the
documents) are
adopted timeously.

Compliance | Ensuring that Ensure that final Yes
the former versions of the
Supplementary | Aberdeen Planning
Guidance 2017 | Guidance and
(which no Supplementary
longer has any | Guidance documents
status following | (as modified following
adoption of the | the recent period of
Local public consultation on
Development draft versions of the
Plan 2023) is documents) are
replaced with adopted timeously.
new Aberdeen
Planning
Guidance and
Supplementary
Guidance to
comply with
relevant
planning
legislation.

Operational | Ensuring Ensure that final Yes
timeously versions of the
published and | Aberdeen Planning
adopted Guidance and
supporting Supplementary
guidance for Guidance documents
the new Local | (as modified following
Development the recent period of
Plan to avoid public consultation on
delays in the draft versions of the
issuing of documents) are
planning adopted timeously.
application
determinations.

Financial Not having Ensure that final Yes
timeously versions of the
published and | Aberdeen Planning
adopted Guidance and
supporting Supplementary

guidance for
the new Local

Guidance documents
(as modified following

Page 40




Development
Plan could
lead to
uncertainty at
planning
application
stage and
potentially lead
to more staff
time being
spent
processing
applications. It
may also
reduce the
ability to
secure
developer
contributions
from future

the recent period of
public consultation on
draft versions of the
documents) are
adopted timeously.

planning
applications.

Reputational | The planning Ensure that final Yes
authority has versions of the
consistently Aberdeen Planning
reviewed the Guidance and
Local Supplementary
Development Guidance documents
Plan and (as modified following
supplementary | the recent period of
guidance public consultation on
within the draft versions of the
statutory documents) are
review period. | adopted timeously.
Failure to
continue this
could damage
the Council's
reputation as a
planning
authority.

Environment | Ensuring that Each of the proposed Yes

/ Climate planning Aberdeen Planning
frameworks Guidance documents
take into has been subject to a

consideration Strategic

the relevant Environmental
environmental | Assessment (SEA)
and climate pre-screening process
change in accordance with
legislation at relevant legislation.

Page 41




the point of
their
development
and
production.

The proposed
Planning Obligations
Supplementary
Guidance was
assessed within the
Environmental Report:
Strategic
Environmental
Assessment and
Habitats Regulation
Appraisal for the Local
Development Plan in
accordance with
relevant legislation.

8. OUTCOMES

COUNCIL DELIVERY PLAN 2022-2023

Impact of Report

Aberdeen City Council
Policy Statement

Working in Partnership for
Aberdeen

The proposed Aberdeen Planning Guidance and
Supplementary Guidance within this report will
support the delivery of many aspects of the policy
statement — primarily under the headings of ‘A City
of Opportunity’, ‘A Vibrant City’, ‘Building a Greener
and Sustainable City’, ‘Greener Transport, Safer
Streets, Real Choices’, ‘Homes for the Future’, ‘An
Active City, and ‘A Prosperous City. I will
particularly support the following aspects of the
policy statement:-

e Review and invest in our school estate,
ensuring all of Aberdeen’s schools are fit for
the educational needs and the challenges of
the 215t century

e Improving cycle and active transport
infrastructure

e Work with partners to produce a ten-year plan
to increase the stock and variety of Council
and social housing

e Expand Aberdeen’s district heating network

e Repeal the guidance that exempts student
accommodation developers from affordable
housing contributions

e Back Sport Aberdeen in their efforts to invest
in and improve sporting facilities

e Work with partners to stimulate sustainable
economic development

Aberdeen City Local Outcome Improvement Plan

Page 42



https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/documents/s129382/Council%20Delivery%20Plan.pdf
https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/documents/s134067/WorkinginPartnershipPolicyStatement.pdf
https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/documents/s134067/WorkinginPartnershipPolicyStatement.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/Final-LOIP-2016-26-Refreshed-July-21.pdf

Prosperous Economy
Stretch Outcomes

The proposed Aberdeen Planning Guidance and
Supplementary Guidance will help to support the
Stretch Outcome ‘No one will suffer due to poverty
by 2026. The guidance will help to support
sustainable economic growth and create a
framework for the delivery of new energy efficient
homes which will help reduce fuel poverty for
residents.

Prosperous Place Stretch
Outcomes

The proposed Aberdeen Planning Guidance and
Supplementary Guidance will support Place Stretch
Outcomes 13 — 15 by providing guidance to ensure
that new developments within the City are designed
to achieve high standards of energy efficiency,
encourage sustainable methods of travel, and to
achieve net gains for biodiversity wherever possible.

Regional and City
Strategies

The proposed Aberdeen Planning Guidance and
Supplementary Guidance will directly support the
Strategic Dewvelopment Plan and the Local
Development Plan. It will also support the Regional
Economic Strategy and the Regional Transport
Strategy by setting out guidance to help deliver
sustainable economic development and to ensure
that new developments have proper regard to their
impacts on the transport network. Through the
proposed Planning Obligations Supplementary
Guidance, contributions will also be sought where
appropriate from new developments towards
infrastructure enhancements such as schools and
other community facilities. This will support delivery
of the Council’'s Estates and Assets Strategies.

9. IMPACT ASSESSMENTS
Assessment Outcome
Integrated Impact Stage 1 and 2 assessment has been completed and no
Assessment medium or high negative impacts have been identified
that would require mitigation.
Data Protection Impact | Not required
Assessment
Other N/A
10. BACKGROUND PAPERS
10.1 None

Page 43




11.

111

11.2

11.3

12.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Summary of comments received during the public consultation on
the draft Aberdeen Planning Guidance and Supplementary Guidance
documents and Officer responses to them

Appendix 2 - Proposed Aberdeen Planning Guidance (click here to view online)

Appendix 3 — Proposed Supplementary Guidance (click here to view online)

REPORT AUTHOR CONTACT DETAILS

Name David Berry

Title Senior Planner

Email Address  dberry@aberdeencity.gov.uk
Tel 01224 045804

Page 44


https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=14060
https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=14071
mailto:dberry@aberdeencity.gov.uk

G abed

Appendix 1: Summary of comments received during the public consultation on the draft Aberdeen Planning Guidance and
Supplementary Guidance documents and Officer responses

Frequentlyused acronyms in this appendix:
ALDP = Aberdeen Local Development Plan
NPF4 = National Planning Framework 4

APG = Aberdeen Planning Guidance

SG = Supplementary Guidance

Respondee | Respondee Respondee | Respondee
Number Number

1 Member of the Public 22 Transport Scotland

2 Theatres Trust 23 Member of the Public
3 Culter Community Council 24 Aberdeen City Council Waste and Recycling team
4 Cults, Bieldside and Milltimber Community Council 25 Member of the Public
5 SportScotland 26 Nestrans

6 Paths for All 27 NatureScot

7 Member of the Public 28 Scottish Water

8 Member of the Public 29 Cala Homes North

9 Rosehill & Stockethill Community Council

10 University of Aberdeen

11 Old Aberdeen Heritage Society

12 Barratt and David Wilson Homes

13 Robert Gordon University

14 Kirkwood Homes

15 Homes for Scotland

16 Halliday Fraser Munro

17 Levelling Up Real Estate

18 Bancon Homes

19 Member of the Public

20 Stewart Milne Homes

21 Brodies / FRP Consulting Advisory Trading Limited




ot abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

General Comment

General
Comment

25

The general tone very broad and
unspecific.
The environmental impact
statement under the waste
disposal and management heading
is vague. It would be difficult to see
how this statement would have any
impact upon the Tullos waste
incineration plant, were it at the
lanning stage.

There is no reference to an Aberdeen Planning Guidance
document, therefore unable to establish to which
document the comment is being made. The comment
does not correlate to the content of the “Waste
Management Requirements for New Developments”
APG. Contact was made with the respondee but no
further communication was received.

No revision proposed.

Topic Area: He

alth and We

Ibeing

Air Quality

15

Highlights extensive revisions to
2017 SG and notes a “broad
brush” approach to assessment of
air quality.

It contends that air quality is not a
city-wide problem in Aberdeen and
that the guidance as drafted could
result in a requirement for Air
Quality Assessments in many
cases where this is unnecessary. It
seeks an approach where Impact
IAssessments are only sought in
areas of known air quality issues.
It also seeks clarity on the source
for the criteria in Table 2, and cites
a lack of clarity in the terminology
resulting in uncertainty over the
need for an Impact Assessment at
an early stage. It also argues that
air quality can be addressed via a

Air Quality guidance seeks to limit future impact on air
quality from development across the city in order to
prevent the need for additional Air Quality Management
areas, not just to prevent existing ones getting worse.
The information in Table 2 is sourced from Land-Use
Planning & Development Control:

Planning For Air Quality guidance produced by the
Environmental Protection UK and the Institute of Air
Quality Management.

Table 2 is prescriptive and outlines when an Air Quality
Impact Assessment would likely be sought.

Text inserted to reference
the Environmental
Protection UK and the
Institute of Air Quality
Management document.




) abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

Construction Management Plan,
and questions need for further
Impact Assessments.

Noise

IAgrees with section 2 as this
covers scenarios where new
development comes forward in
close proximity to existing noise-
generating cultural and night-time
uses.

It seeks amendmentto section 2.3
to include cultural and time-time
economy uses as main sources
which would need to be covered
within an assessment.
Inappropriate development, or that
which lacks suitable mitigation,
harms the vibrancy of the city
centre and undermines social and
cultural well-being of local people.
Document could otherwise be
seen to place limitations on
existing venues coming forward
through part 2.4.

The agreement with section 2 is welcomed.

The statutory development plan, comprising National
Development Plan 4 and the Aberdeen Local
Development Plan 2023, addresses the concerns raised
regarding cultural and time-time economy uses, and the
requirements on new developments. There is no
requirement for the Aberdeen Planning Guidance to
readdress this.

No revision proposed.

Noise

23

Seeks inclusion of the list of “Noise
Sensitive Areas” which includes
north Bridge of Don.

It also desires descriptions of
efforts to ensure helicopter
operators comply with the aims of
these defined areas are included
within the guidance.

Noise management area and quiet areas are already
described within the Glossary of the ALDP on pages 114-
115.

Candidate Quiet Areas are explained in Section 5.13 of
the ALDP.

No need to include reference to Aberdeen Airport 5-
yearly Noise Action Plan as this relates to its efforts to
control and reduce noise from its existing operations. The
purpose of the APG is to limit impact from future
development.

Added text to Appendix A
briefly summarising Noise
Management Areas / Quiet
Areas.




8 abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

Seeks inclusion of list of
“Candidate Quiet Areas”, as well
as a reference to the airport’s 5-
yearly Noise Action Plan (due in
2023), and wants clarification on
phrases ‘noise management area’,
‘quiet areas’ and ‘ candidate quiet
areas’.

Lists of quiet areas/candidate quiet areas are only
accurate at a snapshot in time. Website link should be
used to check most up-to-date status of areas.

Topic Area: Placemaking by Design

Energetica 12, 14, 15, [This guidance is unnecessaryas [The intention to retain Aberdeen Planning Guidance on |Amend the guidance to
18, 20 there is already guidance for Energetica is mentioned in the ALDP under section 7.5 [clarify that for major
design and energy efficiency, and |(page 58) and Appendix 4 (page 165). There is no developments compliance
Energetica guidance represents |evidence to suggest that the proposed guidance will stifle with Energetica criteria
another layer of bureaucracy. The |[development in the Energetica corridor, and similar should be demonstrated as
guidance may stifle development |guidance has been in place for several years (to support |part of the Design and
in the Energetica corridor. The the 2012 and 2017 Local Development Plans). Access Statement, rather
Council seeks design excellence than through a separate
across the city and excellence It is agreed, however, that the requirement for major Energetica Compliance
cannot be bettered. developments to submit a specific Energetica Statement.
Compliance Statement is onerous, as compliance with
The requirement for all major the Energetica guidance could be demonstrated as part
developments in the corridor to of the Design and Access Statement that is required for
submit an Energetica Compliance [such developments. The draft guidance already
Statement is unnecessary as recognises that Energetica compliance may be included
major applications already need a |as part of the Design and Access Statement, but a
Design and Access Statement. change is proposed to clarify that compliance should be
demonstrated as part of the Design and Access
Statement rather than through a separate Energetica
Compliance Statement.
Temporary 11 The guidance should be more The Report of Handling for application 210353/DPP No revision proposed.
Buildings robust with regards to length of outlines the decision making in respect of the annex to

temporary permissions and

requests for renewals. The

the Edward Wright Building.




61 obed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
temporary annexe to the Edward |It is not deemed desirable to add the suggested section.
\Wright Building owned by The guidance in its current form is considered to strike a
IAberdeen University was a balance between providing detail and allowing officers
problematic case. Given there is [the flexibility to make decisions on a case-by-case basis.
no policy on temporary buildings |The section proposed by the respondent is considered to
the guidance takes on more be too prescriptive.
importance. A section should be
added that states where a
temporary building is added on a
landscaped area and in a
conservation area, or affecting the
setting of a listed building or
amenity/outlook of a residential
property, then a maximum of 5
years will be allowed with no
renewal period allowed.
Temporary 28 Development seeking a public These are standard responses that Scottish Water would [No revision proposed.
Buildings water connection or connection to |apply to most applications, not specifically for temporary
wastewater network should apply |buildings. They are generally well understood by
through Scottish Water while developers. There is no need to add these matters to this
development should not drain specific guidance.
surface water into the combined
sewer. Developers should not build
over existing water and drainage
infrastructure and should contact
Scottish Water even if works fall
under permitted development.
Amenity 12, 14, 15, [Providing adequate levels of We welcome the recognition that amenity is paramount to[No revision proposed.
18, 20 amenity is essential to creating ensuing successful places.
successful places, particularly with
domestic properties.
Amenity 12, 14, 15, [The guidance is overly prescriptive|{The principle of policy D2 was addressed in the No revision proposed.
18, 20 and covers issues addressed by  [examination of the Local Development Plan, where




0S abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

building standards. The policies
within the LDP are sulfficient to
address planning related amenity
issues.

reference was made to the relationship between building
standards and planning. As outlined by the reporter,
although Aberdeen Planning Guidance is outwith the
scope of the Examination in Public being non-statutory
planning guidance, the principle of the policy, which sets
the parameters for the Aberdeen Planning Guidance,
was addressed and it was noted, “there may be a degree
of overlap with these requirements and standards
covered by building regulations. Provided there is
appropriate discussions and communication involving
planning and building standards officers along with
developers, | find that this should not complicate or
prejudice the design process.”

The focus on amenity was driven by the need to
reconnect planning, health and wellbeing, as noted in the
Planning (Act) Scotland 2019. This focus is not limited to
external design and layout of sites. The impact of good
amenity to mental, physical, emotional health and
wellbeing was identified as being of importance, this
requirement was identified before the COVID-19
pandemic, and the need and awareness of the
importance for good amenity has intensified and been
brought to the fore during the COVID-19 pandemic.

Amenity

12, 14, 15,
18, 20

Section 2.2 should be used as best]
practice and not as a benchmark
of all development, taking account
of site constraints.

The importance of site context and the overall
placemaking success of a proposal is a material
consideration in the determination of any planning
application. The Aberdeen Planning Guidance provides
further detail on one policy within the Aberdeen Local
Development Plan. A number of policies and associated
Aberdeen Planning Guidance documents, along with
national policy and guidance are considered when
coming to a decision regarding a proposal. The Aberdeen

No revision proposed.




TG obed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
Planning Guidance section 2.2 provides the benchmark
expected regarding layout, orientation, shelter and aspect
within developments, which will take account of
landscape features and solar orientation, but this is
always site context driven.
Amenity 12, 14, 15, |Strongly object to the requirement [The overlap between the two disciplines of planning and |No revision proposed.
18, 20 to provide sunlight and daylight building standards are addressed above. The impact of
calculations to support good amenity to mental, physical, emotional health and
development proposals and to alsolwellbeing was identified as being of importance, this
provide these for proposals requirement was identified before the COVID-19
affecting existing buildings; this is [pandemic, and the need and awareness of the
addressed through building importance for good amenity has intensified and been
standards. brought to the fore during the COVID-19 pandemic.
Amenity 12, 14, 15, [The requirement to provide The importance of site context and the overall No revision proposed.
18, 20 sunlight and daylight calculations, [placemaking success of a proposal is a material
and consider privacy and outlook [consideration in the determination of any planning
will hinder the redevelopment of |application. The Aberdeen Planning Guidance provides
brownfield / urban development. |further detail on one policy within the Aberdeen Local
This contravenes the aims of Development Plan. A number of policies and associated
NPF4 and the ALDP. Amenity Aberdeen Planning Guidance documents, along with
should be considered on a site by [national policy and guidance are considered when
site basis and taken into account [coming to a decision regarding a proposal.
the site context and
circumstances.
Amenity 29 The requirements to provide The requirement to provide information to support No revision proposed.

information may make the planning
process more difficult and onerous.
Sunlight to gardens and open
spaces can be assessed based on
the submitted plans rather than
requiring detailed assessmentsto
be submitted with applications.

development proposals is noted in the Aberdeen
Planning Guidance. Outlining what is required at an early
stage will provide clarity, rather than the potential for
delaying the planning process after the application has
been submitted and is live.




2S obed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation

Amenity 29 \With warming temperatures, The impact of climate change is a planning concern is as |No revision proposed.

expected through future climate |outlined within NPF4; south facing windows have the

change, combined with advantage of passive solar gain thereby reducing the

increasingly insulated and airtight |need to mechanically heat a home.

homes, from building standards, |There are a number of ways to address overheating

there is greater concern for which do not require the need for mechanical ventilation,

overheating. With the need for such as the use of internal blinds, shutters or curtains.

south facing windows, mechanical |[External shading provision can be achieved by large

\ventilation may be required to overhangs and louvers but should be based on the need

address this issue. for it; it can restrict daylight from entering the space.
Space 12, 14, 15, [The guidance is overly prescriptive At a national level, within Housing to 2040 —there is an  |No revision proposed.
Standards 18, 20 and we object on this basis. Space|awareness that housing is required to be adaptable so it

Standards are the concern of
building standards, not the
planning system.

can change to meet people’s needs. Housing to 2040
goes on to outline an expectation that homes need to be
of a high quality and sustainable — to do so all homes are
well designed and of a high standard, allowing all people
to live well no matter what kind of home or tenure they
live in.

More recently, NPF4 Policy 16 part c identifies
“Development proposals for new homes that improve
affordability and choice by being adaptable to changing
and diverse needs, and which address identified gaps in
provision, will be supported”. The Scottish Government
consultation on “Enhancing the accessibility, adaptability
and usability of Scotland’s Homes” makes it clear that,
NPF4 “supports proposals for new homes that improve
affordability and choice by being

adaptable to changing and diverse needs. This includes
accessible, adaptable and

wheelchair accessible homes”




€G abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

The Aberdeen City and Shire Housing Needs and
Demand Assessment outlines the need for easily
adaptable homes, a projected increase in the number of
older households, who will most likely require adaptations
to homes, this is easier to achieve with space.

Minimum space standards have been the remit of
building standards, but there is a clear push into the
planning system in terms of adaptability, and ensuring
that housing is fit for purpose for current and future
needs. As is proposed in the Scottish Government
consultation on “Enhancing the accessibility, adaptability
and usability of Scotland’s Homes” “As all developments
are subject to planning considerations we would expect
developers and planners to work together to implement
the enhanced provisions we are proposing”.

Space
Standards

12, 14, 15,
18, 20

The space standards will hamper
brownfield and city centre living
strategies.

The guidance is clear that conversion will be assessed
on an individual and case by case basis, and that due to
various factors such as: historic interest, statutory
designations and the location and floorplates of existing
buildings, it may be necessary to compromise on the floor
areas where there is no feasible alternative or where
other benefits would be achieved.

With regard to new builds within brownfield or city centre
locations, the importance of site context and the overall
placemaking success of a proposal is a material
consideration in the determination of any planning
application. The Aberdeen Planning Guidance provides
further detail on one policy within the Aberdeen Local
Development Plan. A number of policies and associated
Aberdeen Planning Guidance documents, along with
national policy and guidance are considered when
coming to a decision regarding a proposal.

No revision proposed.




G abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

Space
Standards

12, 14, 15,
18, 20

The garden ground requirement is
onerous

The garden lengths noted are well established through
previous Landscape Supplementary Guidance. Garden
length for any development is to be based on site
context, the lengths noted in the APG set out the
expectations required; these can be modified to take
account of context. The impact of the COVID-19
pandemic has led to an increasing awareness of the
benefit of private space.

No revision proposed.

Space
Standards

12, 14, 15,
18, 20

The guidance will lead to an
inability to provide housing and
affordable housing

The importance of site context and the overall
placemaking success of a proposal is a material
consideration in the determination of any planning
application. The Aberdeen Planning Guidance provides
further detail on one policy within the Aberdeen Local
Development Plan. A number of policies and associated
Aberdeen Planning Guidance documents, along with
national policy and guidance are considered when
coming to a decision regarding a proposal.

No revision proposed.

Space
Standards

12, 14, 15,
18, 20

Paragraph 2.1 in relation to a 3
bedroom house is of particular
concern, the standard is excessive
and exceeds the minimum
requirement of three bedroom
dwellings elsewhere is Scotland.
This should be revised.

Existing planning space standards can be found in 2
other cities within Scotland. The “Edinburgh Design
Guide” which notes space standards for dwellings
ranging from studio dwellings (35m2) to three bedroom or
more (91m2). Within Dundee’s 2019 Local Development
Plan, Design of New Housing Standards are outlined
within in appendix 4. There are standards outlined for
flats, housing sites of 5 or more units, and housing sites
of less than 5 units. The standards noted range from -2
bedrooms or a minimum gross internal floor area of 60
sgm to 3 or more bedrooms or a minimum gross internal
floor area of 100 sgm.

Noting the standards outlined above it is felt Aberdeen
City Council's space standard are not in excess of others
noted within Scotland. Again it should be recognised

No revision proposed.




GG abed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
that all planning decisions are based on a site by site
context, taking into account material considerations.
Space 12, 14, 15, [This guidance should be amended [This is a fundamental principle of the planning system. [No revision proposed.
Standards 18, 20 to acknowledge that proposals The importance of site context and the overall
should be assessed on a site-by- [placemaking success of a proposal is a material
site basis. consideration in the determination of any planning
application. The Aberdeen Planning Guidance provides
further detail on one policy within the Aberdeen Local
Development Plan. A number of policies and associated
Aberdeen Planning Guidance documents, along with
national policy and guidance are considered when
coming to a decision regarding a proposal.
Space 29 Space standards are the remit of [At a national level, within Housing to 2040 —there is an  |No revision proposed.
Standards building standards and are awareness that housing is required to be adaptable so it

developed from ‘Housing for
\Varying Needs’ and the Lifetime
Homes concept developed by the
Joseph Rowntree Foundation.

can change to meet people’s needs. Housing to 2040
goes on to outline an expectation that homes need to be
of a high quality and sustainable — to do so all homes are
well designed and of a high standard, allowing all people
to live well no matter what kind of home or tenure they
live in.

More recently, NPF4 Policy 16 part c identifies
“Development proposals for new homes that improve
affordability and choice by being adaptable to changing
and diverse needs, and which address identified gaps in
provision, will be supported”. The Scottish Government
consultation on “Enhancing the accessibility, adaptability
and usability of Scotland’s Homes” makes it clear that,
NPF4 “supports proposals for new homes that improve
affordability and choice by being adaptable to changing
and diverse needs. This includes accessible, adaptable
and wheelchair accessible homes”




9G abed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
The Aberdeen City and Shire Housing Needs and
Demand Assessment outlines the need for easily
adaptable homes, a projected increase in the number of
older household, who will most likely require adaptations
to homes, this is easier to achieve with space.
Minimum space standards have been the remit of
building standards, but there is a clear push into the
planning system in terms of adaptability, and ensuring
that housing is fit for purpose for current and future
needs. As is proposed in the Scottish Government
consultation on “Enhancing the accessibility, adaptability
and usability of Scotland’s Homes” “As all developments
are subject to planning considerations we would expect
developers and planners to work together to implement
the enhanced provisions we are proposing”.
Space 29 Having two sets of space The reference is to size standards for Aberdeen City Text amended to clarify.
Standards standards will cause confusion. Council social housing and to those required by
The reference to space standards |Registered Social Landlords.
for affordable housing is
ambiguous. If this relates to
Housing for Varying Needs, these
standards are required by
Registered Social Landlords.
Space 29 The requirement for ground floor [The ability to provide ground floor flats with privacy to the |No revision proposed.
Standards flats to have private garden areas |rear where they abut a communal garden is important,
will reduce the open space those living on upper floors will not have this possible
available to those living on upper |privacy issue.
floors, and may lead to fenced off
areas that can detract from
amenity.
Space 29 Section 2.2 with regard to no The Landscape Aberdeen Planning Guidance addresses |No revision proposed.
Standards wooden fencing in the public realm|boundary treatment further, and notes the interest,




/S abed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
should be readdressed, in key biodiversity impact, placemaking impact and nod to
locations and views there is a need|landscape character that the use of stone dykes and
to consider the appropriate planting can have.
boundary finishes along-side
landscaping proposals.
The Sub- 28 Development seeking a public These are standard responses that Scottish Water would |No revision proposed.
Division and water connection or connection to |apply to most applications. They are generally well
Redevelopment wastewater network should apply |understood by developers. There is no need to add these
of Residential through Scottish Water while to this specific guidance.
Curtilages development should not drain
surface water into the combined
sewer. The respondent also states
that developers should not build
over existing water and drainage
infrastructure and should contact
Scottish Water even if works fall
under permitted development.
Conversion of 28 'When a non-domestic property is |These are standard responses that Scottish Water would [No revision proposed.

Buildings in the
Countryside

converted to a domestic property
there is a duty on the owner
occupier to advise their Licensed
Provider of the change of use.
Development seeking a public
water connection or connection to
wastewater network should apply
through Scottish Water while
development should not drain
surface water into the combined
sewer. The respondent also states
that developers should not build
over existing water and drainage

infrastructure and should contact

apply to most applications. They are generally well
understood by developers. There is no need to add these
to this specific guidance.




3G abed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
Scottish Water even if works fall
under permitted development.
Development |28 Development seeking a public These are standard responses that Scottish Water would |No revision proposed.
Along Lanes water connection or connection to |apply to most applications. They are generally well
wastewater network should apply |understood by developers. There is no need to add these
through Scottish Water while to this specific guidance.
development should not drain
surface water into the combined
sewer. The respondent also states
that developers should not build
over existing water and drainage
infrastructure and should contact
Scottish Water even if works fall
under permitted development.
Materials: 12,14,15, [The document is too prescriptive [The document in paragraph 1.2 provides a benchmark |No revision proposed.
External 18, 20 and fails to take account of rising [for new builds and extensions, taking consideration of
Building building costs. It will restrict climate change and local distinctiveness.
Materials and bespoke development which Paragraph 2.1 states, “This advice is not designed to be
Their Use in responds to site particulars and a prescriptive list or technical specification for materials
Aberdeen may limit viability of certain ...Each development proposal will be considered on its
proposals. Materials should be merits and the context of both the immediate and wider
considered on a site-by-site basis. |area are crucial when developing ideas about material
choices, colours and detailing.” We feel this statement
provides comfort regarding the concerns raised. The
viability of development proposals is also a consideration
when assessing development.
Aberdeen 4 The intersection between Local  |We intend the relationship between Local Place Plans  |Section 7.5 has been
Placemaking Place Plans and Locality Plans will|and Locality Plans to be one of support, whereby both ~ famended to further cement
Process be minimal. The former are likely [spatial planning and community planning can understand the complementary

to be about specific land and
buildings in a much smaller area
than the proposed North, South

and Central areas of Locality

and gain further awareness of the concerns and possible
solutions coming forward from local communities
regarding their areas. It is not the intention that Locality
Plans will remove the need, desire or requirement to

relationship between Local
Place Plans and Locality
Plans.




65 obed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

Plans. We appreciate the attempt
to take a "holistic" approach but
consider that the proposed linkage
is too strong. Locality Plans are
prepared by "Local Engagement
Groups" not necessarily related to
Local Place Plans sponsorsin a
process which is currently
indeterminate and should not be
allowed to impede progress with
Local Place Plans.

Section 7.5 should be deleted.

produce Local Place Plans. As is noted in the Planning
Act 2019, the Local Place Plan Regulations 2021, and
Circular 1/2022, Local Place Plans need to have regard
to any Locality Plan for the Local Place Plan area —it is
therefore fundamental there is a complementary
relationship between documents. There will be a invite for
community bodies to prepare and submit Local Place
Plans as is outlined in our Development Plan Scheme
and Participation Statement.

Aberdeen
Placemaking
Process

12,14,15,
18,20

The document does not reflect
NPF4 policy on design, quality and
place —in particular the six
qualities of successful place.

The APG is linked back to the policies within the
Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2023, which was
adopted post NPF4. As outlined in legislation, where
there is deemed to be an incompatibility between a
development plan and NPF4, whichever is adopted later
in date is to prevail; therefore the Local Development
Plan will take precedence. Having said that, we do not
consider the difference in policy terminology to be
significant; the principles of the six qualities of successful
place noted in the Local Development Plan and in NPF4
are like-minded, and both documents are part of the
statutory development plan and will be used to assess
planning applications.

No revision proposed.

Aberdeen
Placemaking
Process

12,14,15,
18,20

There is no requirement for design
agents to prepare placemaking
guidance on behalf of landowners
and developers, as some house
builders have this capacity in-
house. Amend the wording to read:

“Placemaking guidance will usually

The document states “usually” design guidance is
prepared by a design agent, and also notes, “irrespective
of the author”. This allows for sufficient flexibility. No
matter who prepares the guidance, it must meet the
quality expected by Aberdeen City Council to be adopted
as Aberdeen Planning Guidance. No text amendments

are required.

No revision proposed.




09 abed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
be prepared by someone suitably
qualified on behalf of landowners
and developers”.
Aberdeen 27 \Welcome the preparation of this  |The support is noted and welcomed. No revision proposed.
Placemaking guidance, and support the value
Process placed on holistic, collaborative
working through the Place
Principle.
Aberdeen 27 The document does not reflect The APG is linked back to the policies within the No revision proposed.
Placemaking NPF4 in particular the six qualities [Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2023, which was
Process of successful place. adopted post NPF4. As outlined in legislation, where
there is deemed to be an incompatibility between a
development plan and NPF4, whichever is adopted later
in date is to prevail; therefore the Local Development
Plan will take precedence. Having said that, we do not
consider the difference in policy terminology to be
significant; the principles of the six qualities of successful
place noted in the Local Development Plan and in NPF4
are like-minded, and both documents are part of the
statutory development plan and will be used to assess
planning applications.
Aberdeen 27 The document should look to The comment relating to the global climate emergency |Section 1.1 updated to
Placemaking tackle the global climate and nature crisis is noted. The APG outlines a number of |include Policy NE2: Green
Process emergency and nature crisis considerations that have to be addressed in the “identity” |and Blue Infrastructure of

through placemaking through
promoting the incorporation of
nature-based solutions, blue-green
infrastructure and green networks.
The references to open space and
green infrastructure are welcomed;
the guidance should go further in

section, including environment and landscaping, which
includes enhancing biodiversity and green infrastructure
and placemaking guidance. The “connection” section
also notes, within sustainability, net zero carbon
development, the consideration of whole lifecycle and
nature-based solutions.

the Aberdeen Local
Development Plan, and
further text added to the
table to provide further
guidance on “Environment
and Landscaping” and
“Sustainability and Climate
Change”.




T9 abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

promoting these and seeking best
practice to align with NPF4.

The APG is linked back to the policies within the
Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2023, which was
adopted post NPF4. As outlined in legislation, where
there is deemed to be an incompatibility between a
development plan and NPF4, whichever is adopted later
in date is to prevail; therefore the Local Development
Plan will take precedence. Yet in matters where the Local
Development Plan is silent, NPF4 will identity the policy
principles. Both documents are part of the statutory
development plan and will be used to assess planning
applications that come forth for any master planned site.
To ensure the principle relating to green and blue
infrastructure are at the forefront of the document,
reference to the appropriate Local Development Plan
policy will be noted in paragraph 1.1.

Aberdeen 27 Section 8 ‘Content of Placemaking [This is a drafting error. Neighbourhood Capacity Officers [Text modified to show to
Placemaking Guidance’ (p.13) ‘NatureScot should be on a separate line. these are two separate
Process Neighbourhood Capacity Officers’ organizations / roles.
are mentioned. However, this
seems to be a typo and we
suggest simply using ‘NatureScot'.
Aberdeen 29 It is not appropriate or necessary |The section of the APG links directly to the preamble and [No revision proposed.
Placemaking to require a masterplan for sites  |policy H4: Housing Mix and Need, which notes sites of
Process circa 10ha and / or around 50 larger than 50 homes are to provide a masterplan to

dwellings, this contradicts an
earlier section which notes
guidance is at the discretion of the
Council. Masterplans should be
required on a case by case basis.
IAdditional processes will cause
delays to the development and
planning stages.

ensure a suitable housing mix. Paragraph 4.2 notes “and
at the discretion of the Council” — this refers to the level off
information required for guidance, not whether or not
guidance is required.

The APG is a refresh of the previous non-statutory
planning document, Aberdeen Masterplanning Process —
the preparation of a development framework, masterplan

or planning brief has been found to smooth the




29 abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

development and planning stages, as much of the site
parameters and overview work has been addressed
before an application is submitted; thereby making the
determination process more streamlined.

Big Buildings 28 Development seeking a public These are standard responses that Scottish Water would |No revision proposed.
water connection or connection to |apply to most applications, not specifically for big
wastewater network should apply |buildings. They are generally well understood by
through Scottish Water while developers. There is no need to add these to this specific
development should not drain guidance.
surface water into the combined
sewer. The respondent also states
that developers should not build
over existing water and drainage
infrastructure and should contact
Scottish Water even if works fall
under permitted development.
A Guide to
Planning No comments received on this draft APG
Consents for
the Aberdeen
Inner City Multis
Landscape 12, 14, 15, |Providing separate guidance on  [Although these topics are linked, each one is important in|No revision proposed.
18, 20 Landscape, Food Growing, Naturallits own right. Although they could be combined into one
Heritage, Trees and Woodland and/APG, it is considered that retaining separate documents
Open Space & Green will aid reading and ensure that each topic is afforded
Infrastructure suggests that ACC is|due attention. The proposed approach will also allow the
trying to be too prescriptive and  |guidance on separate topics to be updated more easily if
control too much. These topics required in the future.
should be contained within one
guidance note.
Landscape 12, 14, 15, |Paragraph 2.2.1 Requiring at least [The requirement to provide space for amenity, open No revision proposed.
18, 20 50% of external space in private [space and landscape setting in flatted developments is




9 abed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
courts to be used as amenity well established through the 2012 and 2017
space is too onerous. Supplementary Guidance documents, and prior to that
via policy 6 of the 2008 Local Plan.
The impact of the Covid-19 pandemic has led to an
increasing awareness of the benefit of amenity ground;
this is particularly heightened for flatted developments
where private space associated with individual units may
be at a premium.
Landscape 12, 14, 15, |Paragraph 2.2.4 requires The term ‘landscaped’ in the document and in particular |No revision proposed.
18, 20 embankments to be adequately [this paragraph, as it is related to the earthworks and
retained, drained and landscaped. [modelling, is the process of shaping and creating
The requirement for landscaping |embankments that follow the parameters set out earlier in
should be removed as turf can be (the paragraph — e.g. avoid sharp slopes. In this context, it
an option extra; a personal choice (would not relate to the laying of turf.
for the owner.
Landscape 12, 14, 15, [The standards should be flexible [Paragraph 2.1.2 notes the importance of site assessmentNo revision proposed.
18, 20 and assessed on a site by site and an analysis of the characterises of the site and its
basis, responding to site surroundings to create a sense of place. Paragraph 3.1
characteristics to create a sense of|notes, “new developments will be designed with due
place. This should be emphasized |consideration for their context”. Paragraph 3.4 outlines
in the document. the considerations for assessing local context. Assessing
the site for its context is paramount in the development of
landscape and landscaping within sites, as is noted in the
document.
Landscape 27 Support the content of the We welcome the support for the document. No revision proposed.

document as a standalone and
acknowledge the cross cutting
nature of the document, in
particular the relationship between
people, places and natural

environments.




9 abed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation

Landscape 27 The use of graphics in the final The document will be desktop published and the final No revision proposed.
document would be of benefit as |version, to be produced after the final committee cycle,
this can outline best practice, aid |will contain graphics.
clarity and add vibrancy.

Landscape 27 Insert into 1.2 - Paragraph 7.14 of |As noted, the Local Development Plan has already Text added on health and
the Proposed Plan notes the outlined the relationship between the health priorities for |wellbeing.
relationship between well designed|Scotland and each policy. To further continue this thread,
landscapes and health and text has been added to the APG to highlight how the
wellbeing. This should be added to|topic area relates to health and wellbeing.
the APG.

Landscape 27 Insert into 1.3 — further emphasis |The purpose of the APG is to provide further detail on the|No revision proposed.
on the value landscape has on policies within the Local Development Plan; the APG
tackling climate change and the  |should not be repeating text that is in the statutory
biodiversity loss crisis would be of |development plan.
value. The Proposed Plan 2022
outlines a number of goals that can
be supported through careful
landscape consideration including
health and wellbeing; life below
water; and sustainable cities and
communities.

Landscape 27 Paragraph 2.1.2 — welcomethe |We welcome the support. With regard to the additional  [No revision proposed.
need to retain and protect text, Policy D4 of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan,
appropriate existing landscape notes “development will provide opportunities for
elements. Adding in “enhance and [conserving and enhancing....features”. Policy D1 also
reinforce existing landscape outlines the requirement to create distinctive places, with
features (built or natural assets) as|a sense of identity and deliver biodiversity
well as incorporating enhancements. The purpose of the APG is to provide
them into the design of the further detail on the policies within the local development
development to maximise on their [plan; the APG should not be repeating text that is in the
benefits”. statutory development plan.

Landscape 27 Paragraph 2.1.2 — The inclusion of We welcome this comment. No revision proposed.

the Aberdeen Landscape




G9 abed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
Character Assessment as an
information source is positive.
Landscape 27 Paragraph 2.1.2 — bullet point 4 is |Agree. The term “Surveys” will be used. Text modified to read, ©
confusing. Clarification is sought
on the sentence, “visual analysis off "A-visual-analysis Surveys
wildlife habitats and species”. of wildlife habitats and
species, including protected
habitats and species,
designated natural heritage
sites, trees, woodlands,
waterbodies, wetlands and
other wildlife habitats and
corridors (refer also to the
Aberdeen Planning
Guidance on Natural
Heritage);”
Landscape 27 Paragraph 2.1.2 — bullet point 1 |This is noted and the change welcomed. Change actioned and
and 2 could be amalgamated — bullets amalgamated.
with the “Key views and gateways
to the city as identified in the
IAberdeen Landscape Character
IAssessment, including a more
detailed views and visual analysis
where relevant or required” added
into bullet point 1.
Landscape 27 Paragraph 2.1.3 — modify the first |The purpose of the APG is to provide further detail on theNo revision proposed.

bullet point on page 6 to consider
biodiversity enhancement in line
with NPF4 and paragraph 7.14 and
Policy D5.

policies within the local development plan; the APG
should not be repeating text that is in the statutory
development plan. Both NPF4 and the local development
plan from the statutory development plan therefore both
documents will be used to determine planning
applications.




99 abed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
Landscape 27 Paragraph 2.2.1 — include text on |This is already noted under Policy D1. The purpose of  [No revision proposed.
active frontages to create interest, {the APG is to provide further detail on the policies within
activity and a sense of place. the local development plan; the APG should not be
repeating text that is in the statutory development plan.
Landscape 27 Paragraph 3.1 —the second This section of the APG links more closely to Policy D5: [Text amended to read:
paragraph should be amended to |Landscape Design, than Policy D4: Landscape.
align more closely with D4, asit  [However, it is agreed a link to other overarching aim of [The Council’s general
provides stronger protection for Policy D4 would be of benefit within the paragraph. environmental approach to
built and natural assets. development indicates that
developments will not
adversely affect landscape /
Seascape / townscape
character and existing
elements which provide, or
contribute to, a distinct
‘sense of place be-allowed
where- they will de not
destroy or damage natural
resources or their setting,
adversely affect amenity or
be visually damaging to the
appearance or setting of
Aberdeen.
Landscape 27 Paragraph 3.3 - It is perhaps worth|Noted and welcomed. Text amended to read: “A

clarifying that formal landscape
and visual impact assessments
(LVIAs) are required as part of
Environmental Impact
IAssessments rather than simply
Environmental Assessments as
this could create confusion with

other environmental assessments

formal LVIA is often a
requirement of
Environmental Impact
Assessments.”




/9 abed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
such as Strategic Environmental
Assessment (SEA).

Landscape 27 Paragraph 3.4 - this section is well |We welcome the support for this section. The primary Text amended to read:
structured and provides a useful |policies in the local development plan associated with the
summary of landscape APG are Policy D4 and D5. Policy D4 notes, “. “...and important views are
considerations. In relation to Development will provide opportunities for conserving or [examples of the type of
landscape features, emphasis enhancing existing landscape / seascape/ townscape [feature which shall be
should be placed on retaining elements (natural and built), including linear and highlighted—and-where
existing landscape features and  |boundary features or other components which contribute feasible-orrequired;
incorporating them into them into [to character and ‘sense of place’. Policy D5 states, i i .
the development design. “Landscape Design will.. ensure a sense of place is Key features that contribute

maintained and enhanced through an assessment of the [to character will be
site and its surrounding landscape/seascape/townscape |sympathetically
character; and sympathetically incorporate existing key |incorporated”.
characteristics and features that contribute to
landscape/seascape/townscape

character”. Text modified to align more clearly to the

primary policies.

Landscape 27 Paragraph 3.4 - In relation to The paragraph has been reworked so the reference to  |[Existing text in the
\vegetation, provide direct the Natural Heritage APG is beside its associatedtext.  |paragraph moved to provide
reference to the Natural Heritage clarity.

IAPG where it states “On some
sites ecological surveys will be
required to identify important,
protected and sensitive habitats
and species” to provide greater
clarity

Landscape 27 Paragraph 3.5 — emphasis placed |This is noted and welcomed No revision proposed.
on maintenance and management
for long-term success is
welcomed.

Landscape 27 Paragraph 3.7 — strongly support |This is noted and welcomed No revision proposed.

the alignment with policy NE3 that




g9 abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

all development proposals should
make provision to achieve an
overall biodiversity gain.

Landscape

27

Paragraph 3.10 — Under ‘Green
Space Network’ include a question
on enhancement in line with Policy
NE2 — Green & Blue
Infrastructure. For example, Does
the development enhance the
Green Space Network?’

Agree this would be beneficial to add to the checklist.

Text amended as per
suggestion.

Landscape

27

Paragraph 3.10 —include a
question under ‘Site features’ or
‘Proposals’ on whether landscape
features have been incorporated
into the proposal design, for
example, ‘Does the proposal
incorporate existing and new
landscape features (built and
natural) into the design?’

Agree this would be beneficial to add to the checklist.

Text amended as per
suggestion.

Landscape

27

Paragraph 3.10 — Under ‘Open
Space’ part €) amend ‘wildlife
enhancement’ to ‘biodiversity
enhancement to provide a broader
scope.

Agree this would be beneficial to add to the checklist.

Text amended as per
suggestion.

Landscape

28

IAny risk of tree root intrusion
should be addressed by adhering
to the guidelines set out in Water
for Scotland 4th Edition and
Sewers for Scotland 4th Edition.
Copies of water or waste water
network drawings can be ordered
from Asset Plan Providers.

Comment noted. The same comment has been made
against a number of other draft APGs. Appropriate text
has been added to the final version of the Trees and
Woodlands APGs to ensure that new developments give
due consideration to this point. There is limited value in
including additional text within this APG as: i) it does not
have a directly relevant section; and ii) the entire suite of
APGs should be read as a whole so introducing
additional text in this document would result in

No revision proposed.




69 abed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
unnecessary duplication of content. No change is
recommended in the context of this APG.
Landscape 29 The guidance overlaps with the  |Although these topics are linked, each one is important in|No revision proposed.
amenity Aberdeen Planning its own right. Although they could be combined into one
Guidance, and risks a lack of APG, it is considered that retaining separate documents
awareness on this Aberdeen will aid reading and ensure that each topic is afforded
Planning Guidance. due attention. The proposed approach will also allow the
guidance on separate topics to be updated more easily if
required in the future.
Landscape 29 Section 2.2.1 —the garden lengths [The garden lengths noted are well established through  |No revision proposed.
noted are excessive. 9m garden [previous Landscape Supplementary Guidance. Garden
length should be the standard for |length for any development is to be based on site
house over 2.5 storeys. There is |context, the lengths noted in the APG set out the
no rationale for a longer garden for|expectations required; these can be modified to take
a 3 storey house. Daylight is account of context. The impact of the COVID-19
addressed in the Amenity APG. pandemic has led to an increasing awareness of the
The public can choose the benefit of private space.
requirements of their garden, and
what they seek in external spaces.
Landscape 29 Section 2.2.1 it is unclear if the list [The list of requirements is well established through Text modified to read:

of additional space requirement is
to be found within the dimensions
identified. The comment of cars is
noted; is this indicating carparking
should be accessed from alane?

The list of requirement for gardens
to be designed to allow for the
future extension of buildings
should be removed.

previous Landscape Supplementary Guidance, and
requirements can be accommodated within the
dimensions noted, if appropriate to the context, layout
and design of the development. Text has been modified.
Car parking may not be appropriate for every
development as this is context and design specific; the
transport and accessibility guidance covers car parking in
more detail. If individual car parking is proposed to be
located in garden ground, it must not cause an
obstruction to pavement or road uses.

Thinking of the ageing demographic, or new working

practices e.g. working from home and reworking of

“There must be
consideration of additional

space provided for:




0/ abed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
building layouts, the ability to add additional space can
add value to the quality of life a household. This
document is guidance; it sets out the expectations
required, these can be modified to take account of
context.
Landscape 29 Section 2.2.3 —there is very The paragraph relates to large scale car parking, not No revision proposed.
specific detail on planting beds. individual car parking. The use of landscaping within car
\Whatis suitable will depend on the|parks such as these can provide design interest, solar
type of planting proposed for these|shading, biodiversity, and provide small scale nature
areas. The section should remove [based solutions to mitigate the impact of climate change.
the general rule and dimensions.
Landscape 29 Section 2.2.4 one of the concerns [The section notes that bunds can have an impact on No revision proposed.
noted is changes to drainage natural habitats by changing drainage pattens, the
patterns. Changes to overland emphasis of the text is the impact to wildlife.
flows will happen with all Development proposals should not have a detrimental
development as the surface water |effect (directly or indirectly) on habitats.
will require to be directed to
surface water drains and provide
adequate attenuation following the
principles of SUDS.
Landscape 29 Section 2.2.4 makes reference to [The APG states, “garden ground on a slope will need to |No revision proposed.
slopes not being useable within be functional and usable”. It is steep embankments that
gardens. These areas can provide |are not considered usable garden space, and they should
amenity and privacy to residents, [be avoided. The APG also states, “Where that is no
could be planted, landscaped and [alternative, the embankment should be adequately
their use will depend on the retained, drained and landscaped”. The principle of the
desires and interests of the owner. [paragraph is the same as the response received.
A slope or terrace does not negate
any value of this.
Landscape 29 Section 2.2.5 requires all existing [The APG does not require all exiting boundaries to be  |No revision proposed.

boundaries that contribute to the
local landscape character to be

retained and incorporated into the

retained and incorporated into design. It notes those that
contribute to local landscape character shall be retained,
or reinstated and incorporated into the design. The




T/ obed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

design. This will not be possiblein
all situations Agree that these
features should be worked into the
design approach to provide a
sense of place and character, but
there will require to be an
assessment about which features
should and can be maintained.

primary policies linked to this APG, Policy D4: Landscape
and D5: Landscape Design both take a considered
approach, “Landscape / seascape / townscape character
and existing elements which provide, or contribute to, a
distinct ‘sense of place’ will not be adversely affected by
development” and “Landscape design will:... ensure a
sense of place is maintained and enhanced through an
assessment of the site and its surrounding
landscape/seascape/townscape character; and
sympathetically incorporate existing key characteristics
and features that contribute to
landscape/seascape/townscape character”.

Stonecleaning |7 Streets need the drains cleared  [The comments refer to grievances over existing street  |No revision proposed.
and pavements need fixing. maintenance and do not appear to relate to the
Clean up Union Street. preservation of built heritage or the specific content of
this draft guidance.
The Repair and | 11 The respondent seeks further The requirement for Planning Permission for any given  |No revision proposed.

Replacement of
Windows and
Doors

clarity on what circumstances
necessitate planning permission
for rear windows and doors within
Conservation Areas. Their view is
that all applications for
replacement doors or windows
(irrespective of position on the
building) should require planning
permission, as the contributing
value to a Conservation Area is not
limited to the visibility of the
features from the road.

development is set out in planning legislation.
Replacement of windows and doors is a provision
included within the General Permitted Development
Order (as amended) 1992. The exceptions requiring
formal consent include Listed Buildings and properties
within Conservation Areas. In instances where an
application is required, it would be for the Planning
Officer to determine the importance of the built heritage
feature to be altered, irrespective of whether it was a
public facing elevation or not. The APG provide guidance
on instances when planning permission is required, and
what is expected for listed buildings, and public and non-
public facing elevations of unlisted buildings in
conservation areas.




¢/ obed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
Shops and 9 The respondent queries whether |As noted within paragraph 1.2 of the APG, it applies on a |No revision proposed.
Signs fast food drive-throughs are city wide bases and the signage guidance should be
considered within this guidance. |considered in all instances, no matter what the proposal.
Large totem signs and illuminated |The APG includes reference to general principles for
decals and fascias are used. There|signage, and guidance on fascias, totems and illuminated
should be special consideration of [signage. Assessment of signage is controlled via Town
these matters within residential and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements)
streets to avoid detrimental impact [(Scotland) Regulations 1984. Regulation 4 of this
on the character of the requires an assessment of amenity and public safety
neighbourhood. when determining an application of this nature.
Repair and
Reinstatement No comments received on this draft APG
of Cast Iron
Railings

Topic Area: Vibrant City

Hierarchy of

No comments received on this draft APG

Centres

Harmony of 28 Respondee (Scottish Water) Comment noted. These are standarised comments that [No revision required as

Uses advises early engagement with the|Scottish Water would submitto proposals for hot food guidance sufficiently
Pre-Development Enquiry process |uses. addresses the need for full
to review proposals. This is due to details of grease traps to be
risk of blockage/damage to included and promotion of
wastewater drainage system as a pre-application discussions
result of commercial kitchen waste with Environmental Health.
products entering the system.

Serviced No comments received on this draft APG

Apartments

Topic Area: Supporting Business and Industrial Development

Aberdeen 28 Development within the area These issues would be addressed through other relevant |No revision proposed.

International surrounding Aberdeen policies in the Local Development Plan, such as policies

Airport International Airport may require a |R2 (Degraded and Contaminated Land) and NE4 (Our

Soil Investigation Report. Early

Water Environment). The Local Development Plan should




¢/ obed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

engagement with Scottish Water's
PDE process is advised.

be read as a whole, and new developments will need to
comply with all relevant policies within it. The proposed
additions are therefore unnecessary as they would result
in duplication of other parts of the Local Development
Plan. Developers will engage with Scottish Water's PDE
process separately to planning.

Topic Area: Meeting Housi

ng and Community Needs

Householder 28 The respondent (Scottish Water) |This is a standard response from Scottish Water which  |No revision proposed.
Development states that the would apply to most development sites Such matters
Guide owner/occupier/developer should |would be generally be addressed with a formal note on

not build over existing water and |the decision notice as part of any planning consent

drainage infrastructure and should |granted

contact Scottish Water even if

works fall under permitted

development. Contact details for

IAsset Plan Providers are provided

to enable developers to obtain

copies of water or waste water

network drawings
Affordable and |3 The commuted sums figures in The commuted sum rates in Table 1 were setin the 2017 |No revision proposed.
Specialist Table 1 (section 2.10) are too low. |Supplementary Guidance and have been carried forward
Housing This gives developers incentive to |into the draft APG. The process of calculating the

declare that provision on-site is
either not viable or not feasible
rather than providing real
affordable housing within their
developments. The figures in
Table 1 need to be reassessed
with skilled commercial input.

commuted sum rates was undertaken by the District
Valuer in accordance with the guidance in PAN 2/2010
‘Affordable Housing and Housing Land Audits’. Given the
significant short-term shocks that have recently affected
the economy and the development industry, it was not
considered appropriate to undertake a review of the
commuted sum rates prior to publishing the APG for
consultation. However, the Council intends to undertake
an early review of the commuted sum rates in Table 1
and this will be undertaken by a suitably qualified




) abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

professional in accordance with all relevant guidance. No
change is necessary at this stage.

Affordable and (12, 14, 15, |No objection in principle to new  |Comment noted. No revision proposed.
Specialist 18, 20 expectation (in sections 2.1 and
Housing 2.5) that allows for affordable

housing for developments of 20

units or more to be delivered

onsite as social rent, provided that

appropriate funding is available to

deliver this.
Affordable and (12, 14, 15, |Support the statementin para 2.6 |[Support welcomed. No revision proposed.
Specialist 18, 20 that contributions may be reduced
Housing where the developer can

demonstrate there are exceptional

costs above what is expected from

most developments.
Affordable and |12, 14, 15, |Para 2.6 states that “a list of See the officer’s response to comments on the draft No revision proposed.
Specialist 18, 20 developer obligations is contained [Planning Obligations SG for more detailed information on
Housing within SG on Planning Obligations. |the justification for the proposed developer obligation

Therefore it is expected that these
requirements will have been
planned into the development and
will not normally be seen as
exceptional costs”. This statement
demonstrates a lack of
appreciation of the nature and
\variety of arrangements between
land owners and developers, and
the timelines involved in reaching
such agreements. The significant
and unjustified increases in
developer obligations will
significantly affect viability. It is

rates.

Both the draft Affordable and Specialist Housing APG
and the Planning Obligations SG include provisions for
developers to submit Viability Statements to make the
case for reduced contributions in situations where
exceptional circumstances mean that the normal
requirements would render a development unviable. The
Council will consider any such Viability Statements on a
case-by-case basis taking into account the individual
circumstances of the proposed development. No change
iS necessary.




G/ obed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

guestioned how these increases
could be sufficiently planned into a
development if a site is already
owned by the developer with no
opportunity to make provision for
these changes. When a site is
secured through conditional
missives, some costs will still need
to be determined through further
investigations. It is not always
possible to fully appraise the
development costs from the outset,
as suchit is essential that the
Council allow a degree of flexibility
when considering individual
circumstances, including the
impact of planning and affordable
housing obligations.

Affordable and
Specialist
Housing

12, 14, 15,
18, 20

\Welcome that ACC accepts the
overprovision and banking
principles for the delivery of
affordable housing under para 2.9.
However, it is not accepted that
these should be tied to sub-market
areas. The developer obligations
secured from a specific
development can be spent on city-
wide basis, therefore the same
flexibility should apply for the
provision of affordable housing.

Support for the principle of overprovision and banking is
welcomed.

Banked units must be located in the same housing sub-
market area as any future development/s that seek to
utilise the banked units to offset some or all of their own
affordable housing requirement. This is an important
principle as it helps to retain the benefit of the affordable
housing in the same geographic area as the future
development. Contrary to the respondent’s assertion, it is
not the case that other developer obligations are spent
on a city-wide basis — rather they are spent on enhancing
facilities and infrastructure that serve the development in
guestion (i.e. they also have a geographical link with the
contributing development). Notwithstanding the above, it

should also be noted that the APG says that the units

No revision proposed.




9/ abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

‘must be delivered in the same housing market area,
unless agreed otherwise with the Council”. This provides

flexibility for units to be delivered in a different sub-market
area where the Council agrees there are exceptional
reasons for doing so. No change is necessary.

Affordable and
Specialist
Housing

12, 14, 15,
18, 20

Object to the basis on which
commuted sums are calculated as
detailed in para 2.10. PAN 2/2010
advises that where it is agreed an
alternative to a contribution of land
within the proposed development
site is acceptable, the developer
will provide either land or homes or|
a commuted sum of a value
equivalent to the cost of providing
the percentage of serviced land
required by the policy. When
determining the value applicable
they should have regard to
development costs, other
contributions being sought and
other relevant factors e.g. layout
and design. Related policy is
therefore clear that it is the cost of
the land for affordable housing that
is being sought. Therefore there is
no justification for the DVO to
make an assessment of a
commuted sum based on the
difference between the market
\value of a mainstream residential
unit land value and the assessed

market value of land for affordable

The commuted sum rates in Table 1 were setin the 2017
Supplementary Guidance and have been carried forward
into the draft APG. The process of calculating the
commuted sum rates was an open one which involved
the development industry. All the calculations and
methodology were provided and the work was
undertaken by the District Valuer in accordance with the
guidance in PAN 2/2010 ‘Affordable Housing and
Housing Land Audits’. In instances where the applicant
does not agree with the commuted sum figure derived
from Table 1, section 2.11 of the APG provides scope for
an individual site valuation approach to be pursued. No
change is necessary.

No revision proposed.




) ) abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

house land value. This approach
can only be described as a “cash
grab”. Additionally, the basis for
\valuation is wrong. We do not
agree with the RICS methodology
for valuing affordable housing land.
The residual valuation
methodology is not appropriate in
such transactions. We also
challenge the nil value of land
transfer. Why would a willing seller
sell their land for nil value, as all
land has value?

Affordable and (12, 14, 15, |Objectto the instruction of an Comment acknowledged. The end of the final sentence |Add the following additional
Specialist 18, 20 independent valuer (para 2.11) of section 2.11 was omitted in error from the draft APG. |wording (in bold below) to
Housing related to the disagreement over (Wording should be reinstated to clarify that any valuer  [the end of the final
commuted sums. The previous (whether that be the District Valuer Service or another  |sentence in section 2.11.:
Supplementary Guidance stated |independent valuer) will be jointly appointed by the “...by means of an
that this was jointly appointed by |developer and the Council. A modification is independent valuer or the
the developer and the Council. The[recommended accordingly. District Valuer Service,
District Valuer is not independent jointly appointed by the
and it is vitally important that any developer and the
instruction is made jointly between Council.”
the developer and the Council. The|
previous Supplementary Guidance
wording should be reinstated.
Affordable and |12, 14, 15, [Support the acceptance (at para |Support welcomed. Comment noted.
Specialist 18, 20 2.14.3) that key worker
Housing accommodation is acceptable as

affordable housing, and that
affordable housing can be

designated as key worker




g/ abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

accommodation where this meets
a need.

Affordable and |12, 14, 15, [No objection in principle to the new|The requirement for a minimum percentage of affordable |No revision proposed.
Specialist 18, 20 requirement for the provision of  [homes to be provided as fully wheelchair accessible is
Housing \varying needs (in para 2.15.3). derived from the Council’s Strategic Housing Investment
However, the requirement for 15% |Plan (SHIP). The current SHIP (2023/24 — 2027/28)
of affordable housing to be sets a 15% target for delivery of wheelchair accessible
provided as fully wheelchair affordable housing. Chapter 7 of the SHIP outlines a
accessible does not appear to be |detailed justification for the 15% target, which includes a
derived from the HNDA, with the [comprehensive review of existing evidence on the need
requirement being 10% in other  [for wheelchair accessible housing. For brevity, the
local authority areas. This should |detailed evidence is not repeated here. In broad terms
be assessed on a site-by-site however, Aberdeen City’s Health and Social Care
basis. The wording should be Partnership’s Strategic Plan identifies the challenges of
amended to state that “...there is ajan ageing population and the desire to support people in
requirement for a minimum a community setting, and there has been a recent
percentage of affordable homes to (increase in the overall number of applicants applying for
be provided as fully wheelchair  |accessible housing in the City. It is essential that an
accessible. The required figure  |adequate supply of good quality accessible housing is in
should be determined on a site-by-|place in order to address these challenges, and the 15%
site basis based on particular target reflects this need. No change is necessary.
needs at that time, but not
exceeding 10%,” in line with
standards in other local authority
areas.
Affordable and |28 The developer has a responsibility |These are standardised comments that Scottish Water  |No revision proposed.
Specialist to ensure that they are not building |would submit to most applications, not specifically for
Housing over existing water and drainage |affordable housing proposals. There is no need to add

infrastructure. They should contact
Scottish Water even when their
works falls under permitted
development. Copies of water or

waste water network drawings can

content covering these matters to this specific guidance.
No change is necessary.



https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2023-03/SHIP%202023-28.pdf

6/ obed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

be ordered from the undernoted
Asset Plan Providers who have
developed internet based, plan
collation services, which deliver
substantial benefits over traditional
methods of plan provisioning.

Affordable and |29 Do not agree that the presumption [INPF4’s definition of affordable housing is acknowledged. [No revision proposed.
Specialist should be for the delivery of However, it is significant to note that it says affordable
Housing affordable housing as social rent |housing can take one of the stated forms. It does not
as noted in section 2.5 of the APG. |necessarily follow that all the stated forms would be
NPF4 defines affordable housing |appropriate in every instance. Policy 16 (e) of NPF4 is
as “Good quality homes that are  |more nuanced. It states that “Development proposals for
affordable to people on low new homes will be supported where they make provision
incomes. This can include social [for affordable homes to meet an identified need.” It is
rented, mid-market rented, shared-|therefore entirely appropriate for the Council to provide
ownership, shared-equity, housing [clarification on the type/s of affordable housing that are
sold at discount (including plots for |most likely to meet identified needs within the City and to
self-build), self-build plots and low |set out a presumption in favour of delivering these as part
cost housing without subsidy.” This|of new developments. Section 2.2 of the APG
statement is therefore not in acknowledges that there are different types of affordable
accordance with the current housing. Section 2.3 goes on to outline a preferred
Development Plan and should be |hierarchy, which identifies that social rented
removed. accommodation is the Council’'s main preference as it will
best address identified local needs. As such, it is
reasonable for section 2.5 to identify a general
expectation that affordable housing contributions will be
delivered on site as social rent unless otherwise agreed
by the Council’'s Housing Team. No change is necessary.
Affordable and |29 \What justification is there for the |Section 2.8 only applies in cases where the Council No revision proposed.
Specialist transfer of serviced land at nil agrees that off-site affordable housing is appropriate.
Housing \value to the Council or RSL for Bullet point 4 (which covers scenarios where the

affordable housing (as outlined in

section 2.8). There is a value in

developer is not constructing the affordable housing)
does not require the site to be transferred at nil value in




08 abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

affordable housing and there are
costs associated with servicing
sites. This should be amended to
state that the land is transferred at
an agreed value.

Criterion 4 (in Section 2.8) also
states that where the affordable
units are not being delivered by the
developer, the land must be
transferred prior to the delivery of
any units on the primary site. Any
trigger in the transfer should be
related to the timing of the delivery
of affordable units in the
development. This adds upfront
cost to development that will have
implications for viability.

every case. Rather, it states that the site should be
transferred to the Council or an RSL “at an agreed or nil
value”. This provides flexibility to take account of site
specific circumstances.

With respect to the timing of transfer, if off-site affordable
housing provision is to work the Council must have
certainty that the off-site units will be built at an
appropriate time. Without this certainty, off-site provision
could not be accepted as a credible solution to meeting
the affordable housing requirement for the primary
development site. In order to provide this certainty, and to
allow sufficient time for the off-site affordable units to be
delivered by the Council or RSL, the land must be
transferred prior to the delivery of any open market units
on the primary development site. This approach has
been carried forward from the 2017 Supplementary
Guidance without change and remains appropriate. No
change is necessatry.

Affordable and
Specialist
Housing

29

Object to the method of calculating
commuted payments. The APG
provides no detail as to how these
payment amounts have been
calculated and how they relate to
the delivery of affordable housing.
Given there is suggestion of
amending these figures
periodically, there is a need to
agree the method and rationale for
this.

The commuted sum rates in Table 1 were setin the 2017
Supplementary Guidance and have been carried forward
into the draft APG. The process of calculating the
commuted sum rates was an open one which involved
the development industry. All the calculations and
methodology were provided and the work was
undertaken by the District Valuer in accordance with the
guidance in PAN 2/2010 ‘Affordable Housing and
Housing Land Audits’. In instances where the applicant
does not agree with the commuted sum figure derived
from Table 1, section 2.11 of the APG provides scope for
an individual site valuation approach to be pursued.

No revision proposed.




T8 abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

Given the significant short-term shocks that have recently
affected the economy and the development industry it
was not considered appropriate to undertake a review of
the commuted sum rates prior to publishing the APG for
consultation. However, the Council intends to undertake
an early review of the commuted sum rates in Table 1
and this will be undertaken by a suitably qualified
professional in accordance with all relevant guidance.

No change is necessary at this stage.

Affordable and
Specialist
Housing

29

The affordable mix of
accommodation is referred to in
2.15.3, which states that the mix
will be set out by the Council’s
Housing Team. It is acknowledged
that there requires to be a demand
for the type of housing, but it is not
necessary to secure the full mix on
every site and in some cases a
single type of delivery will be
appropriate. For example, with a
flatted development in a more
urban location, if there is a desire
to see affordable housing it should
be acceptable to include this within
flats. To dictate the mix of
affordable unrelated to the
development proposed will
negatively impact on delivery of
developments.

In accordance with LDP Policy H4, an appropriate mix of
sizes and types of dwellings should be provided across
both the open market and affordable components of
residential developments. In general terms, it is agreed
that the mix of affordable units should broadly reflect the
mix of open market units on a development site. For
example, on a development where the open market units
comprise a mix of dwelling types and sizes, the
affordable component should reflect this and it is unlikely
to be appropriate for the affordable units to be provided
exclusively in one form (e.qg. flats). It is acknowledged,
however, that there may be instances where the open
market units consist of a single type such as flats (e.g. in
denser urban environments). If on-site affordable housing
is sought in such cases, it is likely to be acceptable for
the affordable units to mirror this and the Council is
unlikely to require a full mix of affordable units including
houses. It is agreed that text could be added to the first
paragraph of section 2.15.3 to clarify this. A modification
is recommended accordingly.

Amend the first paragraph
of section 2.15.3 to read as
follows (amended text
identified in bold):

“In accordance with policy
H4 of the Aberdeen Local
Development Plan, a good
mix of sizes and types of
dwellings should be
provided across both the
open market and affordable
components of all
residential developments.
The affordable housing
component should
broadly reflect the mix of
dwelling types and sizes
within the open market
element of residential
developments. Affordable
housing which consists
entirely of one particular

type or size of units (eg




28 obed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

exclusively flats) is unlikely
to be considered
appropriate unless this
reflects the open market
component of the
development and is
agreed by the Council.
Early discussions with the
Council's Housing Team will
be needed...”

Houses in 11 \Warmly welcome the Draft APG, | Support welcomed. Comment noted.
Multiple which will go some way to
Occupation and achieving more sustainable
Overprovision communities in terms of balance.
Houses in 11 \Welcome the setting of a level of |Support welcomed. Comment noted.
Multiple occupancy of 3 or more unrelated
Occupation and people as the threshold where a
Overprovision material change of use will be
considered to take place, whether
for a house or flat.
Houses in 11 The LDP explains that the The potential benefits of using the smaller Census OutputiNo revision proposed.
Multiple percentage threshold to be used [Areas instead of Small Data Zones as the geographical

Occupation and
Overprovision

when measuring overprovision will
be "based on an appropriate area
definition such as single small data
zones or census output areas".
However, in the Draft APG the
measurement of overprovision is
only to be based on small data
zones, with no mention of census
output areas. Small data zones
would not control the distribution of

HMOs adequately because of their

basis for assessing Houses in Multiple Occupation
(HMO) percentages are acknowledged. However, it
should be noted that Planning Circular 2/2012 states that
when setting HMO concentration levels planning
authorities should take account of the demand for HMOs
in each area as well as the need to protect residential
amenity. It is very difficult to assess the demand for
HMOs at the very localised Census Output Area level.
This, in turn, would make it difficult to demonstrate
compliance with the Circular guidance if such

geographical areas were used as the basis for assessing




g abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

size. As shown in a previous
submission from Old Aberdeen
Community Council, with an area
of this size the entire 12% of
HMOs could be crowded together
in one corner. If the percentage of
HMOs in that particular corner
were measured, it could be 50% or
more. An example of such a corner
is University Road but there are
others.

\We believe the best geographical
areas for percentage
measurements should be Census
Output Areas. They would be small
enough to make it less likely for
there to be areas where most of
the HMOs are located together.
\We request that the Draft APG be
amended to set Census Output
Areas as the geographical area by
which percentage HMO
measurements will be taken.

HMO concentration levels. It is therefore considered
more likely that the proposed approach to managing
HMO concentrations could be successfully challenged by
prospective developers/applicants if the APG was
amended to set Census Output Areas as the
geographical area by which percentage HMO
measurements will be taken. As such, no change is
recommended in response to this comment.

Children’s
Nurseries

28

The respondent (Scottish Water)
states that the developer should
not build over existing water and
drainage infrastructure and should
contact Scottish Water even if
works fall under permitted
development. Contact details for
IAsset Plan Providers are provided

to enable developers to obtain

This is a standard response from Scottish Water which
would apply to most development sites Such matters
would be generally be addressed with a formal note on
the decision notice as part of any planning consent
granted.

No revision proposed.




8 abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

copies of water or waste water
network drawings

Gypsy Traveller [28 The respondent (Scottish Water) |These are standardised comments that Scottish Water  |No revision proposed.
Sites states that the would submit to most applications, not specifically for

owner/occupier/developer should [gypsy traveller sites. There is no need to add these to

not build over existing water and  |this specific guidance. Guidance sufficiently covers site

drainage infrastructure and should [selection, design, layout and pre-application advice.

contact Scottish Water even if Comment noted.

works fall under permitted

development. Contact details for

IAsset Plan Providers are provided

to enable developers to obtain

copies of water or waste water

network drawings.
Student 10 Expresses concern over seeking |Policy H5 requires all housing developments of five or ~ [Remove the requirement to
Accommodation IAffordable Housing contributions |more homes to contribute towards affordable housing seek affordable housing

for student accommodation given
the absence of any reference to
student accommodation in the
wording of Policy H4 and H5. It
contends that student
accommodation is specialised
development and not the same as
market housing, and there are no
references to such housing being
the same as market housing in
Policy H4, H5 or the NPF4.

provision. It does not distinguish between ‘specialised’ or
‘market’ housing. Student accommodation is a form of
housing and it is reasonable to expect that it would
generally be subject to the requirements of Policy H5 (or
that it is at least capable of being so). This view is
supported by the fact that previous iterations of planning
guidance on this topic have expressly exempted purpose
built student housing developments from the normal
requirement to contribute towards affordable housing —
there would have been no need for such an exemption if
student accommodation was not capable of being subject
to the normal affordable housing policy requirements in
the first place. It is also supported by the fact that other
forms of ‘specialised’ housing (e.g. retirement homes) are
generally subjectto affordable housing contributions
under Policy H5. The draft APG therefore simply sought

contributions from purpose
build student
accommodation
development, and modify
the text as below:

to remove the previous planning guidance that exempted




Gg abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

student accommodation developments from affordable
housing contributions under policy H5 — not to introduce
fundamentally new affordable housing policy.

Notwithstanding the above, it is acknowledged that the
Council does treat purpose built student accommodation
differently to other forms of housing for a range of other
planning purposes. For instance, purpose built student
accommodation is not monitored in the annual Housing
Land Audit and it is not generally considered to contribute
towards meeting overall housing targets.

It is also acknowledged that there are likely to be
practical difficulties with requiring affordable housing
contributions from student accommodation
developments. For example, it is unlikely that affordable
housing could be provided on site within student
developments as this may cause operational issues for
the student accommodation and / or affordable housing
providers. Furthermore, it is likely to be difficult to
calculate the normal 25% affordable housing requirement
for a student development. This is because the
requirement normally represents 25% of the total number
of dwelling units on the site, but student developments
often comprise a series of bedrooms / bed spaces
(potentially with en-suite facilities) which share access to
the facilities such as living rooms and kitchens which
would normally be present within an individual dwelling
unit. This is likely to make it difficult to quantify the total
number of ‘dwelling units’ for the purposes of calculating
the normal 25% requirement. An additional robust
methodology would need to be developed to enable this

to be calculated in practice.

propesed-therequirement
: bt

Purpose built student
accommodation is not
required to contribute to
affordable housing, and it
is for these reasons that
all student
accommodation will be
conditioned to limit
occupancy to students.”




9g abed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
Additional research has been undertaken since the close
of the consultation and this has been unable to identify
any other examples of local authorities in Scotland that
currently seek affordable housing contributions from
student housing developments.
On balance, and for the reasons outlined above, it is
recommended that the exemption for purpose built
student accommodation developments from contributing
towards affordable housing should be reinstated in the
final version of this APG.
Student 10 It is unclear over how sucha Comment noted. See the response above which See modification
Accommodation contribution could be secured, and [acknowledges that there are likely to be practical recommended above to
it expresses concern that any on- [difficulties with requiring affordable housing contributions |reinstate exemption for
site provision would affect the from student accommodation developments and, on purpose built student
university’s ability to afford pastoralbalance, recommends that the exemption for purpose accommodation
care to students if some residents |built student accommodation developments from developments from
had no contractual relationship contributing towards affordable housing should be contributing towards
with management of student reinstated in the final version of this APG. affordable housing should
accommodation. be reinstated in the final
version of this APG.
Student 13 Supports statementin 2.1 for The support for paragraph 2.1 is noted. See modification
Accommodation Student Accommodation. Comment noted. See the response above whichnotes [recommended above to

Raises serious concern over the
pursuit of affordable housing
contributions on student
accommodation. It refers to a total
shift from the (then) extent LDP
and SG which outlined that such
contributions would be waived for
student accommodation. It seeks

that the draft APG simply sought to remove the previous
planning guidance exempting student accommodation
developments from affordable housing contributions
rather than introduce fundamentally new affordable
housing policy, but based on further analysis
recommends that the exemption should be reinstated in
the final version of this APG.

reinstate exemption for
purpose built student
accommodation
developments from
contributing towards
affordable housing should
be reinstated in the final
version of this APG.




/8 abed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
the removal of this new
requirement for AH contributions
Student 13 Such a measure would have Student accommodation isn’t within a Class 9 use, but  [See modification
Accommodation fundamental issues from a neither are flats (sui generis) and affordable housing recommended above to
planning legislation perspective, |contributions are sought for those. reinstate exemption for
and serious implications for Notwithstanding, see the response above which purpose built student
funding and delivering purpose acknowledges that purpose built student accommodation jaccommodation
built student accommodation is treated differently from other forms of housing for a developments from
(PBSA) schemes inthe city. PBSA|range of other planning purposes and, on balance, contributing towards
is not housing and is of sui generis [recommends that the exemption for purpose built student [affordable housing should
use class (rather than residential), [accommodation developments from contributing towards |be reinstated in the final
S0 is not assessed as such, and  |affordable housing should be reinstated in the final version of this APG.
should not be subject to AH version of this APGSee the response above which
contributions acknowledges that purpose built student accommodation
is treated differently from other forms of housing for a
range of other planning purposes and, on balance,
recommends that the exemption for purpose built student
accommodation developments from contributing towards
affordable housing should be reinstated in the final
version of this APG.
Student 13 Planning Circular 6/2013 outlines |Comment noted. See the response above which notes  [See modification
Accommodation that matters which should not be |that the draft APG simply sought to remove the previous [recommended above to
included in supplementary planning guidance exempting student accommodation [reinstate exemption for
guidance include items for which [developments from affordable housing contributions purpose built student
financial or other contributions rather than introduce fundamentally new affordable accommodation
(including AH) would be sought.  [housing policy, but based on further analysis developments from
recommends that the exemption should be reinstated in |contributing towards
the final version of this APG. affordable housing should
be reinstated in the final
version of this APG.
Student 13 lAberdeen struggles to compete  [Comment noted. See the response above which See modification
Accommodation with Glasgow, Edinburgh and otherjacknowledges that there is no evidence of other Scottish recommended above to




gg abed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
regional cities to attract PBSA planning authorities seeking affordable housing reinstate exemption for
schemes and this move will further [contributions from student accommodation and, on purpose built student
deter investment, particularly as nojbalance, recommends that the exemption for purpose accommodation
other city in Scotland seeks built student accommodation developments from developments from
contributions for PBSA at present. |contributing towards affordable housing should be contributing towards
reinstated in the final version of this APG. affordable housing should
be reinstated in the final
version of this APG.
Student 13 Raises questions over how the Comment noted. See the response above which See modification
Accommodation necessary contributions would be |acknowledges that there are likely to be practical recommended above to
delivered (particularly on site), and |difficulties with requiring affordable housing contributions |reinstate exemption for
how this could conflict with the from student accommodation developments and, on purpose built student
tests set out in Circular 3/2012 - |balance, recommends that the exemption for purpose accommodation
Planning Obligations and Good built student accommodation developments from developments from
Neighbour Agreements. contributing towards affordable housing should be contributing towards
reinstated in the final version of this APG. affordable housing should
be reinstated in the final
version of this APG.
Student 16 IAPG does not provide guidance, |In cases where the age of existing accommodationisa |No revision proposed.
Accommodation detalil or clarity. Highlights age of [factor in its diminishing suitability for purpose, this should
existing student accommodation [feature in an agent’s supporting statement. It is agreed
as something which is not that purpose built student accommodation plays an
accounted for. Views PBSA as important role in providing housing for students.
being critical to success of
universities and college in the city.
Student 16 Regarding 2.2 of draft APG, it The policy context is noted in paragraphs 1.1 and 2.1 of |No revision proposed.
Accommodation identifies that the “need” criteria is [the Aberdeen Planning Guidance, primary Policy H7:

not derived from a policy
requirement in the LDP or NPFA4.
Market forces should dictate this.
There is also no mechanism
described to evidence ‘need’.

Student Accommodation Developments. Market forces
do dictate this. It still falls on developer to demonstrate
this, as well as why Purpose Build Student
Accommodation is appropriate ahead of other residential
uses within that location (that may otherwise address
housing demand).




69 abed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
Student 16 Policy H7 of LDP does not require |Comment noted. See the response above which notes  [See modification
Accommodation affordable housing contributions  [that the draft APG simply sought to remove the previous [recommended above to
from student accommodationand |planning guidance exempting student accommodation  [reinstate exemption for
there is no link between this policy |developments from affordable housing contributions purpose built student
and the proposed requirement. rather than introduce fundamentally new affordable accommodation
housing policy, but based on further analysis developments from
recommends that the exemption should be reinstated in |contributing towards
the final version of this APG. affordable housing should
be reinstated in the final
version of this APG.
Student 16 Student accommodation is not Comment noted. See the response above which See modification
Accommodation housing in standard sense and acknowledges that there are likely to be practical recommended above to
should not be assessed as such. [difficulties with requiring affordable housing contributions |reinstate exemption for
IAs mix and matching student and |from student accommodation developments and, on purpose built student
private accommodation is not balance, recommends that the exemption for purpose accommodation
desirable, this would push financial built student accommodation developments from developments from
contributions over on-site provision|contributing towards affordable housing should be contributing towards
which creates financial burden on [reinstated in the final version of this APG. affordable housing should
these developments. There is also be reinstated in the final
no detail on how these version of this APG.
contributions would be
implemented.
Student 16 Seeking AH contributions on Comment noted. See the response above which See modification
Accommodation student accommodation would fail {acknowledges that there are likely to be practical recommended above to

to meet any of the five tests for DO
contributions under Circular 3/2012
Planning Obligations and Good
Neighbour Agreements.

difficulties with requiring affordable housing contributions
from student accommodation developments and, on
balance, recommends that the exemption for purpose
built student accommodation developments from
contributing towards affordable housing should be
reinstated in the final version of this APG.

reinstate exemption for
purpose built student
accommodation
developments from
contributing towards
affordable housing should
be reinstated in the final

version of this APG.




06 abed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
Student 16 The draft APG (in this form)was |Comment noted. See the response above which notes  |See modification
Accommodation not available when the LDP was [that the draft APG simply sought to remove the previous [recommended above to
going through the review process. [planning guidance exempting student accommodation  |reinstate exemption for
It was only after the LDP was developments from affordable housing contributions purpose built student
finalised that the Council sought to |rather than introduce fundamentally new affordable accommodation
repeal guidance exempting studentihousing policy, but based on further analysis developments from
accommodation from AH recommends that the exemption should be reinstated in |contributing towards
contributions. This is a policy the final version of this APG. affordable housing should
change and not a new piece of be reinstated in the final
guidance, and it questions the version of this APG.
procedural legality of this
approach.
Student 17 Strongly objects to requirement of ([Comment noted. See the response above which See modification
Accommodation 25% AH contribution for PBSA acknowledges that there are likely to be practical recommended above to
difficulties with requiring affordable housing contributions |reinstate exemption for
from student accommodation developments and, on purpose built student
balance, recommends that the exemption for purpose accommodation
built student accommodation developments from developments from
contributing towards affordable housing should be contributing towards
reinstated in the final version of this APG. affordable housing should
be reinstated in the final
version of this APG.
Student 17 Questions legality of introducing |[Comment noted. See the response above whichnotes  |See modification
Accommodation such a measure through that the draft APG simply sought to remove the previous [recommended above to

supplementary guidance after LDP
had been agreed. Such an
approach is altering what was
agreed “through the back door”.

planning guidance exempting student accommodation
developments from affordable housing contributions
rather than introduce fundamentally new affordable
housing policy, but based on further analysis
recommends that the exemption should be reinstated in
the final version of this APG.

reinstate exemption for
purpose built student
accommodation
developments from
contributing towards
affordable housing should
be reinstated in the final

version of this APG.




T6 abed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
Student 17 Student accommodation is not Student accommodation isn’t within a Class 9 use, but  |See modification
Accommodation within residential use class and neither are flats (sui generis) and affordable housing recommended above to
has been treated as commercial bylcontributions are sought for those. Notwithstanding, see [reinstate exemption for
Council for years. Questions the response above which acknowledges that purpose |purpose built student
legality of requestion affordable built student accommodation is treated differently from [accommodation
housing. other forms of housing for a range of other planning developments from
purposes and, on balance, recommends that the contributing towards
exemption for purpose built student accommodation affordable housing should
developments from contributing towards affordable be reinstated in the final
housing should be reinstated in the final version of this  |version of this APG.
APG.
Student 17 This approach will drive away It is noted that the rents within the private market are See modification
Accommodation students from PBSA, into private |currently lower in Aberdeen than other Scottish university fecommended above to
rental market which will drive up [cities. However, it is agreed there is a potential impact to |reinstate exemption for
demand and rents, which would be|the private housing market. The advantage of providing [purpose built student
contrary to Council’s aims. Purpose Built Student Accommodation is that it can accommodation
potentially “free up” the private housing market, thereby [developments from
providing more choice, flexibility and affordability. A contributing towards
negative impact to the private housing market would not [affordable housing should
be desirable. be reinstated in the final
version of this APG.
Student 17 Lack of clarity on how contributions|Comment noted. See the response above which See modification
Accommodation would be calculated and secured |acknowledges that there are likely to be practical recommended above to

in the SG.

difficulties with requiring affordable housing contributions
from student accommodation developments and, on
balance, recommends that the exemption for purpose
built student accommodation developments from
contributing towards affordable housing should be
reinstated in the final version of this APG.

reinstate exemption for
purpose built student
accommodation
developments from
contributing towards
affordable housing should
be reinstated in the final

version of this APG.




26 abed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
Student 17 No other planning authority in Comment noted. See the response above which See modification
Accommodation Scotland takes this approach, so it [acknowledges that there is no evidence of other Scottish recommended above to
would disadvantage Aberdeen to |planning authorities seeking affordable housing reinstate exemption for
other Scottish cities without such a|contributions from student accommodation and, on purpose built student
burden. balance, recommends that the exemption for purpose accommodation
built student accommodation developments from developments from
contributing towards affordable housing should be contributing towards
reinstated in the final version of this APG. affordable housing should
be reinstated in the final
version of this APG.
Student 28 States that the developer should [This is a standard response from Scottish Water which  |No revision proposed.
Accommodation not build over existing water and  |would apply to most development sites. Such matters

drainage infrastructure and should
contact Scottish Water even if
works fall under permitted
development. Contact details for
IAsset Plan Providers are provided
to enable developers to obtain
copies of water or waste water
network drawings

would be generally be addressed with a formal note on
the decision notice as part of any planning consent
granted.

Topic Area: De

livering Infr

astructure, Transport and Accessibility

Planning 5 \Welcome the recognition that new |Support noted. No revision proposed.
Obligations development may demand a

requirement for new sports

facilities, or the improvement of

existing provision.
Planning 5 Different sports facilities have It is acknowledged that different types of sports facilities [No revision proposed.
Obligations different costs and applying a will have different costs. The contribution rate for sports

standard figure may not deliver the
sports facilities required where
substantial development is
proposed. It is not clear how the
contribution amount has been

and recreation facilities was reviewed in liaison with Sport
Aberdeen. It has been calculated using nationally
accepted benchmark quantity guidelines and is based on
the actual cost of delivering new sports facilities in
Aberdeen. It is not considered appropriate to include




cp abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

calculated and would be useful to
understand how this has been
derived.

detailed justifications for all of the contribution rates
within the SG itself as this would constitute an
unnecessary level of detail and significantly lengthen the
document, rendering it more difficult to read for most
users. However, further evidence of the methodology
used to calculate them is available on request and such
further evidence is regularly provided during site-specific
discussions with developers.

Planning
Obligations

12, 14, 15,
18, 20

There is concern over the one size
fits all approach that ACC appear
to be taking on a number of
contributions sought under the
draft SG. This is at odds with the
purpose of planning obligations
and will, in many cases, not meet
the 5 tests set out in Circular
3/2012, which needs to be met in
all instances.

ACC does not take a ‘one sizefits all’ approach to
developer obligations. Notwithstanding the potential
contribution headings and rates outlined in the draft SG,
the third paragraph in section 2 makes it clear that
individual Developer Obligations Assessments are
carried out by the Developer Obligations Team for each
and every development proposal for which they are
consulted. The exact contributions required as a result of
each proposed development will therefore be determined
on a case-by-case basis and outlined in the Developer
Obligations Assessment. Contributions are only sought
where all of the tests in Circular 3/2012 are met based on
the site-specific circumstances, and contributions are not
routinely sought under every potential contribution
heading. It is also important to note that the scale and
mix of every development is taken into account when
calculating the contributions that are required — section 3
of the draft SG explains how a ‘Standard House Unit
Equivalent’ (SHUE) is calculated for each development,
and this ensures that all contributions are fairly and
reasonably related in scale and kind to the proposed
development. This is an established practice which has
been operated by ACC for many years. No change is

necessary.

No revision proposed.




v6 abed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
Planning 12, 14, 15, |[if developer contributions are As outlined above, developer contributions are not No revision proposed.
Obligations 18, 20 sought in every potential category [routinely sought under every potential contribution
(whichis increasingly likely to be [heading in the draft SG. Rather, Developer Obligations
the case), then significant Assessments are carried out on an individual site-by-site
additional costs will be incurred by |basis, and contributions are only sought where they are
developers. Together with required to mitigate the impact of the proposed
increasing build costs, the viability |development and can be justified against the tests in
of developments will become Circular 3/2012 based on the site-specific circumstances.
seriously compromised. Section 2.4 of the draft SG outlines the measures that
ACC will be willing to take towards the timing or phasing
of contributions to assist development viability. It also
makes provision for developers to submit Viability
Assessments for consideration by ACC in cases where it
is asserted that the necessary developer contributions
will have an adverse impact on the viability of a
development. Again, this is an established practice which
has been operated by ACC for many years. No change is
necessary.
Planning 12, 14, 15, |Objection is made to paragraph  [All financial contributions are held in an interest-bearing |No revision proposed.
Obligations 18, 20 2.1 (Management of Funds). All  [account separate from other Council accounts and which

contributions must be kept in a
separate ring-fenced interest-
bearing account for each
development. This is to ensure the
funds are only used for the
purposes they are collected and
for the appropriate amount,
including interest, to be returned if
not spent within the relevant
timeframe. Objection is also made
to the use of interest to manage
the developer obligations fund and

is specifically for developer obligations. All payments into
and out of that account are clearly referenced to the
development in question. This allows the financial
contributions for every individual development to be
clearly identified and monitored (and returned with
interest if necessary if they are not spent within the
relevant timeframe). It is not necessary for there to be a
separate account for each individual development, and
the administration of such would be onerous. An
associated database is also used to monitor and manage
the financial contributions that are held at any given point
in time, and robust governance procedures are in place

to ensure that any spend of developer obligation funds




G6 abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

this is not considered to be
competent.

accords with the s69 or s75 legal agreement for the
relevant development. Again, this is an established
practice which has been operated by ACC for many
years.

The final paragraph in section 2.1 of the draft SG states
that 9% of the total interest accrued on contributions will
be used to support the monitoring and management of
developer obligations funds. Identical text appeared in
the 2017 Planning Obligations SG and this part of the
guidance is therefore unchanged (although it is
understood that ACC has not actually utilised a
proportion of the interest accrued for this purpose over
recent years). No change is necessary.

Planning
Obligations

12, 14, 15,
18, 20

Increasing the time permitted to
spend contributions to 10 years is
completely unacceptable and
unjustified. Any contributions
sought on that basis are not
justifiable in terms of Circular
3/2012 and cannot be deemed
reasonable or fairly relate to the
development as the perceived
deficit will not be made good until
years after the development is
complete.

An analysis of practices in a wide range of other planning
authorities shows that many authorities apply 10 year
periods (and in some cases even longer) for developer
contributions to be spent.

In many cases, improvements to infrastructure and
facilities are required to mitigate the cumulative impact/s
of several developments in a given area. Budget
pressures within the public sector mean that it is rarely
possible to ‘forward fund’ the necessary infrastructure
improvements in advance of collecting appropriate
contributions from all the relevant developments. In such
cases, it can take a relatively long time to collect all the
necessary contributions as the contributing developments
often progress at different rates. It would generally not be
appropriate if the contributions from the earlier
developments in such circumstances had to be returned
because insufficient time had been allowed to collect
payments from other later developments in the area and
then deliver the necessary infrastructure.

In the third paragraph of
section 2.1 replace all
references to 10 years’ with
7 years’.




96 abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

Notwithstanding the above, on balance it is considered
that reverting to the existing 7 year spend period (which
is well established and has been applied by ACC for a
number of years) would strike a more appropriate
balance between allowing sufficient time to collect and
then spend contributions whilst ensuring that there is an
appropriate and clear relationship between the
infrastructure that is ultimately delivered and the
development/s that contributed towards it. A change is
recommended accordingly.

Planning
Obligations

12, 14, 15,
18, 20

Object to the use of the All-in
Tender Price Index at paragraph
2.3. This is not publicly available to
the house building industry for
scrutiny and any increases should
relate to the publicly available RPI.

The BCIS All-in Tender Price index is an industry
accepted standard and is directly related to build costs in
the development and construction industry. It is therefore
the most appropriate mechanism for index-linking
developer contributions. Conversely, RPI covers a wide
range of other unrelated factors (household spending,
entertainment, leisure etc) and would therefore not be
appropriate to use for this purpose. Again, it should be
noted that using the BCIS All-in Tender Price to index-
link developer contributions is an established practice
which has been operated by ACC (and other local
authorities) for many years. No change is necessary.

No revision proposed.

Planning
Obligations

12, 14, 15,
18, 20

General concern is expressed at
the increased rates contained
within the draft SG and the lack of
clarity and justification for the
proposed increases, with some
being substantially more than the
current SG. It is questioned how
these increases have been
calculated as no breakdown or

justification is provided.

The rates under each of the potential contribution
headings in the draft SG have been subject to
comprehensive review. This has included a review of the
methodology by which they have been calculated. It is
not considered appropriate to include detailed
justifications for all of the rates within the SG itself as this
would constitute an unnecessary level of detail and
significantly lengthen the document, rendering it more
difficult to read for most users. However, further evidence
of the methodology used to calculate them is available on

No revision proposed.




/6 abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

request and such further evidence is regularly provided
during site-specific discussions with developers.

The rates within the draft SG also reflect the well-
documented rises in build costs since the previous
guidance was published. These significant increases
have a direct impact on the costs of delivering the
mitigation works that will be necessary to accommodate
the impact/s of new development. It is therefore
reasonable and appropriate for these increased costs to
be reflected in the contributions sought from new
developments. However, it is also important to note that
developer contributions will be index-linked at the time of
payment (using the BCIS All-in Tender Price index as
stated above). As outlined in section 2.3 of the draft SG,
the base date for indexation purposes will be taken as
the date of SG adoption. This means that contributions
may be lower at the point of payment if the index value is
lower at that point in time.

Planning
Obligations

12, 14, 15,
18, 20

Objection is made to the
requirement to contribute to any
cycle hire scheme, car clubs and
bus permits. In Aberdeen, these
facilities are run by private
companies and it is not acceptable
for housebuilders to subsidise
privately run schemes. It is also
guestioned whether a contribution
to all of these measures is
applicable for ‘all developments’,
which appears to be the
suggestion from the draft, as

opposed to on a site-by-site basis

The fact that these facilities are delivered by private
companies does not preclude developer contributions
from being sought towards them in principle. The
argument that they are privately operated fails to take
account of the fact that they are still relied upon to
provide an important public service. Circular 3/2012 does
not make any distinction between services and facilities
based on ownership or management arrangements, and
it does not preclude contributions being sought towards
privately operated facilities in principle. Where
contributions are required towards the enhancement of
such facilities, robust arrangements will be put in place to
ensure that the contributions are spent appropriately on

No revision proposed.




g6 abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

following a detailed assessment of
the proposed development.

increasing the capacity of those facilities to accommodate
additional users resulting from new development.

By way of illustration, Aberdeen’s car club scheme is
operated by a private company under a contract with
ACC. Any developer contributions towards the car club
are paid to ACC and subsequently released to the car
club for specific purposes aligned to spend conditions set
out in the s69 or s75 legal agreement for each relevant
development. These arrangements are well established
and have been operated by ACC for many years. Similar
arrangements exist for bus permit contributions, which
are rarely required in practice but may be sought in
instances where a contribution towards sustainable
transport measures is required as a consequence of
limited parking provision or other site specific
circumstances. Equivalent arrangements will also be put
in place to ensure the appropriate use of any developer
contributions towards the cycle hire scheme, which was
launched as a partnership between ACC and a private
operator in late 2022.

It should also be noted that contributions towards these
measures will not be required for all developments. The
draft SG already makes this clear by stating that these
contributions “may apply to all residential developments
of 3 or more units...”. As identified above, the exact
contributions for any given development proposal are
determined on a case-by-case basis taking account of
the site-specific circumstances. Contributions are only
sought where they satisfy the tests in Circular 3/2012,
and the contribution details are all outlined in a site-

specific Developer Obligations Assessment.




66 abed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
Planning 12, 14, 15, |Explanation is sought as to why [Core path contributions are not sought for every No revision proposed.
Obligations 18, 20 contributions are required towards [development. As noted above, the exact contributions for
Core Paths under paragraph 3.2 |any given development proposal are determined on a
as not every site has capacity or [case-by-case basis. Contributions are only sought where
ability to provide a Core Path or a [they satisfy the tests in Circular 3/2012, and the
link to the Core Path Network. The |contribution details are all outlined in a site-specific
contribution of almost £700 per Developer Obligations Assessment. Core Path
SHUE is excessive and further contributions are only sought in cases where there are
details of what this calculation is  [specific core paths in the vicinity of the development site
based on are required. and where those specific paths require enhancement to
accommodate the new users that the development is
expected to generate.
As noted in response to other submissions, itis not
considered appropriate to include the full methodology
used to derive the £651 core path contribution rate in the
SG itself, but further evidence of the methodology is
available on request and such further evidence is
regularly provided during site-specific discussions with
developers. No change is required.
Planning 12, 14, 15, |Strongly object to the requirement [An analysis of practices in a range of other neighbouring |In section 3.3 replace all
Obligations 18, 20 to contribute to primary or planning authorities shows that many apply a 90% references to 90%’ with

secondary schools where they are
operating at over 90% capacity or
are forecast to exceed 90%
capacity. This is not based on any
robust justification and there is no
explanation why this has changed
from the current 2017 SG. Scottish
Government Guidance which
recommends that planning
capacity should be used. HFS
therefore do not accept that

contributions are required unless a

capacity threshold (and in some cases even lower) as the
point at which developer contributions towards education
capacity enhancements are sought. There is therefore a
well-established precedent for this approach elsewhere
and no reason in principle to suggest that a similar
approach cannot be applied in Aberdeen.

ACC’s School Estate Plan states that in order to ensure
that spaces in schools can be used flexibly and for their
intended purpose to support curriculum delivery, the
optimum range for all schools to operate at is between
80% and 95% of their available capacity. The Estate Plan

95%.




00T obed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
school has reached 100% goes on to state that school roll forecasts are used to
capacity. If schools cannot operate [allow officers to identify at an early stage where there
effectively at 90% or indeed 100% [may be pressures on the number of available spaces at a
capacity, it would be apparent that [school and to enable appropriate action to be taken to
the school has wider issues address any emerging capacity issues (ie mitigation
affecting it (e.g. staffing issues), |works to increase capacity). In the context of identifying
rather than just physical capacity. [the need for mitigation works, the Estate Plan reiterates
Seeking developer contributions to [that officers work to the principle that the occupancy level
try and mitigate suchissues would |of all schools should be maintained at between 80% and
not be appropriate and fails to 95% of their maximum available capacity.
meet the tests of Circular 3/2012.
It is also significant to note that schools need flexibility to
allow for different class configurations due to statutory
maximum class sizes for different year groups
(particularly in primary schools). As a result, the way in
which classes need to be configured in any particular
year can make it impossible to reach 100% of the
planning capacity of the school.
There is therefore a reasonable and justifiable case for
setting the threshold for seeking developer contributions
towards education capacity enhancements at a level
below 100% of the planning capacity of the relevant
school. However, to ensure full consistency with the
School Estate Plan, it is recommended that the threshold
should be amended to 95% of the planning capacity in
the final version of the SG (as this is defined as the upper
limit for efficient school operation within the School Estate
Plan and is the threshold above which mitigation works
will generally be introduced to increase capacity). A
madification is recommended accordingly.
Planning 12, 14, 15, [The education mitigation rates per [The education mitigation rates in the draft SG were See recommended changes|
Obligations 18, 20 pupil in the draft SG are calculated using cost information from actual recent to education mitigation rates|




TOT abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

significantly higher than current
2017 SG rates. The minimum
increase is 26% higher for
secondary new build for a 1,000
pupil capacity school, with
reconfiguration of a primary school
seeing a massive 216% increase
compared with current rates. The
development industry requires
further information in relation to
how these increases are
calculated to explain why they
have risen so significantly. They
should be based on The School
Premises (General Requirements
and Standards) (Scotland)
Regulations 1967 (and it is
understood that these have not
changed since the 1973 and 1979
IAmendment Regulations). Further,
the costs should be based on build
costs only and should not include
fitting out which should come from
revenue streams and not capital
budgets.

examples of education capital projects in Aberdeen City,
or by using information on education space requirements
and benchmark cost data from other nationally
recognised sources including Scottish Futures Trust.

As noted in response to other submissions, itis not
considered appropriate to include the full methodology
used to derive the education mitigation rates in the SG
itself, but further evidence of the methodology is available
on request and such further evidence is regularly
provided during site-specific discussions with developers.
In this case further information on the calculation of the
education mitigation rates is also provided in the
response to respondent 29 below, where a number of
amendments to the mitigation rates are proposed to
address the detailed comments raised by that
respondent.

The School Premises (General Requirements and
Standards) (Scotland) Regulations 1967 prescribe the
minimum standards that school premises and equipment
must meet. ACC complies with these and other relevant
regulations when delivering new education infrastructure
projects. The school premises regulations no not provide
cost information on which to base mitigation rates for
planning obligations, and it is therefore reasonable to
utilise the information sources noted above to calculate
the necessary mitigation rates.

The education mitigation rates outlined in the draft SG
include all capital costs associated with the delivery of a

building / structure to a state which is suitable for

in response to respondent
29 below.




20T abed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
occupation and educational use. They do not include any
revenue costs.
Planning 12, 14, 15, |Objectto the requirement to The fact that some healthcare facilities such as GP and |No revision proposed.
Obligations 18, 20 contribute to healthcare facilities. |dental practices are privately owned and operated does

Further information is required and
requirements need to be fully
justified in terms of Circular
3/2012. The guidance needs to be
clear that healthcare contributions
will be assessed on a case-by-
case basis and the development
industry should not be expected to
contribute to privately owned and
operated GP and dental practices,
due to the limited control that
exists over such facilities.

It is also understood that not all
monies collected to date have
been passed onto healthcare
facilities for any required
mitigation. This suggests that
healthcare contributions are not
essential to make residential
developments acceptable in
planning terms. Further clarity is
therefore required on how these
contributions have been spent and
no further healthcare contributions
should be collected until such
matters have been clarified.

not preclude contributions from being sought towards
their enhancement where necessary. This issue has
been considered multiple times during LDP
Examinations, including during the Examination of ACC’s
current LDP. In the Examination Report for the current
LDP, the Reporter concluded that:

“l acknowledge that some facilities are privately owned
and run, but their funding is provided by the local health
board (NHS Grampian) in order to provide an essential
public service. If a development would generate
additional need and demand for public services for which
there is not currently the physical capacity to
accommodate, a developer contribution towards
appropriate mitigation would be capable, in principle at
least, of aligning with Circular 3/2012.

The point that some healthcare facilities are privately
owned and run fails to take account of the fact that they
are still relied upon to provide a public service. The
Circular does not make any distinction based on
ownership or management arrangements. Without
developer contributions, there may be no prospect of
healthcare capacity being increased to a sufficient level,
whether at privately or publicly owned premises, to
accommodate patients from new developments” (paras 9
& 10, pg 764).




€0T abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

As noted above in response to other comments, the
exact contributions for any given development proposal
are determined on a case-by-case basis. Contributions
are only sought where they satisfy the tests in Circular
3/2012, and the contribution details are all outlined in a
site-specific Developer Obligations Assessment.
Contributions towards healthcare are only sought in
cases where the existing healthcare facilities that would
serve a new development do not have sufficient physical
capacity to absorb the additional patients that are
expected to be generated and where mitigation is
required to provide the necessary additional capacity.

ACC’s Developer Obligations Team Leader works
collaboratively with NHS Grampian to help ensure that
the healthcare contributions collected from new
developments are used to deliver appropriate capacity
enhancement works in accordance with the spend terms
and time periods outlined in the s69 or s75 legal
agreement for all relevant developments. Developer
obligations funds have been used to deliver a number of
recent capacity enhancements to healthcare facilities
within the City.

Planning
Obligations

12, 14, 15,
18, 20

IAny reference to the requirement
to contribute to libraries should be
removed. There are a number of
libraries closing across the city
which demonstrates that there are
no capacity issues with these
facilities. Keeping library facilities
open is a revenue costand not a

capital cost and it is not justifiable

It is acknowledged that ACC recently announced the
closure of a number of libraries, and it is agreed that
there is unlikely to be any justifiable case for seeking
developer contributions towards library facilities during
the timeframe of the current LDP. In practice, the Council
has not been seeking such contributions from new
developments for several years. It is therefore agreed
that the reference to libraries should be removed from
section 3.6. A change is recommended accordingly. This

Delete the reference to
libraries from the first
sentence in section 3.6.




0T obed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

to seek contributions towards
these on this basis.

will not preclude contributions being sought towards
community facilities.

Planning
Obligations

29

Homes for Scotland has prepared
a response on behalf of the house
building industry and we concur
with the comments and points
raised in that response. Further
comments are made below setting
out additional reasons for
objection.

See officer’s response to respondents 12, 14, 15, 18, 20.

See action/s in response to
respondents 12, 14, 15, 18,
20.

Planning
Obligations

29

The percentage increases in
figures contained within this
guidance are staggering and will
impact the viability of development
across the city. No supporting
detall is provided for these
increases and we would
encourage the Council to share the
workings behind these figures in
full so that there can be proper
engagement and comment made.

This issue was also raised by respondents 12, 14, 15, 18,
20 and aresponse to it is outlined above.

See action/s in response to
respondents 12, 14, 15, 18,
20.

Planning
Obligations

29

Section 2.1 (Management of
Funds) advises that money will be
held for a period of 10 years from
payment of the final contribution. In
the main this will result in money
being held for 10 years after the
completion of a development. An
improvement required this length
of time after a development is
complete cannot reasonably relate
to 10 years after a development

has been completed.

This issue was also raised by respondents 12, 14, 15, 18,
20 and aresponse to it is outlined above.

See action/s in response to
respondents 12, 14, 15, 18,
20.




GOT abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

Planning
Obligations

29

Section 2.1 also suggests that the
monitoring of payments is an
administrative cost and will total
9% of the total interest accrued to
support this. This is not directly
related to the impact of
development. The use of funds to
provide Council administrative
services in holding and allocating
money internally is not considered
to be in accordance with Circular
3/2012. All contributions made
should be used to fund physical
improvements in infrastructure.

This issue was also raised by respondents 12, 14, 15, 18,
20 and aresponse to it is outlined above.

See action/s in response to
respondents 12, 14, 15, 18,
20.

Planning
Obligations

29

The rates set out should not be
altered in accordance with the All-
in Tender Price Index (as noted
within section 2.3) without first
consulting on these changes. The
scale of obligations contained
within the Supplementary
Guidance will have significant
implications on development
viability and this lack of review is
not acceptable. In the case that
such a statement remains it must
be made clear that the obligation
costs may either increase or
decrease in accordance with the
Index.

This issue was also raised by respondents 12, 14, 15, 18,
20 and aresponse to it is outlined above. As outlined in
the response above, developer contributions will be
index-linked at the time of payment (using the BCIS All-
In-Tender Price index) and may therefore either increase
or decrease in accordance with the index.

See action/s in response to
respondents 12, 14, 15, 18,
20.

Planning
Obligations

29

Section 3.1 makes reference to
roads improvements and that in

some instances the Council will

The requirement for any developer contribution towards
roads improvements is assessed on a case-by-case
basis taking into account site specific circumstances. In

No revision proposed.




90T abed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
take on the responsibility for works |cases where contributions are required towards local
with costs met by the developer. It |[roads infrastructure, a justification for the necessary
should be clarified that these improvements and details of the associated costs will be
works should be competitively provided to the developer by ACC’s Roads Team. Such
tendered with information provided |contributions will only be sought in cases where the tests
to the developer to confirm that the|of Circular 3/2012 are met in full. This is an established
costs are necessary to make the |practice which has been operated by ACC for many
required improvements. years, and this section of the draft SG has been carried
forward from the 2017 Planning Obligations SG
unchanged. No maodification is necessary.
Planning 29 There is reference to payment of a |lt is acknowledged that contributions towards Aberdeen’s |Amend the text in Table 2,
Obligations membership for bike hire scheme |cycle hire scheme will generally only be required in casesfin the row for ‘Cycle Hire
for residential developments wherejwhere secure cycle parking / storage is not provided as |Scheme’, as follows (new
parking is limited. Contribution to [(an integral part of the development. It is agreed that text in bold):
cycle hire memberships would only|additional text could be added to the final version of the
be necessary where bike storage |[SG to clarify this point. On a more general note, the “May apply to all residential
within a development is contribution rate of £480 per unit reflects the cost of developments of 3 or more
unavailable. At £400 per annum  |providing two annual memberships of the cycle hire units where full secure
any individual would mostlikely  [scheme per household and that the scheme provides cycle parking and storage
choose to own a personal bike. access to ebikes, which are typically more expensive to |provision is limited.”
purchase than traditional bikes.
Planning 29 The car club contribution figure per|The car club contribution rate of £400 per unit reflects the|Add additional text to the
Obligations unit appears to be expensive. actual cost of providing two memberships of the car club |end of the ‘Car Clubs’

These costs have been previously
based on an assessment of the car|
club spaces that are sustainable
and necessary and would provide
a cost better linked to the impact of
development.

for each dwelling for three years, providing an allowance
of driving credit to each dwelling for three years, and a
contribution towards maintaining/sustaining the nearest
car club vehicle to the development in question. This rate
is unchanged from the 2017 Planning Obligations SG
and has therefore been established for several years. As
outlined in the SG, this contribution will only be sought
from developments where full parking provision is limited
and where the shortfall in parking is not mitigated by
other forms of transport. For major developments, site

section in Table 2, as
follows:

“For major developments,
contributions may be
required towards additional
car club vehicles and/or
parking spaces, based on
the specific circumstances

of the site. The Transport




/0T abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

specific assessments of car club requirements (e.g. new
parking spaces, additional vehicles etc) will continue to
be undertaken to inform site specific financial
contributions in line with established practice and as set
out in the Transport and Accessibility APG. Additional
text could be added to clarify this and a change is
recommended accordingly.

and Accessibility APG
provides guidance on the
factors that will be taken
into account to determine
any car club contribution in
such cases.”

Planning
Obligations

29

Education contributions are listed
as applying to developments
where 90% of a school’s planning
capacity is reached. Previously the
Supplementary Guidance made
reference to schools exceeding the
maximum capacity of a school as
the trigger for developer
obligations. Currently 6 out of 11
IAcademies are over 90% of
capacity and have been operating
at this level for significant periods
of time. With increasing costs and
budget pressures it is unrealistic to
assume that development can
finance the improvements across
schools that the Council would like
to achieve.

This issue was also raised by respondents 12, 14, 15, 18,
20 and aresponse to it is outlined above.

See action/s in response to
respondents 12, 14, 15, 18,
20.

Planning
Obligations

29

The costs of education
contributions have increased
significantly. We have reviewed
information available on Council
projects and are not of the opinion
that these increased rates are fully
attributable to the infrastructure

necessary to serve the new

The education mitigation rates in the draft SG were
calculated using cost information from actual recent
examples of education capital projects in Aberdeen City,
or by using information on education space requirements
and benchmark cost data from other nationally
recognised sources including Scottish Futures Trust
(SFT).

Amend the new build two
stream primary school rate
per pupil from ‘€£47,235 plus
proportionate land value’ to
'£37,160 plus proportionate
land value’.




80T abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

development. Countesswells
Primary School was completed by
the Council at a cost of £20.5m for
434 pupil spaces. Dividing the cost
by pupil numbers equates to the
new figure proposed. This school,
however, includes a nursery and
also additional sports provision.
There is no suggestion in policy
that contributions will be made
towards Early Years provision and
sports and recreation are covered
by separate contribution figures so
should be excluded from the
primary pupil contribution.

SFT have undertaken analysis of
designs for a range of schools and
have produced a report on
findings. The costinformation is
not up-to-date, but the information
on areas remains a good
benchmark for which to judge new
development. This indicates that
for primary schools of 434 pupils
there should be a target of 7.5 sgm
per pupil. Floor plans of the
Countesswells School identify that
the GIA is 4,163.6sg.m and 1.28
times larger than the reference
design. If the build cost was
reduced to 78% of the budget

figure then this would provide a

It is acknowledged that the mitigation rate for a new two-
stream primary school in the draft SG was based on the
cost of delivering the new Countesswells Primary School.
It is accepted that this new school includes an element of
nursery /early years provision and that there is no basis
in the LDP for seeking contributions towards nursery /
early years provision. A further review has therefore been
undertaken to establish the cost of Countesswells
Primary School excluding the nursery / early years
component. This review has resulted in a reduced
mitigation rate for a new two-stream primary school of
£37,160 per pupil, and a change to the SG is
recommended accordingly. It is also accepted that the
new Countesswells Primary School includes sports
provision. However, the level of sports provision is
necessary to meet the minimum requirements of the
schoolitself. A 3G all-weather pitch was included within
the school design since this was the most efficient way of
meeting the sports demands of the school, as grass
pitches would have required a significantly greater land
take. As the 3G pitch can be used more intensively than
grass pitches, it can also be made available for wider
public use on occasion. However, it is important to stress
that this is only outside school hours, and that it should
not be viewed as an alternative to or replacement for
other public sports and recreation facilities. It is therefore
not appropriate to exclude the sports provision element
from the cost calculations.

Although not specifically raised by the respondent, it
should be noted that the mitigation rate for a new three-
stream primary school in the draft SG was based on the

cost of delivering the new Riverbank Primary School.

Amend the new build three

stream primary school rate

per pupil from ‘€£46,237 plus
proportionate land value’ to
'£40,865 plus proportionate
land value’.

Amend the secondary
school permanent extension
rate per pupil from ‘£27,300°
to '£39,414".

Include a footnote to the
primary and secondary
school permanent extension
rates to identify that they
are based on Q4 2019
costs.




60T abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

pupil rate of £36,932, which would
be a 14% increase from previous
figures. This remains expensive
but is more realistic than the
figures identified.

The school extension figures have
increased by 200% from previous
figures without justification. There
have not been many recent school
extensions to compare to, but the
Council did report on an extension
for 300 pupils at Bucksburn
IAcademy and there was a figure of
£1.5m identified for budget cost.
This equates to £5,000 per pupil -
less than the current figure let
alone 200% higher.

(Supplementary evidence provided
in support of the above comments
on COsts).

This new school also includes an element of nursery /
early years provision and, for the reasons outlined above,
a further review has been undertaken to establish the
cost of Riverbank Primary School excluding this element.
This has resulted in a reduced mitigation rate for a new
three-stream primary school of £40,865 per pupil, and a
change to the SG is recommended accordingly.

The extension mitigation rates in the draft SG are based
on data from SFT. They were calculated using the (then)
emerging Phase 3 Learning Estate Investment
Programme (LEIP) metrics, terms and conditions. These
provide benchmark figures for the amount of space (in
sgm) required per pupil and cost metrics (in £/sgm) which
have been used to establish the extension mitigation
rates. These are nationally accepted standards, and in
the absence of recent extension projects in Aberdeen
City to compare to (as acknowledged by the respondent)
it is reasonable to use them as the basis for calculating
the extension mitigation rates. Following publication of
the Draft SG for consultation, the SFT Phase 3 metrics
were formally published in May 2023. The published
metrics include different/individual space and cost metric
figures for primary and secondary schools, whereas the
mitigation rates in the Draft SG were based on
single/combined space and cost metrics for both types of
school. This additional data identifies the need for a
different (higher) secondary extension mitigation rate of
£39,414 per pupil. The SFT Phase 3 metrics also include
additional detail on the index base date for the cost
metrics, which was not known at the time of writing the
Draft SG. Technical changes are therefore recommended

to update the secondary school extension mitigation rate



https://www.scottishfuturestrust.org.uk/publications/documents/leip-phase-3-metrics-terms-conditions
https://www.scottishfuturestrust.org.uk/publications/documents/leip-phase-3-metrics-terms-conditions

OTT obed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

and to identify the index base dates for both primary and
secondary extension mitigation rates. This will bring the
final version of the SG into full alignment with the SFT
Phase 3 metrics. Contrary to the respondent’s assertions,
ACC has not identified a budget cost of £1.5m for an
extension at Bucksburn Academy. The committee report
to which the respondent’s supplementary evidence refers
sought approval of an outline business case for an
extension to Bucksburn Academy. It noted that £1.5m
would be required to progress the project to the detailed
design stage. This figure was therefore not a total budget
cost for delivering an extension at the school. Modular
accommodation has recently been installed on a
temporary basis pending the delivery of a permanent
extension in the future. An update report to the
Finance and Resources Committee on 17 May 2023

noted that the gross budget for installation of the
temporary accommodation alone is £2.56m, and it is
reasonable to expect that the future permanent extension
will cost significantly more. No change is necessaryin
this respect.

Planning
Obligations

Section 3.4 advises that where
new build facilities are provided
then a land value will also be
required. Any land value
attributable must only relate to the
proportional contribution of the
development. If the practice serves
a wider area then it would not be
reasonable to provide serviced
land at nil value. Furthermore,
there is a costto a landowner /

developer in servicing a site. This

The text in section 3.4 already makes clear that for
developments where a new build facility is proposed a
proportionate land contribution will be required. This will
ensure that any land contribution will fairly and
reasonably relate in scale and kind to the proposed
development in accordance with Circular 3/2012. It is
acknowledged that if a new facility is intended to serve an
area which is wider than the development itself, it may
not always be reasonable to seek the provision of
serviced land at nil value. However, the SG does not
state that this will be required in all cases — rather it
states that the contribution may be in the form of serviced

No revision proposed.



https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/documents/s144069/230517%20Capital%20Programme%20Delivery%20Projects%20Update%20FINAL.pdf
https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/documents/s144069/230517%20Capital%20Programme%20Delivery%20Projects%20Update%20FINAL.pdf

TTT obed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation

is not free and should either be land at nil value. This allows flexibility to take account of

paid for by the NHS or discounted [site-specific circumstances. This text has been carried

from any contributions for the forward from the 2017 Planning Obligations SG

development. unchanged. No modification is necessary.
Planning 29 Contributions for facilities suchas [Any contributions towards sports and recreation or No revision proposed.
Obligations sports facilities and community community facilities will be linked to facilities which serve

facilities, must be linked to the
local area. For transparency it
would assist if facilities requiring
investment could be identified as a
part of this guidance with an area
identifying the extent of use and
contribution. The costs of the
Sports and Recreation contribution
has increased significantly and
justification for this increase is
necessary.

the development in question and which therefore have a
direct relationship with it. The exact details of any such
contributions will be determined on a case-by-case basis
and outlined in the Developer Obligations Assessment for
each individual development. Robust governance
procedures are also in place to ensure that any such
developer contributions (and indeed all developer
obligation funds) are spent on infrastructure
enhancements which have a direct relationship with the
contributing development and in full accordance with the
relevant s69 or s75 legal agreement.

It is not possible to identify all the facilities that are
expected to require investment during the LDP timeframe
within this SG, and it is unlikely that this would be
appropriate as it would not provide flexibility to
accommodate changing circumstances over the plan
period. However, the details of the specific facilities that
require upgrading will be outlined in the detailed
Developer Obligations Assessment Reports for individual
developments. There may also be opportunities to
provide an indication of the facilities that are likely to
require capacity enhancements through other
mechanisms (eg Locality Plans). These opportunities will
be investigated as far as practicable.




ZTT obed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

The contribution rate for sports and recreation facilities
was reviewed in liaison with Sport Aberdeen. It has been
calculated using nationally accepted benchmark quantity
guidelines and is based on the actual cost of delivering
new sports facilities in Aberdeen. As identified in
response to other submissions, it is not considered
appropriate to include the detailed methodologies used to
calculate the contribution rates in the SG itself. However,
further evidence is available on request and such further
evidence is regularly provided during site-specific
discussions with developers.

Transport and
Accessibility

There should be reference within
the guidance to the necessity of
private car use by caregivers who
work full time. The guidance could
be perceived as a judgement upon
their need to use a private car.

The Scottish Government has declared a climate change
emergency and it is incumbent upon Planning Authorities
to seek to address this. A significant proportion of
Scotland’s carbon emissions are a result of our
dependence as a society upon the usage of private cars.
The Transport and Accessibility Planning Guidance sets
out how and where development should be planned and
how development should be designed in order to reduce
dependence upon private car usage. It is not the aim of
planning guidance to make judgements upon the
personal circumstances of individuals. The reference that
the respondent seeks is not material to the planning aims
of the guidance.

No revision proposed.

Transport and
Accessibility

There should be reference to
wheeling as well as walking. There
should also be guidance upon 20-
minute neighbourhoods. Finally,
with respect to the section about
electric vehicle charging
infrastructure, reference should be

made to this infrastructure not

The reference to wheeling in addition to walking is
considered to be an appropriate change that reflects a
wider range of users of pedestrian infrastructure.
Reference will also be made to electric vehicle charging
infrastructure not impeding wheelchair users as well as
walking.

References to wheeling
have been added to the
document.

A reference to EV
infrastructure not blocking
wheelchair users has been
added to section 2.3.2




cTT abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

impeding walking or wheelchair
users on the pavement.

Transport and |8 There is far less cycle parking Whilstit is true the spatial requirement for bicycles is less|No revision proposed.
Accessibility space required for offices and that the spatial requirements for private cars, it should be
other buildings comparedto car |noted that a single private car requires significantly more
parking space, which goes against [space than a single bicycle. The spatial requirement for
active travel goals. car parking was chosen in order to reduce the need for
on-street parking which would clutter public roadways.
The spatial requirement for bicycles was chosenin order
to accommodate current and future demand.
Transport and (12, 14, 15, [The guidance is too prescriptive [t is agreed that the draft planning guidance contains a |Section 2.1 has been
Accessibility |18, 20 which does not fit in with the significant amount of information on technical standards. |changed to ‘Designing
Council's agenda for good design |Consequently, a section on designing accessible places [Accessible Places’ which is
and that of ‘Designing Streets’ and [has been added which has a greater focus on the overall |more in line with design
wider placemaking principles. principles of placemaking. Nevertheless, many sections [guidance.
Many standards conflict with other |of the proposed guidance are required to be prescriptive
placemaking priorities and these |as they relate to Building Standards legislation. The
aspects should be aligned or comment in relation to a perceived conflict between
allowed greater flexibility so that (|technical standards in the document and placemaking
applications can be assessed on a |priorities is not clear — no specific example has been
site by site basis. highlighted so it is difficult to apply changes to address
this perception. Applications will always be assessed
upon a site by site basis.
Transportand (12, 14, 15, |Paragraph 2.1 requires sites to be |Paragraph 2.1 states “...ideally public transport should be |No revision proposed.
Accessibility |18, 20 within 400m of public transport and|available within 400 metres of the origins and

this is onerous and contrary to
some existing allocated sites and
unreasonable to be delivered
through a planning application.
Also, the reference to 400m is
outdated and should be
reconsidered given the move
towards 20 minute

destinations of trips within the development.’ This is not a
‘requirement’ as outlined in the respondent’s
representation. It is understood that some allocated sites
are not within 400m of public transport stops. There is
nothing within the guidance or policy which states that
developers must ensure public transport is within 400m of
all parts of such development sites. The Council do not
agree that the reference to 400m is outdated. The




yTT obed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

neighbourhoods (10 minute walk
each way being 800m).

‘Walkable neighbourhoods’ section within National Policy
Document - Designing Streets still refers to 400m walking
distance (5 minute walk) as being ideal in new
development.

Transport and |12, 14, 15, [Developers should not be required [The comments in relation to developers contributing No revision proposed.
Accessibility |18, 20 to contribute towards car clubs thatjtowards car clubs, annual bus permits and cycle hire
are privately run as this is schemes have also been raised against the draft
inappropriate, nor towards annual (Planning Obligations Supplementary Guidance. A full
bus permits and cycle hire response to the comments on these issues can be found
schemes which are considered in the summary table for that Supplementary Guidance.
excessive.
Transport and |12, 14, 15, [The importance of enabling The section on electric vehicle charge points has been [Section 2.3.2 (Electric
Accessibility |18, 20 transition to electric vehicles is rewritten in line with Building Standards requirements.  [Vehicle Charging
noted, but the reference within the |There is no need to specifically reference any difficulty in (Infrastructure) has been
guidance to active provision and [securing electrical capacity for EV infrastructure — updated and now reflects
passive provision charge points is (Building Standards regulations set out the requirements [the requirements of the
not clear in terms of what is of developers. updated BS handbook June
required for developers to provide. 2023.
Question whether the requirement
to allow for a future charge point
for each house complies with
current building regulations, and
the guidance should recognise the
ongoing challenges in securing
electrical capacity for electric
\vehicle infrastructure which could
prevent rollout of active provision.
Transport and |26 The respondent has compared the |The Council has taken on board a number of comments |Reference to national

Accessibility

draft guidance to that of other
major cities and identified several
points that they deem worthwhile
to include. These include:

raised by NESTRANS and has sought to address these
as follows:

e There is now reference to National Policy,
specifically NPF4, Designing Streets, Local Living

policies have been added in
sections 2.1.1 (NESTRANS
2040) and 2.1.2 (National
Planning Framework 4 -
local living and 20-minute




GTT obed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

There should be more
discussion about the
national, regional and local
policy context and links
could be included to key
documents.

The guidance is dry and
does not link reasoning
behind concepts to the
‘bigger picture’ — eg
identifying key city specific
issues and explaining why
measures are important.
The guidance lacks colour,
images and plans, which
could be used to make the
main points clearer before
technical discussion.

The refresh of the Local
Transport Strategy should
be mentioned as well as
the Regional Transport
Strategy.

More use of tables and
smaller bullet points,
particularly in the car club
section, would help.

The overall tone could be
more optimistic, for
example the low car
development section
should be stronger in
relation to city centre and

and 20 Minute Neighbourhood Draft Guidance
and Building Standards Technical Handbooks in
relation to Electric Car Charging Infrastructure.
Additional commentary on the climate change
crisis and a link to the reasons why progressive
standards for transportation and accessibility is
necessary.

Additional pictures and diagrams to explain
concepts and to break up the text and make the
document more user friendly and colourful.
Instead of applying more bullet points for sections
that are of a technical standard, much of this
information has been referenced and moved to
the back of the document as an appendix in order
to improve the readability and flow of the
document.

NESTRANS 2040 aims and policy concerning
places for people has been added. The Local
Transport Strategy 2016-2021 has been
referenced. The guidance can be undated to refer
to the newer Local Transport Strategy post
consultation.

It is felt that the section on low car development
strikes a good balance of tone at present. It is
clear the circumstances which would allow for low
car development.

A reference has been added to the 3 park and
ride facilities within the city boundary and the
potential for developers to reference this in
assessments and this is deemed sufficient. It is
difficult to specify how development might
maximise the use of park and rides.

neighbourhoods) and 2.1.3
(Designing Streets) and
Section 2.3.2 (Electric
\Vehicle Charging
Infrastructure Building
Standards Handbook June
2023)

Reference to climate
change crisis added to the
beginning of section 2.

Pictures and diagrams have
been added throughout
section 2.1 and within
section 2.3.

A number of sections have
been taken out of the main
text and added as
appendices at the end of
the document.

Section 2.1.1 (NESTRANS
2040) has been added.
Reference to the Local
Transport Strategy 2016-
2021 has been made under
section 1.2.

Section 2.1.6 includes an
additional reference to the




91T abed

Document Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

inner city locations due to
bus priority investment.

e More detail is required for
different layers of the city,
such as Bridge of Don and
Kingswells.

e The guidance should
mention how development
should contribute to park
and ride and maximise
these sites, including the
site at Portlethen outside
city.

e Sustainability needs more
prominence in discussion.

e The discussion about
priority of sustainable
modes needs to mention
that good access routes
are to be accessible to all.
The discussion should go
further such as value of
pelican crossings interms
of accessibility for all.

e More reference to sustainability has been made
within the text

e Reference has been made to the need for access
routes to be accessible to all and the potential
need for a pelican crossing to facilitate this.

Core Paths Plan and its
supplementary maps.

Section 2.3.3 (Park and
Ride) has been added.

More reference to
sustainability has been
made at the beginning of
section 2.

Section 2.1.7 includes a
new reference to the
potential need for formal
crossing points.

Transport and |28
Accessibility

Sustainable materials should be
used for driveways, this could
include replacing hardstanding
with permeable surfaces.

It is not within the remit of planning to control existing

lawful development. A reference has been included to
state that developers may want to consider the use of
permeable paving in order to improve urban drainage.

Reference to permeable
paving has been added
under section 2.4.

Topic Area: Protecting and

Enhancing the Natural Environment




/TT 9bed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
Open Space (12, 14, 15, |Providing separate guidance on  [Although these topics are linked, each one is important in|No revision proposed.
and Green 18, 20 Landscape, Food Growing, Naturallits own right. Although they could be combined into one
Infrastructure Heritage, Trees and Woodland and/APG, it is considered that retaining separate documents
Open Space & Green will aid reading and ensure that each topic is afforded
Infrastructure suggests that ACC is|due attention. The proposed approach will also allow the
trying to be too prescriptive and  |guidance on separate topics to be updated more easily if
control too much. It is argued that |required in the future. This point is particularly relevant for
these topics should be contained |this specific topic, as the Open Space and Green
within one guidance note. Infrastructure APG is expected to require substantial
update once the Council has completed its ongoing
review of the current Open Space Audit and Open Space
Strategy (see comment below on this issue).
Open Space (12, 14, 15, |Comments on this draft guidance |[As noted in the draft APG, a comprehensive review of the|No revision proposed.
and Green 18, 20 should wait until the Open Space [Council's Open Space Audit and Open Space Strategy is
Infrastructure Audit and Open Space Strategy is |underway and once those documents are finalised a
completed by Aberdeen City more substantial update of the Open Space and Green
Council. Full consultation should (Infrastructure APG will be undertaken. As also noted in
take place at that time instead. the draft APG, any significant updates that are required
to the APG once the Open Space Audit and Strategy are
finalised will be subjectto a further period of public
consultation.
Open Space (12, 14, 15, |Paragraph 2.7 requires open The wording in paragraph 2.7 of the draft APG effectively JAmend section 2.7 to read
and Green 18, 20 space provision in all replicates the wording in the relevant section of Policy  |[as follows (additional text
Infrastructure developments, including brownfieldNE2 of the LDP, which was found to be appropriate by [shown in bold):

sites. Previous guidance accepted
that brownfield sites were more
sustainable and if there were
additional costs in delivering such
sites, they may not need to apply
the minimum open space
standards. We object to the more
onerous wording that open space

standards now apply to brownfield

the Examination Reporter. It already recognises that it
might not be possible to increase the amount of open
space on some brownfield sites (e.g. where existing
buildings are being retained).

Nevertheless, it is accepted that some brownfield
developments may also involve additional costs, such as
site preparation, contaminated land remediation and
demolition etc. It is acknowledged that where there are

“As outlined in policy NE2 of
the Local Development
Plan, we will seek open
Space provision in all
developments, including on
brownfield sites. However, it
may not be possible to
increase the amount of




gTT obed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

sites. The previous wording should
be reinstated.

exceptional costs associated with a site it may not always
be appropriate to apply the minimum standards for open
space. A contribution towards off-site open space
enhancements may be sought instead in such instances.
It is agreed that text to this effect could be reinstated into
the APG.

open space on some
brownfield sites. For
example where existing
buildings on the site are
being retained. In these
cases, appropriate design
solutions to deliver onsite
amenity will be sought in
the first instance and
commuted sums towards
off-site provision or
enhancement of existing
open spaces will be sought
where appropriate.
Brownfield development
can also involve
additional costs, such as
site preparation,
contaminated land
remediation and
demolition. If developers
can satisfy the Council
that there are exceptional
development costs
associated with a site, it
may not always be
appropriate to apply the
minimum standards for
open space to such
developments. The
Council may instead seek
a contribution towards

off-site open space




6TT 9bed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

enhancements. The
necessary contribution
will reflect the scale and
type of development. (See
the Planning Obligations
Supplementary Guidance
for more information on
developer contributions
towards open space and
green infrastructure).”

Open Space (12, 14, 15, |it is welcomed that wording related [Support welcomed. Comment noted.
and Green 18, 20 to the preferred approach being
Infrastructure Council adoption has been deleted
from paragraph 2.11. It is also
welcomed that there is provision
for factoring arrangements under
“possible arrangements for the
management of open spaces”.
Open Space 27 In general, we are happy with the |Support welcomed. Comment noted.
and Green guidance. We strongly support the
Infrastructure emphasis on delivering high
quality, accessible open space,
rather than simply extra
quantitative provision.
Open Space 27 Given the nature networks concept/Comment noted. This will be taken into account as far as [Take account of nature
and Green which has emerged through NPF4,|possible when this APG is updated more substantially  [networks concept as far as
Infrastructure we would like to see the guidance |[following completion of the Open Space Audit and Open [possible when this APG is

set out the Council’s thinking and
approach on developing this in
Aberdeen. We note that this is a
draft document and that a review
of the Open Space Audit and Open

Space Strategy.

Space Strategy is expected to be

updated more substantially
following completion of
ACC’s Open Space Audit
and Open Space Strategy.




02T obed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
completed in early 2023 and this
guidance will be updated in light of
the review.
Open Space 27 It would be beneficial to include  |Comment noted. This will be taken into account when this(include graphics to illustrate
and Green graphics such as best practice APG is updated more substantially following completion |key principles if possible
Infrastructure examples in the final guidance to |of the Open Space Audit and Open Space Strategy. when this APG is updated
provide greater clarity on what is more substantially following
expected of developers. completion of ACC’s Open
Space Audit and Open
Space Strategy.
Open Space |27 There are some references to Comment noted and agreed. Replace references to
and Green ‘SNH’ in the guidance so we ‘SNH’ with ‘NatureScot’.
Infrastructure suggest updating this to
‘NatureScot'.
Open Space 27 It would be useful to include Comment noted and agreed. Include definitions for ‘green
and Green definitions for ‘green infrastructure’ infrastructure’ and ‘blue
Infrastructure and ‘blue infrastructure’ in the infrastructure’ in the
introduction section, and a introduction section, and a
definition for ‘brownfield’ in section definition for ‘brownfield’ in
2.7. section 2.7.
Open Space 27 'We recommend emphasising the |Comment noted and agreed. Amend section 2.10 to read
and Green need to consider open space and as follows (additional text
Infrastructure green networks from the outset of shown in bold):
the design process. The following
changes (in bold) could be added “Open space and the Green
at section 2.10: “Open space and Space Network need to be
the Green Space Network need to considered from the outsef]
be considered from the outset of of the design process
the design process in Strategic within Strategic
Frameworks...” Frameworks...”
Open Space |27 \We strongly support the inclusion [Support welcomed. NPF4, policy 20 e) outlines more Amend the second
and Green of section 2.11 (maintenance and |robust requirements with respect to management and paragraph in section 2.11 to
Infrastructure management of new open spaces)|maintenance of green infrastructure. It states that read as follows




T¢T 9bed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

as maintenance is key for
provision of long-term benefits.

“development proposals that include new or enhanced
blue and/or green infrastructure will provide effective
management and maintenance plans covering the
funding arrangements for their long-term delivery and
upkeep, and the party or parties responsible for these”. A
technical change is recommended to bring section 2.11
of the APG into better alignment with this new policy
requirement.

(additional/amended text
shown in bold):

“In accordance with policy
20 e) of NPF4,
development proposals
that include new or
enhanced open spaces
and/or green
infrastructure will need to
make provision for their
effective management
and maintenance. The
planning system has-limited

raintenance—-can
however—make provision for
management and
maintenance
arrangements through
planning conditions or
agreements.”

Natural
Heritage

12, 14, 15,
18, 20

Providing separate guidance on
Landscape, Food Growing, Natural
Heritage, Trees and Woodland and
Open Space & Green
Infrastructure suggests that ACC is
trying to be too prescriptive and
control too much. It is argued that
these topics should be contained

within one guidance note.

Although these topics are linked, each one is important in
its own right. Although they could be combined into one
APG, it is considered that retaining separate documents
will aid reading and ensure that each topic is afforded
due attention. The proposed approach will also allow the
guidance on separate topics to be updated more easily if
required in the future.

No revision proposed.




2cT abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

Natural 12, 14, 15, |Contents page does not correlate [Comment noted. The contents page and referencesto  |Contents page updated and
Heritage 18, 20 with content (including incorrect  |SPP will be updated in the final version of the APG. SPP references /
labelling of sections 2.7 and 2.8). terminology replaced with
updated NPF4 references /
References to SPP in paragraph terminology.
2.1 should be amended to reflect
NPF4.
Natural 12, 14, 15, |it is not clear whether Preliminary |[As identified in the CIEEM Guidelines for Preliminary Amend the third sentence of
Heritage 18, 20 Ecological Assessments (PEA) will|[Ecological Appraisal, PEAs are rapid assessments that the section headed ‘Initial
be required for all applications or |are generally undertaken in the early stages of a design |Assessment and Informing
on a site-by-site basis. Clarification{process to inform a developer (or other client), and their |Design’in section 2.4 of the
would be welcomed. design team, about the key ecological constraints and  |APG to read as follows
opportunities within a project and the need for any (new text in bold):
detailed further surveys. They are not generally
appropriate for submission to the planning authority and |‘Although the findings of
the Council will not generally be seeking the submission Jany initial walk over
of PEAs as part of any planning application. The draft survey / PEA will not
APG does not specifically state that PEAs will need to be |generally need to be
submitted in support of planning applications — rather it |[submitted to the Council,
intends to draw attention to their value in the early design Fthis report should inform
process for new developments. However, it is accepted [the production of any
that additional text could be added to clarify this. A further reports which are
change is recommended accordingly. then submitted in support of
the planning application.”
Natural 12, 14, 15, |Paragraph 2.11 deals with There is no contradiction in the advice in sections 2.11  |No revision proposed.
Heritage 18, 20 enhancements and overall and 2.12 as these sections cover different circumstances.

biodiversity gain, and provides
examples including bat and bird
boxes and habitat linkages.
Paragraph 2.12 deals with
mitigation and compensation,
which also includes bat and bird
boxes and habitat connectivity.

Measures such as bat and/or bird boxes may provide
entirely appropriate biodiversity enhancements for some
developments (as envisaged in section 2.11). However,
in other cases where bat and/or bird boxes are being
proposed as mitigation and compensation measures
because of the development’s impact on bats and/or

birds, they will only be considered appropriate where the




c¢T abed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
However, this paragraph states initial impacts cannot be avoided through careful design
that mitigation and compensation |and there is no alternative (as identified in section 2.12).
should only be applied where These are two distinctly different scenarios, and it is
impacts are unavoidable and there [therefore appropriate for the APG to provide separate
is no alternative. The guidance advice for each.
suggests these measures are
acceptable, but later suggests only|Section 2.11 already clarifies this point by stating that
where there is no alternative. This |whilst some of the suggestions for mitigation and
is confusing. Clarification is compensation in the following section (section 2.12) can
required. also be used to add net gain in some instances, they
would not be considered net gain unless they go above
and beyond what is necessary to compensate any loss
which has prompted their inclusion in a given
development.
Natural 12, 14, 15, |Paragraph 2.14 requires all new |The wording of paragraph 2.14 is consistent with LDP  [No revision proposed.
Heritage 18, 20 development to incorporate SUDS [Policy NE4 and the Flooding, Drainage and Water
where previous guidance stated |Quality APG. It also identifies some exceptions to the
that this was required for “the requirement for SuDS (single dwellings, extensions to
majority” of sites. Providing SUDS [residential properties or discharges to coastal waters).
on brownfield sites has capacity [These exceptions are also identical to those outlined in
implications and this guidance LDP Policy NE4 and the Flooding, Drainage and Water
should revert to the previous Quiality APG. Paragraph 2.14 goes on to highlight the
wording to reflect this. dual benefits of SuDS in helping to meet the
requirements for securing biodiversity gains at the same
time as helping to manage surface water. No change is
necessary.
Natural 12, 14, 15, [The requirement for a Lighting Paragraph 2.15 states that an LIA should be provided for [No revision proposed.
Heritage 18, 20 Impact Assessment (LIA) under |all developments where bats are confirmed to be roosting

paragraph 2.15 is not specifically
required under this guidance as
this can be covered through an
appropriately worded condition
attached to a planning consent in

at the site, or for larger scale developments where bats
are known to forage in the area. The LIA requirement is
therefore precise/specific in nature and necessary to
mitigate the impact of relevant developments on a
protected species. Although in some cases it may be




2T obed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

the relevant cases. This should be
removed. If this is not accepted, it
should be acknowledged that
lighting is requested by Roads and
therefore they need to be clear of
the impacts before seeking a
specific form of lighting.

appropriate to cover this issue through an appropriately
worded condition attached to a planning permission, it is
nevertheless helpful for the APG to draw attention to this
potential requirement. No change is necessary.

Natural 12, 14, 15, [There are concerns that the NPF4 places an enhanced emphasis on natural heritage [No revision proposed.
Heritage 18, 20 requirement for unnecessary and addressing the biodiversity crisis. It is essential that
additional studies will add to the ([these matters are afforded due consideration in the
costs and timescales for obtaining [development management process and appropriate
planning consents and delivering [studies will be required to enable this. However, it is
much needed housing and important to stress that ‘unnecessary additional’ studies
affordable housing. Guidance will not be required to support planning applications.
needs to be clear that sites and Requirements will be limited to those studies that are
requirements will be assessed on [necessary to ensure appropriate consideration of natural
a site-by-site basis. heritage features based on site specific circumstances.
No change is necessary.
Natural 23 Reference to policy NE1 Green Green Belt serves an important planning purpose, butit |No revision proposed.
Heritage Belt is essential in either is important to note that it is not a natural heritage
paragraph 2.5 or 2.6. designation. It would therefore be inappropriate to refer to
Green Belt within these sections of the APG.
Natural 23 It is good to see acknowledgement|lt is acknowledged that the APG could helpfully provide a |Add the following text to the
Heritage of the importance of Ancient reference to where more information on the location of  [end of the section on

\Woodland in paragraph 2.5, but
reference should be made for
readers to access alist of
Aberdeen’s Ancient Woodland
locations.

ancient woodlands can be found. Appropriate text could
be added to the end of the section on Ancient Woodlands
(in section 2.5, pg 8 of the draft APG).

Ancient Woodlands (in
section 2.5, pg 8 of the
APG):

“The Ancient Woodland
Inventory (AWI) is a map-
based tool that gives a
provisional guide to the



https://map.environment.gov.scot/sewebmap/
https://map.environment.gov.scot/sewebmap/

GeT abed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
location of ancient
woodland”.
Natural 23 The link to the Land Use Strategy |Comment noted. The Further Reading section will also be|Broken link repaired.
Heritage for Scotland on pg 18 (Further subject to a more general review to ensure it includes
Reading) is not working. details of all relevant documents that are referenced in  |Further Reading section
the APG text. also generally reviewed to
ensure it includes details of
all relevant documents that
are referenced in the APG
text.
Natural 27 \We strongly support the emphasis (Support welcomed. Comment noted.
Heritage on tackling the climate change and
biodiversity loss crises. We
welcome that this guidance will
assist in identifying natural
heritage assets on development
proposal sites and will guide the
design of development to meet
multiple targets.
Natural 27 The guidance could go further in  |Section 2.3 of the APG sets out a hierarchy of measures |No revision proposed.
Heritage clarifying the need for that should be used to improve the effects of

enhancement measures separate
to mitigation and compensation,
ensuring it is in line with NPF4.

development on biodiversity. This includes: avoidance;
mitigation; compensation; and enhancements. This
makes it clear that enhancement applies separately from,
and in addition to, any mitigation and compensation that
may be required.

The APG also includes separate and distinct sections on
‘enhancements and overall biodiversity gain’ (section
2.11) and ‘mitigation and compensation’ (section 2.12).
The section on enhancements and overall biodiversity
gain makes it clear that all developments should make
provision to achieve an overall biodiversity gain on their




9¢T abed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
site. It also clarifies that whilst some of the suggestions
for mitigation and compensation in the following section
(section 2.12) can also be used to add net gain in some
instances, they would not be considered net gain unless
they go above and beyond what is necessary to
compensate any loss which has prompted their inclusion
in a given development. The APG therefore already
clarifies the need for enhancement measures separate
from and in addition to mitigation and compensation. No
further change is recommended.
Natural 27 NPF4 introduces the conceptof  |This APG provides further guidance on the LDP. It No revisionproposed.
Heritage nature networks in local cannot introduce new concepts or requirements that are
development plans and it would be|not already included in policies in the LDP (which was
useful for the guidance to set out |produced prior to the publication and adoption of NPF4).
the Council’s thinking and There are therefore limited opportunities to develop the
approach to these. concept of nature networks at this stage, although this
will be explored in more detail in the next LDP. It should
also be noted that the Council is currently reviewing its
Open Space Audit and Open Space Strategy, which will
in turn inform an update of the Open Space and Green
Infrastructure APG in the near future. There may be
some scope to develop the concept of nature networks
through these documents, and this will be explored as far
as practicable.
Natural 27 \We note that the guidance still Comment noted. The draft APG was approved for SPP and NPF3
Heritage references Scottish Planning consultation prior to the formal adoption of NPF4, when |references/terminology
Policy (SPP) and National SPP and NPF3 were still valid. These references will be [replaced with updated
Planning Framework 3 (NPF3) updated in the final version of the APG. NPF4
rather than the now adopted references/terminology.
National Planning Framework 4
(NPF4).
Natural 28 IAny risk of tree root intrusion Comment noted. The same comment has been made No revision proposed.

Heritage

should be addressed by adhering

against a number of other draft APGs. Appropriate text




/2T abed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
to the guidelines set out in Water |has been added to the final versions of some APGs to
for Scotland 4th Edition and ensure that new developments give due consideration to
Sewers for Scotland 4th Edition.  [this point. There is limited value in including additional
Copies of water or waste water text within this APG as: i) it does not have a directly
network drawings can be ordered |relevant section; and ii) the entire suite of APGs should
from Asset Plan Providers. be read as a whole so introducing additional text in this
document would result in unnecessary duplication of
content. No change is recommended in the context of
this APG.
Flooding, 12, 14, 15, |No objection to the Guidance. Support welcomed. Comment noted.
Drainage and |18, 20
Water Quality
Flooding, 12, 14, 15, |References to Scottish Planning  [Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) has been superseded by [Paragraphs 2.1, 2.3 and,
Drainage and |18, 20 Policy in paragraphs 2.1, 2.3 and |NPF4 and so, references to SPP will be removed and 2.7 references to Scottish
Water Quality 2.7 should be removed, since replaced with reference to NPF4 where appropriate. Planning Policy removed.
Scottish Planning Policy has now
been superseded by NPF4.
Flooding, 12, 14, 15, |SEPA’s 2022 climate change Aberdeen Planning Guidance has been prepared giving |No revision proposed.
Drainage and |18, 20 guidance has been queried by consideration to all relevant national and local guidance
Water Quality Homes for Scotland. The APG at the time of writing, and consultation with key agencies
approval should await the outcome(Should there be future updates these can be actioned via
of those conversations, or para 2.9(a review of the Aberdeen Planning Guidance.
should be modified to allow for
future proofing regarding the
outcome of the discussions.
Flooding, 23 Ensure SuDS Guidance is The APG reflects the guidance and principles that have |[Comment noted.

Drainage and
Water Quality

adequate to protect and not pollute
watercourses and adjacent lands
in times of severe rainfall. Taking
account that SuDS are not
designed to alleviate flooding in

times of severe rainfall, which are

been set out in national and local guidance that were
current at the time of preparation. The document includes
links to all of the policy and guidance used.

Whilst the Authority recognises the limitations of SuDS,
the Planning Authority prepare Flood Risk Management
Plans on a local level that set out requirements for flood




g¢T abed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
likely to increase due to climate  |prevention and surface water management on a local
change. level.
The Authority works closely with SEPA and Scottish
Water to ensure guidance reflects the level of need for
surface water management across the City and how it
interacts safely with the existing watercourses and
drainage infrastructure.
Flooding, 28 In accordance with Sewers for Comment noted. Text will be added to the final version of [Text added to APG.
Drainage and Scotland where a shared drainage [the APG to draw attention to this.
Water Quality system is proposed for adoption by
Scottish Water, this applies to
assets sized for a 1:30 storm
event. Any requests to vest SUDS
infrastructure sized to 1:200 storm
events will require a Joint
Maintenance Agreement between
Local Authority and Scottish Water
under Section 7 Sewerage
(Scotland) Act 1968.
Trees and 12, 14, 15, |Providing separate guidance on  [Although these topics are linked, each one is important in|No revision proposed.
Woodland 18, 20 Landscape, Food Growing, Naturallits own right. Although they could be combined into one
Heritage, Trees and Woodland and/APG, it is considered that retaining separate documents
Open Space & Green will aid reading and ensure that each topic is afforded
Infrastructure suggests that ACC is|due attention. The proposed approach will also allow the
trying to be too prescriptive and  |guidance on separate topics to be updated more easily if
control too much. It is argued that ([required in the future.
these topics should be contained
within one guidance note.
Trees and 12, 14, 15, [The requirement for buildings and [The requirement for buildings and structures to allow No revision proposed.
W oodland 18, 20 structures to allow adequate spacejadequate space for a tree’s natural growth, and the ‘zone

for a tree’s natural growth, and
appreciation of a trees zone of
influence is too strict, and its

of influence’ concept, is not new. This section of the draft
APG is unchanged from the 2017 Supplementary




6¢T obed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

application onerous. The
requirement will be unworkable in
built up areas and will have
implications for delivery aspirations
of existing, and LDP allocated
sites. There is no mention of ‘zone
of influence’ in the LDP. A strict
requirement regarding a tree’s
‘zone of influence’ will hinder
sustainable development goals in
new development.

The guidance should be reviewed
to offer greater degree of flexibility,
and a merit-based approach to
effective tree management. The
current guidance may encourage
individuals to adopt rogue
measures, such as unnecessary
felling of trees without statutory
protection prior to the submission
of a planning application. The
‘zone of influence’ requirement
should be removed and a more
pragmatic, flexible approach to the
management of trees should be
adopted.

Guidance, which has been operating successfully across
Aberdeen for several years.

Although LDP Policy NE5 does not specifically include
the phrase ‘zone of influence’ (ZOl) it nevertheless states
that “Buildings and infrastructure should be sited to allow
adequate space for a tree’s natural development, taking
into account the predicted mature height...”. The APG is
consistent with this policy. The ZOI terminology comes
from the National House Building Council Standards
2021, Part 4.2 (Building Near Trees). As a familiar
industry term that refers to the lateral extent of the
influence of trees, and one that is referenced in terms of
the mature height of trees, ZOI is considered an
appropriate description for this purpose. Objections were
raised to this part of policy NE5, and to the overall ZOI
concept, at the Proposed LDP stage and the Examination
Reporter concluded that “this guidance is logical and
reasonable and therefore is appropriate in assessing the
impact a development may have on trees” (Examination
Report, pg 639, para 29).

Further, it should be noted that the APG'’s references to
ZOls say variously: “Buildings and associated
infrastructure, including garden ground, should generally
be located outwith the zone of influence...”, “The zone of
influence is generally considered to be the distance from
the bottom of a tree that is equal to the mature height...”
and “In certain cases, the zone of influence may need to
be increased...”. None of these statements represent
mandatory / prescriptive requirements, but rather they are
guidance.




0cT obed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
With respect to the comments about the guidance
potentially encouraging individuals to adopt rogue
measures such as unnecessary felling of trees prior to
the submission of a planning application, it should be
noted that the APG expressly discourages this. The final
paragraph in section 2.5 states that ACC will not accept
the deliberate clearing of sites as a pre-emptive step to
the planning application process, and that where there is
evidence of this having happened the site will be treated
as if the trees were still in existence.
Trees and 23 There is no mention of ACC’s It is agreed that a general reference to the TWSIP could (Include an additional
Woodland Trees and Woodland Strategic helpfully be included within the APG. However, it should [sentence at the end of the
Implementation Plan (TWSIP) in |also be noted that the areas categorised as ‘preferred’ forjthird para in section 1.1 of
paragraph 2.1. This is important  (woodland expansion exclude existing built-up areas and [the APG to read:
information that must be made LDP allocations (where the vast majority of built
available to the public and development is expected to take place), and that the “In addition, it relates to the
developers. Areas categorised as |identification of an area as ‘preferred’ for woodland Council’s Trees and
‘Preferred sites for woodland expansion within the TWSIP would not preclude \Woodland Strategic
expansion’ in the TWSIP should [development in and of itself. Implementation Plan, which
warrant protection when sets out the vision, strategic
considering potential development priorities and an action plan
proposals. for the future stewardship
and expansion of the City'’s
urban, street trees, rural
trees and woodlands.”
Trees and 27 In general, we are happy with the |Support welcomed. Comment noted.
Woodland content and welcome the
emphasis given to the value of
trees and woodland in tackling the
climate change crisis.
Trees and 27 'We would like to see the guidance |Although these comments are acknowledged, the LDP  [No revision proposed.
Woodland have greater consideration for and its associated suite of APGs should be read as a




TET abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

biodiversity and the important role
trees and woodland can play in
addressing the biodiversity loss
crisis and contributing to
biodiversity enhancement in line
with NPF4.

The climate change and
biodiversity loss emergencies are
inherently interlinked which could
be meaningfully emphasised
throughout the guidance. As such
we consider that it would be more
appropriate to amend the heading
of Section 1.3 ‘Climate Change’ to
‘Climate Change and Biodiversity’.

\We note that the guidance refers
to the Natural Heritage Aberdeen
Planning Guidance. However, it
would be useful if the Trees and
\Woodland guidance referred to
protected areas as well as
highlighting that should a
development (e.g. tree removal,
ground works etc.) be likely to
have a significant effect on a
protected area, NatureScot would
need to be contacted.

whole and the issues raised in these comments are
addressed through the Natural Heritage APG. It is
considered that including more information on these
issues within this APG would result in unnecessary
duplication.

Trees and
W oodland

27

In relation to masterplanning under
Section 2.5 (p. 8), we welcome the
promotion of early consideration of

existing trees and woodland. This

Agreed. A change is proposed accordingly.

IAmend the first sentence
under the bullet point titled
‘masterplanning’ in section

2.5 to read as follows




Z<T obed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

section could also highlight that
existing trees and woodland
should be not only retained but
incorporated into the development
design.

(additional text in bold):

“At the start of the
masterplanning process,
consideration must be given
to the retention of existing
trees and their
incorporation into the
development design, and
the planting of new trees.”

28

Any risk of tree root intrusion
should be addressed by adhering
to the guidelines set out in Water
for Scotland 4th Edition and
Sewers for Scotland 4th Edition.
Copies of water or waste water
network drawings can be ordered
from Asset Plan Providers.

Comment noted. Additional text could be included in the
seventh bullet point under the heading ‘Arboricultural
Impact Assessment (AIA) and Design Considerations’ on
pg 11 of the APG to draw attention to this point.

Amend the seventh bullet
point under the heading
‘Arboricultural Impact
Assessment (AIA) and
Design Considerations’ on
pg 11 of the APG to read as
follows (additional text in
bold):

“requirements for
infrastructure, above and
below ground services
(with any risk of tree root
intrusion on water
infrastructure being
addressed by adhering to
the guidelines in Water
for Scotland 4th Edition
and Sewers for Scotland
Ath Edition or successor
documents), roads and

footpaths ...”




ceT abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

Food Growing (12, 14, 15, |Providing separate guidance on  |Although these topics are linked, each one is important in{No revision proposed.
18, 20 Landscape, Food Growing, Naturallits own right. Although they could be combined into one
Heritage, Trees and Woodland and|/APG, it is considered that retaining separate documents
Open Space & Green will aid reading and ensure that each topic is afforded
Infrastructure suggests that ACC is|due attention. The proposed approach will also allow the
trying to be too prescriptive and  |guidance on separate topics to be updated more easily if
control too much. It is argued that |required in the future.
these topics should be contained
within one guidance note.
Food Growing (12, 14, 15, |Paragraph 2.2 requires There is no overall conflict between the APG and the IAmend the last sentence in
18, 20 development of all scales to LDP. LDP Policy NE2 makes specific reference to food the third paragraph of

consider incorporating food
growing and only in exceptional
circumstances will it be acceptable
for food growing spaces not to be
incorporated. This conflicts with
the LDP. LDP policy NE2 makes
no reference to the requirements
for food growing.

growing. It states that: “We will require the provision of
biodiverse, usable and appropriate open space in new
developments to ensure functionality. Please see
Aberdeen Planning Guidance ... for information on how
to calculate open space requirements, as well as different
types of provision (including food growing)...” It goes on
to say that: “We will seek open space provision in all
developments...”. Para 6.20 of the LDP also specifically
highlights the contribution that meaningful open space
provision in new developments can make towards food
growing in the city.

However, it is acknowledged that the last sentence in the
third paragraph of section 2.2 is likely to be overly
prescriptive. A modification is recommended to address
this.

section 2.2 to read as
follows (amended text in
bold):

“As such, developments
will be expected to give
appropriate consideration
to the incorporation of

eRhy-in-exceptional _

aeseptableferfoo
growing spaces te=petbe

Hesrperated-into the

design.”




T obed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

Food Growing

12, 14, 15,
18, 20

The APG provides thresholds for
local and major developments in
relation to communal food growing
areas. Although there is a degree
of flexibility in that food-growing
provision will be appropriate to the
scale and setting of each site (and
this is welcomed) the requirements
are too prescriptive. Also, the
requirement for “appropriately
sized” communal food growing
spaces is ambiguous and risks
creating uncertainty.

The support for the APG’s flexibility for food growing
spaces to be appropriate to the scale and setting of each
site is welcomed.

The wording in section 3 of the APG is designed to offer
flexibility to respond to site specific circumstances. The
second sentence in the second paragraph says “...all
developments will be expected to consider incorporating
food-growing into their plans...”. The guidance for both
local and major developments goes on to say that “...new|
developments should seek to provide at least one
appropriately sized communal food growing space...”
and that “for households without a private growing space
at least one communal food growing space for every 5
households is advised” These are not prescriptive
requirements. Rather, they outline the Council’s general
expectation that food growing spaces should be
considered as part of the overall open space provision for
a development and provide advice on the level of food
growing provision that may be appropriate for different
scales of development.

The phrase ‘appropriately sized’ is used to allow site
specific circumstances to be taken into consideration,
and to ensure that any food growing spaces are
appropriate to the scale and setting of each development,
as noted above.

Although not specifically raised in this comment, it is
noted that there is a drafting error / inconsistency in the
guidance for local and major developments in section 3
of the APG. As currently worded, local developments are

advised to provide at least one appropriately sized food

Amend the guidance for
major developments to
state that they seek to
provide at least one
appropriately sized food
growing space per 25
households or 5,000m? floor
Space.




GeT abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

growing space per 25 households or 5,000m? floor
space, whereas major developments are advised to
provide a lower level of at least one appropriately sized
food growing space per 50 households or 10,000m? floor
space. It is recommended that this inconsistency be
corrected in the final version of the APG by bringing the
guidance for major developments into line with that for
local developments.

Food Growing [12, 14, 15, [The requirement to provide The final sentence of the guidance for major IAmend the final sentence of
18, 20 allotments or community orchards |developments in section 3 of the draft APG states that all the guidance for major
in new developments over 50 new developments of over 50 homes are “expected to  [developments in section 3
homes is excessive when private |provide” allotments or community orchards within the mix [of the APG to read as
gardens are provided, giving most (of food growing spaces that are provided. It is follows (additional text in
homeowners the opportunity to acknowledged that this wording is more prescriptive than [bold):
grow food without the need for the remainder of the guidance in section 3 of the APG. It
separate allotments and orchards. |is also acknowledged that this may be excessive in some|[‘Additionally, all new
cases, particularly where private garden spaces are developments of over 50
being provided for most/ all of the dwellings in a homes are expected to
development. It is agreed that it would be appropriate to [consider provideing
amend the wording of this part of the APG to allow more |[allotments or community
flexibility and bring it into line with the rest of section 3.  |orchards within the mixture
of food-growing spaces
provided.”
Food Growing (28 Any risk of tree root intrusion Comment noted. Additional text could be added to the  |Add additional text to the

should be addressed by adhering
to the guidelines set out in Water
for Scotland 4th Edition and
Sewers for Scotland 4th Edition.
Copies of water or waste water
network drawings can be ordered
from Asset Plan Providers.

end of section 2.3 (B) ‘Orchards’ to draw attention to this
point.

end of section 2.3 (B)
‘Orchards’ to read:

“Any risk of tree root
intrusion should be
addressed by adhering to
the guidelines setout in
\Water for Scotland 4th
Edition and Sewers for
Scotland 4th Edition (or any




o¢cT abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

relevant updates thereof).
Copies of existing water or
waste water network
drawings can be ordered
from Asset Plan Providers.”

Food Growing

29

The APG requires provision of
food growing spaces as a part of
new residential development, with
different standards for local
developments and major. It only
refers to an ‘appropriately sized
space’. There needs to be an
assessment of the appropriateness
of such a space and if it would be
sustainable and the best solution
for the delivery of open space for a
development. This will particularly
be the case for housing with
private gardens, where there may
be more limited demand for
community growing space. These
spaces will also depend on
residents retaining and managing
them as a cost burden to them.

See the comments on provision of ‘appropriately sized’
spaces and the requirements for allotments and
community orchards in housing developments with
private garden space in response to respondents 12, 14,
15, 18, 20 above.

With respect to management and maintenance of food
growing spaces, the APG provides best practice
guidance on management and maintenance in section
2.2. It also notes that food growing spaces need not
always result in additional costs when compared with
other forms of open space.

No revision proposed.

Outdoor Access

'We welcome the Outdoor Access
IAPG. We welcome the inclusion of
all non-motorised users of all
abilities. We welcome that new
development should not
compromise the integrity of
existing or potential recreational
opportunities and the commitment

to the Core Paths Plan. We

Support welcomed.

Comment noted.




/€T abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

welcome that development should
not impede access and new paths
should link with other routes to
form part of a wider network. We
welcome that Design & Access
Plans should be provided detailing
future access provision. We
welcome the inclusion of our
Lowland Path Construction Guide.

Outdoor Access

12, 14, 15,
18, 20

Section 1 states that “This APG
specifically relates to and expands
on the following policy in the
IAberdeen Local Development
Plan”. It is not for the APG to go
beyond supplementing policies
within the LDP, or to introduce new|
and more onerous requirements
for developments to meet. The
APG must be limited to the
provision of further information or
detail in respect of policies or
proposals set out in the LDP itself.

The text in section 1.1 (or a variation of it) was included in
all of the draft APG documents. The phrase “expands
upon” is intended to convey the meaning that the APG
provides further information and/or detail on the specified
LDP policies, not that it goes beyond supplementing
those LDP policies. None of the guidance in this APG (or
any of the other APGs) goes beyond supplementing the
relevant LDP policies and it does not introduce any new
or more onerous requirements for developments to meet
beyond those that are set out in the relevant LDP
policies. No change is recommended in response to this
comment.

No revision proposed.

Outdoor Access

12, 14, 15,
18, 20

The APG appears to be sufficiently
flexible to allow for unique
solutions on a site-by-site basis.

Comment noted.

No revision proposed.

Outdoor Access

12, 14, 15,
18, 20

The draft guidance provides more
overt recognition of the potential
for developments to improve the
existing Core Path Network and
public rights of way. We do not
object in principle, but greater
flexibility is required in the wording

to ensure that improvements are

In accordance with Circular 3/2012 ‘Planning Obligations
and Good Neighbour Agreements’, it is acknowledged
that any improvements to the existing Core Path Network
can only be sought where (amongst other things) they
fairly and reasonably relate in scale and kind to the
proposed development. It is agreed that additional
wording could be added to the APG to confirm this. A
change is recommended accordingly. Comments on the

Add an additional sentence
to the end of the sixth
paragraph in section 2.1 of
the APG to read:

“Any enhancements to, or
contributions towards, the
Core Path Network or other




g¢T abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

sought only on a commensurate
basis. We also maintain concerns
over proposed developer
contributions for Core Paths (see
“Planning Obligations”).

Planning Obligations Supplementary Guidance are
addressed elsewhere.

public rights of way must
fairly and reasonably relate
in scale and kind to the
proposed development, as
well as meeting the
remaining tests in Circular
3/2012 ‘Planning
Obligations and Good
Neighbour Agreements’”.”

Outdoor Access

12, 14, 15,
18, 20

Further clarity is needed on what
will trigger the requirement for a
Design and Access Plan (DAP) in
support of proposed
developments. The guidance
should clearly state when this is
required, such as where a
development will impact the Core
Path Network or public rights of
way. If this is not clearly defined,
the preparation and submission of
a DAP may be requested when not
explicitly necessary.

It is agreed that additional guidance could helpfully be
added to the APG to identify the circumstances when a
DAP is likely to be required. A change is recommended
accordingly.

Add an additional sentence
to the end of the first
paragraph in section 2.2 of
the APG to read:

"A Design & Access Planis
likely to be required for
major developments,
developments where there
is an existing Core Path or
other right of way within or
in close proximity to the site
boundary, or where the
planning authority consider
it expedient for other
specific reasons (e.g. if the
development is likely to
have an impact on a
specific user group, or
Wwhere access needs to be
carefully managed for
environmental reasons)."




6T abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

Since one of the example
circumstances where a
DAP is likely to be required
involves cases where
access needs to be
managed for environmental
reasons, a corresponding
technical change is required
to include ‘environmental
impacts’in the subsequent
list of factors that the DAP
should consider where
appropriate.

Outdoor Access

12, 14, 15,
18, 20

Most of the issues raised in the
guidance can be addressed
through good design and further
control will be possible following
the approval of developments,
using the model condition given in
Appendix 1. Onthat basis, the
guidance can potentially be
consolidated in its entirety.

It is agreed that the issues raised in the guidance can
(and should) be addressed through good design.
However, it is important to retain specific guidance on
outdoor access in order to help inform the design process
for new developments. As such, it is not proposed to
consolidate this guidance or combine it with other more
general design guidance.

No revision proposed.

Topic Area: Sustainable Use of Resources

Waste
Management
Requirements
for New
Developments

24

On Page 14 — Part B— Waste &
Recycling - add 2 bullet points as
below to the Applications must
demonstrate the following part:

Agree — this will ensure residents can deal with their
waste efficiently and will encourage safe and convenient
recycling and disposal.

Add 2 bullet points as below
to the “Applications must
demonstrate the following”
section:




ot T obed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation

» Urban Locations — Residents » Urban Locations —

maximum wheeled bin pull to Residents maximum

\vehicle collection point 50 metres. wheeled bin pull to vehicle

» Rural Locations - Residents collection point 50 metres.

maximum wheeled bin pull to * Rural Locations -

\vehicle collection point 100 metres| Residents maximum
wheeled bin pull to vehicle
collection point 100 metres.

Resources for (12, 14, 15, Welcomes flexibility regarding Agree that proposals should be considered on a site-by- |No revision proposed.
New 18, 20 ‘density’ in section 2.1, but site basis, this is a fundamental aspect of the plating
Developments suggests flexibility to assess system. This is sufficiently encouraged in Section 2.1

proposals on a site-by-site basis  |which states: ‘The planning for this should take into

needs to be made clearer to allow |consideration the sites characteristics and the

for greater appreciation of potential|surrounding area.’ This is reinforced in Section 5, which

site constraints (i.e. difference of [states: ‘We do not intend to make the process

density potential between burdensome; therefore, the submission of information

brownfield and greenfield sites). |should be proportionate and relevant to the development

proposed.’
Resources for |12, 14, 15, |Queries topic layout in document; [These sections cover different aspects of energy usein |No revision proposed.
New 18, 20 ‘Energy use in Buildings’ is new buildings and are therefore separated in the
Developments introduced in section 2.2, whereas [document. Section 2.2 offers context to the subject of

measures to achieve energy 'Energy Use in New Buildings’ and gives an overview of

efficiency are identified in section |[the challenges in improving energy efficiency in new

4. buildings in Aberdeen. While section 4 details the specific

measures to be implemented to achieve energy

efficiency in new buildings.
Resources for (12, 14, 15, |Overall concernthat APG is It is noted that there is an overlap between the regulatory [No revision proposed.
New 18, 20 extensive and overly prescriptive. [function of Building Standards and the discretionary
Developments Queries whether detailed guidance|nature of planning. Section 4.2 adequately outlines the

concerning energy use and energy
efficiency in buildings is necessary
given the role of Building
Standards in determining current

legislative context, as per Section 72 of the Climate
Change (Scotland) Act 2009, and the Building Standards
context . Section 5 states: ‘The overarching purpose of
the planning system is to contribute to the achievement




T T obed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

regulations. Suggests
consolidating these issues and
excluding non-planning matters.

of sustainable development.... the collective
implementation of all policy documents and strategies are
what will ensure that Aberdeen is genuinely delivering
sustainable development.’ This statement justifies the
intent of the content included in this APG and satisfies
concerns raised.

Resources for (12, 14, 15, |Questions how use of LZCGT for |Section 4.2.4 details the information required by No revision proposed.
New 18, 20 the reduction of carbon emissions |applicants for assessment of proposals outwith the use of
Developments specified in APG and policy R6 will{the Sustainability Checklist; the use of SAP calculations

be applied in the assessmentof |and Simplified Building Energy Model (SBEM), or other

planning applications, aside from [Dynamic Simulation Software. Section 5, which states:

use of Sustainability Checklists. ['We do not intend to make the process burdensome;

Concern that requirement for therefore, the submission of information should be

incorporating use of a wide range |proportionate and relevant to the development proposed.’

of LZCGT is unreasonable and  (We feel this statement provides comfort regarding the

will be unviable for many concerns raised. The viability of development proposals

developments (particularly for is also a consideration when assessing development.

brownfield sites, that are already

cost prohibitive but can offer net

carbon benefits when developed).
Resources for (12, 14, 15, [Suggests placing greater Welcome the comment and agree that passive measures|No revision proposed.
New 18, 20 emphasis on passive measures  [for improving the energy efficiency of new buildings
Developments (layout, building fabric etc) for should be implemented in the firstinstance. This is

achieving carbon reduction of new
developments. This should shift
focus towards reducing the need to|
generate energy through passive
means, rather than generating
energy.

encouraged throughout Section 2.2, which outlines the
benefits of passive measures for carbon reduction; and in
Section 4.3.1, which states: “By reducing the energy
demand of a building in the first instance, as far as is
practicable, it becomes more feasible to then provide the
lower energy requirements through low and zero carbon
generating technologies.” This should also be considered
when adhering to the APGs guidance on achieving the
‘Gold’ Building Standards requirement, which encourages




2T abed

Document RespondeelSummary of Representation Officer Response Action as aresult of
Representation
developers to adopt a “whole-dwelling approach” to
energy demand reduction in a new build.
Resources for |12, 14, 15, [Refers to comments on ‘Amenity’ [Comments noted. The viability of development proposals |No revision proposed.
New 18, 20 IAPG document for section 2.3. is also a consideration when assessing development.
Developments Suggests including wording that  [Section 2.3 highlights a range of passive measures for
recognises the best practice for  |reducing energy demand, and does not imply that all
layout, orientation, shelter and measures are relevant to every development. Rather, it
aspectis not feasible for all intends to provides options for developers to consider
developments. applying to their development.
Resources for (12, 14, 15, |Requests clarity to demonstrate  |As is noted in the ALDP 2023 managing the use of water [No revision proposed.
New 18, 20 why the issue of water use in and increasing water efficiency is vital to reduce pressure
Developments buildings should be considered at |on the River Dee, which is the main source of drinking
all within the scope of planning water for Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire, and is a
applications in Section 3. Concern [special area of conservation. The combined impact of
this is not a planning matter, as its |climate change, population and economic growth may
addressed in building regulations. [have a long term impact on abstraction rates from the
River Dee, therefore managing this resource is
necessary.
Resources for |12, 14, 15, [Policy R6 and this APG should be [Section 72 of the Climate Change (Scotland) Act 2009 |No revision proposed.
New 18, 20 applied on site-by-site basis, requires Planning Authorities to make provisions to tackle
Developments proportionate to each proposal greenhouse gas emissions in all new buildings. This is
(with consideration of constraints |echoed within the statutory development plan.
and merits of each proposal, e.g., [All material considerations including viability are
the reuse of a brownfield site) to |assessed when determining planning applications, there
ensure viability. Suggests wording |[is no requirement to clarify.
to clarify this in section 4.3.
Resources for |12, 14, 15, [Sustainability Checklistis Comments noted. It is understood that the Checklists No revision proposed.
New 18, 20 extensive, suggests that issues  [cover a wide range of topics. However, these are
Developments covered within Checklist should be [included to inform discussion about the overall

set out in the LDP rather than
APG.

sustainability of new buildings in Aberdeen. As these are
intended to offer guidance for new development, their
inclusion is not required in the LDP. There is no
requirement to “set out” within the LDP, or provide a hook




e T obed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

between the LDP and the APG as there is for
supplementary guidance, as the document is non-
statutory planning guidance.

Resources for
New
Developments

12, 14, 15,
18, 20

\Welcomes Checklists as tools for
officers and developers to provide
guidance on best practice. Objects
to use of Checklists to determine
planning applications in terms of
relevant LDP policies, with officers
using Checklists as negotiation
tools for discussions of
applications, and as a material
basis for officers’
recommendations of individual
applications. Checklists would be
too rigid as a formal assessment
method and unlikely to be used on
a proportionate basis. Achieving
compliance with many issues
covered on Checklistis not
specified, and how this will be
demonstrated this within a
planning application is unclear.
Checklist covers topics already
addressed in building regulations.

Comments noted. Concern regarding over-reliance on
use of Checklists is understood. However, we feel that
Section 5 adequately highlights to users that the intent of
the Checklists are to guide new development, outlining
areas for users to consider, rather than forming a formal
assessment of a proposal.

No revision proposed.

Wind Turbine
Development

27

The respondent believes that the
guidance is outdated and would
benefit from review to bring it up to
date with current policy landscape,
such as NPF4. The respondent
recommends looking at its suite of
guidance. The mapping should

also be reviewed and could

It is agreed that the guidance is out of date.

The comments relating to the suite of guidance and
landscape sensitivity assessment guidance are noted.

In light of the adoption of
NPF4 and the policy intent
of Policy 11, to encourage,
promote and facilitate all
forms of renewable energy
development onshore and
offshore, it is considered

that the adoption of this




v T obed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

reference Landscape Sensitivity
IAssessment Guidance (2022).

APG be paused to allow for
investigation and the
possible development of a
renewable energy APG,
which will address more
than wind turbine
developments.

The comments relating to
the suite of guidance and
landscape sensitivity
assessment guidance are
noted and will be taken on
board in any future review.

Wind Turbine
Development

28

Refers to regulatory requirements
under article 7 of the Water
Framework Directive and that
developers submitto Scottish
\Water for their review. There are
other related informatives attached
in relation to discharge of trade
effluent.

These are informatives that Scottish Water would apply
to wind turbine applications and refer to separate
legislation outside planning.

There is no need to add any of the included to planning
guidance.

In light of the adoption of
NPF4 and the policy intent
of Policy 11, to encourage,
promote and facilitate all
forms of renewable energy
development onshore and
offshore, it is considered
that the adoption of this
APG be paused to allow for
investigation and the
possible development of a
renewable energy APG,
which will address more
than wind turbine
developments.

Wind Turbine
Development

30

Seeks reference to the pipeline
consultation zone in the attached
maps. Reference should be made
that any turbines proposed in the

consultation zone must accord with

The pipeline consultation zone is included within the
Constraints map of the Local Development Plan and
there is no need for it to be replicated in the guidance.

In light of the adoption of
NPF4 and the policy intent
of Policy 11, to encourage,
promote and facilitate all

forms of renewable energy




G T abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

HSE’s land use planning advice
and methodology.

development onshore and
offshore, it is considered
that the adoption of this
APG be paused to allow for
investigation and the
possible development of a
renewable energy APG,
which will address more
than wind turbine
developments.

Wind Turbine
Development

30

Reference should also be made to
guidance prepared by United
Kingdom Onshore Pipeline
Operator’s Association (UKOPA)
regarding siting of wind turbines
close to high pressure pipelines.
The following text is sought for
section 2.8:

“All wind energy developments
must ensure that and any wind
turbines proposed within pipeline
consultation zones must accord
with the Requirements of the
Health and Safety Executive’s land
use planning advice and the
Guidance prepared by the United
Kingdom Onshore Pipeline
Operator’s Association (UKOPOA)
regarding the siting of wind
turbines close to high pressure

pipelines.”

Consultation with the Health and Safety Executive, and
use of their land use planning advice is standard
procedure within the determination of application within
pipeline consultation zones. The UKOPA Good Practice
Guide, provides guidance for wind turbine developers
and designers; is it not a statutory document.

Reference could be made to the UKOPA Good Practice
Guide in the Further Reading section of the APG.

In light of the adoption of
NPF4 and the policy intent
of Policy 11, to encourage,
promote and facilitate all
forms of renewable energy
development onshore and
offshore, it is considered
that the adoption of this
APG be paused to allow for
investigation and the
possible development of a
renewable energy APG,
which will address more
than wind turbine
developments.




ot T abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

Wind Turbine
Development

30

The guidance should reference
NPF4 Policy 23 in relation to
proposals within the vicinity of a
major accident hazard pipeline.
The respondent notes that Angus
and Fife Councils have referenced
UKOPO guidance on their
equivalent documents.

NPF4 is part of the statutory development plan, there is
no need to reference this in the APG, it should be a given
that NPF4 will be part of any assessment and
determination of an application.

No revision proposed,

of NPF4.

Site Based Guidance

Countesswells
Development
Framework and
Phase One
Masterplan

21

The Countesswells Development
Framework and Phase 1
Masterplan should be adopted as
non-statutory planning guidance to
allow for flexibility in approach. The
document was first produced in
2014, and rolled forward in to the
2017 Aberdeen Local
Development Plan. A number of
changes have occurred to the site
since its creation; the Development
Framework and Phase 1
Masterplan should be viewed as
an overview of the development,
setting out principles and a
framework. Under the new
planning act supplementary
guidance is to be removed from

In line with the amendments made to planning legislation
through the Planning (Scotland) Act 2019 and to be in
step with these, Aberdeen City Council took the decision
to progress the majority of documents associated with the
Aberdeen Local development Plan 2023 as non-statutory
planning guidance, titled Aberdeen Planning Guidance.
The single Supplement Guidance document is Planning
Obligations. Committee Report COM/22/284 presented to
Full Council on 14 December 2022 outlines the
background into this decision. The Countesswells
Development Framework and Phase 1 Masterplan is
proposed to be adopted as non-statutory planning
guidance, titled Aberdeen Planning Guidance

the planning system.

No revision proposed.

however note comments
above re a wider review of
this document in the context




/T abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

Countesswells
Development
Framework and
Phase One
Masterplan

27

Supportive of the vision and the
focus on creating a distinctive,
inclusive, mixed- use place with an
integrated approach to design,
which has a focus on setting and
path networks.

The support for the vision and focus of the masterplan is
welcome.

No revision propsed.

Countesswells
Development
Framework and
Phase One
Masterplan

27

The document should be updated
to consider the climate change and
biodiversity loss crisis more
acutely and demonstrate this in the
vision, and throughout the
document; as is noted in NPF4.

This APG provides further guidance on the LDP. Both the
APG and the LDP were prepared prior to the publication
and adoption of NPF4. There are therefore limited
opportunities to develop the concept of nature networks
at this stage, although this will be explored in more detalil
in the next LDP. It should also be noted that the Council
is currently reviewing its Open Space Audit and Open
Space Strategy, which will in turn inform an update of the
Open Space and Green Infrastructure APG in the near
future. There may be some scope to develop the concept
of nature networks through these documents, and this will
be explored as far as practicable. It should also be noted
that NPF4 forms part of the statutory development plan,
which means that it will be taken into account in the
determination of any future planning applications for the

site.

No revision proposed.




81T abed

Document

Respondee

Summary of Representation

Officer Response

Action as aresult of
Representation

Countesswells 27 NPF4 also sets out ambitions for |This APG provides further guidance on the LDP. It cannot|No revision proposed.
Development nature networks and introduce new concepts or requirements that are not
Framework and Countesswells presents an already included in policies in the LDP (which was
Phase One excellent opportunity to explore produced prior to the publication and adoption of NPF4).
Masterplan options for creating a nature There are therefore limited opportunities to develop the
network between Hazlehead and |concept of nature networks at this stage, although this
Countesswells. The green network |will be explored in more detail in the next LDP. It should
and path network can provide a  |also be noted that the Council is currently reviewing its
foundation for this and we would |Open Space Audit and Open Space Strategy, which will
be happy to discuss nature in turn inform an update of the Open Space and Green
networks further with the Council |Infrastructure APG in the near future. There may be
some scope to develop the concept of nature networks
through these documents, and this will be explored as far
as practicable.
Dubford
Development No comments received on this draft APG
Framework
Former
Davidson’s Mill
Development No comments received on this draft APG
Framework and
Masterplan
Friarsfield
Development No comments received on this draft APG
Framework
Grandhome
Development No comments received on this draft APG
Framework
Maidencraig No comments received on this draft APG
Masterplan
Newhills
Development No comments received on this draft APG

Framework




61T abed

Oldfold
Development
Framework and
Masterplan

No comments received on this draft APG

Persley
Den/Woodside
Masterplan

No comments received on this draft APG

Rowett North
AECC
Development
Framework

No comments received on this draft APG

Bridge of Don
AECC
Development
Framework

No comments received on this draft APG




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 150



Agenda Item 9.4

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

COMMITTEE Council

DATE 11 October 2023

EXEMPT No

CONFIDENTIAL No

REPORT TITLE Finalised Draft George Street Masterplan
REPORT NUMBER COM/23/304

DIRECTOR Gale Beattie

CHIEF OFFICER David Dunne

REPORT AUTHOR Nigel McDowell

TERMS OF REFERENCE | 21

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

11 To seek approval of the Finalised Draft George Street Masterplan as the
George Street Masterplan being the Council’s ‘place’ strategy for the George
Street area.

1.2 Council of 14 December 2022 approved the Draft George Street Mini
Masterplan for public consultation in early 2023 with instruction to report the
outcomes of the consultation, including any revision to the Draft Masterplan, by
December 2023.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS
That Council:

2.1 Review the Consultation and Engagement Report (Appendix 1) which records
and analyses the public and stakeholder consultation and engagement
undertaken, and notes that the consultation responses have shaped the
Finalised Draft George Street Masterplan.

2.2  Note the contents of the Strategic Environmental Assessment Environmental
Report, and the non-technical summary report (Appendix 5 & 5a), whose
findings are recorded in, and have given direction to, the content of the
Finalised Draft George Street Masterplan.

2.3  Approve the Finalised Draft George Street Masterplan (Appendix 2) as the
George Street Masterplan being the Council’s ‘place’ strategy for the George
Street area.

3. CURRENT SITUATION
Background

3.1 The City Growth and Resources Committee of 12 November 2021 instructed
that public and stakeholder engagement be undertaken in early 2022 on the

Page 151



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.8

future of the George Street area because of the closure of John Lewis (Norco
House) and defined the focus area within the city centre boundary between the
Bon Accord Centre, Gallowgate, Spring Garden / Maberly Street and Charlotte
Street with part of George Street at its centre.

An online consultation to scope interest in the preparation of a Masterplan for
the area took place on the Council's Citizen Space consultation hub from 7
February 2022 for four weeks until 7 March 2022 and sought opinions on the
‘strengths’, ‘weaknesses’, ‘opportunities’ and ‘threats’ as a place health-check.

A summary of the 297 responses received was presented to Council of 29 June
2022 indicating a desire for positive change to be brought forward to support
the area. Officers were instructed to report a draft George Street Mini
Masterplan to Council of 14 December 2022, which was approved for public
consultation commencing in early 2023. (Appendix 4 - Draft George Street Mini
Masterplan)

Public consultation and engagement took place from March 2023 with three
strands of activity 1) an online Citizen Space survey — posing key questions
on sections through the draft Masterplan, 2) direct stakeholder invitations to
be involved — by email notification and follow-up briefing presentations, and 3)
an organised programme of engagementwith children and young people
- based on the theme of a ‘sense of place’ within the streets and spaces of the
Masterplan area. In addition, traders were invited to display posters regarding
the consultation. At the end of the consultation and evaluation programme an
open evening presentation meeting took place on 21t September with
stakeholders to share the findings of the public consultation and engagement
as well as to discuss and conclude the revisions before the Finalised Draft
Masterplan was re-presented to Council.

Summary of Consultation and Engagement Programme and Responses

Citizen Space Survey - An online survey ran on Citizen Space for 6-weeks
between 17 March and 28 April 2023. The survey provided a summary context
to the Draft Masterplan and was structured by posing questions to key topics
throughout the Draft Masterplan, page numbered for easy reference, as well as
offering opportunity for any further comment. ACC Officer contact details were
provided to offer discussion and guidance on the Draft Masterplan as well as to
offer hard copy of the Draft Masterplan and survey questions, etc.

The 102 survey responses were received from a range of user groups:
Pupil/Student/Education (19), Resident (4), Local Authority Officer (1), NHS
Grampian (2), Police Officer (1), Prefer not to say (58), Professional / Business
(14), Tertiary Education (3). Most of the questions posed on the key sections
and topics through the Draft Masterplan generated a supportive response to
their principles. Appendix 1 — Draft George Street Masterplan Consultation and
Engagement Report provides full returns, evaluation and revisions made.

Response Summary

Question 1 - The proposed place ‘Vision’ — ‘George Street Connected! — a
vibrant and inclusive neighbourhood at the heart of reinvention’ gained
73% support because the George Street area is part of the city centre and

Page 152



3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

needs to be connected to the city and region for its success, as well as
functioning as a neighbourhood entity, however concern was raised on the use
of ‘jargon’, budget, and likelihood of implementation etc.

Question 2 — The ‘Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats’
appraising the built environment aspects of the Masterplan provide the basis
for regeneration projects that seek to make positive change particularly within
the existing streets, spaces and redevelopment opportunities. The question
asking if you agree with the appraisal gained 80% support endorsing the Draft
Masterplan’s baseline findings, though concern was raised principally around
‘place’ management with issues cited such as the ‘dying high street’, traffic
management and being inclusive in project delivery.

Question 3 — Invited opinions on the principles of promoting more Active
Travel and Greenspace to create a more diverse, inclusive, and attractive
George Street area gained 65% support with a further 12% in general
agreement but having some reservations. The reservations centered on the
ability to maintain the projects proposed, where financial investment would
come from, the prospects of anti-social behaviour taking place in greenspace,
the lack of greenspace, as well as concerns regarding the need for more
inclusive design and greater certainty on vehicular movement and accessibility.

Question 4 — Destination not a Through-Route Applied a crucial ambition of
the City Centre Masterplan in creating a city centre that is a destination by
reducing opportunity for through-routing for private vehicles in the Masterplan
area. The question gained 53% support with a further 17% in support but with
some reservations, and 30% not in support with the consideration that there is
too strong an emphasis on improving the quality of pedestrians’ space rather
than a balanced consideration. Through the consultation period the traffic
management modelling has been revised to provide what is now considered
the optimum reduction in through-routing in the area, to enable proposals for
significant place and environmental improvements for the streetscape redesign
to be considered. These projects would provide the opportunity for improved
accessibility for everyone, introduce street-greening, sustainable urban
drainage, more equitable use of space and ultimately create a more attractive
environment and a distinctive place unlike any other within the city centre.
(Appendix 3).

Question 5 — Sought opinion on the six transformational regeneration
Projects proposed which gained 75% support, with 25% of those citing some
reservations and with 7% stating that they were unsure or did not support the
projects. Concern on budget for delivery and maintenance was cited, and that
prioritising pedestrians over private vehicles is a considered risk to business
success, repeating concerns raised to Question 4. Responses also encouraged
‘quick win’ projects, that our heritage of George Street’'s historic granite
buildings is recognised as a strong asset, and that with more outside seating
and uses and that premises opening hours could be extend. In addition,
encouraging evening activity/economy and the well-considered use of colour
and greening to give a new ‘sense of place’ to the area were considered
important.

Question 6 — Norco House lllustrated redevelopment scenarios for the
currently vacant Norco House building, formerly John Lewis, which explored

Page 153



3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

new uses and forms of redevelopment for the site. The scenarios gained 80%
supporting the identified need for positive change as an ‘area of influence’, for
redevelopment with a variety of uses, to support the wider George Street area,
though 18% were unsure or disagreed. The scenarios have been brought out
of the Draft George Street Mini Masterplan appendices, distilled, and presented
within the ‘Transformational Project’'s’ section to encourage appropriate
redevelopment that would capitalise on the array of amenities and business
opportunities within and around the Masterplan area, and act as a regeneration
catalyst. The site could also provide the only opportunity for significant
greenspace which is identified as lacking from the Masterplan area to support
recreational needs, community greenspace and a wider range of activities such
as the provision of communal recycling facilities, etc.

Question 7 — Invited Further Comments and generated a wide range of
considerations: questioning the budget to deliver projects, questioning place
management, encouraging opportunities street markets/food, more outdoor
seating, seeking more greening and the consideration for better health and
wellbeing opportunities, encouraging more independent business into the area,
creation of areas for safe socialising and improved street infrastructure. A social
ask raised is for increased support of marginalised groups to use the area and
to try to strengthening support for existing community groups to take forward
project ownership. In addition, a ‘place branding’ project between NESCol and
George Street partners in 2019 was referenced and remains relevant.

Stakeholder Invitations - In addition to the ACC Press release advising that
the online survey was taking place for 6 weeks between 7 March and 28 April
2023 21 separate emails were forwarded to key stakeholders advising that the
survey was live and to offer in-person meetings to discuss and record any
aspect of the Draft Masterplan stakeholders wished to make. The invitation
yielded eight written responses, five face to face meetings, and eight
stakeholders did not respond.

All the stakeholders who responded welcomed the production of the Draft
Masterplan and endorsed the ‘Vision’and high-level project direction as well as
expressing interest in being involved as specific projects are approved to be
taken forward in delivery. Some of the responses indicated that there is scope
to improve capacity building within key stakeholders to enable them to be fully
engaged in the delivery of the projects working toward ‘George Street
Connected’. Comments were also received in seeking a clearer more structured
Masterplan, and that in welcoming the principles of the projects acknowledged
that greater detail was needed for their implementation.

Children and Young Persons’ Engagement - At the outset of the City Centre
Masterplan (CCMP) refresh, and subsequent CCMP and Beach Development
Framework, and as priority project progress children and young people have
played a central role in project identification and development. Within and
adjacent to the Draft Masterplan area the students of North-East Scotland
College (NESCol) and Roberts Gordon's College are estimated to generate
c.11,000 daily visits to the area, and there are 4 primary schools and 1
secondary within the wider area of George Street. The children and young
person’s engagement was envisaged to yield their perspectives on the George
Street area to influence the Draft Masterplan, as well as adding to awareness

Page 154



3.18

3.19

3.20

3.21

3.22

3.23

and learning of the built environment, and hopefully develop their future study
topics and involvement in civic life.

An engagement programme with NESCol, Robert Gordons College and Skene
Square and Sunnybank Primary Schools was developed on the theme of ‘sense
of place’ — using open guestions such as - what does it feel like to be in the
area? what brings you to the area? what would hold your interests here? and,
what improvements would you like to see made? Etc.

The students at NESCol and at Robert Gordon College undertook accompanied
walks of the area and considered place-making and how specific places could
be made better. Although apparently not hugely familiar with the area, the
students from both institutions looked in detail at the constraints and
opportunities associated with the four chosen locations and prioritised projects
accordingly. A ‘deep clean’ featured highest on their priority list along with tree
planting, as well as ‘parklets’ (being a popular ideain George Street), a lighting
net and information points/wayfinding.

The primary school children also considered ‘place’ and utilised a happy/sad
persona, ‘Georgie’, to help articulate how they felt about the specific locations
and what those places could become. Some of the classes had accompanied
walking tours whilst others were able to watch a virtual tour of the area. The
priorities for the primary children, many of whom live in or near the Masterplan
area, focused on more colour/art, planting and trees and better lighting and up-
lighting to make the streets and spaces more attractive.

Outcomes from engagement with the children and young people include a stark
observation that few currently use the George Street area to any great extent
but recognise that the place has a feeling of vibrancy and that the proposed
Vision captures this. When given specific areas to focus on the predominant
request was for the area to be cleaner with aspirations for greater CCTV
coverage, better street lighting and street-redesign with street trees greening
and opportunities for play and recreation sought, the use of more colour in the
area and better lighting. “Georgie’ did not like ‘endless grey walls, weeds,
parked cars, and uncomfortable seating, but did like fun shops, murals, trees,
bike-stands and plants’.

The engagement and consultation with children and young people has added
greater diversity and broadened horizons to engagement. Their reactions and
recommendations for place improvement have been incorporated and the
findings of all the stakeholder groups generally concur. Feedback from NESCol
and all the schools taking part was extremely positive and it is hoped that the
children and young people felt included and know that their thoughts and
opinions were heard to help shape the Masterplan. It is hoped that they
benefited from project-based learning on their doorstep by bringing parts of their
curriculum to life as well as encouraging their awareness, confidence, and
importance in engaging with, and directing on matters, which impact on
everyone.

Strategic Environmental Assessment - Environmental Report

The Environmental Assessment (Scotland) Act 2005 requires public bodies to
undertake a strategic environmental assessment when preparing plans which

Page 155



3.24

3.25

3.26

3.27

3.28

are likely to have a significant environmental effect, either positive or negative
upon delivery. A Screening Report, undertaken following Council’'s approval of
the Draft Masterplan for consultation in December 2022 and hosted on the
Scottish Government SEA Gateway informed the ‘Consultation Authorities’ of
Historic Environment Scotland, Scottish Environment Protection Agency,
Scottish Water and Nature Scot on the intention to prepare an Environmental
Report on the Draft Mini-Masterplan to determine the level of ‘significant impact’
and to give direction to the emerging proposals within the Finalised Draft
Masterplan. The statutory consultees provided a positive review of the
Environmental Report (Appendix 5 & 5a)

Public Notice on the Environmental Report - Following receipt of the
Consultation Authorities responses, incorporated into the Environmental Report
and Finalised Draft George Street Masterplan, a statutory four-week public
notice was undertaken from 9" August — 10" September 2023 inviting
expressions of opinion on the content of the Environmental Report hosted on
Citizen Space. No responses were received and a Post Adoption Statement
following approval of Finalised Draft Masterplan, as the George Street
Masterplan, is to be prepared and issued to the Scottish Government Gateway
informing the statutory consultees as to how their responses have shaped the
Finalised Draft Masterplan.

Finalised Draft George Street Masterplan

Finalised Draft George Street Masterplan - As a result of the consultation
findings the Draft Masterplan, which was arranged on the City Centre
Masterplan themes of ‘People’, ‘Economy and ‘Place’, was re-organised with
the focus on ‘Place’ as the basis to growing the local ‘Economy’ and therefore
better support ‘People’ within an improved residential and mixed-use activity
area. This foundation approach is in accordance with, and emphasises project
delivery, to realise the Local Outcome Improvement Plan Vision ‘Aberdeenis a
place where all people can prosper’.

In reflection and response to the engagement and consultation undertaken the
Finalised Draft Masterplan has acknowledged and distilled the foundations of
place-based analysis, maintained its Vision, and proposes a series of place
based ‘transformational projects’ to realise the vision and create a more
successful, sustainable, and distinctive George Street within the city centre. A
greater emphasis, with more developed project details, that focus on specific
locations, are presented with the ethos of ‘accessibility for all’.

Monitoring

The established monitoring protocol for the City Centre and Beach Masterplans
will be followed to ensure accountability and transparency as well as to evaluate
the efficiency and effectiveness of the strategies, projects and actions outlined
within the Masterplan in delivery.

The Integrated Impact Assessment, drafted in tandem with the engagement
programme responses, evaluates the principles advocated and the likely
outcomes of delivering the projects within the Finalised Draft Masterplan, as
well as reviewing the engagement and consultation methods, and inclusion of

Page 156



4.1

5.1

5.2

6.1

the communities’ findings, to shape the Masterplan. The Integrated Impact
Assessment will continue to provide a monitoring framework to project delivery.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct financial implications arising from approval of the Finalised
Draft George Street Masterplan as the Masterplan for the area.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

The George Street Masterplan, strategically allied to the City Centre and Beach
Masterplans, provides the basis of all future decision making to and within the
environment of the Masterplan area, and would be the Council’s strategy for
investment and change to signal confidence and commitment by approval of
the ‘transformational projects’.

The Masterplan provides a strategic direction, and as a material consideration,
to enable projects to progress toward implementation, many of which will be
subject to statutory consenting processes to ensure continuing stakeholder and
interested party engagement as well as meeting local and national policy and
standards.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

In accordance with the Environmental Assessment (Scotland) Act 2005 the
content of the Draft Masterplan has given rise to the production of an
Environmental Report which as identified and assessed the significant
environmental impacts of the Draft Masterplan in so far as the strategic detail
will allow. The conclusions from the national statutory consultees, see Section
3 above, are that the delivery of the Masterplan would give development
direction and see significant positive environmental impacts to the Masterplan
area when the projects re delivered. The potential benefits for the flora, fauna
as well as human residential, recreational, and business needs, if the place
opportunities are realised, are significant. All the consultees have indicated a
willingness to be involved as project details are developed. The Environmental
Report, and its non-technical summary are Appendix 5 and 5a).

RISK

The assessment of risk contained within the table below is considered to be
consistent with the Council’'s Risk Appetite Statement.

Category Risks Primary *Target Risk *Does

Controls/Control Level (L, M or Target
Actions to achieve H) Risk
Target Risk Level Level

*Considering Match
controls/control | Appetite

actions Set?

Page 157



Strategic Not Full programme of Yes
Risk delivering the works to be
Masterplan developed, funding
and its approvals to be in
projects place at key stages
Compliance | Experimental Manage through Yes
Traffic ongoing
Regulation engagement and
Order / communication
Traffic programme
Regulation
Order
challenges
Operational | Sufficient Development of the Yes
capacity of transformational
resources projects
within programme
Councils
teams and Resource review
external ongoing and
providers to identification of
meet support through the
programme Project
objectives Management
Officer
Financial Budget This will be more Yes
pressures fully expressed in
due to project Business
current Case evaluations.
market
volatility and
wider project
delivery
strategies
Reputational | Establishing Maintain Yes
a foundation Masterplan Vision
to make the as part of the LOIP
identified delivery.
changes and
for project Continue

delivery in
the area,
following
significant
investment in
the
preparation
of the
Masterplan

stakeholder
engagement and
agree project detail
and implementation

Clear and regular
communications

and reporting

Page 158




Environment | Air quality Reduction in Yes
/ Climate improvement | vehicular through
routing
Enabling
greater Maintaining and
active travel augmenting public
opportunities transport
accessibility
Balancing
place and All streetscape
movement projects founded on
need and ‘place greening’
modes of and better use
travel balance
Opportunities
to establish | Specifications with
local micro a ‘local first’ basis
habitats for
flora and
fauna
8. OUTCOMES

COUNCIL DELIVERY PLAN

Impact of Report

Aberdeen City Council
Policy Statement

Working in Partnership for

Aberdeen

Council

Delivery Plan 2023-24 - Creating the

Masterplan accelerates the Council's ‘journey of
change’ for the George Street area inresponse to the
climate change crises, the cost-of-living crises, and
the socio-economic impacts on the traditional ‘high-
street’ supporting the sustainable neighbourhood.

Masterplan preparation and delivery:

Unlocks community action by strengthening
and rebalancing the relationship between
local government and citizens — through the
engagement programme.

Lead council and cross-sector partnerships
with a focus on outcomes to work across
borders and boundaries — the Masterplan
provides the foundation of projects which will
require partnership working.

Enables a functioning, trusted local and
central government relationship to both
understand the local context and translate
ambitious national aspiration into effective
local action for communities — in the delivery
of the Masterplan’s projects.

Page 159



https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2019-04/Council%20Delivery%20Plan%202019-20.pdf
https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/documents/s134067/WorkinginPartnershipPolicyStatement.pdf
https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/documents/s134067/WorkinginPartnershipPolicyStatement.pdf

e Designs for people’s needs, by responding to
the needs, expectations and wants of citizens
—as aresult of the engagement programme.

e Tackles inequality and meet the needs of all
citizens, recognising the diversity of
communities and playing a proactive role in
tackling inequality of outcome and embedding
rights-based approaches —inthe engagement
programme and as projects develop.

Aberdeen City Local Outcome Improvement Plan

Prosperous Economy
Stretch Outcomes

A Prosperous Economy

The Masterplan focuses on ‘place’ based investment
to redress the needs of the area for the 21 Century
as the foundation to grow the local ‘economy’ and
better fulfil the area potential for its ‘people’. The
place has a distinct identity functioning as a local
neighbourhood entity within the city centre.

The Masterplan does not directly refer to the
Outcomes 1-3 (poverty, unemployment, upskilling)
but would support creating a more attractive better-
connected place setting the foundation for an
improved economy.

Prosperous People
Stretch Outcomes

The production of the Masterplan has engaged and
consulted any interested person and organisation on
its development to reflect the needs, ambitions, and
place vision through a series of transformational
projects.

The Masterplan supports Outcome 7 Child Friendly
City which supports all children to prosper and
engage actively with their communities by 2026. This
has its foundation in the children and young person’s
engagement programme undertaken.

Supports Outcomes 10-12 Adults — by open calls for
involvement by any interested party to be involved in
the initial consultation through to Masterplan
development so that people can shape their
immediate environments and be involved in
delivering place change.

Prosperous Place Stretch
Outcomes

The Masterplan is written specifically with a current
evaluation of all ‘place’ aspects within and affecting
the study area and proposes six transformational
projects that are considered crucial to the future of

Page 160



https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/Final-LOIP-2016-26-Refreshed-July-21.pdf

the ‘place’. Delivery of the projects will address
specific targets which include: Supports Outcome 14
Addressing climate change by reducing Aberdeen's
carbon emissions by 42.5% by 2026 and adapting to
the impacts of our changing climate Supports
Outcome 15 38% of people walking and 5% of
people cycling as main mode of travel by 2026.

The Masterplan recognises the current Climate
Crises and advocates best sustainable practice in all
the projects proposed within what is a built and
brownfield urban environment.

Regional and City
Strategies

The report supports the priorities in the Regional
Economic  Strategy (RES) investment in
infrastructure, regenerating our city centre, unlock
development potential, improve the deployment of
low carbon transport, to enable Aberdeen to realise
development opportunites in the City Centre
Masterplan.

The Masterplan supports the National, Regional and
Local Transport Strategies, particularly the
Sustainable Travel Hierarchy, which prioritises the
needs of those walking, wheeling, and cycling above
other road users, and the 4 pillars identified in the
recent Regional Transport Strategy, Nestrans 2040:
Equality, Climate, Prosperity and Wellbeing.

The Masterplan also supports the Aberdeen Active
Travel Plan and Sustainable Urban Mobility Plan,
both of which seek to improve conditions for people
walking and cycling in Aberdeen, particularly to, from
and within the City Centre, through the provision of
more and safer infrastructure. Fundamentally this is
expressed with the intention of limiting through-
routing traffic and proposing new streetscapes within
the existing street sections.

Measures to reduce unnecessary vehicle traffic in
the City Centre will support the Air Quality Action
Plan, Climate Change Plan, Net Zero Action Plan
and Low Emission Zone by contributing to emissions
reduction.

Page 161




9. IMPACT ASSESSMENTS
Assessment Outcome
Integrated Impact e |IA Stage 1 and 2 Assessment accompanies this
Assessment report.

Data Protection Impact e N/A

Assessment

Other e Appendix 3 — Traffic Testing Report

e Appendix 5 - Strategic Environmental Assessment-
Environmental Report

e Appendix 5a — SEA Environmental Report Non-
Technical summary

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

BACKGROUND PAPERS

City Growth and Resources Committee 12 November 2021 — Combined City
and Beach Covering Report Combined City and Beach Covering Report - Covering
Report.pdf (aberdeencity.gov.uk)

(tem 2.6.4 - Note the current position regarding George Street and continued
uncertainty surrounding the future of the former John Lewis building and
undertake public and stakeholder engagement in early 2022 and report back
to this committee in June 2022.)

Decisions 12th-Nov-202113.00 City Growth and Resources Committee.pdf
(aberdeencity.gov.uk)

Council 29 June 2022 — City Centre Masterplan Update Report - CCMP Update
Reportto Council.pdf (aberdeencity.gov.uk)

(Item 2.7 - Note the outcome of the recent engagement exercise on the future
of George Street (Appendix E) and instruct the Chief Officer — Strategic Place
Planning to report back a Mini Masterplan for the George Street to Full
Council in December 2022.)

Decisions 29th-Jun-202210.30 Council.pdf (aberdeencity.gov.uk)

Council 14 December 2022 — Draft George Street Mini Masterplan Report

George Street Mini Masterplan FINALREPORT.pdf (aberdeencity.gov.uk)

(Item 2.1 - Approves the content of the Draft George Street Mini Masterplan
and notes the engagement undertaken with stakeholders to date.)

Page 162



https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/documents/s126154/Combined%20City%20and%20Beach%20Covering%20Report%20-%20Covering%20Report.pdf
https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/documents/s126154/Combined%20City%20and%20Beach%20Covering%20Report%20-%20Covering%20Report.pdf
https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/documents/g8139/Decisions%2012th-Nov-2021%2013.00%20City%20Growth%20and%20Resources%20Committee.pdf?T=2
https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/documents/g8139/Decisions%2012th-Nov-2021%2013.00%20City%20Growth%20and%20Resources%20Committee.pdf?T=2
https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/documents/s133394/CCMP%20Update%20Report%20to%20Council.pdf
https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/documents/s133394/CCMP%20Update%20Report%20to%20Council.pdf
https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/documents/g8188/Decisions%2029th-Jun-2022%2010.30%20Council.pdf?T=2
https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/documents/s138738/George%20Street%20Mini%20Masterplan%20FINAL%20REPORT.pdf

11.

111

11.2

113

114

115

12.

(Item 2.4 - Instructs the Chief Officer — Strategic Place Planning to report the
outcomes of the public consultation on the Draft George Street Mini
Masterplan back to Council by December 2023, including any recommended
revisions to the Draft Mini Masterplan.)

Decision - George Street Mini Masterplan - COM/22/291 (aberdeencity.gov.uk)

APPENDICES

Appendix 1. Consultation & Engagement Report

Appendix 2: Finalised Draft George Street Masterplan

Appendix 3: Traffic Testing Report

Appendix 4: Draft George Street Mini Masterplan 14 December 2022

Appendix 5 & 5a: SEA Environmental Report & Non-Technical Summary

REPORT AUTHOR CONTACT DETAILS

Name Nigel McDowell

Title

Senior Planner — Urban Design, Strategic Place Planning

Email Address nmcdowell@aberdeencity.gov.uk

Tel

01224 067734

Page 163


https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?AIId=94396

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 164



Finalised Draft George Street
Masterplan

Consultation & Engagement Report

Sept 2023

streets-uk @



Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes

 

mailto:fiona.robertson@streets-uk.com

99T abed

Introduction
Part 1

Consultation Methods
Executive Summary
Consultation Outcomes

Part 2

On-Line Public Consultation Results & Analysis
Children and Young People Engagement: Results & Analysis
Stakeholder Engagement: Results & Analysis

Appendices

1 Approved Approach to Engagement and Plan of Poster Distribution
2 Stakeholder Contact
3 Stakeholder Responses

4 Citizen Space Online Public Consultation Reponses

Contents

Page

~N O1

12
27
41

48



/9T abed

George Street Draft Masterplan Timeline

¢ In November 2021, as part of the City Centre and Beach Masterplan
refresh, Aberdeen City Council instructed officers to undertake public
engagement focusing on the area of George Street that is within the
city centre boundary and to report findings to June 2022 Council.

¢ In February/March 2022 the Council undertook public consultation
using an online Citizen Space questionnaire, as well as paper copies
if required, seeking opinions on the Strengths Weaknesses
Opportunities and Threats (SWOT) of the area. The survey received
297 responses to establish how the area functions on a day-to-day
basis and how the local and surrounding community use and interact
with George St.

¢ In June 2022, Council instructed a draft masterplan for the George St
area be created and presented to December Council. During the
second half of 2022 the draft George Street Masterplan was prepared
with stakeholder input and presented to the December 2022 Council,
which approved the draft masterplan for consultation in early 2023
and to report a finalised draft Masterplan to Council in December
2023.

On-street engagement with college  Posters advertising consultation
students displayed in shops

Introduction

In January 2023, an engagement plan was prepared for the George
Street area and approved by the City Centre Masterplan (CCMP) Board,
with scope of engagement:

Seeking stakeholder and public comment on the content of the
draft Masterplan.

Checking that observations in the draft Masterplan resonate more
widely — for example that the area currently doesn’t encourage
people to linger/streets are empty after 5pm.

Seeking stakeholder and public assistance in the prioritisation of
masterplan projects and identification of potential additional
projects.

Ensuring the Masterplan has genuine stakeholder and grass roots
ownership.

Identifying opportunities for specific projects to be championed and
led by stakeholders and partner organisations.

Ensuring a focus on engaging with children and young people
including schools and college students.

This report:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

Summarises the results of the on-line consultation and
engagement that took place on ACC'’s Citizen Space for a 6-week
period between 17th March until 28th April 2023, and records
recommendations for revision.

Records the targeted stakeholder feedback and evaluation.
Records the activities and results of engaging with children and
young people in and around the area with focused ‘sense of place’

workshops.

Lists the areas of revision to shape the draft masterplan in
accordance with the consultation findings.

Summarises the considered Priority Projects from the finalised
draft Masterplan.


https://consultation.aberdeencity.gov.uk/place/george-street-area-consultation/

HE ccccccccc -
7

N

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

Part 1

Consultation Methods
Executive Summary

Consultation OQutcomes

streets—uk@



Presenter Notes_1
Presentation Notes

 

mailto:fiona.robertson@streets-uk.com

In accordance with the approved engagement approach for
CCMP projects, consultation was undertaken both in person and
online using a variety of materials appropriate for different
audiences.

Public Consultation

Public consultation was launched on 17" March 2023 and
publicised by ACC’s communications team. In accordance with
Council policy on consulting on draft masterplans, a 6-week
consultation was undertaken on ACC Citizen Space with an
online survey questionnaire which ran until 28" April 2023 with
102 responses received. Hard copies of the draft Masterplan
were also available and were issued to groups such as George
Street Community Council.

L§akeholder Engagement

1 key stakeholders were recontacted advising that the survey
@uestionnaire was live and an offer to meet in person to have an
C'I'rg-depth discussion was made.

qCDhiIdren and Young People

At the outset it was agreed that Children and Young People
should play a central role in the consultation. Within and
adjacent to the study area the students of North East Scotland
College (NESCol) and Roberts Gordon’s College are estimated
to generate ¢.11,000 daily visits to the area, and there are 4
primary schools and 1 secondary within the vicinity of George
Street.

Publicity

As well as press releases and social media coverage, posters
were distributed to local premises to advertise the consultation.
A copy of the poster is shown opposite, and the distribution map
is in Appendix 1.

Consultation Methods



Press and Social Media

The Council’'s communications team manages the
issue of press releases and social media coverage.
The Media release diary is below and an extract of

some coverage opposite.

Date

21 March

1 March,
15 April,
©22 April

0.1 ®

20
September

Event

Media
release

Social
media
posts on
different
platforms

Social
media
posts

ACC Mediarelease Diary

Comment

Notification of Citizen Space
Survey live - Local media coverage
including online and their extensive
social media reach

Social Media Metrics

Reach (total number of people who
see the content) — 20,700

Impressions (number of times the
content is displayed) — 28,800

Total clicks — (number of people
who clicked on the link to the
release/ consultation) 829

Advertising the final engagement
and consultation presentation
evening

Consultation Methods



Executive Summary

This is the summary of the collaborative engagement programme undertaken by ACC and streets-UK utilising a range of resources to provide
a comprehensive opportunity for people to be involved and shape the outcomes of the Masterplan.

1) Citizen Space Questionnaire

From 17t March until 28™ April 102 responses were received to
the online questionnaire which posed questions at key stages
through the draft Masterplan. The respondents were:
Pupil/Student/Education (19), Resident (4), Local Authority
Officer (1), NHSG (2), Police Officer (1), Prefer not to say (58),
Professional / Business (14), Tertiary Education(3).The full
responses are included in Appendix 3 and the evaluation is
presented in Part 1 of this document. By comparison the
Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities & Threats questionnaire
undertaken in February and March 2022 yielded 293 responses,
which formed the baseline of evaluation to proceed to
commission the Masterplan.

All of the questions posed generated a majority of support for the
topics, though the re-evaluation of the vehicular movement in the
study area, in order to reduce through-routing and create a more
attractive environment, generated a 53% response in support.
The concerns focused on balancing accessibility and the need to
retain car access and car parking to serve the needs of the area.
The draft Masterplan gives an overview on intentions rather than
specifics and has since been revised to provide more detail on
the propose vehicular routing and the need to balance user
needs with more detail on street sections. The scenarios
exploring options for Norco House generated a 80% support to
encourage looking further at this important site, which was
expressed as a tangible project and therefore possibly easier to
envisage the options and their value to the area.

T.T obed

An important outcome for the Masterplan is to present clear
project intentions representing ‘best practice’ and established on
the thorough analysis and engagement undertaken.

2) Children and Young People

A programme of engagement has been undertaken with NESCol,
Robert Gordons College and Skene Square and Sunnybank Primary
Schools based on the theme of ‘sense of place’. The objective has
been to engage and encourage young people’s interest in built
environment matters as well as to provide their perspectives and
feedback to influence the Masterplan.

The students at NESCol and Robert Gordons College undertook
accompanied walks of the area and considered place-making and
how specific locations could be made better. Although not hugely
familiar with the area, the students from both institutions looked in
detail at the constraints and opportunities associated with 4 locations
and prioritised projects accordingly. A deep clean featured highest
on their priority list along with tree planting. Parklets are also a
popular idea at George Street and a lighting net and information
points/wayfinding at Jopps Lane.

The primary school children also considered “place” and utlised a
happy/sad persona, ‘Georgie’ to help articulate how they felt about
the specific locations and what they could be like. Some of the
classes had accompanied walking tours and the others were able to
watch a virtual tour of the area. The priorities for the primary
children, many of whom live in or near the Masterplan area, were
mainly around more colour/art, planting and trees and better lighting
and uplighting.

All participants very much enjoyed their involvement and deeper
consideration of place-making and felt pleased that their opinions
had been heard and were being taken seriously and included.

A separate session was held with Streetsport at Cruyff Court on 21
September.



3) Stakeholder Engagement

On 17t March 2023 an email was sent to 21 key stakeholders advising
that the Citizen Space questionnaire on the content of the draft
Masterplan was live for 6-weeks.The email also invited anyone who
wished an in-person meeting to be taken through the draft Masterplan
and to discuss the contents or their perspectives with the lead ACC
Officer. Uptake on the offer to meet resulted 8 in-person meetings taken
place, though others used the Citizen Space survey questionnaire. 8 key
stakeholders did not respond, and it is assumed that they are content
with the draft Masterplan.

Unanimously the stakeholder responses welcome the draft Masterplan
and endorse the ‘vision’ and high-level project direction and would be
-y interested in being involved as specific projects are taken forward in
Q delivery.
«Q
@ Some of the responses indicate that there is scope to improve capacity
building within key stakeholders to enable them to be fully engaged in
N the delivery of the Masterplan ‘vision’ and its projects in order to created
a ‘better connected George Street’. Nonetheless, it is a significant ask of
anyone to take the time to be involved in reading through and articulating
responses to the draft Masterplan and all consultation and engagement
feedback was welcomed to shape the Masterplan going forward.

Further detail on stakeholder feedback is contained in Part 2 of this
report and complete stakeholder responses and ACC replies are in the
Appendix.

A stakeholder workshop to present and discuss the draft updated
masterplan was held on 215t September which was attended by 19
participants representing a range of groups.

Executive Summary



¢/ T obed

Consultation Outcomes

Working toward a Finalised Draft Masterplan

The Council approved the George Street draft Mini-Masterplan with an instruction for consultation and
engagement to take place in early 2023. The following represent the revisions and additions to the draft
Masterplan as a result of the engagement and consultation programme working toward a Finalised Draft
Masterplan in October 2023:

1) Restructuring Content — To enable readers to focus on areas of interest to them as well as to coherently present
the entire Masterplan.

2) ‘Place’ - A greater focus on the topic of ‘Place’ projects from which ‘People’ and ‘Economy’ are supported. Key
project areas have been developed in detail to present clear opportunities for improvement.

3) Transport & Movement — Further testing, through the consultation period, to ensure that the principle of reducing
traffic ‘through routing’ and creating opportunities within the streets of the study area through travel change provides
a robust foundation for future project delivery.

4) Key ‘Place’ Projects — Inclusion of Harriet Street, the middle and southern end of George Street and Loch Street,
including Norco House, NESCol and Bon Accord Centre for 6 transformational urban realm projects.

5) Partnership Working — The identification of significant opportunities for change should provide the foundation for
wider collaboration and investment to deliver the Masterplan.




Consultation Outcomes
Priority Project Recommendations

As an outcome of the consultation and engagement programme the following are recommended as Priority
Projects —those which are considered to have, and will lead to further, significant place impact and provide the
foundation for delivery of the ‘Vision’ — ‘George Street Connected!

1) Deep clean of the area — whether it be dog fouling, rusting street furniture, broken paving or litter the call for a ‘clean’
is to redress the sense of the area being ‘dirty, dull and grubby’.

2) Lighting strategy — the installation of a light net along George Street would at once emphasis the linear nature of the
street, be a transformational project that signaled the heart of the area, imbued more of a sense of place and redressed
concerns about light levels at night and security.

|

J 3) Norco House — The consultation response validated the importance of the site to the wider area and generated a
strong and positive response to the scenarios proposed. The creation of a site planning brief would guide the uses and
form of development so that the opportunities, and wider area requirements, can be met.

4) ETRO implementation — establishing a new vehicular routing system to reduce through traffic and enable the creation
of a more accessible and attractive neighbourhood with urban realm opportunities.

5) Pedestrianising the central section of George St (between John St and St Andrew St) — extending the governance
of the lower section of George Street and redesigning the urban realm.

6) Transformational Place projects - creating environments of George Street between John St and the Bon Accord
Centre, Harriet Street and Loch Street that give the ‘wow’ factor and ‘set the scene’ for further change.

In addition to ‘place’ projects there are significant ‘people’ and ‘economy’ projects that could be implemented to support the
George Street area going forward as a more ‘vibrant and connected neighbourhood at the heart of reinvention’.

10



- BON ACCORD
7

—
N

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

Part 2

On-Line Public Consultation: Results & Analysis
Children and Young People Engagement: Results & Analysis

Stakeholder Engagement: Results & Analysis

streets—uk@



Presenter Notes_2
Presentation Notes

 

mailto:fiona.robertson@streets-uk.com

Online Public Consultation & Analysis

ACC Online Survey

The Citizen Space consultation, taking place from the 17t March until
the 28" April 2023, introduced the consultation by explaining that “By
participating in this consultation on the George Street Draft Mini-
Masterplan you are helping Aberdeen City Council determine what is
essential to you and your communities in the George Street area. It is
important that you are involved and aware of the projects proposed and
that your opinions and needs shape the draft mini-masterplan to
support the neighbourhood's future as a vibrant, attractive and
connected part of the city centre.”

The draft Mini-Masterplan suggests a vision of '‘George St Connected!’

and provides a place-based analysis and proposes a range of

regeneration projects to support the neighbourhood because the

masterplan illustrates that the core of successful places is that they are

ople focused, have a diverse economy and are within attractive
nvironments that work for everyone. - A vital aim of the city centre

(@asterplan is to create the heart of Aberdeen as a destination and not
@ through route by re-thinking how places could be accessed and used,
l:al’nd this ethos is applied to the George Street area.

c?o help navigate the draft Masterplan the survey questionnaire
presented specific questions relating to key sections of the draft, with
page referencing, to enable participants to pace themselves and reflect
on their evaluation and responses, as well as providing an opportunity
to comment on any matters they wished to raise that many not be
presented.

The information provided by the consultation responses, as well
as the inclusive and iterative processes of master-planning
consultation, should work to achieve a consensus amongst
residents, businesses and interested parties in identifying and
endorsing those opportunities for change and to provide a strong
foundation for delivery through the Masterplan.

George Street Connected! The ‘local’ Neighbourhood:
a vibrant and inclusive city centre community at the heart of

reinvention.

Masterplan Vision Statement

Citizen Space Online Consultation Portal Extract

12



Question 1

The masterplan proposes - 'Vision' - 'George
St Connected! - the local neighbourhood
which is a vibrant and inclusive City Centre
community at the heart of reinvention’

Do you agree with the Vision?
What are your thoughts on the 'Vision'?

Somewhat,
8%

NB. Percentages are rounded to the nearest whole number

Online Public Consultation & Analysis

“I think it's a fantastic idea to
regenerate the area. Focusing
on young people would be my

recommendation”

“I agree in full; the city
would greatly benefit from
improving George street”

“To pedestrianise and turn it
into a quirky area could work
really well for Aberdeen”

“The vision should be to improve
the aesthetics, reputation and the
economics of the George street
area, and the vision should detail
clearly how that can be done”

“It's a positive vision but | fail to see
how this aligns with the current
strategy of closing down existing
cultural hubs such as Library and
Leisure facilities”

“Not really as described. Many
people work in the area, and they
must be fully considered”

Key Themes / comments

Positive/ supportive
“Like the aspects of cafes and outdoor seating”

“Need to bring people into the space — have
reason for doing so”

“City will greatly benefit from the regeneration
of this area — though important to deliver on
each and all the social, cultural, economic and
educational detailed objectives”

“Pedestrianisation could really work / making it
a quieter area”

“Supporting accessibility / inclusivity is
paramount to its success”

Negative / concerns

Vision is unclear, too broad and vague.
Document is complicated — lacks plain English

Budget is of concern — how will this be funded

“Crime and Anti-social behaviour can not be
fixed by street lighting alone” — concerns over
longer term management

“Need to focus on young people and what will
attract them into the area”

“Restricting access will make the area less
inclusive”

“Not sure, document is too
complicated”

13



Online Public Consultation & Analysis

Summary of Q1 key themes and proposed action

1. The masterplan proposes
- 'Vision' - 'George St
Connected! - the local
neighbourhood - a vibrant
and inclusive City Centre
community at the heart of
reinvention'.

Do you agree with the
Vision?

What are your thoughts on

_61e 'Vision'?
QD

8/1 ab

Vision sets a clear directive to
forge connections and bring
people back into the area.

Need to ensure all the social,
cultural, economic and
educational detailed
objectives are delivered.

Accessibility and inclusivity is
paramount to project delivery
success.

Focus on young people
required.

Budget and ongoing
maintenance is of concern.

With 66% in
agreement and a
further 8% generally
agree the conclusion
is that the majority
support the vision and
its intent.

Concerns were raised
around project detalil,
delivery and
management.

Streamline the ‘vision’ into one sentence
and avoid ‘jargon’

Ensure project detail is clearly connected to
the ‘vision’, is sufficient to envisage projects
and generate support for their endorsement.

14



Question 2

Findings on the Strengths, Weaknesses,
Opportunities & Threats (SWOT) of the area
are provided (Page 30-31)

Do you agree with the findings?

If not, what would you change or add? -
Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities &
Threats of the area

81%

agree/somewhat
U agree with SWOT
D -
e findings
CD 0,
= Unsure, 4%
~ No, 16%
(e}
Somewhat,
19% Yes, 62%

NB. Percentages are rounded to the nearest whole number

Online Public Consultation & Analysis

Key Themes - SWOT

Strengths

Potential for creating an area for street food or
socialising.

If you can restrict traffic and attract the right type

of business, the street can become a true
hidden gem. And being a bit hidden away may
turn a threat into a strength!

Opportunities

The ‘opportunity’ to pedestrianize Harriet
Street will make it harder to access the area /
difficult for cars (therefore a weakness t00).
Access to and from RGC by car has to be
preserved

Encourage sense of community through the
provision and promotion of spaces or
activities that bring residents together.

People's safety should be a priority by
creating a better environment with Policing &
security.

I'd like and expect to see explicit mention of
engaging young people as an opportunity.

Demolition of Norco House could be used to
turn the area into a more open green space,
with paths, seats, fountains etc., to draw
people into the area for recreation and well
being, rather than purely on commercial
activities

Giving more space to pedestrians and cyclists
and removing space for cars parking

Threats

Strengths do not seem to be realistic,

Reduced occupancy of Marischal Square
offices

Bins are almost always full due to local
businesses using them making the street feel

messy and unclean

Antisocial behaviour / drug users — ability to
manage and police appropriately

Threat of dying high street leading to
companies not wanting to invest in these areas
— in turn shops/businesses go out of business
as people turn more to shopping online at big
retailers

15



Online Public Consultation & Analysis

Summary of Q2 key themes and proposed action

2. Findings on the
Strengths, Weaknesses,
Opportunities & Threats
(SWOT) of the area are
provided

Do you agree with the
findings?

not, what would you
dhange or add?

Ed

08T ®

With 81% agreeing/somewhat
agreeing with SWOT findings its
evident that people recognise
that the proposals will support
the wider vision to create a more
connected space.

Creating more opportunities to
bring people together seen as a
real positive.

Will be important to engage
across all demographic groups to
ensure needs are met and area
is accessible and inclusive

62%, and with a further 19% generally
agreeing, the SWOT analysis is supported.

The SWOT provides the basis to propose
projects that are considered will make
significant positive change to the area.

There are concerns regarding the ‘dying high
street’, urban realm management, concerns
around safety and the lack of social enterprise
whilst the opportunities for neighbourhood
improvement are rich and shared.

Balancing traffic movement and parking is a
repeated issue, and Norco House is a site of
keen interest as an opportunity for not only
redevelopment but for green/social space.

Project descriptions
developed to clarify and
illustrate what is
intended/possible.

Review of the proposed
traffic management plan.

Further exploration of
achievable designs for key
places.

16



Online Public Consultation & Analysis

Question 3 Key Themes / comments

Proposals include making key streets more
attractive, promoting active travel and creating
green spaces.

Positive / supportive

“Some consultation with those who know about street
plantings need to be consulted as there is evidence across
the City of the wrong trees (pavement up lift and roots
interfering with services”

Do you agree with this?

Do you agree that proposing to make key
streets more attractive for active travel and
greening is important?

“Community growing spaces e.g., in vacant buildings could
be good, concern over them being vandalised and falling
into disrepair and neglect when the interest level wears off”

“Cafe culture on the pedestrian area and lighting would
improve the area”

“Segregation of users is important”

“Existing businesses, schools and colleges need to be able
to operate effectively”

Negative / concerns
“Ongoing Maintenance is a concern”
“Concern over anti-social behaviour in new green spaces”

“Too much focus on pedestrian's vs cars, improve road links
first then pedestrian routes”

w

active travel' and pedestrianization - this is unworkable
where vast proportions of the population trying to be
attracted to use the area live on the fringes of the city or
rurally”

“Considerations for elderly and disabled should be fully
explored to make space as inclusive as possible”

Yes with some
reservations,
13%

“Clear tactile demarcation of the pavement, particularly if the
space is still being shared by bicycles/other wheeled
vehicles is paramount for the safety of visually impaired
people”

“Budget a concern”

“Concern re proposed traffic layout — implications re
congestion elsewhere: cannot rely upon public transport”

NB. Percentages are rounded to the nearest whole number




Online Public Consultation & Analysis

Summary of Q3 key themes and proposed action

3. Proposals
include making
key streets more
attractive,
promoting active
travel and creating
green spaces.

Do you agree with

28T eﬁeq

Recognised benefits of the Active
Travel proposals but these need to
be as inclusive as possible and
could benefit from being supported
by a wider active travel network to
support access by the broader
population of Aberdeen.

Greening the City is great, but
consultation required to understand
the most suitable planting and
installations for the streets.

Existing businesses and schools
need to be able to operate
effectively — the focus/balance on
pedestrian's vs cars should be
further considered

65% agree promoting active travel
and greening is important with a
further 12% agreeing with
reservations.

Its important that any changes
support George St as a residential
and business location.

Further traffic modeling undertaken
to better understand impacts of any
traffic changes.

Cross sections of streets prepared to
better illustrate how potential
changes to key streets could look.

18



Online Public Consultation & Analysis

Question 4 Key Themes / comments

The masterplan proposes changes to vehicular
movement in the area to improve place quality. Positive / supportive

Do you support trying to make these changes?
Existing businesses, schools and colleges need to be able

to operate effectively — suitable drop off and collection

Do you support trying to scope out vehicular

movement changes in the area points for schools and key workers delivering services to
public

Maintain access for disabled parking / deliveries

Safety for all users is important

Negative / concerns

Concern re proposed traffic layout — implications re
congestion elsewhere

Too much focus on pedestrian's vs cars, improve road links
first then pedestrian routes

€gT obed

Yes with some
reservations,
18%

NB. Percentages are rounded to the nearest whole number

19



Summary of Q4 key themes and proposed action

Q4. The
Masterplan
proposes
changes to
vehicular
movement in
the area to
improve place
quality.

Do you support
O trying to make
these changes?

Q
«Q
(9]
=
oo
IS

Over 53% support the idea
of changes to vehicular
movement and access to
the area — this needs to be
balanced with ensuring
existing businesses, schools
and colleges can operate
effectively.

Need to assess impact on
road congestion elsewhere.

The near 50/50 split in opinion is
based on the recognition for
change but that needs to be
balanced against localised
requirements.

The vehicular movement plan, or
concerns generated by what it is
was thought to propose, was the
single largest topic of concern in
the consultation responses.

Online Public Consultation & Analysis

e The vehicle movement plan has been further tested to
optimise a reduction in through routing, to make the
George St area more of a destination, and to create space
within the urban realm to be able to create more
attractive streets. Traffic, that may have through routed,
is better served by being on the priority routes
surrounding the study area.

e Street sections have been developed to illustrate the
possible changes to ‘place’ founded on improved
accessibility and movement.

e The possibility of pedestrianising the central section of
George Street between John Street and St Andrew Street,
with time limited servicing in accordance with the wider
city centre, is to be brought forward in the finalised draft
masterplan.

e Proposals for Harriet Street, the direct link to Schoolhill
and the city centre are to be illustrated.

20



GgT obed

NB.

Question 5
A list of regeneration projects is proposed.

Are there any that you do not agree with, or
are there projects you would like to see
added?

Please identify any projects you do not
support or add those that you think are
missing

Generally
agree with
some
suggestions/
reservations
25%

Percentages are rounded to the nearest whole number

Online Public Consultation & Analysis

Key Themes / comments

Positive / supportive

Creating a sense of identity is the most important if we
provide a unique reason for people to want to come to the
space they will come to.

The regeneration projects are admirable and aspirational -
who it is that supports these things to happen?

Good to see lots of outside seating and more shops

Improving leisure facilities and crime rates may encourage
more people there in the evening.

Colourful play areas for children, indoor paintball, indoor
crazy golf like Golf Fang.

Younger generations need to be considered - actively want
to support local and independent business. / require
something for them

Make more of existing heritage e.g., University Student
Union Building Murals

Negative / concerns

Lighting will not solve crime

Too much focus on pedestrians and cyclists, more focus is
needed for car access and parking, or people will not visit
businesses - Reducing vehicle dominance is a risk to the
area's businesses

Budget for ongoing maintenance and upkeep of areas
Budgets — start with simple easy improvements / quick wins!

21



08T abed

Q5. A list of
regeneration
projects is
proposed.

Are there any that
you do not agree
with, or are there
projects you
would like to see
added?

Please identify
any projects you
do not support or
add those that
you think are
missing

75% agreed / generally agreed
outlines a real appetite for the
regeneration project proposals;
however, there are some
reservations & suggestions for
improving upon these such as:

* Ensuring a sense of identity
is created — creating a
destination

 Improving leisure facilities

» Working on reduction of
crime to encourage more
evening visitors

* Regeneration of empty
properties for new leisure /
recreational purposes /
green space etc.

» Ensuring the younger
generations are considered

* Making more of existing
heritage

Online Public Consultation & Analysis

Summary of Q5 key themes and proposed action

The list of projects within the topic of
‘people’, ‘place’ and ‘economy’ is
extensive and endorsed by the
consultation.

Projects that are place specific/unique,
and many with an outside focus, in
order to bring sense of greater identity
and individualism, as well as safety, is
important.

Introducing more colour, greening, a
focus on younger people, as well as
concerns on delivery budget are points
well made.

The project list has been revised to prioritise
importance in delivery for short, medium and
long-term projects to be supported by the
Council and public and private delivery
partners.

The addition of detail, including computer
generated images for key location, should
encourage greater confidence in place
‘vision’.

The Bon Accord Centre, which forms the
southern boundary of the study area is to be
referenced for ‘place’ opportunities and in
relation to streetscape proposals for Loch
Street.

22



Online Public Consultation & Analysis

Question 6 Key Themes / comments

Norco House site, formerly John Lewis, is
identified as an important site for new uses.

Supportive

* Preference for it being retained and re-purposed - Ideas
include
Do you agree that Norco House, formerly John

Lewis, is an important site and if so, what uses
should it have to support George Street?

e Cultural, entrepreneurial, community and mixed-use
hub

Big Arcade / Pop up events / exhibition space

Big food court area for street food and other cuisines
Community maker space / pop up studios

Multi-function Centre, cinema, museum, art galleries,
indoor bars and food stalls, indoor golf like —
creating an indoor Camden market'esque’ vibe.

Youth offering is important

Disagree,
11%

Negative / concerns
“Not residential”

“City should be full of attractive destinations and be easily
accessible. The lack of consistent planning strategy over

/8T abed

the past 20 years has created a divided City Centre”

“How will spaces to be filled when there are SO many
vacant premises already in the City Centre”

“Ongoing maintenance of whatever happens a concern”

NB. Percentages are rounded to the nearest whole number

23



88T abed

Summary of Q6 key themes and proposed action

Q6. Norco
House site,
formerly John
Lewis, is
identified as an
important site
for new uses.
(Page 55-63)
Do you agree
that Norco
House, formerly
John Lewis, is
an important
site?

and if so, what
uses should it
have to support
George Street?

80% of responses supported
the idea of Norco House being
retained and re-purposed -
Ideas include

Cultural, entrepreneurial,
community and mixed-use
hub

Big Arcade / Pop up events /
exhibition space

* Big food court area for street
food and other cuisines

Community maker space /
pop up studios
Multi-function Centre,
cinema, museum, art
galleries, indoor bars and
food stalls, indoor golf like —
creating an indoor ‘Camden
market’ vibe.

« Youth offering is important

Norco House was presented as a
series of scenarios based on
retention or complete
redevelopment and was one of
the tangible projects within the
draft masterplan.

The agreement that the site is
important was strong, and it is
clear that the scenarios prompted
the imagination as to what uses
and forms could be there to
support the wider study area.

The pre-cast concrete elevations,
like or loathe, are a strongly
distinctive part of the identity of
the southern section of George
Street supporting an easily
recognisable ‘sense of place’.

The site offers scope to create
meaningful greenspace which
could be found nowhere else
within the study area as a
requirement for quality 215t
Century living.

Online Public Consultation & Analysis

The placement of the Norco House scenarios
within the finalised draft is to be reconsidered
given the identified importance of the site and
its potential.

The area of George St at Norco House,
currently on the front cover of the draft
Masterplan is to be presented as a key priority
project for urban realm change embodying the
key themes of the Masterplan.

Further planning considerations for the site
should follow as a result of the masterplan
consultation.

24



Question 7 — Part 1

Please provide any further comments you wish
to make on the draft mini-masterplan

Online Public Consultation & Analysis

The table below summarises the key themes that emerges from the further comments section.

68T obed

How will this be financed? / managing public
expectations

Who will deliver on the 60 projects?

Potential to break down into smaller quick wins
and longer-term projects which come together
to deliver the broader vision.

Concern regarding money being spent when
public facilities like libraries and swimming
pools being closed?

Engaging with the younger, creative
generations on what they would like to see
in George Street / Aberdeen as a whole, it is
them who will make or break the reputation of
a city and Aberdeen is currently not well known
for its reputation

More social attractive spaces - launch the
‘aperitivo habit’

Nice fresh look with lots of cultures - street
food / local food options and outdoor areas
where you can sit outside in fresh air, socialise
and see other people to dine, drink, etc. in the
evenings / provide things to do.

Maintenance & Cleaning important

Management of anti-social behaviours (violence
/crime)

New smaller / independent businesses
(affordable rent)

Safety and community needs to be number
one & area where adults, teens and kids can
socialise together / family friendly

Pet Friendly

Other "anti-local-community" projects have
ruined the city centre for generations to
come. The business opportunities identified
are potentially unsustainable when up against
other business ventures.

Reflect heritage & history — creating character
an aesthetic vibe

Greening important for biodiversity —
potential to extend plans to derelict industrial
areas — providing green space or hybrid
residential / café spaces

Plans need to make it clear whom it is looking
to attract & where they will come from.

25



Question 7 — Part 2

Please provide any further comments you wish
to make on the draft mini-masterplan

Online Public Consultation & Analysis

The table below summarises the key themes that emerges from the further comments section.

Infrastructure

Much of the area currently is uninviting for pedestrians and
cyclists

Improve Cycle infrastructure — segregated — review proposed
route to avoid ‘zig-zag’ from Mounthooly/NESCOL

06T abed

Improve access across Mounthooly roundabout

Improve road access & parking first

Impacts on wider traffic infrastructure (e.g., pushing all western
traffic to Maberly Street/Spring Garden - This is a key route for
getting to the Beach, Pittodrie, the College

Accessibility /inclusivity

Include for other smaller marginalised groups like disabled
people, & charity organisations that support those marginalised
groups

Incorporate community involvement e.g., smaller local
community groups to look after green spaces plant life

Health and wellbeing to be given far more consideration and
prominence in this assessment — how will benefits be delivered

Social environment may warrant more consideration in the plan
- ways to support & extend local relationships, social contact,
supporting networks that exist e.g., provision/improvement of
informal spaces / supporting volunteering infrastructure

26



Engagement with Children & Young People

Children & Young People

Meaningful and inclusive engagement with Children and Young People (CYP) is central to
masterplanning and a creative approach has been adopted to date to encourage broad
participation and this approach has been continued with the Masterplan proposals.

The George Street area is home to the Aberdeen campus of North East of Scotland
College (NESCaol) (tertiary education) and the Robert Gordon College (nursery, primary
and secondary education) as well as local primary schools, which means that a significant
number of young people use the Masterplan area or transition through the area on a daily
basis.

streets-UK have undertaken a series of activities with local primary school pupils,
secondary school pupils, college students and a local outdoor sports hub to explore what
place-making means to them, how they currently use the George Street area and how they
feel about the proposals in the mini-Masterplan.

ESCol . . . . NESCol Student Workshop Material — highlighting constraints
s part of the NESCol Open Day for prospective students and their families to visit the and opportunities of selected locations

(cxampus on the 19t March 2023, NESCol agreed that a manned presentation display to
Milustrate the draft George Street Masterplan could be placed within the Campus
building. The presentation displayed four pop-ups explaining the draft masterplan with QR

oded postcards directed interested parties to the ACC Consultation Hub website to
complete the Citizen Space questionnaire survey.

A workshop with 14 Level 5 Retail students was undertaken on 7th June with the
discussion focusing on “George Street, a sense of place”, with students asked for a word
or phrases that summed up the area. Responses included ‘kebabs’, ‘plenty of barbers’,
‘some cool shops’, ‘bit boring’, ‘needs more shops’, ‘old’, ‘dirty’, ‘cheap’, busy’, and
‘smelly’. The students said how little they currently use George St but unanimously
agreed that the area is vibrant and inclusive and that the Vision from the draft Masterplan
accurately captured that. An accompanied walk then took place establishing how the
students felt about the existing streetscape and to consider this both in the context of
place-making and retail. Back in class, the students used printed images of each of the
locations to provide comments and suggestions on both the ‘Constraints’ and
“Opportunities’ of each location as outlined on Al boards as well as considering some
precedent images of potential projects. NESCol Open Day March

27



26T obed

NESCol (Continued)

Engagement with Children & Young People

The students voted for their priority projects for each location, having 3 votes each per location. The range of options varied slightly for each location, but
as can be seen from the boards, common themes emerges namely a desire for a deep clean, improved street lighting, improved CCTV and, for George
Street itself, more colour in the streetscape and carriageways/pavements.

In considering their priorities, the students appeared to take into consideration what could make the biggest difference in a short timescale and what might

be affordable. (These are shown in the table below and over the next page)

ORCORCUOROTOTOL R

oo e

CORCORORC)

15t

2nd=

2nd=

Spring Garden Project Votes

28



€6T obed

NESCol (Continued)

Engagement with Children & Young People

0oL g

Qeeee "

Q000 )

Jopps Lane Project Votes



Engagement with Children & Young People

NESCol (Continued)

©ee0e "

v6T obed

0oL -
000000 Le v

George Street Project Votes



Engagement with Children & Young People
Robert Gordon College

A workshop with Advanced Higher Geography students took place on 6th June 2023. Having agreed a programme in advance with the school, the
activities were designed in the context of ‘a sense of place’. College course themes such as ‘human environment’ and ‘urban change’ were included.
The pupils’ perceptions of the George Street area came from a position of very limited interaction when at school or in their own time. They
described the existing ‘sense of place’ as ‘dull’, ‘nothing of interest’, ‘run down’ and ‘dirty’ but they did recognise potential for the kind of place it could
be and what they could do there, and all agreed with the Masterplan ‘Vision’.

An accompanied walk took place to St Andrew Street, Craigie Street and George Street and the pupils were encouraged to consider what they felt
was good and bad about each street. The pupils were left with posters of the Constraint and Opportunities, precedent images and project voting
sheets to review as part of their class work. At the end of June, having reviewed the Constraints and Opportunities in class, the students provided
their votes on 3 priority projects per location (as at NESCol)

Due to the success of the session with the S6 class, an additional workshop was arranged for S3s on 22" June. This followed a similar format;

discussing what everybody’s favourite place is and why, walking the locations and identifying shortcomings and then workshopping best solutions
back in class with a vote.

A with NESCol, a deep clean featured highly across the projects along with tree planting. Parklets featured highly at George Street and a lighting
@et and information points/wayfinding at Jopps Lane.

Craigie St (26 votes) George St (30 votes) Jopps Lane (30 votes)

@

1st Deep clean (8) 1st Tree planting (9) 1st Parklets (8) 1st Deep clean (11)

2nd Street planting (5) 2nd Deep clean (6) 2"d Tree planting (6) 2nd | ighting net (6)

3'd Rain gardens (4) 3rd Carriageway design (4) 31 Street furniture (4) Information points (6)

Uplighting (4)

“We have enjoyed 2 consultation workshops with Dave from streets-UK about the George Street Masterplan - one
with older pupils who have just sat their Higher Geography and are continuing on with Geography, the other with
younger S3 pupils as part of our Communities Project Week.

Dave was great with the pupils clearly explaining what the aims were and leading the pupils to 4 locations to
gather viewpoints. We would love to continue to be involved in future consultations and workshops so thanks for
helping set this up.

The pupils were really pleased to be included as they said “our voices actually count” and it is “real life Geography

just like we learn about in class”. School Site Visit to Craigie Street
Dr Jenny Gray, Head of Geography, Robert Gordon College g

31



96T obed

Robert Gordon College (continued)

Engagement with Children & Young People

Craigie Street Project Votes

32



/6T abed

Robert Gordon College (continued)

Engagement with Children & Young People

Jopps Lane Project Votes

33



86T abed

Robert Gordon College (continued)

Engagement with Children & Young People

George Street Project Votes

34



66T obed

Robert Gordon College (continued)

Engagement with Children & Young People

St Andrew Street Project Votes

35



00z abed

Engagement with Children & Young People

36



Engagement with Children & Young People

Primary Schools

Invitations were issued to Skene Square, Gilcomstoun, Sunnybank and
Kittybrewster.  Gilcomstoun and Kittybrewster were unable to participate, however
sessions were completed for 4 P6 and P7 classes at Skene Square on 27" and 28" June
and 3 P6/P7 classes at Sunnybank on 29th June. 200 pupils took part, many of whom
live in or near the George Street Masterplan area.

These sessions explored what/where the pupils’ favourite places are and why. This was
sometimes places of excitement and fun such as holiday destinations or football stadiums
but was more often places of safety, privacy and comfort such as their own bedrooms or
their granny’s house.

For those classes that were able to do a walkabout, the pupils made and coloured in a
ersona cut-out, ‘Georgie’, who was then able to be photographed in front of what they
gxed and didn't like about the locations. Georgie didn't like endless grey walls, weeds,
tter, broken tiles and rainwater goods, parked cars, and uncomfy seating. Georgie did
(Mike fun shops, murals, trees, bike stands and hanging baskets.

N
o
H

Skene Square Primary walking tour with
Georgie



Primary Schools (continued)

Back in class, the children took inspiration from sets of
precedent images, as well as their own experiences and
imaginations, to make suggestions as to what projects
would make the George Street area better for them. They
provided ideas on stickies and some also completed
colouring in of black and white images of the locations
visited..

20z abed

St Andrew Street

Engagement with Children & Young People

Jopps Lane

George Street

Craigie Street

38



€0¢ abed

Primary Schools (continued)

A walkabout wasn't possible for two of the
classes at Skene Square due to numbers, or any
of the classes at Sunnybank Primary due to the
distances involved. For these classes, Georgie
had a back story of all the places he likes in the
George Street area and where he visited on his
walk. This was accompanied with a short video
of a tour which identified some of the shops and
favourite places as well as highlighting the
constraints of the case study locations

You can watch the video tour by clicking
here

The classes analysed the constraints and
opportunities and then used their happy Georgie
personas to chose the precedent
images/projects they would most like to see in
the location they had been working on.

Engagement with Children & Young People

Class-based workshops use of Georgie persona to vote for projects

39


https://www.relive.cc/view/veqzoXk8j7v
https://www.relive.cc/view/veqzoXk8j7v

Engagement with Children & Young People

Primary Schools (continued)

The preferred projects were broadly similar for Craigie Street, Jopps Lane, St Andrew
Street and George Street with only minor variations due to different existing uses.

{
. . . . . more
The broad feeling around constraints focused on locations being grey and boring,
not enough greenery, dark and unsafe and nowhere to sit or play. colour, more
nature,
Not surprisingly, the main focus on opportunities to make these better places was more space’

around projects that would provide colour and art, attractive lighting and up-lighting
and all forms of planters, trees and SUDS.

The next level of preferred projects included upkeep of carriageways and
improved/wider pavements, new or improved street furniture, parklets to sit and play
on and improved cycle provision.

0z abed

It is interesting to note that a deep clean did not feature as highly with the primary 2 t
school pupils. This may be due to age, their greater familiarity with, and affection for, want more
the area, not going on walkabout or a combination of all of the above. street art and
street furniture Clean more colour to
make it less
parklets colour/art s
cycle
provision
wayfinding
road & lighting

pavement



Engagement with Children & Young People

Primary Schools (continued)

All the pupils were left with a black and white image of the location they had
focused on and here are some of their ideas for place improvement.

G0g abed

Aberdeen Grammar

An invitation for S1/S2 pupils, some of whom will have participated in the wider City Centre and Beach engagement activities in P7, was issued to
the Grammar but a date could not be agreed before the end of the summer term.

41



Wider Outcomes

Engagement with Children & Young People

Engagement with the children and young people Rights of the Child — supporting the rights of

in relation to the George Street draft mini-
Masterplan has delivered various positive
outcomes:

Inclusive engagement - Valuable reflections
from a very wide cohort on “place” and the draft
Masterplan and what the priority projects should
be to move towards the vision, This will all feed
into the evolution of the Masterplan.

Bringing curriculum to life — enabling pupils
and students to benefit from project-based
learning using places and themes that are
familiar to them

90¢ abed

the child, particularly the rights to an opinion and
to be heard.

Ongoing participation — participants suggested
that their understanding of ‘place-making’, the
planning process and of the benefits of taking
part has increased. Several said that they would
be interested in engaging more widely on the
City Centre and Beach Masterplan.

Thank you! All of the team involved in
engagement with the children and young people
would like to thank them for their openness,
enthusiasm, honesty and sense of fun. A huge
thank you to all the staff and teachers who made
the workshops possible.

42



Engagement with Children & Young People

Streetsport

Streetsport is the Denis Law Legacy Trust’s flagship programme run in partnership with
Robert Gordon University delivering free weekly sports and creative activity sessions for
young people 5-nights a week, 50-weeks a year. The group at Cruyff Court is made up
of typically hard to reach teenage boys from diverse backgrounds.

Following planning sessions in late June with staff and volunteers a consultation event
took place on 19th September during a Tuesday night session. Most of the attendees
come to play football and the session was therefore geared around this with a footie
skills game, a quick survey and an energy drink to finish off! The young people could
also do the survey on their own phone if they preferred.

14 boys completed the survey. The first question was answered with the feet — by

dribbling the ball and passing it into the emoji bucket that best represents how they feel
U about George St.

11 2

/0¢ abe

The Cruyff Court consultees were asked which 3 opportunities (out of 8) they
would choose to improve the area. More colour and art and deep clean were
most mentioned. Colour and art was also 15t in terms of prioritisation, 2" was
more street furniture, and 3@ more active travel in the area.

Other - CCTV,
signage & greening Deep clean

bike & walk

‘Brighten it up, ‘The George St
add a couple area is quite

more benches uninspiring and
and clean it up run down’

colour/art

43



Stakeholder Engagement

On 17t March 2023 an email was forward to 21 key stakeholders stating
that the Citizen Space questionnaire on the content of the draft
masterplan was live for 6-weeks.The email also invited anyone who
wished an in-person meeting to be taken through the draft masterplan and
to discuss the contents or their perspectives with the lead ACC Officer.
Uptake on the offer to meet in person was limited with 8 in-person
meetings taken place though others used the Citizen Space survey
guestionnaire. 8 key stakeholders did not respond, and it is assumed that
they are content with the draft masterplan.

Unanimously the stakeholder responses welcome the draft masterplan
and endorse the ‘vision’ and high-level project direction and would be
Hterested in being involved as specific projects are taken forward in

qylelivery.
Q

Dsome of the responses indicate that there is scope to improve capacity
uilding within key stakeholders to enable them to be fully engaged in the
odelivery of the Masterplan ‘vision’ and its projects in order to created a
‘better connected George Street’. Nonetheless, it is a significant ask of
anyone to take the time to be involved in reading through and articulating
responses to the draft Masterplan and all consultation and engagement
feedback was welcomed to shape the Masterplan going forward.

Complete stakeholder response and ACC replies are in the Appendix.

A stakeholder meeting was held on 215t September to present and
discuss the final draft masterplan with stakeholders.

Stakeholder Engagement

Summary of written responses received

Respondent 1 - Disability Equity Partnership were guided
through the draft Masterplan in January and February 2023 as a
result of Council approval to consult on the draft.

DEP’s response welcomes the draft as a formative response to
area need, recognising that investment is needed for appropriate
projects, is concerned that access to the area is not further
reduced but improved and that good vehicular access is crucial.
DEP note that the area feels dark and unsafe and as such
welcomes proposals for a lighting scheme, considers that the
urban realm of George Street is reasonable but that opportunities
for improvement exist whilst the side streets are in poorer
condition altogether. The opportunity to reduce street-clutter and
improve way-findings is welcomed and that appropriate seating for
rest-stops should be provided, and whilst welcoming street
greening raise caution on placement and specifications. DEP
considers that pedestrianization is being considered as a priority
but should be balanced with necessary vehicular provision. DEP
also consider that the masterplan as a document would benefit
from the removal of clutter.

Respondent 2 — Robert Gordons College RGC have welcomed
the draft Masterplan and state that its aims are vital to adding
value to the heart of the city centre as a destination and not a
through-route, as well as welcoming RGC'’s inclusion as a
significant place influence and looks forward to knowing how the
‘vision’ extends into practical delivery. RGC welcomes the focus
on improving the pedestrian experience and notes that the
College continues to require vehicular access and servicing,
wishes to promote ‘park and stride’ as well as seeking clarification
and revision to an environmental improvement proposal that was
set within the private grounds of the College campus.

44



60¢ abed

Summary of written responses received — cont.

Respondent 4 — Aberdeen Cycle Forum

In response to the cycle route in the draft Masterplan ACF seek
clarity on cycleway segregation being proposed or not, referencing
future proposals be in accordance with Cycle By Design
requirements with more direct routes, seeking greater local area
permeability, requesting exploration of Harriet Street as a cycle
contra-flow into the city centre, raising concern on the usage of Loch
St by vehicles, requesting cycle infrastructaure on NCR1 as well as
better cycle parking provision. ACF look forward to knowing more
about proposals as the Masterplan develops.

Respondent 5 — Aberdeen Inspired
Aberdeen Inspired stated that are ‘content with the general thrust and
look forward to engaging as things develop throughout the year.’

Respondent 7 — George Street Community Council

The Community Council is supportive of the draft masterplan,
especially the measures to boost trade and encourage footfall on
George Street. The training and well-being aspects are also
considered to be encouraging. (With respect to the footfall there has
been a local initiative to have a food related street market on the last
Saturday of each month at the pedestrian end of George Street,
which has arisen partially from interest in the Masterplan).

Respondent 8 — Greater George Street Traders Association

The GGSTA welcomed that they ‘appear to be getting real interest’ from
Council in their attempts to revitalised and important part of the city centre
which has decline to being ‘something of a backwater’. The primary projects
that GGSTA wish to see are better street lighting and extended CCTV
coverage, to address general cleanliness concerns and consider that
Broadford Works should have been taken into the study area and note that
the vacant Norco House and the Bon Accord centre have a significant impact
on the commercial success of the area. GGSTA call for early action to
support the area in order for its business to continue successfully.

Stakeholder Engagement

Respondent 13 —Bon Accord Centre Managers

Bon Accord Centre managers welcomed the creation of the draft
Masterplan for the George Street area and the opportunity to discuss
its contents prior to considering to complete the Citizen Space survey
guestionnaire. The managers explained that the Centre was recently
under new ownership.

Respondent 20 — Aberdeen Academy of Performing Arts

AAPA responded with a detailed consideration of vehicular accessibility to
the study area based upon the proposed vehicular movement plan. The plan
has been subject to further testing to be able to reduce ‘through-routing’
within the area and improve the prospect of creating space for greening and
improving the ‘sense of place’ of the area whilst balancing travel needs. The
dialogue on the revisions to the draft masterplan should continue to achieve
proposals that are endorsed by all.

Respondent 17 — Aberdeen Civic Society

Aberdeen Civic Society responded by requesting that consideration be given
to the demolition of Norco House and its replacement with housing to a
similar scale and detail of the nearby tenement buildings because
commercial reuse was likely to be unsuccessful in proximity to the Bon
Accord Centre, and that St Andrew St be redeveloped as a commercial high
street. However, that arguments in favour of retaining the Norco House
building are increasingly urgent. The Society also considered that the
Masterplan area should have encompassed the entirety of the George Street
area and with particular attention to the Denburn Road and the area around
Loch Street adjacent to the multi-storey car park. In addition, encouragement
was given to create a ‘small urban park’ as a ‘green terminus’ on George
Street outside Norco House.

Respondent 22 — Residents of Loch Court Sheltered Housing

By invitation of the residents the ACC lead officer, on the 18" April 2023,
gave a presentation discussion on the content of the draft Masterplan. The
residents were fully engaged, had read and understood the draft and were
eager to discuss the projects. In particular they expressed a strong desire to
see action on project delivery and to feel more supported in their area needs
and welcomed continual involvement in the process of working toward a
finalised masterplan.

45



Stakeholder Forum Meeting 215t September 2023

All Stakeholders who had received an initial invitation to participate were
invited to an early evening event held in the offices of North-East Sensory
Services in John Street. An option to join by Teams was also available,
and attendees are listed in the table opposite.

The meeting was facilitated by Fiona Robertson of streets-UK who
summarised the consultation programme and feedback received, and the
Finalised Draft Masterplan, taking into consideration the consultation
responses, was presented by Nigel McDowell of Aberdeen City Council.

Following the presentations discussion took place on the following points:

Topic

s heard.

0Tz 9bed

Conflict between pedestrians and
cyclists

Norco House — how will the new

owners respond to the Masterplan?

Delivery — when does this begin?

nsuring the voice of older residents

Discussion

Consultation was open to all as
focussed meetings took place with
Community Council and Loch St
Residents Assoc which represents
an older demographic.

Masterplan in delivery will balance
‘place’ and 'movement' needs to
create an active travel friendly
place.

The masterplan shows options for
Norco House and its hoped will
help assist dialogue about future
uses.

The Finalised Draft Masterplan is
to be presented to Council in
October for approval and referred
to the March 2024 budget
process.

Name

Rachel Mearns
Jennifer Magee
Graham Donald
Matthew Williams
Julia Strickland
Gavin Clark
Roule Wood

Dave McGrath
Richard Slater
Katrina Michie
Andy MacLeod
Betty Simpson
Alan McConnachie
Kim McConnachie
Robert Laird
Libby Hillhouse
Frank Cross
Lynne Kortland
Jenny Gray
Andrew Lowden

Stakeholder Engagement

Organisation

Aberdeen Academy of Performing Arts

Aberdeen City Council

Aberdeen City Council (Art Gallery)
Aberdeen Civic Society

Aberdeen Cycle Forum

Aberdeen Inspired

Aberdeen Multicultural Centre
Aberdeen Society of Architects
DEP

George St Community Council

Greater George St Traders Assoc
NESCOL
North East Sensory Services

Police Scotland
Robert Gordon’s College
Robert Gordons College

46



Stakeholder Engagement Diary

Feb
2023
14th

15th

13th -
20th

March
3rd

3rd

19th

April
4th

19th

20th

Stakeholder

George Street Community Council

ACC Masterplan Webinar

Disability Equity Partnership

Aberdeen Inspired

ACC C/O Environmental & Protective
Services

Robert Gordon’s College
NESCol -

Accessible City Transportation Users
Partnership (ACTUP)

NESCol

Stakeholder

Bon Accord Centre Managers

Residents of Loch Court Sheltered
Housing

Aberdeen Cycle Forum

Details

CCMP & George St update, and
introduction

George St draft masterplan introduction

Page by page review of content on draft
MP

Email re consultation & engagement

Email re consultation & engagement

Email re consultation & engagement

Overview presentation & Streets UK
engagement

Presentation on the draft masterplan and
introducing consultation programme.

Draft masterplan pop-ups and flyers at
Open Day
Details

Presentation on the draft masterplan and

discussion on steps to prepare finalised
draft masterplan

Presentation of draft masterplan and
discussion on all parts

Overview of draft masterplan and
discussion on expectations

Stakeholder Engagement

Representing

ACC — Nigel McDowell & George Street
Streets UK - Fiona Community Council
Robertson supportive of
ACC - Nigel McDowell Masterplan

ACC- Nigel McDowell

ACC — Nigel McDowell
ACC- Nigel McDowell

< Greater George Street
Traders Association

ACe STl ERonel] supportive and would

ACC — Nigel McDowell & like to see early
Streets UK — Dave Brown implementation of
ACC — Nigel McDowell animation

Streets-Uk — Dave Brown

Representing

. College students —
ACC — Nigel McDowell

current interaction with
George St is limited.
Supportive of the Vision

ACC — Nigel McDowell and if some priority
projects implemented
ACC — Nigel McDowell could see themselves

using George St more

47



Stakeholder Engagement Diary — cont.

June
6th

7th

22nd

271 &
28th

21¢ gﬁed

July
3rd

3rd

Sept
19th

21st

Stakeholder
Robert Gordon College

Details

‘Sense of Place’ and Masterplan walk and
workshop for advanced Geography higher
students

‘Sense of Place’ and Masterplan walk and
workshop for Level 5 retail students

NESCol

Robert Gordon College ‘Sense of Place’ and Masterplan walk and

workshop for S3 Geography students

Skene Square Primary School ‘Sense of Place’ and Masterplan walk and
workshop for 2 x P6 classes and 2 x P7

classes

Sunnybank Primary School ‘Sense of Place’ and Masterplan workshop
with ‘virtual tour’ for 1 x P6 and 2 x P7

classes

Aberdeen Multicultural Centre Discussion of draft masterplan and
discussion on areas of specific interest to
AMCC

Further follow up email requesting meeting

to discuss future plans

New Owners for Bon Accord and
Norco House

Streetsport Attended the weekly Streetsport session
which attracts 12-19yo boys who wouldn’t
traditionally engage with a consultation
Invited all stakeholders who had received
initial invite to engage to come together to

discuss final draft masterplan.

Stakeholder Forum

Representing
streets-UK — Dave Brown

streets-UK — Dave Brown &
ACC — Alison Arrowsmith
(Creative Learning)

streets-UK— Dave Brown

streets-UK — Dave Brown &
Eve Martin

streets-UK — Dave Brown &
Eve Martin

ACC Nigel McDowell &
Streets UK - Fiona
Robertson

streets-UK Dave Brown and
Flora Brown

ACC Nigel McDowell &
Streets UK - Fiona
Robertson

“Robert Gordon College
pupils were really
pleased to be included
as “our voices actually
count” and it is “real life
Geography just like we
learn about in class”.

“The primary school
pupils, many of whom
live in or near the
masterplan area, felt
strongly about it
becoming cleaner,
greener, more colourful
and more fun”

Stakeholder Engagement

48



Appendices


Presenter Notes_3
Presentation Notes

 


City Centre Masterplan & Beach
Approved Approach to Engagement

City Centre Masterplan Board approved the
overarching City Centre and Beach Masterplan
engagement strategy on 6t April 2022 which
requires the undernoted steps when preparing
engagement plans for individual projects.

1.
2.

v T abed

10.
11.

Programme confirmed.

Engagement Objectives/Scope&
Scale/Stakeholders/Messaging/Q&A
agreed.

Transportation input re any transportation
issues.

Ensure Equalities input to enable
Integrated Impact Assessment (l1A) and
ensure any equalities recommendations
are incorporated in engagement plan.
Ensure design team has
planned/undertaken any technical
engagement timeously.

Prepare engagement materials /agree
wider PR with ACC comms.

Briefing to City Centre & Beach
Masterplan Stakeholder
Forum/onboarding key stakeholders as
required (“pre-engagement” phase).
Deliver engagement (methodology will
vary depending on the project and stage
of approval/design it is at).

Update Stakeholder Forum/Stakeholders.

Wider Feedback.
Engagement Report & Summary.

Appendix 1 — Distribution Map

Poster distribution map

50



N

o~NOO O~ W

10
11
12
13
14

24

25

Stakeholder
Disability Equity Partnership
Robert Gordons College

ACC Communities Officer

Aberdeen Cycle Forum

Aberdeen Inspired

Grampian Cycle Partnership

George Street Community Council

Greater George Street Traders Association

North East Sensory Services

NHS Grampian Property

ACC Locality Manager

ACC Housing Officer

Bon Accord Centre Manager
North East of Scotland College

ACC Aberdeen Art Gallery Management Team

ACC City Growth

Aberdeen Civic Society

Aberdeen Society of Architects

NHS Grampian Public Health Practitioner

Aberdeen Academy of Performing Arts
Police Scotland

Loch Court Sheltered Housing

Council Schools

Streetsport

Aberdeen Multicultural Centre

Response

Appendix 2 -
Stakeholder
Contact

Letter response received

Email response, letter and survey completed
In person engagement undertaken with pupils
Survey questionnaire completed

Letter response received

Email response received

No response

Email response received

Meeting to discuss draft masterplan arranged for 6/6/23. Email response received.

Survey questionnaire completed

No response

No response

Forwarded to tenants

Discussion on 7/4/23

No response, though NESCol indicated their interest in being involved as the draft
masterplan evolves into a finalised draft.

Presence at open day and direct Direct 121 engagement workshops with students

No response, however one member did complete the online survey

No response

email of 16/8/23 received

No response

Survey questionnaire completed

Letter response received

No response

Presentation and discussion

In person sessions with

Skene Square Primary 27" &28™ June

Sunnybank Primary 29" June

Kittybrewster - email from ACC Creative Learning and Streets-UK follow up. Unable
to participate.

Gilcomstoun — email from ACC Creative Learning and Streets-UK follow up. No
response

Aberdeen Grammar (Secondary) Unable to participate.

Email from ACC Creative Learning and Streets-UK follow up. Engagement session
planned September

Meeting and discussion 3 July

51



Appendix 3 - Stakeholder Feedback

Stakeholder Response and ACC Acknowledgement

Disability Equity Partnership

9T¢ 9bed

Having looked at the document in some detail, the Disability Equity Partnership’s observations are as follows:
 DEFP notes that this Mini Masterplan is in its infancy, and that there will be many changes as work on it progresses.

ACC response —

- The masterplan is a working draft to enable engagement on key ‘place-based’ themes for consultees to engage with and enable
ACC to gauge appropriateness from consultee responses. There is work to be done and the consultation returns will shape and
refine the content of the finalised draft masterplan, which will be shared with stakeholders as a finalising draft in the weeks ahead.

It is important that the masterplan illustrates firm proposals and priorities that need little further testing but would be subject to
detailed design for implementation.

+ DEP agrees that investment in the study area is needed and wanted and will welcome any and all appropriate interventions.

ACC response —

- DEP's support for the preparation of the draft Masterplan is welcomed, and ACC appreciate the time taken to review and provide

feedback. DEP’s involvement in seeing a finalised draft masterplan prepared, and priority projects identified, is important for the
George St area.

< Private investment in the area is also welcome but brings challenges and uncertainty. Bon Accord centre is currently the focal
point of the study area and as such can make or break any plans to reinvigorate and improve the area. From previous
experience, we know that agreements with private investors are not always as they first appear (Bon Accord Centre was
supposed to be open 24 hours to ensure ease of access to George Street from the City Centre, Breeder reneged on this

agreement almost as soon as the doors opened) DEP are keen to make sure that access to the George Street study area is not
further reduced.

52




Appendix 3 - Stakeholder Feedback

/T¢ abed

ACC response —
- The finalised masterplan will present tangible projects, mostly on a place-based need, and organised in a recommended priority.
Further endorsement will require partnership support from all with an interest in the area. However, from the current positioning of

the draft masterplan | would envisage ‘place’ taking the lead in terms of a built environment focus and with the themes of
‘economy’ and ‘people’ central to the ‘place’ investment.

The Bon Accord Centre is too a stakeholder in the George Street, and it is important that the finalising draft masterplan references Bon
Accord Centre. The building itself is partially within the masterplan study area.

% (Good vehicular access (cars, taxis, and buses) will be vital if disabled people are going to be able to fully access, reside in, and

enjoy the area. Parking for Blue Badge holders must be protected at all points along the space, ensuring that the 50m restriction
Is observed.

ACC response —

- Accessibility for all was one of the principles in bring forward the City Centre MP refresh, as well as the Beach DF and the
creation of a masterplan for the area of George Street within the city centre boundary. Making a difference to the area requires

understanding of how the area functions and can function and this has been presented in the draft masterplan, and subject to
further revision and testing as we work toward a finalised draft masterplan.

place to call home. We are ensuring that the finalised draft masterplan has more brevity to explain and illustrate what is meant

by ‘accessible streets’ so that the place potential and impacts proposed are balanced, in advance of ‘place’ projects being
recommended and prioritised.

- Depending on specific projects detail, the finalised draft masterplan will be grounded in accessibility for all but with the
observation we are working within an historic built environment and challenges will be fully explained/discussed.

53




Appendix 3 - Stakeholder Feedback

8T¢ obed

+ Currently, the area is quite dark. A combination of tall buildings, relatively narrow streets and poor street lighting makes the area

feel unsafe, this is especially true for elderly and disabled people. The Mini Masterplan makes note of this and a good lighting
scheme will make an immediate and useful improvement to the area as a whole.

ACC response —

- Alighting plan is likely to be recommended as the first priority project which is indeed crucial for place use and safety, ‘sense
of place’ and simply a look-again ‘wow’ factor where appropriate.

# The paved areas on George Street proper are in reasonable condition, but their colour contrast is poor making the kerb line
difficult to see. The surrounding streets in the study area however are in a state of considerable disrepair and there are still road
surfaces with cobbles which makes crossing challenging for some disabled people. To ensure that these areas remain in good

condition in the future. The Mini Masterplan document notes this and DEP will be interested to learn how this is going to be
addressed and the plan for future maintenance.

ACC response —
- | have forwarded DEP’s observations to the ACC Roads Maintenance Manager
- For the street detail design project delivery is to follow the Urban Realm Manual, as agreed. DEP are a key stakeholder in all

streetscape works within the area and consensus in detail is important to successful projects, which will include a strategy for
the historic urban realm.

% Street clutter is a major issue in the Study area. The majority of respondents to the consultation wanted the removal of clutter, and
DEP wholeheartedly agrees. On George Street itself, this 1s mainly due to the footways being narrow and the volume of people
using them. There are a significant number of food outlets in the study area, many of which use dispatch services to deliver to
their customers. This adds to the congestion of the footways with bicycles and their riders often having to queue outside the
restaurant/ takeaway whilst waiting for their arder. DEP welcomes the desire to widen the footways to allow easier movement,
howevwver this must not come at the cost of other travel modes e.g., Bus, car, Taxi drop off etc.

54




Appendix 3 - Stakeholder Feedback

6T¢ obed

ACC response -
- Decluttering streets is likely to be recommended as a priority project.

Any proposed street redesign must recognise the demands placed on the street use and how we plan for place/movement

It is recognised that the footway width -i-rr:-:-é-r-tﬁi-ﬁly parts of George 5t feels narrow by comparison to the demand placed upon it
and footway width revision forms a significant part of individual analysis to be presented in the finalised draft masterplan.

As part of the place/movement considerations, and in accordance with city centre masterplan projects delivery, bus routes are
to be shared with taxi and private hire use.

4 The intention to improve signage and wayfinding is very much supported by DEP. The traditional tile street name signs are part of
our heritage and should be preserved so as not to strip the area of character, but additional larger, clearer signage will be
welcome. Colour contrast and font should be a major consideration when designing the new signage. Consistency is important so
that people know where to look and what to look for across the city.

ACC response -

DEP’s request to improve street signage design and wayfinding, respecting the preservation of the historic street name tiles, is
noted and this should be put forward as a priority project as a strategy, with implementation where we can to existing locations
and as ‘place’ projects arise.

< The addition of seating to create rest stops is encouraged. Design of the seating should take into account that many elderly and
disabled people need to have seating with armrests and a back so that they are supported when sitting and can get leverage
when getting back up. DEP would also encourage the use of wood rather than stone or metal and these surfaces are very cold
and can put people off using them or chilling to the bone those who need to take longer rest stops.

DEF's observations reflect the specification in the Urban Realm Manual and no seating would be implemented without
stakeholder engagement on spec and location etc.
The provision of seating/rest stops is to be taken forward in proposed street re-design which requires change to be brought

forward to the current vehicular movement in the area, - simply to make space in balancing need.

55




Appendix 3 - Stakeholder Feedback

0¢z abed

-
o<

Street greening is noted in the Mini Masterplan as an ambition for the study area. DEP would encourage this where possible
however, the use of moveable planters and trees can cause difficulties. As noted previously, the streets in the area are narrow
and dark. The addition of trees may well compound this as they will block light from reaching the pavement (and into people’s
homes by obstructing their windows), if planted into the ground could eventually cause disruption to the footpaths and roads, their
roots could break through drains and cause blockages. If they are in planters, this further reduces the width of the footways and
adds to the clutter people wanted to see removed. Planters have the added disadvantage of being used as bins for cigarette
ends, burger wrappers and so on and their bases can trap rubbish and debris leading to unsightly mess. Anything which can be
moved gives DEP cause for concern as it is important for some of those we represent to be able to learn and area and its
features, if those features change is.can cause confusion and distress.

- DEP are welcoming the principle of greening and sounding notes of caution on location and detail. Street sections, as part of
the proposed movement plan, have been worked up which will ultimately inform where street greening can happen, to what
extent and how in detail. Currently ‘greening’ is an ambition to be brought forward by exploring service locations and
need/demand benefits, however the area as a largely historic granite built neighbourhood would be improved by strategic
greening giving seasonal interest, colour contrast and as connector areas for flora and fauna habitat.

The Mini Masterplan makes much of pedestrian movement being proritised. This is a laudable goal;, however, DEP would remind
those carrying out the work that not everyone is in the privileged position of being able to walk, or wheel themselves for any great
distance and need to be able to get close to their end destination using a vehicle. The study area includes NESCol which supports
many disabled students, and it is imperative that their access to their place of learning is not disrupted.

- DEP’s observations are shared and in developing the detail for any street proposal accessible needs must be met. The area’s
street pattern is historic, and it is unlikely that a 50m travel distance can be met between all accessible car parking spaces and
destinations, however, you raise important considerations to be observed in planning for change. (Some of the responses to
similar questions above provide further detail)

56




Appendix 3 - Stakeholder Feedback

Tcc abed

The Mini Masterplan document itself would benefit from the removal of clutter, there is much repetition and “filler” which could be
removed to make sure that the salient points shine through and the intent is clear. Documents of this size are often themselves a
barrier to communication as the effort involved in digesting them or translating them into an accessible format can put people off even
trying.

ACC response -

- DEP’s observations are noted, it is vital that we bring forward a finalised masterplan that is not a barrier to engagement by
being clear/legibility/accessibility in its presentation as well as in the projects that are to be justified/given context and

proposed. A short Executive Summary may be prepared to complement the finalised draft masterplan, and mindful of this
consideration.

improving the existing infrastructure would go a long way to improving the area and this is something that is within Aberdeen City
Councils power to do. Much of the contents of the Mini Masterplan are dependent on the goodwill and cooperation of private individuals
and developers and this is not guaranteed.

ACC response -

- DEP's commitment on time, energy, and enthusiasm to review the formative draft MP and be involved to help shape outcomes
for the George St area is very much appreciated and | look forward to further engagement as we work towards presenting a
finalised draft masterplan to Council for their consideration.

- The draft masterplan will be recommending project prioritisation and the foundation of those projects clearly expressed so that
their intention and benefit to the George 5t area is understood and the foundation for collective/relevant implementation
established.

- Interms of actions arising as a result of DEP’s evaluation are recorded above and if any are unclear or more information
sought please do not hesitate to raise.

57




Appendix 3 - Stakeholder Feedback

Robert Gordons College

2ce abed

| refer to the current consultation on the George Street Draft Mini-Masterplan, approved by the City Council in December 2022. On behalf
of Robert Gordon's College (RGC), | wish to record the following views on particular aspects of the mini-masterplan, in general and in
particular regard to the interests of the College. These are primarily related to the maintenance of appropriate access to our facilities.

The mini-masterplan is welcomed as an important city centre regeneration initiative and amongst its vital aims, the value of creating the
heart of Aberdeen as a destination and not a through route, is fully recognised. RGC is situated on the western periphery of the mini-
masterplan area, but is recognised in the text as attracting considerable visitor numbers to the wider George Street area and, along with
NESCOL and the Art Gallery, as an Area of Influence. In that regard, you'll no doubt be aware that the combined school pupil and staff
population at RGC is approximately 2,000 people. In particular, | welcome recognition of RGC’s prominence in the area and the
acknowledged need to support its fun::tmns as evidenced by the text in section 4.2, namely;

-__“the Masterplan should seek to ensure that George Street both supports the functlons of the college as well as capturing the potential
benefits of such a significant number of people attending both institutions.”

| further note, in section 6.8.1, that the Masterplan Strategy states that;

_"the George Street corridor should extend east towards NESCOL and south west towards Robert Gordon’s College, helping to integrate
and support these existing educational institutions.”
This sentiment is very much welcomed by RGC and it will be important in further engagement and consultation to see how it translates, in
practice, in the finalised draft masterplan.

Whilst supportive of the overall aspirations, RGC does have serious reservations on a particular aspect of the Public Realm Strateqgy,
outlined in section 8.2 and expressed graphically in Figure 27 — Proposed Public Realm Strategy. Figure 27 shows a pink hatched area
within the north east corner of the RGC boundary adjacent to St Andrew Street, denoted as “Opportunities to create public realm and
landscape features within private land.” This area is within RGC's rear gate and is vitally important for access and safe, contained
operational space within RGC’s boundaries. It is therefore unacceptable to RGC, for safety and operational reasons, to proceed with this
proposal, which would not support the functions of the College, noted elsewhere as a principle of the mini-masterplan. In addition, there is
a practical difficulty in that the boundary wall and the rear gates have listed building status. The mini-masterplan concept of “Gateway
space with strong public realm influence” is understood, but RGC will not support or co-operate in this particular public realm proposal.

The most significant aspects of the proposals are the implications for continued vehicular access to RGC's front and back gates. Section

6.9 of the mini-masterplan shows a proposed street hierarchy, with greater emphasis on pedestrian movement and active travel, in keeping
with overall aspirations. Adjacent streets are understandably proposed to take a more pedestrian friendly form, still providing essential

58




Appendix 3 - Stakeholder Feedback

cee abed

vehicular access. As far as | can determine from the relevant text and diagrams, particularly Figure 35 — Proposed Car Movement Plan, in
Section 8.9 — Car Movements, all streets around RGC remain open for vehicular access. A one-way circulatory system is proposed to
operate anti-clockwise from Denbumn Viaduct through Schoolhill, Harriet Street, Crooked Lane, St Andrew Street and Blackiriars Street,
back to Denbum Viaduct, which is designated as the Two Way Primary Street giving strategic access to the immediate area.

RGC is pleased to note that within the overall aspiration for improved pedestrian movement and connectivity, along with improved cycling
opportunities, vehicular access is maintained at all points around its boundaries. However, apart from general access requirements,
including emergency services access at our back gate at the junction of Crooked Lane and 5t Andrew Street, this gate is well used for
pupil drop-off and pick-up. There may be implications for this continued use and an unintended increase in local traffic movements,
particularly at our front gate on Schoolhill, due to the proposed one-way system. The proposed system may also inadvertently generate
mare vehicle trips around the one-way loop, whilst temporary stopping facilities are also quite limited, apart from a short section on the
north side of 5t Andrew Street, opposite the Sandman Hotel. Potential temporary stopping areas are available on Charlotte Street, which
would be accessed in a northbound direction from the one-way system and the reconfiguration of Blackfriars Street may also present
increased opportunity for temporary parking, associated with pupil drop-off and pick —up. As a matter of principle, RGC is supportive of
any opportunity to facilitate what may be termed “Park and Stride,” increasing the element of active travel for those pupils whose journey
includes car travel. In further engagement and consultation, the crucial matter of vehicular access is of the utmost importance to RGC and
it is one on which | look forward to further mutually beneficial discussions.

In summary, RGC is supportive of the mini-masterplan, but has serious reservations about a particular aspect of the public realm strategy
which involves private land. It will not, therefore, support the public realm initiative, at the Crooked Lane/St Andrew Street junction, based
on that premise. The other primary interest is the maintenance and exact nature of future vehicular access, and the implications for such
access, arising from implementation of the proposed one-way traffic system.

We look forward to hearing from Aberdeen City Council regarding the next steps and to working collaboratively with ACC, and other
stakeholders, to address and resolve these points and also to agree how RGC can best support the success of the Master plan outcomes.

Yours sincerely
ANDREW LOWDEN
Director of Finance

59




Appendix 3 - Stakeholder Feedback

yze abed

ACC response -

Andy Lowden RGC Director of Finance

Hi Andy

George Street Draft mini-masterplan — consultation

Thank you very much for taking the time to both send a letter and complete the on-line survey. RGC's input is sought and very much
appreciated, and your generous broad support and clear understanding of the vision is very much welcomed. | also note and appreciate
your concem over Fig. 27 which illustrates part of the campus yard as urban greenspace.

As context to the process - the draft masterplan was approved by Council on the 14t December 2022 and required ‘early’ consultation in
2023 with a finalised dratft to be presented back to Council in December 2023, if not before. As such no-one could revise the draft
masterplan until consultation had taken place. However, | do regard the draft as formative and aspirational based on the survey findings
of 2022 along with the analysis and engagement undertaken by OPEN and Streets UK as the external team.

The project referenced in Fig 27 will not be pursued in the finalised draft, and | am very conscious of the listed status of the walls and
piers etc, and there is to be no imposition on RGC property, - though it might be that within the campus there are opportunities for future
greening under RGCs volition as part of your own future campus plans.

| also note your observations on the aspiration to remodel traffic movement through the area. Modelling options have continued so that
the finalised draft masterplan can propose revisions that remove and/or limit the ‘through’ route. The Councils approval of the city centre
streetscape projects (Castlegate, Schoolhill, central Union St and the Market/Green area in December 2022) have directed the vehicular
movement on Schoolhil to be two-way west of the Belmont St / Schoolhill junction and east bound only thereafter egressing the area via
Harriet Street, and | hope traffic looping does not become a feature of the area with drop-off/collection places to be defined.

I am meeting the team tomorrow to review and evaluate feedback and agree next steps. Please be assured that RGCs continued
involvement is sought as we bring forward a finalised draft masterplan with projects that are supported/endorsed and deliverable. All
engagement findings and revision as a result will be reported to Council in 2023 and | will be back in-touch to progress future
engagement.

I hope that this response addresses your concerns and look forward to meeting in person soon.

60




Appendix 3 - Stakeholder Feedback

Aberdeen Cycle Forum

Gee abed

George St Mini-masterplan

Thank you for the recent opportunity to discuss the George St area proposals. Although we recognize that things are at an early stage it
was nevertheless useful to have the opportunity to make our views known in relation to cycle access:

* The proposed route shown in the document is described as being “or road” but it is not clear if this means it would be segregated from
traffic.

* The route is indirect and the ‘zig-zag' nature of it means it has more junctions (hazard points) than a direct route would. As currently
drawn there are 5 x 90 degree bends. Cycling by Design would suggest that a more direct route is preferred.

+ As the route shown is away from main streets it does not necessarily serve all the destinations in the area. Rather than a single
identified route we would prefer to see more of a local network offering far greater permeability.

* We cited Harriet St as an example of where a cycle contra-flow could usefully be created to give options and create connections e.q.
from Loch St to Back Wynd.

* Those parts of Loch 5t which are accessible to traffic would benefit from a segregated cycle path to connect to the pedestrianized area.

* Pedestrianised areas such as Loch St are currently widely abused by traffic and there is no effective enforcement. Whatever measures
are put in place, physical barriers or effective enforcement would seem a pre requisite.

* More and better quality cycle parking is needed. For example some existing cycle stands on Schoolhill and on 5t Andrews 5t are poorly
sited and do not meet design standards.

* We note the routing of NCN and that the proposed route connects with that, however this means little in practice because the NCN
route itself has no meaningful cycle infrastructure, other than signage.

We look forward to hearing more about the proposals as they develop. Aberdeen Cycle Forum.

61




Appendix 3 - Stakeholder Feedback

ACC response —

Many thanks for taking the time to meet to discuss the project a few weeks ago and then to compile observations on behalf of AFC.
Your observations have been forwarded onto the team considering the existing and proposed street sections, and when the street
sections analysis is completed, | would propose to meet again to present and discuss the findings and proposals emerging — if that
would be worthwhile.

Aberdeen Inspired

We are content with the general thrust and look forward to engaging as things develop throughout the year.
ACC response —

Thank you for your response which is appreciated and always welcomed.

George Street Community Council

9¢c abed~

The Community Council is supportive of the draft masterplan, especially the measures to boot trade and encourage footfall on George
Street. The training and well being aspects are also encouraging.

With respect to the footfall there has been a local initiative to have a food related street market on the last Saturday of each month at the
pedestrian end of George Street, which has arisen partially from interest in the masterplan.

ACC response —

Response noted, and opportunity to attend future Community Council meetings.

oo

Greater George Street Traders Association

Observations from Stuart Milne, current Chairman GGSTA
(Email 9% June 2023)

Thank you for attending our evening meeting earlier this week. It was much appreciated.
It is great that we appear to be gaining real interest from the Council in our attempts to revitalise historically, an important part of our City
Centre which had a very proud heritage.

In my lifetime it has declined from a very important and vibrant commercial hub into something of a back water for reasons we are all
aware of.

62




Appendix 3 - Stakeholder Feedback

/zc abed

In an effort to turn the decline around, myself at Einnjes the Jewellers were instrumental in establishing the Business Improvement
District and ensured our business was within the foot print. This did not involve the whole length of George Street for the reason it is
simply too long! My theory was though, whatever benefit we brought to our area of George Street there would be a collateral benefit to
the rest. This has worked with flower and seasonal light displays brightening the area.

Within the last 10 years, realising more needed to be done, myself and Dave McGrath established the GGSTA to address the express
needs of the area:

1: Improve security of the area:

Better street lighting: sadly no improvement here after years of requesting.
Extend CCTV coverage operated by the police.

The latter has been approved and being rolled out.

Customers of Einnjes have frequently said they did not feel safe in the area.
2: GGSTA:

During my chairmanship, | have held at least one general meeting a year, held at NESCOL, where all interested parties were invited to
discuss needs and wants of all businesses in the area. Attendance has never been huge but one has to consider many businesses here
are sole and small traders. Information includes a Facebook page which keeps interested parties informed and up dated.

One has to remember these activities are all non repumerative and additional to running their own businesses in very difficult times.
Meetings are only held if necessary and strictly time controlled.

3: COVID:

During the pandemic, when many businesses were forced to close, the GGSTA established a “Neighbour” What's App group to assist
with property security in George Street. This became a rapid communication system if anv one became of any potential problems in the
area which were rapidly reported throughout the neighbourhood.

4: Multicultural:

We did and do outreach to the Multicultural Society to involve them in our aspirations but unfortunately there has been no great contact
with them. Dave McGrath | believe is well connected there but | am not aware of his role. Considering this group arrange the annual
“‘Mela” in Westburn Park | believe the George Street area could gain greatly by embracing this event.

5: Cleanliness:

Visitors to the area will make up their minds very quickly in terms of quality and cleanliness if these are wanting.

63




Appendix 3 - Stakeholder Feedback

8¢¢ abed

Much street furniture is in poor condition:

Rusted metal casings

Cracked, uneven paving slabs

Weeds

Dog fouling

Gull fouling

Empty, unkempt shop units

Shop front design non conforming (we were advised at our meeting the Council does not police this as they should).

Shop Keepers should be encouraged to care for their patch.

The above are not huge costs and deserve urgent prionty for civic pride if nothing else.

6: Empty Commercial Spaces:

Whilst we are aware these are not in the ownership of the Council, these spaces are critical to the long term benefit of George Street.

I'm aware the Broadfold Works is out with the area remit but it really should have been taken in. It can only be described as a blot on the
landscape. Why it was excluded from this remit one wonders? Similarly the NORCO building, Bon Accord( including now St Nicholas)
have a huge influence on the future business success of the area. M&S are _making a decision as we write here concerning their units in
Aberdeen and we fear the worst they may disappear from the centre of the City too.

The future of George Street is heavily reliant on the imminent decisions being made over these properties short term and one wonders
how best the Council can be proactive in retaining or repurposing these large areas.

Finally, we are aware the George Street Mini Master Plan is a short to long term discussion document for the consideration of all. It is
important though for the problems which are here and now to be addressed quickly to prevent a further decling in its fortunes.

There are many great, small businesses in the area with promises of great futures.

The Sandman Hotel, Einnigs the Jewellers, NESCOL, Robert Gordon’s College are examples of more extensive ones. Many then have a
great confidence in its future including myself but it craves support from the rest of the City to ensure it thrives and retains the respect it
earned in its past.

64




Appendix 3 - Stakeholder Feedback

FAO Chairman GGSTA

George St draft mini-masterplan

A short email to thank you very much for taking the time to record your reflections on the needs of the George Street area to help shape
the content of the finalised draft masterplan. | will report your reflections in full to Council to ensure that the finalised draft masterplan
presents a clear vision and direction for the area through appropriate and proportionate projects for delivery.

Thank you again for hosting a meeting of the GGSTA on the 6! June to enable our presentation on the current draft masterplan and to
have a discussion on the key topics to shape future decision making.

Aberdeen Civic Society

bcc Ivkd

The points Dominic wanted to make in relation to the George Street Masterplan were the following:

He would like to see a return of the area immediately to the north of the Bon Accord Centre to residential development, with demolition of
John Lewis building and replacement with new housing replicating the existing scale and frontage patterns on George Street. He felt
commercial development was unlikely to succeed at that end of George Street because of the deadening effect of the rear of the Bon
Accord Centre.

The consultations have raised that the majority recognise the Norco House as an important site within the city and in particular to
redressing commercial activity within the George St area. | have reduced the number of scenarios to 2 for the site, one is retention of the
fagade which Historic Environment Scotland have stated as of importance but did not follow through at that time for listing, the second
scenario is for demolition and rebuild of the site with a mix of uses. | believe there is local market testing to be done to give more
direction to this site. The wider area is devoid of greenspace and the site could provide a new park in part, and | am keen to explore the
sites relationship with the pedestrianised area of George St and Loch St. The site is in private ownership but this should not be an
impediment to encouraging forward thinking.

He suggests that St Andrews Street should be developed as more commercial street (a little High Street).

65



0g¢ abed

Appendix 3 - Stakeholder Feedback

The majority of St Andrew St buildings would remain, and with vehicular movement changes being proposed to limit opportunity for
through routing. Depending upon the future of the Norco House site mixed use would support existing and any proposed commercial
activity.

He thought the Masterplan should encompass the entirety of George Street to Hutcheon Street and should also pay attention to the
surrounding areas, particularly the Denburn Road and the area behind the Bon Accord Parking structure.

| inherited the project but the definition of the Masterplan study area is given as that part which is within the city centre boundary as
recognised by the Local Development Plan. That noted, the areas of influence are mentioned and certainly appropriate redevelopment of
Broadford Waorks per the consented scheme would bring many more 1000’s of people into using the neighbourhood.

He likes the approach adopted by Urban Design Associates in their Downtown Norfolk Virgina Patternbook. Something like it could be
helpful in addressing areas like George Street. | attach it at the end of this letter.

Thank you for the attachment, - at Council in October you will see a very different draft Masterplan from the one approved for
consultation. One of the main differences was to look again at limiting through routing so that the area functions more as a destination,
and that every street now has and existing and proposed street section illustrating place change to better balance street place and
movement uses as well as activities as a forerunner to any comprehensive detailed plan being brought forward. This isn't dissimilar to
the Guide you have sent. There is relatively little significant redevelopment opportunity within the area, most has consented schemes
which haven't yet been realised, and each assessed on place merit.

| would add that the pedestrian area at the end of George Street outside John Lewis could perhaps become a small urban park planted
with trees (in the ground, not planters) that would provide a green terminus approaching from multiple directions. | think the arguments in
favour of retaining the John Lewis building become increasingly urgent, particularly in light of the current attention on the fate of the Shell
building.

| agree that the pedestrianised section of George St between St Andrew Street and the Bon Accord Centre should be redeveloped into a
more attractive place that has a wow factor, could be allied to the ground floor uses of Norco House and that the design principles
extended into the section of George St to the John St junction. The finalised draft Masterplan illustrates these ambitions.

If any further conversations with ACS would be at all helpful please let us know.

66




Appendix 3 - Stakeholder Feedback

20

Aberdeen Academy of Performing Arts

TEZ abed

Response to the DRAFT George Street Masterplan
Background

My name is Rachel Mearns and | am the owner of Aberdeen Academy of Performing Arts and Aberdeen Acrobatic Gymnastics Club with
both organisations operating from our premises at 43-47 Jopps Lane, AB251BX. Our building also houses an Approved SQA centre
running a Full Time Performing Arts College offering HND / ATCL level training.

We bought the premises in December 2010 and have been operating classes from there since April 2011. We currently we have 16 full
time college students and 420 other students across our dance and gymnastics classes. These classes are a mix of parent and toddler
classes and classes where children come into the studio without parents.

| would like to make some strong representations for the George Street Masterplan, which will hopefully explain the nature of the area
more and respond to the vehicular issues/suggestions that are currently suggested in the Draft plan.

The Masterplan is welcome news for an area that requires a change for the better as the area is run down, has daily antisocial behaviour
and the street is often full of dog mess. It is now particularly dirty/smelly outside John Lewis.

Everyone wants the city to be "a Destination and not a through road’.

| have analysed the plans and wish to make representations as a business owner with premises in Jopps Lane and as a parent of
children attending Robert Gordons College.

Although the site of Robert Gordons College isn't directly on George Street, the changes proposed will have a knock-on effect not just to
the functioning of the college for parents and students but will have a knock-on effect to the wider functioning of traffic in the city centre.
Some of my concerns cross over each other.

Firstly, As a Business Owner

1. Accessibility

67




Appendix 3 - Stakeholder Feedback

zse abed

If the area is not easily accessible to all current business customers, the area will be in further decline and the likelihood of
attracting new businesses to the area will also diminish.

Everyone wants the city to be “a Destination and not a through road’. The longer someone spends in the city centre, the better for
business owners as they will spend more money in those local businesses.

We often encourage parents of students who come to class to drop and visit the Bon Accord Centre with many going for a coffee to
Costa or Greggs while their child is in our premises.

The majority of our families who come to class come by car.

Very few take public transport and those students that do take public transport are often late for class. Just last week 4 students from
Westhill missed their Acting class as their bus didn’t turn up and on a Tuesday night sometimes the bus to the city centre from Northfield
is late or will drive by the children at the bus stop!

In 4.4 of the draft plan it speaks about ‘Sustainable transport'.

We want to have a greener outlook for travel in the city centre, but this isn't practical for our customers when it's not actually possible to
get somewhere on time in the city and therefore they miss their purpose for coming into the city. If our customers were to regularly rely
on public transport, they would certainly switch to a dance school they could reach closer to home and not have to take a bus and miss
the classes they have paid for. Or they could conceivably give up gymnastics/dance/drama altogether.

Nothing will change the habits of people who have cars and young children. Having the city centre in-accessible by car will have the
opposite effect. In reality, people will look to do their shopping and attend services and classes out-with the city centre.

Page 31 section 8.9 of the draft plan notes the ‘Out of Town Shopping Threat'. This is exactly why out of town shopping centres are now
a desired space to shop in.

It is cheaper or even free to park with less stress in accessing the areas they need to get to. It is all academic thinking that by making the
streets more pedestrian friendly or cycle friendly it would encourage people to cycle.

68




Appendix 3 - Stakeholder Feedback

¢ee abed

In Scotland with the wind, rain, snow, ice and cold temperatures, adults will not take their children on a bike to cycle to class. Itis even
tricky with children to get on a bus with a pram - have you ever done this in Aberdeen? You can only get 2 prams on the bus at time and
sometimes | have been told | can't get on the bus as a result. Out of our 420 customers a week we have 2 that cycle to class and only
cycle when the weather is fair.

There is also the additional cost associated with catching public transport for people 23-65 years old. Many of our adult customers and
parents of students would need to pay for bus transport when they have a car at their front door.

Our customers come from the city and the shire —
- South of the City — Bervie, Portlethen and Newtonhill
- West of the City — Westhill, Echt, Banchory, Huntly
- North of the City — Peterhead and Fraserburgh.

It isn’t unknown for our students to travel for 1 hour to come to classes.

On Street Parking is not discussed in any detail in the Masterplan and does not say if there will be removal of the on street parking.
However, page b0 of the plan notes that ‘parking spaces would be reclaimed so businesses could spill out on to the street'.

If that is the case, everyone would be forced to park in private carparks which currently has a minimum charge of £3.50 — this would
increase the damage to the local economy. | know from speaking to our customers that they resent paying this amount of money to a
private parking company just to come to our class. This on top of a class fee would, in these economic climates, mean that accessing our
classes would be out of reach for some children. Already, due to the on-street parking costs we have lost customers as they can't afford
to come. The good that our classes do for the development of children and moulding them into responsible citizens who, one day, will
take the city forward would never be realised. The power of performing arts and sports on society can never be underestimated.

Has the council considered that the removal of on street parking will impact their revenue collected? It would push the money into a private
investment company who own the shopping centres.

69




Appendix 3 - Stakeholder Feedback

yee abed

Our change of use application in 2010 cited that there was suitable on street parking in the area and that this supported our application for
locating in Jopps Lane. The masterplan removes this point if the on-street parking in the area is removed.

At the opposite side on John Street there is an organisation called North East Sensory Services. They are very busy with patrons who
have various disabilities, and they rely on vehicle access to get there. Would their access be impeded with all these changes?

2. Masterplan New Traffic Layout

| note that there are a lot of Local Access Roads.

There are no details about what this means apart from a reference to reduction in speed and that it will not impede vehicle access to the
businesses.

| am taking it as a presumption that cars will still be able to drive down Jopps Lane and along St. Andrews Street? Are there going to be
time restrictions on when cars can drive down the roads?

At this current time, there is too much of an uncertainty for what this ‘Local Access Only' means for access and impact on the businesses
and customers accessing premises cannot be fully understood.

Due to my long time in the area, | know the roads very well and know their traffic flows. Many times | have sat in a traffic Jam on Spring
Garden and George Street and had to abandon my plans to drop my children home and just head back to my studio so that | am on time
for my classes.

The effect of a change to the 1 Way system on John Street is summarised as follows.

2.1 Firstly — The Effect on traffic coming from the South of the City in particular from the new South College Street via the
Denburn Underpass to Woolmanhill Roundabout. Due to John Street becoming a 1 way street in the opposite direction of the
current flow.

2.1.1 Effect at Skene Square School

70




Appendix 3 - Stakeholder Feedback

Geg obed

All traffic to access Jopps Lane or George Street and Nescol would now need to go to Skene Square School roundabout. This now
would pose safety issues for that school.

There is no lollypop man for children crossing the road, quite often it is backed up from the lights at Hutcheon Street heading towards
Berryden with cars and children crossing at the lights.

It is already a busy area with children trying to cross the road. This would be even more busy if every car, bus, lorry had to go via this

all the traffic heading to George Street would need to then head into Maberly Street. This now poses further safety issues.
2.1.2 Effect on Maberly Street and junction with George Street

| would encourage the council officers to stand and watch or even drive round the area numerous times to get a sense of the traffic
behaviour. | have stopped driving this street due to the nature of danger it poses. This street, as it heads towards George Street is
unsuitable for Lorries or busses. There is on street parking on one side and to get 2 cars passing each other is tight. The road narrows
as it gets towards the traffic lights. There is no Right turn Filter for traffic to turn right onto George Street. There is no space to even
change the street to have a right-hand turn lane and a lane for straight on towards Spring Garden. If 1 car needs to turn right onto
George Street then it will block the way until the cars coming over the intersection are clear. Currently approximately 1 or 2 cars can turn
right for every time the light is green. Hence drivers go through on the red light. Imagine the traffic build up this will have at peak times.

With this new road layout all the Lorries and other traffic that wishes to access George Street, Jopps Lane, Nescol or even the Loch
Street Carpark will need to travel down this road. | am not sure how Busses, Lorries and an increase in general traffic will manage this.
Just yesterday | had a pedestrian step out in front of my car as | was driving through on a Green Light. | have seen accidents, near
misses and pedestrians injured at these lights.

There is a Sainsburys on the corner of this junction where Maberly Street meets George Street. When they get deliveries via lorry the
space is very tight to pass as it is.

2.1.3 Effect on George Street, Loch Street and Spring Garden

71




Appendix 3 - Stakeholder Feedback

9gg abed

On the other side of the street due to Loch Street being 1 way travelling North, cars who wish to access George Street and the shops
and Jopps Lane need to turn left at these same lights. That is increased traffic from both sides of the street (Maberly as highlighted
above and now Spring Garden).

Often, especially between 3-4pm this area is very busy, queued with traffic and occasion grid locked along Spring Garden. The way the
road plan is laid out in the Draft Masterplan with the 1 way circular system there is a potential for absolute gridlock and a situation where
no cars can move.

This has not been thought through and no traffic study has clearly been done between 3-4pm in the afternoons and most certainly not on
a rainy day either when traffic flow is much heavier in winter.

2.1.4 Why Reverse the Current One-Way System on John Street?

| can understand why we don't want a ‘Rat Run’ in the centre but by reversing the 1 way road in the opposite direction towards Charlotte
Street and the Denburn roundabout the council will cause worse road problems.

- People and lorries use John Street for a specific reason.

- Maberly street is unsuitable for an increase in traffic flow and larger vehicle sizes.

- Spring Garden traffic is busy and anyone wanting to ‘Rat Run’ wants to avoid the chaos that is on Spring Garden
already.

Many times | have sat in traffic 20 minutes while it is queued back from Mounthooly roundabout. This 1 way system to block off a ‘John
Street Rat Run’ is not workable.

If you make this part of town have traffic issues people will not come to the area.

These measures will have the opposite effect and damage the area due to in-accessibility and traffic chaos. This then pushes people
into looking for their goods and services out of the area and into an area which is convenient to get to which will usually result in "‘Out of
Town Shopping Threat’ becoming a reality.

2.2 - Secondly, from a parent of 2 children who attend Robert Gordon’s College (RGC)

72




Appendix 3 - Stakeholder Feedback

/¢ abed

Although slightly outside the George Street Zone RGC plays a very big part in the local community/economy. The children visit many of
the local shops before, at lunch and afterschool. The plans presented in the Draft Masterplan do have a significant knock-on effect to
how children access the school.

| have 2 children — one in RGC Nursery and one in Primary 6. Neither child can walk to school from our house, take public transport and
due to their age, | cannot drop them in a side street to walk into school themselves.

The school already do their part towards sustainable transport in the city with the Bus service that they run for parents.

| would imagine a large number of children who attend the school travel from all over the North East Scotland. They are not local and
within a 2 mile radius of the school so many won't be able to walk. | would presume the majority, if they don't use the bus service, would
therefore come by car as parents drop off on the way to work.

Due to the ages of my children, | park on John Street and walk the children into the ‘Back gate’ at the school. Currently there is a deal
with the owners of the Bon Accord centre for parents to park for 30 minutes. However, as you are aware, the centre has now been saold.

If this agreement is not renewed or disliked by the new owners, it adds another negative to the Masterplan.

Would the ‘Local Access Only' roads at St. Andrews Street apply for parents being allowed to drive down to access the back gate of the
school to drop children off?

Afterall, the children need to access the premises and in the draft document it says that vehicle access wouldn't be prevented for the
local businesses.

If the current ‘on street’ parking in the area which is shaded as ‘Local Access Only' was removed, it becomes a lot harder for the traffic to
move in the centre. All traffic which currently goes to the back gate via John Street at the Woolmanhill roundabout then must travel along
the front of HMT on Rosemount Viaduct and onto Schoolhill into the Loch Street carpark.

Many parents try not to be the ‘blockage’ at the front of Schoolhill in the morning and drop off at the back gate where there is less traffic
and more space. There is a chance to park close by out of the way and walk their child into school safely. For all cars to go round the
front of the school to drop off then congests the front of the school for other businesses to access their properties.

73




Appendix 3 - Stakeholder Feedback

gge abed

In this draft plan, Blackfriars Street becomes 1 way and then wraps the whole campus up in a *1 way system’ circle — this could increase
the potential for traffic jam hotspots.

The only way to access the Sandman hotel would be to travel onto Schoolhill as well.

- What would be the plans for busses to run in this area ?
A bus route here isn't possible unless the bus goes down the local access only streets. A bus would never be able to manoeuvre round
the corner at the side of Boots. | have seen many a larger vehicle reverse and manoeuvre in order to turn the corner onto Crooked lane.
On busy days in the winter the lane also has queues of traffic.

To have the only parking / access to the school with a vehicle at the front school gates may congest further streets around and push
more traffic onto Rosemount at the lights or as previously mentioned onto George Street via Maberly Street and Skene Square
roundabout.

A possible outcome for the ‘Local Access Only’ roads to prevent the bottle necks is have the roads accessible by parents dropping

children off at school during the drop off and pick up times. However, this would not work if all traffic would have to go via Skene Square
roundabout due to John Street being 1 way in the wrong direction.

Summary - Aberdeen — A Greener City ?

As stated in the masterplan the environmental impact of the city centre is something that needs to be improved with plans already in
development with the LEZ coming into force soon.

However, these road layout plans will just cause congestion at the junction of George Street/Spring Garden/Maberly Street and therefore
actually impact in the opposite way with people sitting in traffic longer and driving more miles.

The way everyone would have to drive to get through to where they need to be on Jopps Lane, George Street and Nescol from the
South and West of the city would also increase their milage for their journey and therefore create more emissions.

74




Appendix 3 - Stakeholder Feedback

6c¢ abed

In conclusion, while a plan to improve the area is welcome, there is no valid reason or logic in changing the direction of 1 way traffic on
John Street from what it currently is now.

As you can see the change to road layout is the biggest concern and will without doubt cause the area to experience further demise and
distress for those that work, travel to and live in the area. It is all caused by the current John Street layout being switched to a 1 way
street in the opposite direction. If John Street were to remain the way it is now and some further consideration to the on-street parking
arrangements, it would negate any of the problems that will arise. Should John Street change to the be opposite 1 way | fear the area
will be complete chaos with vehicles and the masterplan would damage the area not enhance it.

When Aberdeen City Council decide to take the Masterplan to the next level | would be more than happy to meet, discuss or give my
views at the next stage too. | would hate to lose my well-established business which | have built up over the last 17 years due to this
draft plan.

The City now more than ever needs a lift if it is to stay alive for future generations.

| fear changing road layouts for the sake of it with no proper thought or study as evidence for change will damage businesses — just like
the Spaces for People scheme that the council implemented during the pandemic.

As City Centre businesses in the George Street area, we want to be open for business and put the city centre back on the map and do
not want to make it hard for people to access us. There needs to be a full consultation as to why people won't come into the city centre.
It is not because of a road layout or pedestrianising a street.

The top answers are cost to park and lack of shops/things to come into the city for - they go hand in hand and have a knock-on effect to
each other. Without cheaper parking, customers won’'t come. Without customers, shops and amenities won't locate to the city.
This is a great opportunity for the council to consider this issue when the next stage of masterplan is drawn up.

Kind Regards

75




Appendix 3 - Stakeholder Feedback

Ot’¢ abed

Rachel Mearns

Principal / Owner Aberdeen Academy of Performing Arts
Aberdeen Acrobatic Gymnastics Club

Former Principal Aberdeen College of Performing Arts

ACC response —

Thank you for your very detailed response to the George Street draft mini-masterplan as a business owner with over 400 students
attending classes in your premises in Jopps Lane, and as parent with children attending Robert Gordon's College.
| note that you welcome the advent of a masterplan for the area as a place that ‘requires change for the better’ endorsing that the city
centre should be a destination and not a through route. | have also enjoyed reading that your business successfully brings pupils and
parents from a remarkable catchment across the city and shire.
To give a comprehensive response | have taken the opportunity to review and reply under each of the headings that you provided:

1) Accessibility

The majority of your concerns are with public transport use and efficiency across the city and shire, as well as anticipating the removal of
on-street parking as the draft masterplan references ‘accessible streets’ and proposes revising vehicular movement through the area to
prevent through routing — as an initial draft.

‘Place’ is of the key topics of the draft masterplan and greater clarification on what is meant by ‘accessible streets’ is certainly required.
All the study area streets have different uses and needs and therefore balancing ‘place” and ‘movement’ in order to be able to introduce
‘greening’ and create more of a ‘destination’ requires careful understanding. As well as businesses who do have trade from drop off and
collection | am conscious that the upper floors of the majority of the buildings are tenement flats whose residents do need differing levels
of accessibility, that accessible blue badge spacing is included within providing accessibility for all as well as to provide improved
infrastructure to encourage cycling.

| agree that we need to drill into the detail and your caution on challenging current amenity and infrastructure is apt. The finalised draft
masterplan emerging will go into much more evaluation and proposed detail on this following evaluation for further stakeholder
engagement.

2) New Traffic Layout

76




Appendix 3 - Stakeholder Feedback

Ti¢ obed

The finalised draft masterplan is to be supported by a transportation assessment of current and proposed vehicular movement in the
study area that can demonstrate betterment by removing through-routing traffic. The plans will be clearly illustrated with ‘before’ and
‘after’ so that each street movement is clearly described and can be understood.

- Skene Square School
There are several ways for vehicles to access the study area and their impacts to the wider place and infrastructure needs will be further
explored in the finalised draft masterplan. An emerging option is to remove private vehicular access from Denburn to John Street, whilst
allowing bus/taxi/private hire in, and with all vehicles able to egress the area from George Street at that junction is likely to be one of the
proposed movement changes. In terms of school safety | have raised your concems with my Roads governance colleagues to consider
further.

- Maberly Street / George St Junction
| note your observations on driver behaviour, the various widths of the street and on-street parking etc and the connection to Spring
Garden. The street width as built is unlikely to change, and varies across its length, but we will progress the detail of what can change for
the positive. The Maberly Street / Spring Garden route forms the northern edge of the study area though the routing, further north, along
Hutcheon St should be the primary route.

- George Street, Loch Street and Spring Garden
Your concerns are shared. The emerging proposal for Loch Street would see no change to its current routing and we would look to its
widths to know where the most significant ‘place’ changes can occur — which will be illustrated within the emerging draft masterplan.

- Why reverse the one-way system to John St?
As above, as a key part of a finalised draft masterplan we are including a revised vehicular movement plan. John St is an important E/W
route and | envisage improvements to the Loch Street junction but with vehicles coming off George Street able to proceed east toward
NESCol and west out onto the Denburn direction.

- Parent of pupil at Robert Gordon College

77




Appendix 3 - Stakeholder Feedback

2 abed

I am aware that a few years ago RGC brought forward a School Travel Plan to address their extensive catchment by illustrating the
travel options available as well as to seek a reduction to the number of private vehicles impacting on Schoolhill and surrounding streets,
including private arrangements for short-term car parking in the vicinity. St Andrew Street is another important street in the study area for
its E'W movement and the draft masterplan will again be proposing place and movement changes.

I am also conscious thaf the future use of the Norco House, formerly John Lewis, will hopefully see hew uses that enliven the wider area
and its accessibility requirements too must be factored into change.

RGC are a key stakeholder in our engagement and as a organisation of over 2000 people accessing the area weekday their need and
influence foo will be evaluated, and | nofe that the Blackfriars St enfrance can be deployed to separate out the College’s accessibility
needs, and as such the emerging vehicular plan for Blackfriars St in the draft masterplan will be revised in the emerging draft
masterplan.

3) Summary — a Greener City

The observations and concerns you raise are crucially based on the vehicular movement plan in the current draft masterplan, prepared
as a basis for discussion. Your observations are noted and very much welcomed and in order to attain all that the draft masterplan is
seeking, in essence, the vehicular movement plan has been subject to further evaluation in tandem as the public engagement took place
and a revised plan, along with other revisions and clarifications, will form a fundamental part of the finalised draft masterplan.

| thank you for your time and commitment to providing such a comprehensive review of the current draft masterplan and | would look
forward to meeting you as engagement continues in the weeks ahead. Our correspondence will form part of a report to Council on the
process and outcomes of engagement and revision as a result

| assume you are affiliated to the Greater George Street Traders Association for collective awareness, and either way | will be in-touch
on agreed next steps when the engagement and consultation returns are evaluated.

Aberdeen Multi-Cultural Centre

Please be prepared | speak as a | find and it's not always comfortable but shared in the spirt of genuinely wishing fo contribute

78




Appendix 3 - Stakeholder Feedback

ci¢ obed

Question 1

The masterplan proposes - 'Vision' - 'George St Connected! - the local neighbourhood which is a vibrant and inclusive City Centre
community at the heart of reinvention’ (Page 7)

Do you agree with the Vision?

What are your thoughts on the 'Vision'?

We are broadly in support of the vision. We were involved in an exercise to rebrand the area as an artisan quarter and involved
NESCOL in the exercise back in 2019 or so.

ACC response — Positive

Question 2
Findings on the Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities & Threats (SWOT) of the area are provided (Page 30-31)

We are in broad agreement with the SWOT. Norco building is what it is which can and is being repurposed and will provide amenities for
new start and SME businesses. There is also a plan emerging swiftly to create a destination centre which will show case the food and
produce of over 100 local food, drinks, artisan producers and traders across the city and shire.

The main threat to this area is to be overlooked by the emerging initiative on Union Streef. This may take organisational and funding
precedence over this area.

Also the food and drinks initiative faces a risks of being ignored and perceived as being a threat fo the International market. We do not
believe the BHS/Green site can be an international market at least not the part on the green for very sound operational reasons. We
have market research substantiating this.

ACC response — Positive

Do you agree with the findings?
If not, what would you change or add? - Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities & Threats of the area

79



Appendix 3 - Stakeholder Feedback

v1¢ abed

Question 3
Do you agree with thisz 777
Do you agree that proposing to make key streets more attractive for active travel and greening is important?

One thing we cannot escape is the need for destination traffic. Through traffic we can reduce. If people, especially from out with the city
wish to visit and make purchases public transport is just not up to the task. Getting purchases from the stores to public transport hubs is
challenging. Extension of the LEZ threatens destination traffic.

ACC response — Positive and note the concern re public transport

Question 4

The masterplan proposes changes to vehicular movement in the area to improve place quality. (Pages 45-48)

Do you support trying to make these changes?

Do you support trying to scope out vehicular movement changes in the area

In principle yes, in practice LEVs are both a potential boon and drawback. It may challenge the very need for these. Cycle provision
needs improving and the reduction in through traffic will assist greatly. Cycle provision needs to be segregated and escooters and large
ebikes kept of them. | would ask that where ground marks show cycle route it also includes rollerblades and skates symbols
encouraging these a commuter methods which are commonly used on the continent

ACC response — Positive and note the advice

Question 5

A list of regeneration projects is proposed. (Page 49-561)

Are there any that you do not agree with, or are there projects you would like to see added?
Please identify any projects you do not support or add those that you think are missing

I will neither disagree or agree to any. They all have merit but many risk falling into the rhetoric band. Someone, somewhere must do
and fund these.

80




Appendix 3 - Stakeholder Feedback

Gir¢ abed

We must be sure that any other ideas tabled do not get excluded for not being on this list. Things like frontages are in the cost matrix of
owners or renters. Above the shop line is in the gift of owners and tenants. These are very old properties with particularly complex
architecture and massively varied state of repair. This skyline estate will be a very complex matter to resolve, more so if architectural
uniformity is desired.

The area needs foolfall and support for initiatives driving footfall. Should the city favour “future” possible projects over current in hand
project this may supress development opportunities.

ACC response — Positive with the advice noted.

Question 6

Norco House site, formerly John Lewis, is identified as an important site for new uses. (Page 55-63)
Do you agree that Norco House, formerly John Lewis, is an important site?

and if so, what uses should it have to support George Street?

On Norco house it's easy to make sweeping statements about this. This is now owned by EP Properties. We are in discussion with
them. Whatever we may wish its their asset and they must be included in the dialogue. | have spoken with an architects who had
massive ideas for this. Generally getting more people living in city centres is very sensible and spoken of for at least 30 years. Planning
and building regs can conspire against this.

We have plans for Norco house and in discussions right now with the owners. However, we suspect ACC will not engage with us with
any seriousness as they may perceive this as threat to their BHS site project and mat actively conspire against it.

As one of the founders of George Street Traders Association ACC has never seriously engaged with us on any projects except the street
market we did back in 2018.

ACC response — The observations are in accordance with the scenarios posed for Norco House and the consultation seeks opinion on
those as redevelopment options. It is clear that Norco House is regarded as an important building/site.

81




Appendix 3 - Stakeholder Feedback

ot/¢ obed

Question 7
Please provide any further comments you wish to make on the draft mini-masterplan

For us, our experience with ACC officers in this realm is they only want to hear what they want to hear and engagement with them has
been very very poor. They promise to follow up and we never hear from them. You may have new staff and they should be given an
opportunity.

We have a 3 phase plan for the Norco House. ACC could be instrumental in helping drive this forward and their involvement would be
welcomed. Wil they take it seriously | personally have had way too many aborted projects with ACC over the past 20 years. | am quite
prepared to ignore this track record and engage with ACC if it's with mutual enthusiasm. It has always felt like they know best and show
passive aggression by ignoring things they do not like, or people they do not like.

ACC response — Noted, contact details have been shared with City Growth officers to make contact and to know more about the specific
projects and to table what support ACC can provide.

Best regards
Dave McGrath BSc MBA

82




01

/¢ abed

Appendix 4 - Extract of Online Feedback

83



01

8¢ abed

Appendix 4 - Extract of Online Feedback

84



Q1 Appendix 4 - Extract of Online Feedback

The masterplan proposes a place "Vi - 'George S5t Connected! - the local neighbourhood which is a vibrant and inclusive city centre community at the heart of reinvention’.(Page 7)

Do you agree with the Vision? - What are you thoughts on the "Vision'?

fes

| am not sure that ‘supporting residents inte fair work’ or ‘move into econemic opportunity’ is what the council should be throwing money at here. Or any hair-brained ‘green’ schemes. The council should be chasing all of t by e private landlords wheo have let their properties fall
into a state of disrepair and issuing notices forthwith. Then the council can give the place a deep dean.

No - too long and what do you mean by 'reinvention'? Why does Aberdeen define communities by a single street? Union 5t, George 5t, etc. What was George 5t named after? |s there a more inclusive identity - Union Square, Union Gardens, Union Street, Union Bridge all seem to
have been named after a failed political union btwn GB and Ireland.

No

fes

fes

fes

Yes. Making it a quieter and safer area (less cars, low speed limits, trees, etc.) is a good idea.

fes

1\’:ﬁrhe College is supportive and looks forward to collaborating with Aberdeen City Council.
ision looks appealing. Coming from a health and wellbeing perspective we particularly support the elements that prioritize active travel and greening, although perhaps the sustainable travel targets could be more ambitious? And we would like to have seen health and
mheing given far more consideration and prominence in this assessment (more on this below].

is too broad and vague to be meaningful
Winci pal, yes we agree to the vision. However the implementation of some of the proposed activities will determine how successful it is in maintaining the connectivity and accessibility for people who are supported by NESS, whose main office is on the corner of John Street
and Jopp's Lane.

re broadly in support of the vision. We were invelved in an exercise to rebrand the area as an artisan guarter and involved NESCOL in the exercise back in 2019 or so.

(o]

85



Q2 Appendix 4 - Extract of Online Feedback

(George Street Draft Masterplan
Extract from online Citizen Space Public Consultation Responses

Findings on the 1gths, Weak Opportunities & Threats of the area are provided {Page 30-31) Do you agree with the findings? If not what would you change or add?

- Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities & Threats of the area

5 —assumpticn students bring spending power. There is evidence some are using the Care Hub (Soup Kitchen) and or colleges (and University) supply of free food initiatives. W — | question the limited activities in the evening, what is exactly meant? There are shops still open in
evening, bars, carry cuts and off licenses. O — Re-activate low activity shops —which means ones that are closed (jargon), green urban- where and who maintains (| know the service that locks after green spaces already has limited staff to do what it does without more being
added). Repeating what the author thinks there should be whilst they exist already; cultural diversity (Shops are diverse, we have Aberdeen Multi-cultural organisaticn in Spring gardens) and business network (GG5TA). More jargon — Public Realm Quality (?) T —reference to anti-
social behaviour being encouraged if further disrepair continues. Police would highlight the area is no different to other areas in City. Creating a problem where cne does not exist?

No
| agree with the weaknesses, it is a very grey, rundown and at times unpleasant street
Yes
Yes
Mo Broadford works need demolished and a green space added otherwise George 5t is functioning unlike large parts of the city. We don't need to spend more public funds and close library’s etc
Agree
Mo. Strengths do not seem to be realistic, George street is nothing like what it used to be and does not appear to include its use as a connecting road. There are too many takeaways, charity shops and Eastern European shops. Good baker but more places are needed like what
there used to be, eg sports shops, outdoors shops, bowling, arcades. John Lewis leaving is a huge blow. Also how do you know what the sense of community is by only consulting with 297 people of which most don’t live there? Weaknesses too much focus on pedestrian
rience vs motorists. Although pavement repairs would not be a bad thing, it is important to ensure the road is also well maintzined for cars and buses as it is an important link. George street is not ‘hidden” and bin accord centre does not need to be demolished. More should
ﬂune to encourage businesses and leisure facilities into bon accord centre and that will increase the demand for visitors to the area and this will also spill on to surrounding areas like George street. Urgent action is needed to attract businesses back to the dty that have been
mt. Demalishing broad fold works might be an option for some leisure facilities (cinema etc) and green spaces with public toilets and adequate parking. But be sure to ensure it is safe to visit at night and we’ll policed. The limited activity at night time is because the students
@m the college have gone home. Improve leisure in the area and policing to resolve. Bon accord centre is fine for pedestrian link, just make sure it is open 24/7 so that people have better access. Again too much focus on pedestrians vs cars. It's vital that good access and parking
mvailahle for drivers. Opportunities more retail is needed not less! A large department store should be encouraged inte Morco house, the city desperately needs this since lohn Lewis and Debenhams left and soon to be M&S. bring back some of the shops and facilities that used
to be there. Established businesses not just start ups that will come and go and then leave vacant units. Again wrong aspects on car use, the ‘impact’ of cars is one thing but you should be encouraging people to drive into the city, more access is needed with the other nearby
5 closed or restricted. The city will continue to decline otherwise and not just George street. Threats seem to be mostly reiterating other aspects but demolishing buildings that are not used is not the problem, the problem is that businesses are leaving the dty and this needs
e addressed and encourage businesses back. Take public ownership of Bon accord centre and that is two problems solved right there. Online and out of town shopping is a symptom of the state of the city retail not a cause. But this can be addressed with better business
@s and other incentives. Crime is also an issue in the city, caused by poverty and deprivation in the area. Deal with that and improve policing and you deal with the problem.

demalish bonaccord centre & restore george st to its original purpose

To include up to and beyond Hutcheon 5t/George Street

Yes

Yes.

| agree with these findings, improving the pedestrian area and brightening it up perhaps with better lighting, seating areas and improved shop fadngs. The John Lewis building needs to be sorted as it is overbearing. Can it be sold of in sections, similar to larger cities and have
food halls, art gallery, indeor crazy golf? Market stalls? FoodHallen in Amsterdam has a massive independent foed hall, bars, galleries, cinema and shops, its a huge attraction.

nfa

Mo. Weaknesses should include poor disabled facilities and planning for disabled people. Large student population in George Street but no planning for student life. No green space for dog owners, and enclosed areas for dogs to run around.

Add as a threat - reduced ococupancy of Marischal Square offices due to difficulties in workers travelling to the location (particularly from cutside the city) and for those in the building who start work before buses are running. so have to drive

‘What the findings have said aren't wrong, however they are missing absolutely crucial points. You have NESCOL and RGU colleges within walking distance of the area in a broader sense two universities in Aberdeen with a large, youthful attendance - not once in the Findings have
you mentioned anything of note in either the weaknesses or opportunities about the potential for creating an area for street food or socialising.

Yes

Yes

Mo Cars are not a threat .

Parking is always full, and in limited quantity. Most people park away from George Street and don't travel in. Bins are almost always full due te local businesses using them making the street feel messy and unclean. Agree with rest of findings

George Street feels hidden and separate from the rest of the city. It feels like there's no need for anyone to go since the closing of the Joehn Lewis. Walking along is unpleasant, with on-street parking and a need for more green spaces. The fact that the area feels disconnected
from union street and the rest of the city doesn't have to be an issue if the space provides unique opportunities and the people want to go, such as a museum or gallery opening up in Norco house to act as a focal peint in the city

86



Q2

TG¢ abed

Appendix 4 - Extract of Online Feedback

87



Q2 Appendix 4 - Extract of Online Feedback

Findings on the Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities & Threats of the area are provided (Page 30-31) Do you agree with the findings? If not what would you change or add?

- Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities & Threats of the area

yes all relevant - might add a threat of dying high street leading to companies not wanting to invest in these areas and mean that other shops/businesses go out of business as people want to shop online at big retailers

| agree with the majority of it however to me george street is quite a dodgey area and you usually see quite a few drug users/dodgers especially around John Lewis area. This would need to be dealt with before encouraging footfall. There also needs to be more for the youth of
today. They aren't interested in the economy or new businesses, they want somewhere lit and heated to congregate in. The city has a huge problem with youth annoyance at the minute (proven by pelice scotland stats) so this needs to be dealt with ASAP as all it is doing is
creating division within the community.

Yes, it really does feel isolated from the city - when the Bon accord closes at 6, it feels really hard to get to George street although it's not. Doesn’t make it a place to linger, which is a shame as there's so much potential

YES

| do agree, expecially with the aethestic weaknesses. The area is not very accesible by car or on foot although it is geographically positioned to be a hub of the city.

yes

Yes, although | would argue the demolition of Norco House could be used to turn the area into a more open green space, with paths, seats, fountains etc, to draw people into the area for recreation and well being, rather than purely on commercial activities

Agree with findings

Generally yes, but | have not had to the time to drill down in detail

No

This area is diverse you going in and cleaning it up will price people out! Clean up union street and open union street back up to traffic ... there is more undercover police in this street than anywhere and they are not there for no reason
No

Cron't limit car access. Shops unreachable for those with mobility issues. Is near impossible to get a blue badge- need to be very impaired. There are a lot of folk who don't qualify but cannot walk far

Yes

Mostly. Another weakness is poor access for people on bicycles but this is a city-wide problem.

Yes

, | do. There would be more independent businesses there if free and plentiful parking was available in the area though, not green spaces. People can go to the parks for them. The only way we’ll get people shopping in the centre again is cheap/free parking. Without that,
biggest issue with the SWOT analysis is that it fails to place sufficient weight on cultural rejuvenation through a new cultural quarter or creative industries cluster approach based linking Broadford Works to the city centre. The non linear pedestrian approach from Bon Accord

tre is a key problem. Lack of detail on catalysts for positive change other than public realm improvements.
M'{ou 've allowed to many shops offering same service eg hairdressers barbours .

‘gple just go to retail parks, or a place with good independent shops and free parking, such as Inverurie.
m

rid of the tattie shops
¥
| generally agree. Giving more space to pedestrians and cyclists and removing space for cars parking on the street is an opportunity. At the moment, the pavement is too narrow and George Street and surrounding streets make cyclists avoid this area. Furthermere, there are
almost no place to lock a bike, so even visiting the area just to go to a shop or cafe is not appealing.
Yes
Yes
Yes, | would add to opportunities peint 2 that not just through journeys but private parking, probably locks away large amount of opportunity in the area as only very few people parking takes a very large amount of public space. | can't imagine that any reasonable parking fee
could recuperate the econemic and social lost potential to the area.
| largely agree
Yes
Yes
Mo further comment.
Agree with your SWOT analysis. We would add under weaknesses: traffic congestion, limited parking availability and decline in retail activity. Add to opportunities: encourage sense of community through the provision and prometion of spaces or activities that bring residents
together.
| agree that the potential loss of Norco House is a threat and with the opportunity presented by its retention and reuse. | also support the intreduction of more urban greening, particularly street trees (was opposed to trees in planters)
We agree with zll of the weaknesses identified. In terms of the Opportunities, we're not sure how impeortant focusing on unifying shop frontages is — while from a design point of view | can understand the argument, there is also something to be said for the variety, which allows
for the expression of the unigue identity of each shop, and in some instances, may have been like that for some time. Having clear distinct windows helps visitors to identify one shop from the other. Tidying up pavements, removing clutter, improving the guality of the pavings
and a deep clean seem more important, as well as improved lighting.
We are in broad agreement with the SWOT. Norco building is what it is which can and is being repurposed and will provide amenities for new start and SME businesses. There is also a plan emerging swiftly to create a destination centre which will show case the food and
produce of over 100 local food, drinks, artisan producers and traders across the city and shire. The main threat to this area is to be overlocked by the emerging initiative on Union Street. This may take organisational and funding precedence over this area.

88



Q3 Appendix 4 - Extract of Online Feedback

George Street Draft Masterplan
Extract from online Citizen Space Public Consultation Responses

Proposals include making key streets more attractive, promoting active travel and creating green spaces. (Page 36-40) Do you agree with this? - Do you agree that proposing to make key streets more attractive for active travel and greening is important?

In principle | think this is a good idea but some consultation with those who know about street plantings need to be consulted as there is evidence across the City of the wrong trees (pavement up lift and roots interfering with services. And again are there going to be funds for
maintenance? There is alse talk of creating bigger pavements and decluttering what is there but then replacing it with street cafes and performance space (anther form of clutter?).

Yes

Yes, hopefully there will be 2 good bit of green space

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes. Pavements need to be wider and parking reduced.

Too much focus on pedestrians vs cars, improve road links first then pedestrian routes. It's is already easy to get around the city on foot. It is getting more difficult by car and this needs to be sorted urgently. The master plan continues to seem unrealistic and disconnected from
reality, at least without fixing some of the other key problems in the area. These things will not go away by trying to seeep under the carpet and must underpin any future developement. Green streets are fine, as long as it roads are maintained and trees/plants would be good.
Community growing spaces eg in vacant buildings would be good, but likely to be vandalised and probably fall into disrepair and neglect when the interest level wears off. Closing roads to cars is a bad idea.

no
Yes

solutely, yes.

< glthough so long as it is not just straight road dosures without thinking about the knock on effect to pushing traffic onto other already busy roads. The road is congested with delivery drivers, perhaps a waiting area for them? Cafe culture on the pedestrian area and lighting

uld improve the area. It is a dark damp unwelcoming area. |always feel uneasy and unsafe after dark in this area.

. As much as it would be great to encourage 'active travel' and pedestrianisation. this is unworkable where vast proportions of the population trying to be attracted to use the area live on the fringes of the city or rurally. Car travel remains essential in a city like aberdeen
Wre there is low population density

this does not work for those travelling into the area to work, often before public transport is available.
ellbrae Terrace

Yes
Yes
No. Active travel is discrimination, | am unable to participate, meost of my family are unable to. Under what justification is "young fit healthy" a selection criteria ?
Gardens may become a space for anti sodal behaviour but may be good for the area as it currently feels rather gray and grim.
There needs to be a reason for people to come to George street, if there is a reason for people to come, the people will come. the upper half of the street, furthest from the bon accord centre is unpleasant to get to and isn't particularly pedestrian friendly having to cross busy
roads. a leak of green space and lots of on street parking is an issue for the street as the pedestrian walk ways a quite small
Yes
Yes
Make codonas flumeys or make more whatur park
| think we should create more dark alleyways and also add my Godzilla ride.
| think that we should make the streets more attractive.
Yes, | do.
Yes
Yes
yes
Yes
Yes I do
Yes
Yes
Yes

89



Q3 Appendix 4 - Extract of Online Feedback

Proposals include making key streets more attractive, promoting active travel and creating green spaces. [Page 36-40) Do you agree with this? - Do you agree that proposing to make key streets more attractive for active travel and greening is important?

Yes definitely. | don't agree with taxis getting the monopely. More flowerbeds. We used to be Britain in bloom. More cycle lanes separate from the road. Seme derelict building are a scandal! They should be renovated or knocked down.

Yes

fully, | think green spaces and culturally diverse visuals and food, restaurants and street food, would help improve the perception and pedestrian traffic around and in george street

Yes

Of course although it would be nice to see that throughout the whole city rather than just a small part

Yes

| agree with building green spaces and encouraging walking in the area. Too many cars in Aberdeen, the city centre is small and walkable for most of us. Transportation for the elderly will still be needed of course but why so many cars in the city centrel?

Yes.

Yes

Yes

No i don't agree with the proposals. A strategy of making the streets more attractive would be good buti
pleasing would be a significant improvement alone.

Yes

No.

MNo. An aesthetic improvement only. Aberdeen is a short distance away from much better spaces
yes particularly the pedestrian area to loch 5t

NO you have no right to refuse people the right to travel by car.

Yes

[o]}

ﬁﬁvasteoftime!!

@n't think it promotes active travel. | think it will deter those whe travel from further afield from coming te the already declining area. Before living in the city centre | travelled over thirty minutes to visit the city centre and have many friends who still continue to do this.
(gma\rer if this was my options and it was this difficult to get near the centre | would not take the time to travel here (possibly what the actual aim is of these councillors)
No

0]
Qﬁewhat

il to see how already stretched local authority budgets can afforded this? Eliminating the random frontage by standardising frontage to be more tasteful and aesthetically

| agree with this, as leng as important existing businesses, schools and colleges can still operate effectively. | endorse the positve objectives referencing working with NESCOL and RGC.

29 Ashwood Mews

Absolutely. all the proposals are well put and I'd like to see Norco House re-used instead of torn down.

Yes

yes however | would be concerned that widening pavements and planting greenery may make pedestrians have priority and so cars would not be allowed into this area which could divert people from coming and supporting local businesses altogether.

Yes | definitely think it needs a makeover. However would this indude knocking buildings down? As quite a few buildings on George street are in need of repairs. As for the green space | think this is a good idea however there is already some green space but this could be linked
with the beach improvements if they ever happen.

Yes

YES

Yes

yes

Yes

Yes

Need to consider access for car parking (eg Loch 5t car park). The proposed traffic layout is not that practicable for coming from the South or from the North Deeside Rd (eg for the 4,500 residents in Peterculter). We need to be careful not to deter pecple coming to the location.
Unfortunately, we cannot rely upen a satisfactory public transport provision from a commercial company.

No

Green space so your looking to do traffic away from this area too! __noooooooooo!

Yes

as above

90



Q3 Appendix 4 - Extract of Online Feedback

Proposals include making key streets more attractive, promoting active travel and creating green spaces. (Page 36-40) Do you agree with this? - Do you agree that proposing to make key streets more attractive for active travel and greening is important?

Yesll
100%
Yes
Yes
No. "Active Travel” is a joke in Scotland. How much more money will be wasted on this nonsense. People don’t want to arrive at their destination sweaty, windswept or wet unless they are a wierdo. People like cars because they are convenient. That won't change. Time to look
perhaps at more charting facilities for when electric cars take over. And more parking.
Yes, but city needs a step change in cycling infrastructure and current cycle hire arrangements linking key nodes such as uni's, colleges and hospitals.
Do not predesterinis as it just makes town more unaccessable.
Yes
Give us shops that are decent
Yes
Yes, but the current planning really needs to send cydists or allow them to go aleng the main corridords instead of left-right-straight-right-left and so on. It is very important to provide segregated infrastructure, to avoid confusion and give pedestrians and cyclists clear guidance.
Otherwise, it would just lead to conflicts. Just look at other European cities how it is dene and how well it works.
Yes
Very much
Yes
Yes
Yes
! But only 100 m actual cycle infra on George St itself, that's 10% of its length. It's the main street, also for cydling through & in/out north. Edinburgh Bicycle Co-op not happy?
, provided adequate vehicular access is maintained for residents, business operation, including RGC.
fully support the proposal to make key streets more attractive for active travel and greening. We would particularly advocate for protected cycle lanes (physical separation from cars) and benches for pedestrians in pleasant surroundings. We appreciate it may be difficult to
new spaces for greening in such a crowded locality, but street trees, grass verges and hanging baskets would go some way to improving the environment.

eyeree in principal that streets could be made more attractive, with additional greening and could promote active travel, however we have some concerns about how this would be implemented. There is some mention of decorative crossings, and art on streets/pavements —

art and other types of cultural features would be welcomed, putting this onto pathways, pavements and road crossings could cause confusion. Traditi | visual repr ions of pathways, pavements, roads and crossings must not be compromised. Doing so may cause a
e of difficulties for people who may not clearly see the markings, or may not understand their meaning, as they look for meore familiar and traditional markings to understand where the road is, where the crossing is and where it is safe to walk. Ensuring there is clear tactile
marcation of the pavement, particularly if the space is still being shared by bicycles/other wheeled vehicles is paramount for the safety of visually impaired people.

One thing we cannot escape is the need for destination traffic. Through traffic we can reduce. If people, especially from out with the city wish to visit and make purchases public transport is just not up to the task. Getting purchases from the stores to public transport hubs is
challenging. Extension of the LEZ threatens destination traffic.

91



Q4 Appendix 4 - Extract of Online Feedback

(George Street Draft Masterplan o 78
Extract from online Citizen Space Public Consultation Responses A BERD FF N

The masterplan proposes changes to vehicular movement in the area to improve place guality. {Pages 45-48) Do you support trying to make these changes? - Do you support trying to scope out vehicular movement changes in the area

| do support the reduction of traffic but this has to be measured against the nature of some of the business's in the area, predominantly carmry outs where vehicle access is required by customers.

No

It would be nice to see some areas pedestrianised but still with good access to cars and buses on perimeters

Yes

Yes

Mo the roads already work

While maintains essential accessibility [disabled parking, deliveries), the area fells car dominated with an excess of street parking. It's very uncomfortable on foot or Bu bike.

Absolutely not, it is a ridiculous idea to further restrict vehicle movements in and around the city centre. Too much focus and priority os given to pedestrians and cydists whereas the main issue just now is car access. Further restrictions will kill the city centre, more than it is
already.

definitely not!

Only to a certain close to city centre area only as the buses still have to be available to drop off/ pick up passengers with sometimes heavy bags

Yes

Yes

Mo, by the locks of the map, you're moving traffic onto an already busy street which will make it busier and more congested. Also blodking off easy access to car parks will reduce people coming into the already struggling city centre. The council keep pushing public transport,
but until there are some real public transport competition FirstGroup will have athe stronghold and set expensive fares and poor access routes. It takes almost 30 minutes to travel up King Street by bus which is unacceptable for a ten minute drive.

best idea to improve the city centre and not just George Street is to remove parking charges where possible. Look at where the traffic hot spots are in Aberdeen, South Market Street (nr. Union Square), Kittybrewster (retail park), Beach Boulevard [retzil park). It is often
mated that shops are losing out to the internet - this is true, but there are still thousands of people seeking to go to shops, but they need to be able to access those shops, and with low population density Aberdeen is a city where residents will rely on private car for
dnvenience. The Large council car parks - east north street and denburn should be free, on street parking should be free or vastly reduced in price to attract people to use the city centre. the more people in the city the more rates the council will be able to collect.

M

Ngee that rat running should be tackled but good vehicular access us required for those who work in the area and deliveries.

eneral but unlike other areas of the city there must be drop off points for taxis and blue badge holders
Abszolutely not . You are excluding people from the city centre based on age and health. George Strest is one area you haven't screwed up yet , it's still alive and iz still visited and has shops worth visiting .
Might be worthwhile having some form of discount scheme for people parking in Bon Accord Car Park and using local shops in George Street
| fully support the pedestriznisation of the street, only cars that need to pass through should be allowed [car park access only] as well as one way streets
Yes
Yes, definitely
No
| think we should increase congestion as it will test societys pacience.
| would like the street to be double the width to ensure that massive buses nd that can go through.
| believe Charlotte 5t and Maberly 5t could benefit from being one way streets. They're too narmow for two way traffic and often traffic speed, on these streets.

Yes,as long as the alternative routes for cars and pedestrians dont cause bottle necks or interferance getting out or in of hte area and car parks as these are the safest two car parks in town in terms of lighting and security.

Yes

Yes

Yes if there were suitable drop off and collection points for accessing the school, but also accessing town in general if you wanted to be collected by car. | don’t think you should be forced to take public transport options. The city should remain accessible to everyone. | agree
with pedestrianized arsas.

No

i believe pedestrianising george street would allow a greater social atmosphere and make it safer for younger children

Ne

92



Q4

/G¢ abed

Appendix 4 - Extract of Online Feedback

93



Q4 Appendix 4 - Extract of Online Feedback

The masterplan proposes changes to vehicular movement in the area to improve place quality. [Pages 45-48) Do you support trying to make these changes? - Do you support trying to scope out vehicular movement changes in the area

Also see previous comment. Keeping cars out of the area is key. However, things like planning an active friendly street into a dead end street seems strange and all of George Street should be a direct corridor for oyclists, instead of sending them around all corners and turns
{which might lead to more conflicts between pedestrians and cyclists, due to visibility). Also, there should not be busses on George Street anymore. They take a lot of space and the bus routes and stops can be around/near the area, to give everyone accessibility to come and
leave as they wish, but getting busses off the central and lower part of George Street would be a huge improvement, generate so much more space and open more opportunities. This is normal in other cities, that these huge, noisy buses dont go through such areas, but stop
around the area.

No , George st was one way during covid , awful more pollution with gueues we have five vans and all use George street going to Dyce and Altens all time of the day, making a strest one way causes gridlock somewhere else.

Yes!
Yes, in principle. RGC has some concerns on the proposed one-way system around its premises.
We agree with the plan's promotion of pedestrian and sustainable movement to the top of the travel hierarchy, particularly the plans to relocate through-traffic. Safety for pedestrians and cyclists is key in encouraging people to use these modes of travel, so as much
separation from vehicles as possible would be our preference.
Yes
This would be big change to the area, and we would foresee that it would need significant support to enforce changes. We agree with the principal of reducing cars, but have sericus concerns about the suggestions of putting a cyce route down John Street, as this would go
right past NES3's front door. This would go against the current direction of travel from what has been described, which could cause safety issues, particularly for visually impaired people who have been visiting us for years, and who are not used to this, but increasing the level
of bicycles in that area would be unsafe for the visually impaired people who are coming in and out of NES3. People who are visually impaired cannot see bicycles clearly, particularly when they are moving fast, or erratically, which many cyclists do. When people are visiting
MNESS they ars often at the earliest stages of learning to adapt to their visual impairment, and one negative experience could set someone’s confidence back, as well as affecting their trust in NES5. Navigating busy strests with additional bicycles can also be difficult for people
whao are Deaf or hard of hearing, who would also be coming to John Street, as they may not hear them approach from behind and won't hear bells ring. Having additional bicycles round the John Street area could also increase the anxisty and reduce the confidence of the deaf
FBIE we support.We also have concerns that the direction of travel of the cycle routes seems to be against the current flow of traffic which is one way from George Street to Loch Street, and it isn't clear if traffic will be removed from John Street. MESS would need to
Vntain vehicular access — our staff use cars to visit our service users in their own homes, we also have a network of volunteers who pick up and taken home our elderly and frail volunteers, and both staff and service users use taxis to get to and from John Street because of
liry,
mectivity and therefore use of public transport. for the visually impaired people that NES3 support, they depend on bus routes, as they are no longer allowed to drive. Many of the people we support are also older adults, and may not be able to walk as far, therefore bus
mtes and bus stops must still enable them to reach the main places in the George Street area and not increase the distance they have to walk on foot. If bus stops and bus routes change, many would need support to relearn the routes and landmarks that help them to
ﬁam independently and these will become much mere difficult if there is further to walk than previcusly. We would also want to see the maintenance and possibly an increase to Disabled Parking Bays, at key points in the area, again to allow easy access to the main

yr wisual impairment. We would therefore be against lesing vehicular access which we depend on.While we understand and recognise that changes to the bus routes would help reduce traffic on George Street, we would not want this to compromise the availal

gties. Anticipating a busier, more vibrant neighbourhood also suggests that additional Disabled Parking should be being planned for.

(00)

In principle yes, in practice LEZs are both a potential boon and drawback. It may challenge the very need for these. Cycle provision neads improving and the reduction in through traffic will assist greatly. Cycle provision needs to be segregated and escooters and large ebikes
kept of them. | would ask that where ground marks show cycle route it also includes rollerblades and skates symbols encouraging these a commuter methods which are commonly used on the continent

94



Q5 Appendix 4 - Extract of Online Feedback

(George Street Draft Masterplan
[Extract from online Citizen Space Public Consultation Responses

A list of reg: tion proj is proposed. (Page 49-51) Are there any that you do not agree with, or are there prajects you would like to see added? - Please identify any projects you do not support or add those that you think are missing
| think the regeneration projects are admirable and aspirational but | wonder who it is that supports these things to happen. Also policy needs to be addressed to support start-ups, as it stands policies are prohibitive - mestly through various costs.

Nope

It would be good to sea lots of outside seating and mroe shops

No

| would like to see all the seagulls in Aberdeen removed by force

More green space, insulation for homes private or council done across the board regardless of ownership

Agree

Partially, empty buildings need to be dealt with and reused as leisure or retail fadilities or demolished for green spaces, parking and public toilets etc. parking spaces in the street are needed for people to visit local shops, these should not be taken away. More parking could
be provided. Improving leisure facilities and crime may encourage more people there in the evening. Lighting will make the area look more attractive but will not deal with the crime, which is caused by poverty and deprivation in nearby areas, a lot of drug and alcohol
problems are not solved by lights {that tend to fail &6 months after install going by other streets). Too much focus en pedestrians and cyclists, more foous is needed for car access and parking or people will not visit businesses. Yes more bins are needed but make sure they are
emptied and not a feeding station for seagulls. Do more to control pests in the area like seagulls and rodents etc.

all

‘What about the old Hilton Hotel site? Houses are great but we also need play spaces and walks as well as shopsetc

Do not agree with further construction in the area. demolition of recent developments only way forward.

ACH

Colourful play area’s for children, indoor paintball, indoeor crazy golf similar to Golf Fang. Modern art galleries for local artists, more NuArt murals. Going after those who own empty delapadated units and make them accountable for their property.

issues
ducing vehicle dominance is a risk to the area's businesses unless adequate access is allowed and public transports is greatly improved . e.g. park & choose fadilities to have express buses into city centre and the buses operate extended hours.

“Creating An identity, alive after Spm™ appears to touch on what i am getting at, and, "Alive after 5 & An Adaptable Neighbourhood™ (which sound very similar i would add) mention encouraging "popups” etc. But again, where is the mention of a broader vision of
joor eating, drinking and meeting areas. Everybody on the planet eats and drinks several times per day and capitalising on that in the mini masterplan area is crucial to increase footfall if you want to create a community environment. Chain restaurants, cafes or areas are
always the answer either, as younger generations actively want to support local and independent business.
hing to Add
Allok
Anything restricting travel is straight descrimination - we cannot all walk /oycle
Agree with all of them
Creating a sense of identity is the most impertant if we provide a unigue reasocn for people to want to come to the space they will come to. There is minimal benefit to increasing the availability of shopping space when there are so many empty lots on union street. Having the
area as a cultural hub would be the most beneficial, as it's clese to the art gallery. Improving the facade of buildings could improve the visual feel of the area, and having more strict guidelines on the appearance of buildings may help, planting more trees along the street
would break up the sense of the city and provide a unique feel
Make a feature of the rain with pavement poetry that only appears when the pavement is wet. Like in Boston - https:/fwww .cbsnews com/boston/news/boston-hid den-sidewalk-poetry/
RH
| aint reading allat
| dont agree with any. Add my godzilla ride.
| would like to see more donor kebab shops
There are none that 1 do not agree with.
No
None
no

Trying to encourage new businesses might be difficult a5 it is some distance from union square. This is why | think it has to have a different vibe to a standard shopping area. Independent brands and business. Fun indoor/outdoor eateries. Activities to engage young people. Etc

No | agres with all

| don't know if | missed it on the list but the drainage needs to be sorted on george street. you can have outdoor social areas all you like but if it is uncomfortable to sit in due to the smell no one will use it.
| like them

| agree

95



Q5

09¢ abed

Appendix 4 - Extract of Online Feedback

96



Q5 Appendix 4 - Extract of Online Feedback

A list of regeneration projects is proposed. [Page 49-51) Are there any that you do not agree with, or are there projects you would like to see added? - Please identify any projects you do not support or add those that you think are missing

Decent shops

/A

no opinion

no

| agree

Agree with all

A project which | would like to see added is the restoration and and public access to, the nationally important muraals in the former University Student Union building at the corner of Upperkirkgate & Gallowgate. These were painted by the renowned Scottish artist Robert
Sivell (1888-1358) assisted by his student Alberto Morocco who alsobecame a highly celebrated artist. Created between 1338 & 1953, the wall paintings depict "The Journey of Life from Creation to Death”. The paintings are regarded as the most important 20th century
murals in Scotland. However, they are not as well-known as they should be as only students & university staff had access to them during Student Union days & nobody has had access since the Student Union clesed. The paintings are an important part of local & national
cultural heritage. They are currently listed as being "At Risk" and their restoration with public access would be a great cuftural asset & much-needed visitor attraction to the George Street area. George Street area.

The former Student Union Building is imposing but not fully utilised.
Very unfortunate that site on (corner] John Street W behind Lumsden Security is cutside study boundary. Great spot for affordable housing and a park?
No further comment.
Good aspirations.
The green walls | have seen do not seem as effective and sustainable as ordinary street trees; The proposal to activate alleys and backstreets might offer the possibility for creating green pathways as alternative routes.
Deduttering of the street would make a big difference to being able to navigate safely, particularly for visually impaired people, however in decluttering it is also important to remember that some things may act as wayfinders, so it is important to consider these in this
context. As mentioned, decorating pavements and crossing would potentially make them unsafe for visually impaired people, but also lots of others who would not recognise or understand what nen-traditional markings meant. Art and cufture mustn’t be on pavements, and
there would plenty of scope to have art and culture at other levels in the streetscape.Art installations, events and pop ups would bring George Street to life, however, they must take place in pre-defined spaces, to ensure that George Street is still easy to navigate. Pop ups,
. or play in spaces that are not clearly defined could disorientate visually impaired people as well as create obstacles and trip hazards. Good communication about events will also be essential to make sure people are aware of changes in the envircnment.Improved
ting could make a difference highlighting architecture, spaces and increasing safety in the George Street area. Lighting should be evenly distributed and should not create patches of light or shadows, as these can create the perception of obstacles, causing confusien and
orientation and compromise safety for visually impaired people, as well as other people in the community. Mere greening would be welcoms, and would brighten up George Street significantly, however it needs to be carefully positiened and planned so that it does not
ate any obstacles in the main walkways, and the space it eccupies needs to be clearly identifiable, both visually and with tactile elements so that visually impaired people can identify where they are. Using geod colour contrast on the street furniture e.g. brighter or lighter
@our against a dark background or darker colours against a lighter background, would help create visual interest while also making them more identifiable to people who are visually impaired. It would also be impertant in any projects that its own accessibility is considered,
at everyone can access the businesses/pop ups/events, induding people who are visually impaired, Deaf or hard of hearing. They are part of the community, and often find that the way things are designed or organised means they don't have full and equitable access.
Gufn that we are well established within the community area, making sure community events around about are fully accessible and inclusive should be considered at the outset of any developments.

=

| will neither disagree or agree to any. They all have merit but many risk falling into the rhetoric band. Someone, somewhere must do and fund these. We must be sure that any other ideas tabled do not get excluded for not being on this list. Things like frontages are in the
cost matrix of owners or renters. Above the shop line iz in the gift of owners and tenants. These are very old properties with particularly complex architecture and massively varied state of repair. This skyline estate will be 3 very complex matter to resolve, more so if
architectural umiformity is desired. The area needs feotfall and support for initiatives driving footfall. Should the city favour “future” possible projects over current in hand project this may supress development opportunities.

97



Q6

29¢ abed

Appendix 4 - Extract of Online Feedback

98



Q6

£9¢ abed

Appendix 4 - Extract of Online Feedback

99



Q6 Appendix 4 - Extract of Online Feedback

Morco House site, formerly John Lewis, is identified as an important site for new uses. [Page 55-63) Do you agree, and if 50 what uses would you like to have to support George 5t7 - Do you agree that Norco House, formerly John Lewis, is an important site, and if so
what uses should it have to support George Street?

Open it up as a mini market for local businesses. At reduced rate.

A multi cuftural center to welcom everyone to our city and have a bit of warmth home and put in contact with help resources

Why

Aberdeen lacks a museum, the building or part could be used for this purpose.

There are good ideas, but | do not feel that | can contribute much. Some space can be used for a creative space, give start-ups an option to try things in an open office space, little workshops, kitchen, whatever, meeting rooms, etc.

Maybe offices , this would bring much needed staff to use the many shops/ cafefsandwich bars

Yes, it seems crucial to deal with this large area. [t needs to be a draw for people, either with a private sector use or removal of the building to create green space.

Mot necessarily, it would be 3 shame to demolish the building and build anether building, but if no use for the space can be found, | think a creatively used open space, could have a better impact in an otherwise dosed off feeling area.

| agree that ideally Norco House should be retzined despite its unpopularity. Its design limits possibilities [lack of windows for example makes residential use difficult) but it is well-suited for retal purposes.

Benefidal te increase residential opportunities, community space as well as space for employment opportunities.

Yes, indoor market, cultural centre, artists space

Cultural if possible but difficult to see an obvious practical use for such a specific layout and scale.

We're unsure on the needs of the area to offer informed comment on this. The number of empty shops on Union Street suggests that more retail space may not be needed at this time.

| agre= it is 2n important site. | support the idea of mixed use with residential above commercial and pessibly institutional (healthcare, academic)

Morco House is a significant landmark in Aberdeen, and if repurposed could really revitalise George Street. It seems that there is a hint at trying to create George Street as a place of artists/crafters/small independent retailers, and having the space to host some of thess
would be great. There also isn’t really a nice coffee shop or place for lunch in George Street, so having something like that to replace John Lewis coffee shop would be nice, but sticking to the crafty/slightly alternative idea, rather than the large national retailer or caterer —
we've got enough of those in Aberdeen. Opening up the space at the back to create a small park would also enhance the place. Again, all developments must be made fully accessible and inclusive to meet the varying needs of the local community.

5, pur experience with ACC officers in this realm is they only want to hear what they want to hear and engagement with them has been very very poor. They promise to follow up and we never hear from them. You may have new staff and they should be given an
m»urluniry_ We have a 3 phase plan for the Norco House. ACC could be instrumental in helping drive this forward and their involvement would be welcomed. Will they take it seriously | persenally have had way too many aborted projects with ACC over the past 20 years. |
@qui‘l‘e prepared to ignore this track record and engage with ACC if it's with mutual enthusiasm. It has always felt like they know best and show passive aggression by ignoring things they do not like, or people they do not like.

¥9¢ °

100



Q7 Appendix 4 - Extract of Online Feedback

(George Street Draft Masterplan
Extract from online Citizen Space Public Consultation Responses

Please provide any further comments you wish to make on the draft mini-masterplan. - Please provide any further comments

There are lots of ideas that potentially could make George 5t a destination rather than a thorough fayre. My question would be who will deliver on the 60 (ish) projects? | note ACC is against several but wonder if a project manager needs to oversee with support from a
community network made up of partners, business's and residents to oversee?

Nope | am fine

Pet friendly

‘Would like a nice fresh lock with lots of cultures foods and things to do

I think George street should have more big name food brands and less fashion and beauty shops as they take up the whole street. It also needs deaned like the rest of the city

Don't overspend. CCTV lighting makes sense as does demolishing Broadford works bur seriously the area is managing

Cycle infrastructure esp so called National Cycle Route is woeful to awful. Let's actuzlly have some segregated infrastructure that's cars can’t park in. And sort out access across Mounthooley roundabout. It's awful. The rule for bikes is that their routes need to be continuous
and more direct that vehicle routes. If necessary, send the cars underground.

Maost of it seems unrealistic and not enough focus on the real issues in the area and across the city. Improve road access and parking first. But why is money being spent on this but then public facilities like libraries and swimming pools being closed? The approach is disjointed
and lacks proper prioritisation and consistency.

use money this survey costs towards bucksburn pool

A lot of the shops are very similar so some new small businesses would be good with affordable rent for them

DO NOT BUILD THE NEW MARKET AT THE GREEN.

Much of the area feels uninviting for padestrians - the access yard for Bon-Accord centre at Harriet Street & Crooked Lane for one. Cars parking/waiting on double yellow lines or double parking is a constant bugbear when cycling in this area along with parking/double parking
:Ee to junctions - it deesn't feel inviting or safe. Cyde accessibility is sensible but why make the designated route zig-zag from Mounthooly/NESCOL and not straight down George Street?
men to your people, and not just push your own out of date agendas. So many cities have vibrant urban projects like Dundee, Manchester, London, Glasgow. Ours seems to cater to those who don't even venture into the city centre past lunch time.

e
% plan should include other smaller marginalised groups like disabled people, charity organisations that support those marginalised groups. Possible also incorporate more community involvement like getting smaller local community groups to look after green spaces plant life.

@ doesn't make it clear who they want to attract into the area and where they will come from. It obviously needs to

include residents but who else and where will they come from and get there. Plan needs to consider that many working in the area do not work -5

‘What | have seen time and time again in any city when | think of “vibrancy” when | get shown around by the locals is street food [ local food options and outdoor areas where you can sit outside in fresh air, socialise and see other people to dine, drink, etc in the evenings. Usually
combined with art, green spaces, independent shops and an inviting atmosphere. Of course being outdoors is not possible at all times of the year in Aberdeen, however having been in many cold cities in Europe this is not considered the issue in as many places as it is here. The
ity need to start engaging with the younger, creative generations as to what it is they would like to see in George Street / Aberdeen as a whole, as it is them who will make or break the reputation of a city and Aberdeen is currently not well known for its reputation. The city have
done well in the past with things such as outdoor markets (i.e. Thistle street Saturday market, no longer operating for some reason but always well attended) outdoor events with street food {Aberdeen Inspired summer nights at The Green, again | don't know why these were
stopped) which had a positive impact of improving civic pride and not giving people the excuse of saying "there’s nothing to do” or talking negatively about the city. George Street will be well placed to benefit from this. Considering instances such as The Bikeyard just up the road
from George Street no longer being allowed to operate in the old Ecosse Metorcycles building, despite superb attendance and a clear desire for it to exist. How exactly does something like that fit with the community you are claiming to want to create? There needs to be a switch
from zlways placating existing businesses with their own individual agendas or allowing individuals who will never benefit the city from objecting to plans and allowing fresh new ideas and opportunities to go ahead. The council must be bold, headstrong and set up working
groups with the people who will actually help improve the reputation of the city - those aren’t the same people as the ones complaining about the lack of parking in the city centre. There needs to be a big push to help encourage local businesses to concentrate in the same area
50 you can go from one shop to the next. Leave Union Square to the chains and brands and keep George Street independent.

None

None

Stop equating restricting people's ability to travel in the city with improvement , it's improvement for one section of people , it is complete isolation for the rest
None

The council will inevitably need help finding a single commercial occupant for the Norco House site, and John Lewis left for their reasons. The building is exciting architecturally and would be a fantastic fit for a big-name gallery or museum, such as the first Tate Scotland, or a
Design museum similar to that seen in London. It would provide a valid reason for people to come to Aberdeen outside of just exploring the city

None

Pedestrianised

knock down shmorge syreet

Also could you add a volcano to the area as it looks radical! (Mount vesuvious or Everest)

Maore donor kebaby shops please

101



Q7

99¢ abed

Appendix 4 - Extract of Online Feedback

102



Q7 Appendix 4 - Extract of Online Feedback

Please provide any further comments you wish to make on the draft mini-masterplan. - Please provide any further comments
It's good. | also think the shops along George Street need to be more varied.
I think overall idea is great as we need to encourage more people into this area and improve it but | am concerned about the practicality of encouraging people into the area but not allowing access for cars and taking away parking. Even if cars are travelling through this area they
may still see something which catches their eye so they then stop or they come back later.
n/a
Wery happy this is being talking about, | agree wholeheartedly with it
CAN WE ROUTE MORE BUSES DOWN BLACKFRIAR STREET INSTEAD OF VIA BRAODSTREET, ITS QUICKER FOR THE BUS ROUTES 19 BEST EXAMPLE OF A 10MIN JOURNEY TRAVEL SAVING.
The area is central to the city. | would also like to see this plan extended to the derelict factory and industrial areas that take up a huge amount of space in the heart of the city. These spaces could be cleared for green space or hybrid residential/cafe space which would extend
the city centre which is currently cut off by the bon accord centre.
not sure how Broadfold works features in this - it has been in redevelopment now for over 2 decades and not a single piece of work has been done, if anything the owner seems to be wanting it to fall down then they do not have to restore it
Hopefully something will happen and improve the area.
This survey is not particularly easy/user friendly to use. Boxes for text should be "bigger™ so that you can see what you are typing, rather than it being a long line ............ not good survey design!
One element that is, understandably, missing is how this will be financed - and to also identify what the alternative options are (eg staged development) should insufficient finance become available when desired. We should also manage the public expectations (ie risk of
"disengagement' should any of the proposals not come to fruition). Probably most importantly, we need to explain to the public what the financial implications are and whether this would reduce the amount of meney available for public services (eg nice George 5t, but it would
have been better to keep the libraries and swimming pools open).
Stop wasting money on "Masterplans’ and use the money to keep Bucksburn swimming pool and the libraries open. The council do not car about the people of Aberdeen and | will never vote SNP again!
Open up union street to traffic
ank
KreCk down bon accord centre and move those shops into union street or George st to help liven them up. Aberdeen shopping is just not worth coming into town for- and | only live in Resemount. Would rather get train to Edinburgh
ave local people creating and selling goods
se, please put in lots of trees and gardens. Aberdeen needs way more trees. Maybe also homes for wildlife like bird nesting boxes and hedgehog homes. Could we alse help the gulls? People hate them but they don't realise they're in decline. We could create a culture where
life is cherished and nurtured.
lans for the area should be redone with the Bon accord centre removed
ep of roofs, cleanliness, reduce disorderly behaviour
ostly nonsense. Especially the bits about “Active Transport’. They are a joke in the North East of Scotland! @
to have this consultation, but need to break the masterplan down into smaller quick wins and longer term projects which come together to deliver the broader vision. Doesn't feel like the sparks for regeneration are clear enough yet, and public realm improvements on
their own will not do it.
You should be concentration g on the residents of Aberdeen . Eg Bucksburn swimming pool. Libraries not who you can attract to the city.
1 think this should be like Camden market, little china etc that London has we are renowned for being a welcoming city to all let's show it visually that we are and always will be
The council don’t listen to the public so it's a waste of time
There's lots of heritage and history from the area, the design plans could reflect this to create character and an aesthetic vibe.
Forcing all businesses to have a standardised front sign could actually kill some of the atmosphere. It should not turn out to be looking like a shopping mall, dull and bering. The variety of different sizes of the signs and random designs does not have to be a bad thing. Of course,
there could be restriction of covering too much of the buildings, but every sign in the same basic cut, material or even design would be boring and "too much”. A place like George Street would be good to be tidy where it matters (litter on the street, overflowing bins, etc.) but
not with the shop signs, se | do not think that overregulation of this matter is needed.
We have been based at 266 George street now for 27 years the only time life was grim was during the covid when George street was one way this only created more pollution.
Please try to bring as much green space in as possible, and prioritise pedestrians. This could be my route into town on foot, but at the moment it is a bit grim.
No further comments
Overall | support the plan & wish to draw attention to the need to restore the Student Union murals and provide public access as part of city-centre regeneration.
Planners will no doubt consider the preservation of the nationally important Sivell murals in the former Student Union on Upperkirkgate
Great if set into action plan=enabled.
RGC is keen to work with ACC and other stakehelders in support of successful Masterplan outcomes.

103



Q7 Appendix 4 - Extract of Online Feedback

P rovdeanyfurher commets o i o ke on e it mimasterln, - Pl prvid e comment
Wewould ket haveseen healt and welbeing gvenfar more consideraton and prominenceinthisasecsment I futue we'd strongl acvacate tha thes ocal development lanning opportunties ncoraratefrmore mesringfulheath impact assssments, O the 16
mentions f hesth” nthe documen. -t hreerelaEdtocounulmmsfarhealmwfee:pectancyandhealrhw\wesfor Poge withong term conditons v epe<sgenerlaspirations for el - there a sle menion i the lanning guidanc ecton exch for eafh and
tranurt et and e e spacs el and i vy and e e fora ety conomy - che lend s st opportunies o cete:hehand ey shyswa et vl 8 an s foacon, e were o mentions o and L s o
relating 0, edesining esidntal streets, Tis acton i the only acton ithaspeci mention o et n appendiv 2 Admitted, other actions asume heath il e  co-benefit ofacions. | hik here  the potental for mny heatth benefts asgociated with the cope o the
evelopment -t hipla doesnotactually tggesthow these willconceied or dfivered. Whist ot part ofthe consutaion, ooked athe SEA. | quotethe asessment ofpopulaion and et mpacts fom the norechmial summery: The overall efetsof he et
1 et i Mt o populeion and el e enealy osive e e e el apment il i for s o et eetionl e, improved nfetucur:andpoten e employment andeconomic opportnite, However
émm e deyelopment and other plluting uses coul e 3 nesative fectonar gualywhich may have anegativ efecton huma heath, The aft George trect Mini Meerpe nluses Desim Pincles try it tis fect through sstainable ranspot options. The
%&t&ssofcreatingandde\'weringrnasterplanpmjecrscrealesoptimistcerrainw,invesnnemetcandwh&nfoundedincummunimngagernemshnuldgivegreaterplaceen]wmem,asustalnahleplaceandaIiveah\eplace."Thisseemsrupmuideaslameduimftheeuidence-
@her&rhe econamic and isure portuntes “wil” have & postiv effecton helth, whistrefichase i pllton nly“my” havea negatveefecand thi il miiate by uetainaetranspart "options. Lty the sl environment may warrant mire consioeration
Ithe -3t support et cl refaionshis, sl contet and upport ek h et i theare. £ hrugh the ovkionfimprovement of el saces orstpparng the volneerg sty

| suppartthe generaly postv derptionsofGeonge St contane i the plan. The Bon Accod centre and s ancillyspace rmaim thegretect obstacet overall Improvement but the propesals o vest I the baic of mantaning wht i ey thre andntroducingtrees
See ey worthuie

104



~ A4 BON ACCORD sr,
p

N

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

T — streets-uk@



Presenter Notes_4
Presentation Notes

 

mailto:fiona.robertson@streets-uk.com
mailto:fiona.robertson@streets-uk.com

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 270



Eﬁennns
I STREET

o

SSSSs

N K Y = B

lasterplan® gy =

SARREUERNNNS 2 . SR RABJ i«
th & TS | ABERDEEN ¥
e, e R T b T e o

CITY COUNCIL %

11th October 2023



Optimised Environments

86 Princess Street | Manchester | M16NG Open
t 0161696 7550 —
aptimised environments

PART OF #SLR

Optimised Environments Ltd. Registered in Scotland SC359690.
Registered address: Quartermile Two | 2 Lister Square | Edinburgh | EH3 9GL

Ordnance Survey data used under licence
© Crown Copyright and database rights 2020. Ordnance Survey 100019737

This is a report prepared for the client team Aberdeen City Council. Some images contained in this document are used for information /
illustrative purposes only and are not for commercial use. OPEN takes no responsibility for copyright in the event that the client team or third
parties use this report or images and this should be raised with Aberdeen City Council.

Any additional precedent imagery may be subject to copyright but are not believed to be commercially available. They are published here
solely for purposes of instruction or critique.

Contents

Title Page

1. Introduction And Context For Change 04
Setting out the context to George Street and the influences from engagement

2. George Street - The Place 14
Setting out the physical characteristics of the neighbourhood and its streets

3. The Masterplan 27
The Vision, objectives and Masterplan strategy for George Street

4. Transformational Projects 38
Introducing key projects for transformational change

5. Appendices 88

Context and technical information used to inform the Masterplan

Appendix 1 - Projects Influenced by Consultation Feedback
Appendix 2 - Planning Context
Appendix 3 - Spatial Context

Heowecon
‘\—;E se,-'

PRER A
2 J?

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

George Street Masterplan (DRAFT)



1. Introduction & Context For Change

4__4



Role Of The Masterplan

This Masterplan has been prepared on behalf

of Aberdeen City Council by Optimised
Environments Ltd., with support from Streets UK
and Systra.

The purpose of the Masterplan

is to establish a clear Vision,
supporting objectives and set of
development principles. Founded
on engagement and endorsement
Py the communities of the George
D Street area, the Masterplan is to
‘r'\’)stimulate and support the delivery
4zlof incremental, transformational
change by securing a range of
economic (economy), social
(people) and environmental (place)
benefits.

Delivery of the Masterplan will help to ensure that
George Street builds upon the successful and
vibrant community by supporting and identifying
areas for positive change and investment within
the city centre boundary.

The overall objective of the Masterplan for the
George Street area is to support the longer term
success of the neighbourhood as the Council’s
Strategy for Change.

This Masterplan forms part of a wider City Centre
and Beach Masterplan which will be regularly
reviewed to ensure Aberdeen City Council’s
strategy remains up to date and relevant, with a
clear focus on delivery.

The proposals put forward in this Masterplan
build upon, support and encourage activity that
is already taking place on the ground. They vary
from the small to the large-scale, from quick
wins to long-term aims for growth. It includes
recommendations that range from public

realm enhancements to business support, from
wayfinding interventions to meanwhile uses in
underused premises.

The George Street Masterplan has been designed
as a public tool to be used by local residents,
community groups, public authorities and other
stakeholders to take ownership and co-deliver
projects. It is hoped that complementary projects
can also be considered for the wider George
Street neighbourhood.

The potential projects have been developed
based on feedback from the community and local
stakeholders and in combination they form a
holistic strategy and Vision for George Street.

Aberdeen Local
Outcome Improvement
Plan (LOIP)

The George Street Masterplan sits
as part of the Aberdeen City Centre
and Beach Masterplan and is an
important neighbourhood within the
City Centre.

View north along George
Street with Norco House
to the right

George Street Masterplan | Finalised Draft



Welcome to George Street

Located to the north of the city centre, George
Street is a historic urban neighbourhood which
has retained its distinctive character. Today it

is a bustling neighbourhood, where a variety

of independent retail businesses sit amongst
residential tenements, education institutions and
leisure uses, all set out within a historic street grid.

The neighbourhood’s look and feel is characterised
by a number of attractive historic buildings, an
example of brutalist architecture and the vibrant
and vivid art murals scattered across the area and
wider city as part of the NuArt festival.

History

%The neighbourhood grew as part of Aberdeen’s’
outward growth from Union Street and by 1828

~Jmuch of the southern part of the neighbourhood

Ulyas established. The area was historically directly
connected to Aberdeen’s city centre, Union Street
and the harbour. Its tramway which ran parallel
to King Street, formed a direct link between

the city centre and fringe market areas such

as Kittybrewster. As a result of its proximity to
the city centre and the variety of people and
amenities needed to support Aberdeen’s growth,
the neighbourhood developed as a dense urban
area comprising of Candle & Soap Works, Public
Baths, Foundries and terraced streets of worker’s
housing.

Although much of that historic street network and
built form remains today, there have been some
significant changes to its historic character.

Built during 1966-1970 along George Street, Norco
House was built for the Northern Co-operative
Society. This brutalist, ziggurat (stepped) 4 storey
building presents a striking contrast to the smaller
scaled, traditional stone buildings.

Both the George Street and Loch Street
connection to Union Street was severed in ¢1990-
1995 with the development of the Bon Accord
Centre which dramatically impacted upon people’s
ability to access Union Street directly.

George Street Today

The neighbourhood today continues as a mixed
use, urban high street. The granite tenement
buildings remain with local retail shops at the
ground floor, complemented by flatted residential
dwellings on the upper floors.

George Street continues to play an important role
within the wider city centre in terms of residential
accommodation. The neighbourhood offers
people the opportunity to access more affordable
and attainable residential accommodation within a
city centre setting.

The retail offer across the neighbourhood is
focused along George Street and has historically
been split into two. To the south along George
Street the Bon Accord Centre and former John
Lewis has attracted larger retailers such as
Blacks, Magnet Kitchens and Greggs. To the
north of George Street, the majority of retail units
comprise of a variety of local, independent health
and beauty shops, takeaways and repair shops,
creating a vitality to the area and which drive most
of the day time activity in the area.

North East Scotland College (NESCOL) within the
neighbourhood and Robert Gordon’s College to
the south west are important local institutions that
interact with George Street.

With that said, there are a number of challenges
that the George Street area faces that may impact
the future prosperity of the neighbourhood unless
addressed. These include:

«  Norco House remains vacant but in a prime
location within the neighbourhood

* Broadford Works remains undeveloped and
could be a catalyst for further development
within the area

* High Streets are struggling across the UK
and George Street is no different, where
appropriate, financial support and investment
would be welcome

« The George Street neighbourhood needs to
strengthen its pull to visitors promote the
creation of destination points

« The area is dominated by vehicles and in the
midst of the Climate Crisis, the area should
consider more sustainable modes of transport
and active travel routes.

It is hoped that the George Street Masterplan will
provide solutions to these challenges and revitalise
the wider neighbourhood.

The collection of images below give a sense of
the variety, history and present day character of
the neighbourhood, both along George Street and
across the area’s historic streets.

George Street Masterplan | Finalised Draft



Extent of George Street
Masterplan

The area identified for the Masterplan is outlined

opposite in red. The George Street neighbourhood ‘ , .

is located towards the northern boundary of the > A ! = =
City Centre & Beach Masterplan area. George i de A 1 L (N e
Street itself runs North to South, forming a once . : ‘ ‘ e I

historic key route between the city centre core

and areas to the North of the city.

The area is defined to the south by the Bon " L . : ,
Accord Centre, which severs the historic r -y ' : = - f: ATy
connection to the City Centre. It is bounded to K o Y F e i i 4
the south west by Robert Gordon College, to the =, g b s ; Py ‘
east and northeast by Gallowgate and North East ; ' . q'ﬁ'u___ r i
Scotland College (NESCOL), and to the north by ¥ ' : : e g ‘

USpring Garden.

QJ . et , : & 5 & I r ',v ¥ . -
& The focus of the Masterplan is primarily within the 2 W |\ ' il s AP .'? 4y Marischal College ‘ o §
J5 WP : LA § = x4 e e L
£ -t L .

study area, however, in order for wider benefits to g

~Joe leveraged from investment within the George

: - L o x | 3 2 . -y P - L’ ‘l..r i 1
O)Street area, the Masterplan must acknowledge and . abr, . SN o Marischal Square @

respond to opportunities beyond its boundaries, YL - ; - ,,'f.c- 1 L .
; e L g , F

understanding the influence of planned investment - at
/ development. . L R
With a thriving business economy, Aberdeen is Castlegate |
in a prime location spatially and economically
for future development. Further information on | Ly
the strategic context can be found within the g~ _ L
Aberdeen City Centre and Beach Masterplans. A ' . ﬂ' 2R ‘ “
\ V- o * R Kirk of 5t 4 'ﬁv
: =k n ) +.,= ' ‘1 Nicholas Uniting L ¥,
R A = s N Belmont Street & ; 1
N Union Terrace Gardens ' etV s Fuh S .
4 . o ——" ¢ EETY
- " i
F '-F % ':\. -1 il " =
= e
, , £ ﬂ
; A - :
"'ul 3:;‘_ B

George Street Masterplan | Finalised Draft 6 ‘
4



o
o)

«Q
D
N
\l
\l

Collaboration

The Masterplan has been developed alongside
engagement with statutory stakeholders,
community stakeholders and any interested party.
Each of the key observations have been recorded,
reviewed and integrated as the Masterplan has
been developed.

The following have influenced the direction of the
Masterplan. Other events and specific engagement
has been carried out to support the Masterplan,
which are summarised in the Engagement
Document:

* Public consultation held in February 2022

* Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA)
Environmental report April and August 2023

* Public consultation held in March and April
2023

The following pages provides a brief summary of
the key findings of each of the above engagement
processes.

SEA Environmental Report

Under the Environmental Assessment (Scotland)
Act 2005 a SEA was considered to be required for
George Street, which was carried out alongside
the initial drafting of the George Street Masterplan.

The SEA process seeks to ensure that the
Masterplan, once delivered, contributes positively
to a high level of environmental protection across
the study area and ensure that any potential
significant effects are identified and alternatives
explored and evaluated, where necessary, before
the Masterplan is adopted.

The SEA process began in October 2022 and
since then has been undertaken in parallel with
the development of the draft George Street
Masterplan with interaction between the SEA team
and the George Street Masterplan team.

The SEA identifies 9 topics which the draft
Masterplan was evaluated against. The key
findings and recommendations from the SEA
are set out below as a summary, with the full
SEA Environmental Report appended to the
Masterplan.

1. Biodiversity (Flora & Fauna) - positive effects
on Flora & Fauna as biodiversity is considered
and promoted through several Masterplan
projects. Some potential impact and options
associated with future demolition of Norco
House

2. Population & Health - positive effects on
population and health due to improved access
to facilities and infrastructure. Managed
vehicular traffic, sustainable transport
improvements and active travel promotion
combine to promote healthier lifestyles.

3. Water - mixed effects on water resources.
Provision of SUDS promotes biodiversity net
gain. The area experiences some localised
flooding associated with combined sewers. A
Flood and Drainage Impact Assessment will be
required prior to development.

4. Soil - proposed use of SUDS and public
realm improvements can help to filter out any
potential historic contaminants associated with
previous uses on the site.

5. AIr - positive effects on air quality within the
Masterplan area. Design principles promote
active travel and reducing vehicular travel
through the Masterplan area. The Masterplan
area sits to the north of the City Centre Air
Quality Management Area (AQMA) and Low
Emissions Zone (LEZ), and the promotion of
sustainable travel aims to assist meeting City
Centre air quality targets and LEZ objectives.

6. Climatic Factors - positive due to pathways
and actions towards Net Zero and climate
resilient assets.

7. Cultural Heritage - positive effects on cultural
heritage. The redevelopment of Norco House
(two options explored) has a mixed effect.
Historic assets will be protected and enhanced,
improving people’s awareness and appreciation
of the area;s historic culture

8. Landscape / Streetscape - the overall impacts
on streetscape are important, principally
focused around the redevelopment of
Norco House and the potential impact of
redevelopment on the site. The provision of
new public spaces and landscape features
associated with the Norco House options
which bring benefits. The use of rain gardens,
SUDS, green walls and bioretention verges will
have a positive landscape impact.

9. Material assets - the overall impact is mixed
as no specific proposals were cited in the
draft Masterplan. Development scenarios may
involve demolition which increases waste,
however proposed re-use of land / buildings
has positive effects.

The George Street Masterplan has the potential

to provide significant overall positive effects.

The Norco House development scenarios

could also be considered positive from an SEA
perspective given their potential to be high gquality
solutions. Where there are mixed effects there

are opportunities which could be positive if the
process to development and intervention are
comprehensively undertaken.

The increasing climate change and biodiversity
crisis has influenced the Masterplan and

it actively seeks to respond to the current
challenges. A combination of enhancement

and mitigation measures will be incorporated
into the Environmental Report. Further detail
would include tree planting, mini-habitats, street
greening, edible and sensory plants to enhance
long-term biodiversity in the area.

In accordance with the Environmental Assessment
(Scotland) Act 2005, Section 16 Consultation
Procedures, a Notice advertising that the Draft
Environmental Report, and associated non-
technical summary, was placed in the Aberdeen
Evening Express newspaper on Wednesday 8th
August.

The Notice advised that for a period of four weeks,
between 9th August and 10th September 2023
the documents would be hosted online using the
Aberdeen City Council CitizenSpace webpage
and interested party opinion was sought on

the content of the Draft Environmental Report.
The Environmental Report illustrates what are
considered to be ‘significant’ environmental
impacts to the environment of the masterplan
area, or the mitigation measures considered
necessary, should the recommended projects be
implemented. The consultation did not generate
any responses.

George Street Masterplan | Finalised Draft



Sustainability Assessment

Sustainability is a broad and all encompassing
concept but when successfully incorporated

as part of any project, regardless of scale and
context, it will harness and secure the future
success of that project. One approach to
understanding its application and relevance to
George Street can broadly consist of the following
five capitals (established by Forum for the Future),
which include:

* Manufactured Capital - provision of goods
and services to meet human needs;

* Natural Capital - use of renewable materials
/ energy, ecological diversity, environmental
capacity;

¢ Financial Capital - generating income and
financially sustainable;

e Social Capital - community diversity,
community governance and inclusivity and
engagement; and

¢ Human Capital - improved quality of life,
well-being, knowledge and skills as well as
protecting minority interests.

The social, economic and environmental
sustainability of George Street is paramount to
the Masterplan and the Transformational Projects
identified help to deliver its Vision and place
objectives.

The Masterplan sets out a Vision which aims

to promote local enterprise, encourage social
mobility and respond to the climate change crisis
through environmental improvements. The balance
and delivery of these will have various positive
impacts for the neighbourhood as a whole.

The Masterplan sets out a best practicable
sustainable solution (which is subject to further
detail design testing) to meeting the objectives set
out within the strategy. This would be evaluated
through a Sustainability Assessment.

The Sustainability Assessment would help to
define what success for George Street looks like
and to ensure opportunities are being harnessed.
It would apply a process which is designed to
measure the impact of social, environmental and
economic interventions and where the balance

or emphasis across each should lie to deliver the
most impactful and long term positive change for
the neighbourhood.

The assessment would also recognise that any
specific project has a mixture of advantages and
disadvantages. As a result, the most favourable
option is that which provides the most overall
benefit with the fewest down sides. Understanding
what is the most favourable option will be
assessed against a set of agreed and weighted
criteria.

Inclusive Design

In accordance with the Equality Act 2010, which
provides the legal framework protecting people
with disabilities from discrimination, Aberdeen
City Council requires an inclusive approach

in the development of masterplans and in
project delivery. It is important that the internal
and external environments meet the highest
levels of accessible and inclusive design, and
the Masterplan starts with the simple premise
that inclusion, rather than just accessibility, is
embedded in the design process from the outset.

Impactful inclusive design is about people, it is
about considering a range of abilities, age groups
and community background. It reflects the
different faiths, disabilities & hidden conditions,
genders and addresses important issues that
affect a neurodiverse population. People should be
able to make effective, independent choices about
how they use George Street without experiencing
undue effort or separation and be able to
participate equally in the activities the area offers.
True inclusive design benefits all of us, it aims to
remove barriers from the environment that impact
not only people with protected characteristics,
but others such as families with children, people
carrying heavy baggage, pregnant women, people
with temporary injuries and older people.

No matter how physically accessible a space

is, without clear and robust management and
operational policy mechanisms, the accessibility
of the buildings and spaces will be compromised
and over time, and diminish. Therefore, sufficiently
robust provision, criterion and practices must be
established by the building management and end
user operators, this will include the development
of Active Management Plans.

An inclusive design approach:
* puts people at the heart of the design process
* acknowledges human diversity and difference

» offers dignity, autonomy, choice and
spontaneity

e provides for flexibility in use

* provides buildings and environments
convenient, safe and enjoyable for everyone
to use

 goes beyond just meeting minimum standards
or legislative requirements, and;

* recognises everyone benefits from improved
accessibility.

George Street Masterplan | Finalised Draft



What George Street Wants

“It seems a

“...I think

Public consultation February 2022 Key messages bit isolated. The
because some Bon Accord Centre
In February 2022 Aberdeen City Council *  Majority of 293 responses received were from F
/L : \ : HSE : of the shops leading locks the f fl f
undertook an initial online consultation to people who did not live in the neighbourhood:; from Union Square to blocks the free flow o
understand local stakeholder and communities however most of those who did comment a “A way of people to explore George
views and aspirations for the George Street area. did travel into or through the area. This George Street are closed making the shop Street. It almost as if the

it doesn’t flow well,
therefore you either
don’t go or feel it’s a
separate trip...”

means comments were based on first hand
experiences of the place although not based
on experiences as a resident

Bon Accord Centre is a final
destination when coming
from the south side
with not much
beyond it.”

signs and displays
have a more heritage
feel to it would be
good. A limit to the
size of signhage
might also
help...”

The following provides a brief summary of that
feedback which has directly informed the need for
the Masterplan and the potential projects within it.
* Most travelled into the area for retail and
leisure

447 comments mentioned the area’s strengths
with location being its greatest strength
followed by its accessibility and diversity

“I'd like to
see the streets
cleaner and a
better quality of
shops on George
street.”

«  However around 700 comments highlighted
the areas weaknesses, with poor maintenance
being the most commented followed by poor
condition of public realm and poor accessibility

“More
recreational
space, and green
areas. It needs to be
a more diverse area,
so not just about
retail.”

6/¢ abed

Consultation
Feedback

e Similarly, over 700 comments suggested
Quotes

aspirations for change focused namely on
economic growth, improving the public realm
and improved maintenance

« Focusing on public realm improvements
in particular, there was strong support for
interventions such as:

“Increase
connectivity from
adjoining streets
for the students and
pedestrians walking
towards the college,
Schoolhill and Union
Street.”

“l think it
would be an excellent
street to encourage smaller
independent shops to open
rather than all the ‘chain’ shops.
It could be made into a friendly
welcoming street if some of the
shop frontages were refurbished.
At the moment it feels a bit run
down which is a shame... There
could be quite a variety of
goods sold there as well as
a baker and a grocer. All
independent...”

+ Better cycling facilities

*  More green spaces

* More generous pedestrian spaces

* Introducing more colour to the
streetscape

“l look forward
to seeing a positive
change in the area that
further develops the
community feeling
and diversity that is
already there.”

+ Creating a more welcoming street
ambience

* Updating the streetscape
* Improve the cleanliness of the area

+ Clean and maintain building facades
and;

* Better manage traffic movement
through the area.

George Street Masterplan | Finalised Draft



SWOT Analysis

The following SWOT is a combination of influences from
feedback from the consultation exercises and conclusions
from spatial analysis. The SWOT analysis has helped shape
the Masterplan detailed in the following sections.

08¢ abed

Strengths

Its location on the northern fringe of the City Centre,
within a short walking distance of local amenities,
the retail core and Marschial College

‘ Weaknesses

Loch Street is wide and dominated by vehicles,
creating separation between both Colleges and the
core of George Street

/@ Opportunities

Form better defined routes in and out of the
neighbourhood to avoid relying on pedestrian access
via the Bon Accord Centre and Harriet Street

Threats

The George Street area remains visually hidden
from the main pedestrian thoroughfares and
areas of public realm investment planned across
the wider City Centre and Beach Masterplan. Risk

The NuArt festival includes Jopp’s Lane and other 2. Quality of the built form adjacent to NESCOL, 2. Reduce the impact of private car through journeys fth b ing further detached (ohvsicall
areas of George Street, displaying an annual industrial low storey units, is of a lower quality than and create more space for pedestrians, cyclists and © g N areha : egorr|1||ngf ur tehr c atc fthmc{w':fa Y
programme of murals, helping draw people into the the intact historic core and creates a visual disjoint other modes of transport and active travel ana psychologica y) from the rest of the City |

d add colour and vibrancy to the streetscape A public realm is not addressed at the edges of the
aréaan Y P 3. Arrival points to George Street area are poorly 3. Develop a cohesive approach to character of the Masterplan area
Along with its listed buildings, there are buildings of defined in some locations, namely on approach public realm - through shop frontage, wayfinding and The Bon A d Cent N H h
character and interest that add a strong identity and from Maberley Street, John Street, Spring Garden street materiality receentOI;chcaCnogred oevr?mrgrigip agéctoheoagég C§Z|ed

and Harriet Street. The experience along many of : .

townscape character to George Street . perence along Y 4. Re-activate areas of low activity both short and be at risk of further decline if no action is taken or

. . _ ) ) these connections for pedestrians is poor . ;
Strong links via bus to the immediate city centre longer term to address issues of vacancy early the market fails to engage
as well as north to existing residential communities 4. The nqrthem eleva.t|on of the Bon Accord Centre is 5. Improved environmental maintenance and facilities Threat of demolition of Norco House if a suitable
along George Street a dominant, imposing and dead frontage. It reads X . <t

< ) across the area to tackle issues that impact on the use isn’'t found and loss of embedded carbon
R find dent sh d busi hich as the rear of the building and parts are dominated day to day experiences of residents and businesses
pl?jr;gaenoirrlgoftzenr; rcealne ; Srpos\/?dning ;Jesrlggfjesse:\\ii(lgs by servicing areas Threat of other areas in the city centre having
) . . . 6. Norco House invites opinion and interest, a i i

for locals as well as the wider city. Includes some 5. Harriet Street and Crooked Lane has poor quality : , O ; A . a stronger and more inclusive presence than

- , : , . : recognisable piece of Aberdeen’s social history which George Street and taking opportunity away
higher end and well regarded businesses including urban form. Inactive facades, surface car parking . :

2 o : could be brought back to life as part of a mixed use ) . .
Finnies the family jewellers and run down / vacant units to the rear create a development Threat of online and out of town shopping having
A significant residential community wh | Geor poor quality experience and encourages anti-social a stronger appeal to some of the larger brand

significant resigential community who call beorge behaviour Better promotion of George Street businesses stores within the neighbourhood
Street home who can support local services and
amenities 6. Limited wayfinding across the area and George 8. Creation of more dwell spaces across the Older and ageing populations being isolated due
L _ _ o Street is hidden from the rest of the city to the neighbourhood to poor service provision and public realm guality
Two of the city’s major educational institutions
. . south (by the Bon Accord Centre) and from the ) . ) . . .
in NESCOL and Robert Gordon’s College, who : . . 9. Introduce more urban greening to what is a hard Aging buildings can require more maintenance
o west (by dominant highways infrastructure ) ; X . o
between them attract a significant number of users environment through new projects and may fall into disrepair if vacant for long
i i 7. i | f | idi hich . i i
to the area, and recognise the role of children and Quite a lot of street c utter and untidiness whic 10. Further encourage start ups and independent periods of time
young people weakens the aesthetic and townscape quality of ! - . , ) ) , ,
the place: limited bin storage, over grown planting retailers and businesses into the area and support If the public realm falls into further disrepair, anti
Strong sense of local community and seagull ar,wd dog fouling ’ ' those already there social behaviour will be encouraged in these areas
entrepreneur|§|, self starter spirit. Sev_eral sulccessful _ _ N _ 1. Explore opportunities to encourage more residential and lower daily footfall
organisations in and around the area including the 8. Little to no basic necessities available such as L .
) . . . : : . accommodation into the area by offering a new form
George Street Community Council and Greater accessible public toilets, information stands, water . .
o . . of residential offer
George Street Traders Association fountains or shading etc
9. Poor quality and distressed public realm materials 12. Egg:%m%xih Br/gcugsgs people through the Masterplan
and street furniture throughout the Masterplan area velop P
10. Area has limited activity in the evenings and 13. Diversify the anchor_ of the ne|ghbourhood, away
I from traditional retail to more mixed use, experiential
therefore can feel unsafe and uninviting. NESCOL )
. . . and potentially cultural based offers
evening classes are the exception which are offered
throughout term time 14. Develop stronger programme links to surrounding,

well established institutions

-/

George Street Masterplan | Finalised Draft



A draft version of the Masterplan was presented to
the Council in December 2022 with a decision to
undertake a 6-week public consultation in 2023.

This period of public consultation, which ran
alongside ongoing stakeholder engagement,
focused on the Draft Masterplan Vision, Strategy
and proposed projects.

* 102 responses in total with broad support for
the Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities
and Threats (SWOT) analysis, Vision, projects,
movement and regeneration areas

* Responses ranges from 50% to 80% support
for the variety of proposals identified in the

U Masterplan

QD

L(%The table summarises the main feedback points
pnoffom the Consultation under each of the questions
&Oasked.

This consultation was undertaken alongside wider
engagement with stakeholders representatives
and groups. More detail on the full consultation
and their responses can be found in Consultation
Report.

% in agreement

Positive
messages

% who disagree

Issues or
concerns

Do you agree with
the Vision

65%

- Pedestrianisation
could really work
- supporting
accessibility and
inclusivity

- will bring people
into the place

- support cafés
and outdoor
seating

20%

- Vision is unclear
- budget and
funding concerns
- Crime cannot be
solved by street
lighting alone

- focus on young
people

- restricting access
will make the area
less inclusive

Do you agree with
SWOT findings

61%

- Potential to create
area for street food
or socialising
- possibility of
becoming a true
hidden gem by
restricting traffic
- spaces and
activities that bring
people together
- Create new green
space through
demolition of Norco
House
- Giving more space
to pedestrians
and cyclists whilst
removing spaces for
parked cars

16%
- too much focus on
pedestrians
- limit parking or
create congestion
will push people
away
- poor accessible
facilities
- no planning for
student life

-no green spaces for

dog owners

Questions / Themes

Do you support
making streets more
attractive and creating
greener spaces

65%

-Support community
grow spaces

- Support tree planting
but needs to be done
properly

- Support cafe culture
and increased lighting
- Segregation of users
is important

- Existing businesses,
schools and colleges
need to be able to
operate

21%

- maintenance
concerns

- anti-social behaviour
in new spaces

-more consideration
for elderly and
disabled

- budget concerns

- concerns around
traffic layout amends
resulting in congestion
elsewhere

Table 1 - Summary of April 2023 public consultation responses

Do you support changes
to vehicular movement
to improve place
quality?

65%

-safety for all users
important

- existing businesses,
schools and colleges
need to be able to
operate effectively

- maintaining access for
accessible parking

21%

- concern over proposed
traffic layout - pushing
congestion elsewhere

- improve road links
first then pedestrian
routes

Do you agree with the
list of projects and are
any missing?

50% plus (24%
somewhat agree)

-creating sense of
identity important to
create reason to come

- good to see outside
seating and eating

- more leisure uses

and reducing crime
may improve evening
economy

-more colourful play
areas for children and
activities e.g indoor golf
- making more of
existing heritage

- considering younger
generations and having
independent businesses
that meet their needs

3%

- lighting alone will not
solve crime

- more focus needed on
car access and parking
or people will not visit

- maintenance budget

- delivery budget. Start
with easy improvements
/ quick wins

Is Norco House an
important site for new
uses?

80%

-Preference for Norco
House to be retained
and re-purposed

- ideas include
Cultural & Community
Mixed Use Hub
Exhibition / Arcade
Space

Food Court
Community maker space
/ pop up studios
Multi-functional centre
for cinema, museum,
galleries, bars and
food halls - an indoor
Camden Market style
location

-creating a youth offer

1%

- Concerns of residential
use

-Concerns over
oversupply of space in
Norco House when there
are already vacant shops
-Ongoing maintenance
of the building



28¢ abed

Potential Projects Suggested Through
Consultation Responses

Both the public consultation exercises in February
2022 and April 2023 have identified a number of
potential projects that the people of George Street
would like to see within the Masterplan area.

These were analysed and evaluated to help
inform the development of the Masterplan.

Those interventions identified by the public and
stakeholders that could potentially be identified
under the remit of the Masterplan (both by public
and private sector) are set out below;

Potential place projects

¢ Enhance and modernise the
streetscape - this could include
enhancements to the public realm,
de-cluttering and provide improved
pavements, places to dwell and spaces
to host street events

¢ Addressing vacant properties -
helping to reactivate the area and
reduce perceptions of decline /
dereliction

* Introduce space / facilities to help
support temporary and meanwhile
uses - helping to bring more activity
and animation to the area. This type
of intervention could include pop
up events, temporary road closures,
temporary seating, planting features,
signage and wayfinding. The space
created would also allow businesses
to expand out into the street to host
events

Improving the pedestrian
experience - this could include
enhanced materials, low level lighting,
wayfinding, pedestrian prioritisation
measures, better managed and
potentially reduced street parking as
well as planned cycle lanes and safe
cycle storage to encourage more
cyclists into the area

Improve safety and lower crime
rates in the area - such as more
CCTV, better street lighting and
greater levels of activity (through
different uses and types of spaces)
to improve the sense of safety both
during day and evening

Introduce more public space &
public facilities through demolition -
a more radical suggestion raised was
to demolish both the Bon Accord
Centre and Norco House and to
replace with public facilities, public
space, green space

Norco House - retaining the current
building and converting it to a mixed
use leisure and cultural destination
for the area and wider city. Elements
of community uses could be included
as well

Potential people and economy projects

Creation of a brand identity - to
promote and recognise the area and
promote visits to George Street. A
place and online based campaign that
promotes the Masterplan area to a
wider audience

Expanding events - working with the
council, local community groups and
stakeholders to expand the city centre
events programme to include the
George Street area

Help to facilitate local communities
- feedback suggests the existing
community is strong and well
connected, however a coordination
group could be set up to help local
residents focus energy and effort

Ongoing inclusion and collaboration
- particularly with local residents and
stakeholders throughout the design
and decision making process

Attracting start-ups - creating the
right environment to encourage local
entrepreneurs to set up in the area

>

Precedent image: Playful interventions

on a quiet street and a dead frontage
bring animation to the street

e I T T

R
dirs

i 1]

George Street Masterplan | Finalised Draft

e
INEr
i

ewarne. .



2. George Street - The Place

4__4




Understanding the characteristics
of a place is part of the process in
developing the Masterplan. This
understanding of ‘place’ and its
features allows opportunities for
change and enhancement to be
explored.

The most pertinent influences affecting the
Masterplan area are:

1. Areas of influence - understanding the
surrounding areas where people work,
live or visit in large numbers who interact
with and which could bring footfall to the
neighbourhood;

. Activity and vibrancy - understanding where
areas are busy and active and where others
suffer from inactivity, and consequently issues
around anti-social behaviour and decline;

3. Local character - a review of the local
buildings, materials and features to understand
which areas are most characterful;

4. Land uses - a review of existing land-uses
within the neighbourhood and understanding
the mix and location of uses;

5. Legibility - understanding how easy an area is
to get to and navigate around;

6. Access and movement - understanding the
movement and flow of pedestrians, cyclists,
buses and cars across the area;

7. Public realm quality - a review of the quality
of the public realm and its capacity to support
change

8. Existing green spaces - understanding what
provision of public space exists in and around
the area and how easy it is to get to them

9. Typical street sections - a review of the
existing physical features of each of the streets
within the Masterplan area.

Additional place analysis that has informed the
Masterplan can be found in Appendix 2 and 3.

: 5 e e TR PLUY a d
Vibrancy - NuArt Festival street art adding colour to
otherwise blank walls

Distinct Iocalc aracter - variety of architecture and
materials creating a character to George Street

Public realm quéiity - varying"allty and materials along
a key pedestrianised part of George Street

1 Areas Of Influence

George Street sits to the northern fringes of a
dynamic part of Aberdeen City Centre.

To the south lies a number of leisure, retail and

cultural destinations and established city quarters.

It sits next to the retail core of the City and is a
short distance to Union Street and the recently
refurbished Union Terrace Gardens. The cultural
and leisure areas of Belmont Quarter, Merchants
Quarter and Ship Row are within a short walk
and some of which are undergoing phased
regeneration programmes.

Immediately adjacent to the study area are

a number of significant civic and education
institutions which form important destinations
within the city, generating large numbers of
footfall and which could further influence the
future role of the Masterplan.

Importantly, the study area is also surrounded by
existing residential neighbourhoods to the north,
with several existing residential communities
located northwards, along and near to the George
Street corridor towards Kittybrewster.

The future role of the George Street study area
must look to respond to these surrounding
influences and to help support emerging
regeneration priorities whilst supporting those
existing residential, civic and educational
communities that currently exist.

There are 7 immediate areas of influence which will
directly influence and shape the future character,
identity and role of George Street. These are:

Broadford Works - a proposed new residential
and mixed use community to the north of the
study area (estimated around 890 new homes).
When delivered, Broadford Works will influence
George Street with its future residents making
use of its local amenities and pedestrian/ cycle
through journeys to the City Centre.

North East Scotland College (NESCOL) - a
significant stakeholder within the Masterplan
boundary. It is home to a student population
studying and living within the area. The Masterplan
should look to support the needs of the students
and visitors to the College and ensure it facilitates
improved connections and access to the College.
Students will also likely pass through the

study area to access outdoor, retail and leisure
destinations to the south and therefore the role of
streets, activity and spaces will be important.

Robert Gordon’s College & Art Gallery-

one of Aberdeen’s most prestigious education
institutions and the Art Gallery being an important
cultural asset. Both have an indirect physical
connection through to George Street which could
be improved. The large number of daily visitors
presents an opportunity for George Street to
improve links and attract more visits and trips into
the area by foot and bike.

Both NESCOL and Robert Gordon’s College

have the potential to see a significant amount of
students, staff and parents use their facilities both
in the daytime and evening. The Masterplan should
seek to support the functions of the college as
well as capturing the potential benefits of such

a significant number of people attending both
institutions.

George Street Masterplan | Finalised Draft



Marischal College - an important civic and
cultural destination within the city, located
immediately east of the study area. It presents a
significant influence both physically (townscape
quality and distinctiveness) as well as creating
potential footfall, as the location of Aberdeen City
Council and other Public Sector bodies. Improved
legibility and links into George Street to this area
should be explored.

George Street - the historic corridor
characterised by traditional granite buildings and
active ground floor uses is itself a key influence
on the rest of the study area. The main onward
connection to Union Street is via a private
connection through the Bon Accord Centre. The
extent of influence of George Street is currently
Ucontained to its corridor but in the future it could
@ expand activity both within the neighbourhood
M and towards the City Centre.

gBon Accord Centre - a significant influence

Uland is one of the primary shopping destinations
within the city centre. The Bon Accord Centre is
located along the historic alignment of George
Street, stopping up the direct connection to
Union Street and now forms a private connection
through to Upperkirkgate. The relationship of the
building with George Street in terms of impact on
pedestrian movement, activity and visual impact
have potential to improve the overall experience of
the neighbourhood.

Norco House - Northern Co-operative Society’s
Norco House (most recently occupied by John
Lewis) was built in 1966-70 for the (now-defunct)
Northern Co-operative Society. The building is
an example of brutalist, modernist architecture
and intended to be a showpiece within the city’s
architectural make-up. During the Covid-19
pandemic it operated as a temporary NHS
vaccination centre. The building is a distinctive
local landmark and has significant potential both
as a retained building and redevelopment site to
transform the southern end of George Street.

]

B Infrastructure restricting east-west

[

e

-

Tmmw

.,:_ﬁ\-"ﬂ' CGHHUNET;ES

George Street Masterplan boundary

pedestrian movement

- - . LI L R T B
Local destinations driving footfall Dirplspad CABETE
W ey Frorman B

i i)

Unian Streal Terrace Gardans

Key Areas of Influence;

Broadford Warks - a proposed
residential-led miked use site within
walking distance to Gearge Strest &
Uppearkirkgate {via Bon Accord Cenktre)

Morth East Scotland College (NESCOL) -
significant student populaticn within tha
Masterplan

Robert Gordon's College - educational
ingtitution with potantial to better connect
to George Street

Marischal College - important civic
location with potential bo encourage more
visits to George Streal

George Street - the spine of the
neighbourhood that influences the scale
and level of vibrancy and activity across
tha Mastarplan

Bon Accord Centre - a significant influance
on the -masterplan with regard to visual,
esperience and movement into and out of
the Masterplam anga.

Horco House - distinctive. brutalist
building which has potentional to be a kKay
daestination point within George Street
through re-purposing or redevelopmeant,

ot

Figure 2 - Areas of Influence within and surrounding George Street

George Street Masterplan | Finalised Draft



2 Activity And Vibrancy

Activity and vibrancy are important features of a
safe and welcoming urban environment. The levels
of activity along streets can help promote passive
surveillance, which in turn can help make places
feel safer and more inviting, encouraging more
people to visit and dwell. The level of activity and
vibrancy will also depend upon the types of uses
and their design relationship with the street. Some
intentionally promote activity, whilst others create
dead frontages which can cause a lack of passive
surveillance and sense of safety.

What this means:

Streets with low or no active frontages negatively
impact upon perceptions of ‘place’, often

making them feel unsafe and unwelcoming. This
discourages visitors or encourages people to use
alternative routes through;

Future proposals should respond to the levels of
activity along each street. For example providing
more space for activity along George Street to
maintain and increase activity.

Future interventions should also address areas

of low activity by introducing improvements to
further increase levels of activity to reduce anti-
social behaviour and poor legibility.

The plan adjacent illustrates areas where frontages
with high and low activity are located. It illustrates
“Uwhere certain areas experience greater levels
gof activity / or have higher levels of ‘eyes on
(D street’ making them feel safer and more inviting.
NConversely it also highlights areas where buildings
oohave few / no window or door openings creating

unanimated and dead frontages.

George Street and the immediate junctions with
John Street and St. Andrew Street are where

the greatest amount of ground floor activity is
focused, facilitating the highest concentration of
street activity and a sense of passive surveillance.

Craigie Street and Charlotte Street experience
some degree of passive surveillance given their
residential character. Front doors and property
windows overlook the street and create some
degree of passive surveillance.

Active ground floor uses creates
‘eyes on street’

Dead frontages and no passive
surveillance

In contrast, streets such as Spring Garden, Loch

Street and the southern end of Charlotte Street

have lesser amount of active frontages and

building windows / doors at street level. This

creates a noticeable reduction in building activity smmmnna
and sense of ‘coming & going’. Buildings being ;
predominantly residential, built as enclosed,
inward facing apartment blocks, with only a few
communal entrances.

1 George Stroet
! mastenplan boundary

Building frontages with
hegh survaillance and an
activated ground Moo

Bluilding frontages with
P SClivE ude oF Sursgil-
lance ab gronnd fiosor

Building frontages with | s L e
SO DEEsVE Surveillance X :
Bait na direst secety or
activity to the stroat

Towards the south of George Street, particularly
along Loch Street, Harriet Street and around
Norco House, building frontage activity and
passive surveillance is extremely low or absent due
to vacant properties and dead frontages.

Buildirg frontages with
paskned survallance and

i Figure 3 - Area§ wifh high and low levels
ardund floor activily

of street passive surveillance

George Street Masterplan | Finalised Draft



/8¢ abed

3 Local Character

The Masterplan area has a varied mix of built form
character which combine to create an overall
impression of place and identity. The plan adjacent
broadly identifies five broad areas that can be
grouped or characterised based upon their built
form characteristics.

Victorian or older grey granite buildings

- with distinct facade and roofing detail and
expressions that create a pleasant and
attractive townscape;

Areas with predominantly grey granite /
rendered facades and which have a lesser
degree of architectural detailing and
character

Brutalist / geometric larger massing forms

Former industrial sites add character
through their intact chimneys and built
form scale

I 0N

Buildings with a lack of facade detail or
expression creating poor quality edges to
the street

In addition to the built form of the area, there are
also pockets of colour and vibrancy such as spray
painted wall murals as part of the NuArt festival.
These bring colour and interest that contrasts to
the granite grey consistency of the area.

What this means:

 George Street’s character should be reinforced
through public realm improvements
Improvements to areas with intact historic features
should look to enhance and celebrate
Areas of weak character should be focused on
using a variety of interventions to reduce their
negative impact.
Street art successfully animates & adds colour
contrast in areas with poorer quality townscape
which should be further encouraged.

i

masterplan boundary

Historic grey granibe
busidings with distinct
facade and rool detailing
and expressions

Araas with predominantly

gray granite/pebble dachad

facade buildings with street =

facing lenestrations and
rocf pitches

Brutalist / geometric
Built farm with raindenal

facade detading

Former industrial
buildings

Buildings with a lack of
distinet structural elements
or facade quality

ol - I =

Figure 4 - Local Character

[

5"

N
AT

L 2,
.“"‘,}f

George Street Masterplan | Finalised Draft




4 Land Uses

George Street within the Masterplan area is
predominately a mixed-use urban high street. It is
comprised of primarily granite tenement buildings
with small local retail shops at ground floor,
complemented by residential units on the upper
floors.

This retail offer is dominated by a variety

of independent health and beauty shops,
hairdressers, takeaways, cafes and repair shops,
creating a vitality to the area.

Despite its bustling communities, there are a
“Unumber of vacant units to the south of the George

Retail

The retail market on George Street has historically
been split in two, with more national retail sitting
south of St. Andrew Street, and local business
sitting to the north. The presence of the former
John Lewis adjacent to the Bon Accord Centre
attracted national retailers such as Santander,
Blacks, Magnet Kitchens and Greggs occupying
larger units at the south end of the street. These
created and benefited from increased footfall
brought by the department store.

George Street also has a well regarded local
business in Finnies, the Jewellers, which attracts
city centre visitors and those further afield along

Existing and Emerging Business

Across the George Street neighbourhood, there
are several organisations such as George Street
Community Council and the Greater George Street
Traders Association, that are operating in the

area with each having their own distinctive role.
However, it is apparent through local studies that
each lacks a knowledge of what the other is doing
and how they could support each-other. There lies
the possibility to create a Community Network
where groups, organisations and individuals would
be asked to share ideas and take forward some
actions that had come form the event and further
consultations that exist for the area.

Mix of vacant and trading ground floor uses creates

@ Street corridor. There are also vacant units along
M George Street and within the Bon Accord Centre,
Nhowever, some of the vacant units are being used
%for interim uses and/or being brought to market,

George Street. disjointed levels of activity

However, lower George Street’s retail market
dynamic has been impacted by the closure of

presenting an evolving context of change.

At the time of writing, the Norco House site which
had been predominantly vacant since the closure
of John Lewis, has been purchased by the new
owners of the Bon Accord Centre.

Residential

George Street plays an important role within

the wider city centre, offering people the
opportunity to access more affordable residential
accommodation within the city centre. It
provides a sustainable and well connected urban
neighbourhood to allow those who choose to live
there access to Aberdeen’s city centre amenities.

The area has struggled in recent years to secure
new residential growth, partly linked to lack of
development sites within the Masterplan area,
however there are residential development sites
identified immediately beyond which could
increase the choice of residential accommodation
around George Street.

John Lewis. The Bon Accord Centre also has

a current planning application for expansion
however at the time of writing the Bon Accord
Centre has recently changed ownership.

In contrast, the retail market to the north of
George Street comprises smaller, local and
independent retail units offering lower value
everyday items to the market, serving the people
that live there. These include local takeaways,
beauticians and cafés.

Education

The presence of NESCOL within the study area
and Robert Gordon’s College to the south west
are important local institutions that interact with
the Masterplan area. Their student populations
frequently travel to their respective colleges and
this presents an opportunity to capture daily trips.
Both college’s curriculum will drive and influence
the future uses within George Street and the
Masterplan should look to ensure the ability to
support and respond.

What this means:

Improvements to the public realm

and streetscape could help local
businesses to expand and promote
themselves

Identify and tackle voids or vacant
units to reduce the impact on negative
perceptions of the place

Proposals should help education
institutions better physically connect
with the area as well as consider
localised projects to address issues
around anti-social behaviour and
improving the experience to stay for
longer.

A coordinated approach by businesses
and residents in the area will help
create an identify for George Street
that can be promoted online and on
the ground.

Existing signage on George Street

George Street Masterplan | Finalised Draft



5 Legibility

The historic grid layout in the heart of George
Street is intact, with many of its streets exhibiting
a number of features and characteristics which
provide design cues and influences for people as
they move through. However, the edges of the
study area are impacted and interrupted by larger,
vehicle dominated roads and infrastructure. Some
of these features help to give a sense of place and
character;

* The historic grid helps orientation north - south
along George Street as well as east-west

« Long range views and vistas along grid of
streets within the study area towards larger
imposing buildings / structures beyond help
legibility within the study area

* Legibility breaks down further east towards
A96 and along Loch Street and Harriet Street

68¢ abed

* A number of attractive & prominent
architectural features on street corners help
reinforce local points of activity / focus

« Larger vehicle dominated points of arrival e.g
Mounthooly roundabout create compromised
pedestrian desire lines in and out of the
Masterplan area, and

* Internal courtyards of residential courts
prevent pedestrian permeability and through
movement.

Architectural features create interesting long range views whilst the

What this means: wayfinding experience at street level is often mixed

Views towards areas of interest / building
features of interest

e The approaches to the George Street /
area Masterplan for pedestrians are

vehicle dominated and unclear

. . - Buildings with features of interest ! _,..f
This means clear and well co-ordinated K: =Y
signage, wayfinding and altering the { % Places that have a clear sense of centre ; A e g
t street layout may be required - J 1,_}._.‘___ AN
current str ) | y q l,'v‘ Long range views north of George Street -""__f"’ R
to help people to easily understand ¢ e treots {6 G Streot with ‘[ : % A
ntrance streets to George Street wi . ' Nt

UL A2 (e EE) D CLUSILE AR U poor legibility, wayfinding and vehicle Figure 5 - Legibility
can do so comfortably. dominance ) -

George Street Masterplan | Finalised Draft



o

6 Access and Movement

City Centre Movement

Aberdeen City Centre is accessible using a variety
of modes and routes. The rail station provides
access for local towns to the northwest and south
of the city, for commuter and retail purposes, as
well as more strategic access to Dyce Airport

and longer-distance trips to Inverness, Edinburgh
and beyond. The city centre is well served by a
network of bus routes, providing radial access to
and from adjacent towns and residential areas,

as well as key land-uses including Robert Gordon
and Aberdeen Universities, hospitals including
Aberdeen Royal Infirmary and Aberdeen Harbours.

George Street

L(?)'I'he George Street Masterplan area is a walkable
poneighbourhood with a number of pedestrian

Oroutes linking to surrounding neighbourhoods and

city centre. It is also well connected by bus to the
wider city centre.

George Street is a multi-functional street with
pedestrianised access to the Bon Accord Centre
to the south and all vehicle movements in each
direction to the north of St. Andrew Street. It
serves local bus routes, has pedestrian activity on
both sides and also contains some advisory cycle
priority measures along its length. In addition,
the combination of on-street resident permit and
short-stay pay and display parking serving the
mixed residential and commercial frontages along
George Street ensure that the competition for the
available streetspace is significant.

Pedestrian And Cycle Accessibility

The cycle network is limited to the designated
National Cycle Network Route 1 which runs along
Gallowgate, on the edge of the Masterplan area
connecting Loch Street to Upperkirkgate and
across to Union Terrace Gardens.

There are 3 main pedestrian choices for access
southwards into the City Centre. There is limited
direct access to Schoolhill / Upperkirkgate, which
is a private connection through the Bon Accord
Centre.

A

(:/in 'i Geargs Siresl
LT Masterplan Boundary
- m Pimidry Fowted

il
!.:"T_ Fadgstran prigrity
—

7 I_l WahiclE restricted

Harriet Street provides access for pedestrians but the quality of the :
experience and the provision of footway space is poor due to the -
narrow street and dead frontages along it.

Loch Street / Berry Street also provide pedestrian access towards ‘{ accoes
Marischal College but again the quality of the experience could be 2 b | CR
improved due to dead frontages along the Bon Accord Centre and W T E e i
streets designed to accommodate vehicles. B =
‘__,_.== Qe way ganeral

Public Transport tratiic sireets

St. Andrew Street, John Street, George Street, Loch Street and
Gallowgate are streets which service the local bus routes in the

area. These are important for access and connections to Aberdeen’s
Bus Station which acts as a travel hub for the city centre, as well as
connections to further afield, beyond the city centre. John Street is
one way in the eastbound direction from Charlotte street to Loch
Street, while St. Andrew Street is not entirely one way westbound, with
general traffic able to travel eastbound to the junction with George
Street.

N |

Matepnal Cyche Routa

HEJ

Bus route

One way bus route

£l

Buis slagps

Private car parking

O S1realt Parking

Ne

Vehicle Movement Function

Streets within the study area have a wide range of functions, varying
from those with greater number of vehicular traffic volumes to those
that are much quieter and function as local access streets. The plan
adjacent highlights the significance and function of streets within the
study area; Primary, Secondary and Tertiary routes. Arrows also denote
which of these routes are one way.

What this means:

Some streets have the capacity to be reconfigured to
allow for more pedestrian and public realm space
There are safety concerns around pedestrian/cyclist
conflicts with cars, and local air quality

The CC & BMP Vision for access and movement is to
make the city centre a
George Street Masterplan will identify projects that

Kirk of St
support this wider objective '

. , o : v | o Nicholas
Future projects to will promote pedestrianised zones t J \ \ Uniting
and vehicle restricted areas ' Linion WA
Figure 6 - Local Access (All Modes) L . ,- % [P

George Street Masterplan | Finalised Draft



o
Q

N
=

7 Public Realm Quality

The quality of public realm within George Street is
varied and is predominantly medium or low quality
across the Masterplan area.

There are some examples of recent improvements
to the quality of public realm materials (for
instance, along the northern side of George
Street), but these tend to be isolated and sit as
part of low-medium quality streets.

Ongoing improvements across the wider
area

Beyond the Masterplan area, there are a number
of locations which have undergone recent public
realm improvements. These spaces have a higher
quality of materials and signage and which
provide an interface to some streets within the
Masterplan area - for example the improved public
realm along Back Wynd contrasts to that of
Harriet Street immediately opposite. At present,
because of the lower quality of materials, George
Street feels cut off and disjointed. There is an
opportunity to further expand upon recent city-
wide improvements into George Street to create
more seamless journeys and experiences into and
out of the Masterplan area and to create vehicle
hierarchy within George Street.

What this means:

« Enhancing the quality of materials in
the public realm will create inviting
and safe environments that are
accessible by all users and where
people are encouraged to visit and
dwell.

Additional seating elements are

required across the George Street area
to improve accessibility and to create
areas for dwell space.

Bin storage is a problem across the
entire area and negatively impacts
visual quality of the streetscape.

Medium quality
materials

Elements of high quality
spaces including street
furniture and trees, but with
a dominance of lower-quality
materials and/or damaged
materials.

* Vehicles are prioritised
within the streetscape.

The public realmis
accessible to all users and
feels safe at certain points.

‘ Low quality materials

The streetscape is lacking in
both high quality materials
and street furniture.

* Vehicles are prioritised
within the streetscape.

The public realm is not
accessible to all users and ,_—J

does not feel safe. T |
L l : :
WA v
Damaged and dated - Res o - :
—=—\ Residential bin A 4
There are a number of public storage

realm materials and street A 1‘%
furniture that are damaged, Benches & 1 ‘j. \..
or in decline that would dwell space 54

benefit from being replaced.

Realm Review

There are also areas of & Cycle parking ‘
outdated street furniture ‘”\
and each with a different Established o
aesthetic. All of these issues .~ trees !
add to an overall negative - ’
impression of place and P . | \ /
disjointed appearance. Figure 7 - Public

—

-

=L TR T

George Street Masterplan | Finalised Draft



8 Green Space

There is a lack of accessible and functional green
space within the George Street area. Existing
street trees within the public realm are either
struggling, or have died.

There is an opportunity to incorporate functional
green space to soften the surrounding hardscape
and perform a number of valuable functions.
These might include well-being benefits, nature-
interactions, and stormwater management.

There are existing areas of greenspace within
walking distance of the study area however
the quality of the pedestrian journey to and
from these spaces is often uncomfortable, due
@ to conflict with vehicles or narrow pedestrian
Q footways or more difficult to navigate. A summary

gof these issues is set out below;

ngo Route from Union Terrace Gardens: Cuts
through Harriet Street which feels unsafe due to the

lack of surveillance and pedestrian blind spots.

¢ Route from Churchyard: Most straightforward
route involves cutting though the shopping centre
demonstrating lack of connectivity to George
Street.

* Route from Pocket park / Cruyff Court: Main
route is along vehicular dominated streets.

Accessible green space .

Accessible green spaces are currently located
outside of the George Street area. Notable
nearby green spaces include Cruyff Court

set within a small pocket park, Union Terrace
Gardens and the churchyard on Schoolhill.
There is a need for more accessible public
green spaces within the George Street area, as
these currently fall outside of the Masterplan
area.

Non-functional green space

Whilst there are ‘green’ spaces within the
George Street area, these tend to exist as grass
verges adjacent to roads, or are set behind

a boundary adjacent to residential property.
There is a clear need to enhance existing green
spaces so that they perform an environmental,
social, and aesthetic function.

Established trees ~

Established trees in George Street are mostly
located along main vehicular roads or within
residential courtyards. There is an opportunity
to incorporate tree planting within the public
realm to perform a number of social and
environmental functions.

What this means:

Although there are accessible green spaces within a
5 minute walk of George Street, the routes to these
spaces are of a low quality for pedestrian experience

and safety.

Existing accessible green spaces are also limited in
the types of functions they perform and users they
attract. Additional green spaces which serve a wider
range of users are required.

: o
Figure 8 - Proximity to existing green spaces p-"""x‘ _‘__'_".' 1,L
- LY

@™ Established trees

+

)
¥

=
-
-
-
P
§
i

Sl
:1%“

Non functional green

space

Accessible green space

b [ T

# "il:,/ %.1 \ 'Lf'-.. : H"\ / ,
] J J‘ % J"
Il. ; | 5 /.:, : )
4 i
-~ /x’#‘,
SR

L}

N
. % ."" ."'_

Approximately 500m
radius from green
space (5 minute
walking distance).

Pedestrian route from
green space to George
Street.

o—>

George Street Masterplan | Finalised Draft



9 Typical Street Sections

George Street’s street grid arrangement of streets
has its own character. They are home to a variety

of independent businesses, national retailers and

Street Design

residential tenements. Carriageway width 8.88m 9.36m 7.32m
Streets are typically dominated by vehicles Road width 3.88m 4.96m 512m
meaning road widths are wide and pedestrian Footpath width 3.75m / 2.22m 1.88m / 1.79m 1.53m / 2.37m
fothays and cycle pro_vision are compromised. On Street parking? Y Y v

This encourages more journeys by car than Loading bav requirement N N N

by foot or bike. The majority of streets within 9 5 y req

the Masterplan area are composed of historic on-street:

buildings on both sides, creating an often narrow Bus route and stops N N N

street section which also adds pressure to street
function.

The following section details the existing street

Materiality
Carriageway

Granite setts

Granite setts

Hot rolled asphalt

Uprofiles for each street within the Masterplan area. FOTHHEY Slabs PEVING) SR8 Hot rolled asphalt

@ By understanding their physical features we are Streetscape

(M able to understand the potential to reconfigure Predominant fronting Residential Residential Residential

Nto meet the aspirations of the Masterplan. The building use

8sections shown are a typical street section and Refuse storage on street? % v N
more detail will follow in the transformational ) . .
orojects section. Street planting? N N le_lte_d to boundary planting

within property boundary
Street furniture? N N N

The image above defines the extents of the street,
carriageway and road.

Street Design: includes everything captured between
two facing building fronts.

Carriageway: includes the road, on-street parking, tree
planting, bike storage, cycle lane where relevant, bin
storage and planting strips and the footways concern
areas used only for pedestrian movement.

Road: only the width of the space for moving vehicles.

George Street Masterplan | Finalised Draft



v6¢ abed

Typical Existing Street
Characteristics D - George Street

Street Design

Carriageway width 9.86m

Road width 5.46m

Footpath width 2.20m / 217m

On Street parking? Y

Loading bay requirement on-street? Y

Bus route and stops Y

Materiality

Carriageway Hot rolled asphalt / setts

Footway Hot rolled asphalt / setts

Streetscape

Predominant fronting building use Ground floor commercial / retail /
residential front doors

Refuse storage on street? Y

Street planting? Y

Street furniture? Y

Table 2 (contd) - Existing Street Design

C

NN X

AP T o ! _ PR
% ' (1 —_—l L Ww 5
:

Figure 10 - Section Reference

Street Name

E - Loch Street

9.30m
710m
1.60m / 1.95m
Y
N

N

Hot rolled asphalt
Hot rolled asphalt

Commercial / education / residential

N
Y
N

F - John Street

9.57m
517m
2.33m / 1.53m
Y
Y

Y

Hot rolled asphalt
Hot rolled asphalt

Commercial / retail

Y
N
N

G - St. Andrew Street

7.67m
5.48m
2.69m / 2.86m
N
Y

Y

Hot rolled asphalt
Hot rolled asphalt

Commercial / retail

Y
N
N

George Street Masterplan | Finalised Draft



Typical Existing Street Characteristics

Street Design
Carriageway width
Road width
Footpath width
On Street parking?

Loading bay requirement on-street?

Bus route and stops

Materiality

Carriageway

Footway

Streetscape
g-? Predominant fronting building use
L% Refuse storage on street?

N Street planting?
8 Street furniture?

Table 2 (contd) - Existing Street Design

Figure 11 - Section Reference

H - Berry Street

11.96m
5.75m/4.73m
216m / 4.75m
N

N
Y

Hot rolled asphalt
Paving slabs

Commercial
N

Y
N

Street Name
| - Harriet Street

4.24m
4.24m
116m / 1.66m
N
N

N

Hot rolled asphalt
Hot rolled asphalt

Commercial
N

N
N

J - Jopp’s Lane

4.40m
4.40m
Im / 0.89m
N
N

N

Hot rolled asphalt
Hot rolled asphalt

Commercial
Y

N
N

George Street Masterplan | Finalised Draft



3. The Masterplan

4__4




3. The Masterplan

A visual representation of the
Masterplan Vision, capturing some of
the elements that can come together to
help deliver the Vision’s ambitions

The Masterplan is informed by a clear Vision and objectives,
which respond to the stakeholder feedback and engagement.

It identifies a series of that will help
to deliver the Vision and our understanding of the place.

Vision & Objectives

George Street is supported to be a place to form new
connections; Social, Cultural, Economic and Educational.
An authentic well-connected neighbourhood with a
strong sense of communities and a better sense of
place, enabling people to come together and enjoy their
neighbourhood.

CE STRE
. SR

The Masterplan seeks to capture the potential of the
area’s physical characteristics, its diverse community
and the future needs of the area to allow it to

tarive. We will do this by focusing on ‘place’ and
supporting ‘people’ and ‘economy’:

George Street Connected!

The ‘local’ Neighbourhood: a vibrant, creative and
inclusive city centre community at the heart of
reinvention.

27

George Street Masterplan | Finalised Draft



86¢ abed

o

¢

Masterplan objectives

1 George Street as a destination 4 Adapting streets
A hidden gem within the City with the potential Making the streets within the Masterplan work harder,
to further define its cultural offer and identity. reclaiming spaces, where possible, to prioritise people,
The Masterplan will support interventions that creating more spill out space for local businesses, create
add to the burgeoning scene for arts, crafts more dwell space for residents and manage traffic
and independents across the City as well as movements through the neighbourhood.

establishing Norco House as a potential future . .
mixed use destination. The area can continue to 5 Finding space

be a distinctive and greater cultural part of the Creating a new neighbourhood space that encourages
City. community and individual well-being, opportunities for
. - . am “ ial i i | ion.
2 Establishing a distinctive character social interaction and relaxation

for George Street 6 Promoting activity and improving

Creating a colourful street aesthetic with a co- experience

ordinated palette of quality materials, planting, Tackling areas of inactivity through a programme of

wayfinding and street furniture distinctive to events and activation - from short to long term. Allowing

George Street. space for pop -up events / installations and temporary

A sustainable city centre uses t_o activate vacant spaces and help reduce anti-social

K behaviour.
neighbourhood s t isti ties &
. ) u orting existing communities

Creating an enhanced, greener, nature rich street- 7 p_p 9 . 9

scape environment, through SUDS features, new businesses to thrive

landscape & planted spaces, greening & pollinator The Masterplan will retain the existing economic heart of

friendly features and new tree planting as well as the neighbourhood and look to help it grow and thrive

promoting safe, sustainable movement. Improving by improving links into the area and the interfaces with Series of :

infrastructure to support sustainable city centre its surrounding influence areas e.g Bon Accord Centre, LIS DR NURECHI

residential living. Broadford Works etc, encouraging the re-use of vacant illustrating the concept plan
’ ging type of projects. showing how

buildings and identifying areas for potential future
development to attract more investment into the area.

the Masterplan
objectives could
be met

George Street Masterplan | Finalised Draft



66¢ abed

The George Street Masterplan

r—=
¥
B

B

SBll “N* @ O 8uN AN\

;ﬁ

George Stresl masterplan boundaey
Places, streets & spaces
Exigting fosd nelwork

Streets transformed for people with saraice
access only for velhicles

Streets b0 be enanced
Improved Matonal Cycle Netwark route

Imprared hinks betwaen NESCOL & Robaerl
Gordgan™s Collage (o George Streat

Existing pedestrian links
Potential Mew Pubhc Space

Impeoved panctions through public realrm and
pedastrian crossng upgrades

Landmarks & buildings
Existing Buildimgs

Chpporfunity (o creabe a landmark destinaton
A% puart af ratained Moreo House

Cpportunity for key buslding as part of future
re-development

Improvernents ta existing shop frontages

Potantial to create new develapment
frantoges that address the streat

Fotential to animate street through active
ground floeor uses

Crpporiunily Lo imoroyse (he Bon Accord
Ciprilrd's Sevlrarcd

Activate & animate dead frontages

Opportunity to reconfiguee and enhance
edges of MESCOL campus

Land waes
Potantial recevelopmant opportunity argas

Dievelopment copportunity sites beyond the
masterplan boundany

George Street Masterplan | Finalised Draft




The Masterplan

The Masterplan proposes physical changes to
improve opportunities for active travel, for greener
more sustainable environments, introduce changes
that support the vibrancy and vitality of the
neighbourhood whilst improving connections with
the city centre.

George Street is, however, a complex existing
urbban environment and the scope of physical
change must be carefully managed and delivered
alongside the existing requirements of local
businesses and residents as well as being sensitive

to its existing context.
- g

QD However, a clear step-change in the quality and
o function of the environment, to support the
woVitality of existing businesses, residents and the
Ocommunities of George Street is needed. The
uplift in place quality will also support longer term
redevelopment opportunities when they become
available and help to tackle the issues raised
by local people around anti-social behaviour,
underutilised spaces and neglect.

The Masterplan will be used as a tool going
forward to co-ordinate and prioritise key projects
(both short & long term) and areas of focus

for the neighbourhood. The Council has a clear
ambition for the area and it will seek to both
deliver and support projects alongside existing
stakeholders and those seeking to take forward
future development. Delivery of the Masterplan
will require a co-ordinated and a collaborative
approach across public and private sector
organisations.

There are 3 components to the Masterplan that
combine to deliver on its Vision and objectives.

Places, Streets and Spaces

Streets that connect to existing green spaces .
beyond the Masterplan boundary such as

Cruyff Court and Union Terrace Gardens will be
improved to better facilitate active travel;

The Masterplan area will become an active

travel friendly neighbourhood throughout,
promoting safer and more equitable .
sustainable journeys;

Reconfiguring current street function and
traffic direction to better manage traffic
flows through the area and creating greater
opportunities for active travel;

Opportunity to create a new public, flexible
space for the neighbourhood focused around
Norco House / St. Andrew St / Loch Street

and Berry Street. The space currently used

for existing road infrastructure around Berry
Street / Loch St could be reduced and given
over to public space, as part of a co-ordinated,
Masterplan wide updated street network. There
is opportunity for a public space here to be
further expanded if potential future proposals
on the Norco House site explore an integrated .
public space. Both capable of creating new
spaces where there are currently none; and

Creating improved arrival gateways into the
George Street neighbourhood and within key
areas within the Masterplan, through public
realm enhancements, such as clear directional
and welcome signage, improved crossings at
key junctions and, carriageway amendments/
revision to width.

Landmarks & Buildings

The Masterplan supports a landmark building
for George Street through re-working of the
original 1966 Norco House building. It could
be brought back to active use through re-
purposing and re-development, creating a
distinctive landmark destination.

Quality shop front improvements along
George Street can create a more co-ordinated
townscape that still retains the individual
character of shops whilst also creating a
degree of consistency to reduce the disjointed
appearance along certain units. This will also
involve clearing other redundant clutter such
as satellite dishes and unnecessary street
signage;

The north elevation of the Bon Accord Centre
and multi storey car park (MSCP) are a key
interface with the neighbourhood and should
be enhanced. Interventions should look to
visually screen / animate the building, improve
pedestrian entrances and animate / activate
Loch Street.

There is also the opportunity to introduce

a better balance between car parking and
available green / multi-functional space within
the NESCOL site and creating new connections
through the site, offering more space to
students and visitors as well as enhancing the
environment along Loch Street.

Land Uses

George Street is a compact, historic
environment and there are potential areas
within the Masterplan that could be brought
forward for re-purposing or re-development.
These locations currently comprise low quality
built form, inefficient use of space and vacant
buildings.

A longer term opportunity area exists to the
west of George Street, between St. Andrew
Street and the Bon Accord Centre. The Council
has no direct land ownership in this area
however the Masterplan supports opportunities
to see the area improved through mixed use
and residential redevelopment of vacant
buildings and underutilised parcels of land;

The Masterplan will support longer term,
redevelopment around Loch Street (adjacent
to the NESCOL) and the Spring Garden
Charlotte Street area, should the market come
forward with proposals. There is potential

to improve the quality of the built form and
public realm environment around the college
and opportunity sites can help to achieve this.
This could involve short term improvements
to existing buildings, or longer term re-
development should opportunities become
available.

George Street Masterplan | Finalised Draft



Places, Streets & Spaces - public realm

The consistency and quality of the public realm
across the Masterplan are vital to the ongoing
vitality of the neighbourhood. All the streets
across George Street will have an important role in
fulfilling the Masterplan Vision and objectives.

The streets are one of the main areas of influence
and opportunity for change within the historic grid
network of George Street and will provide a better
balance between accessibility of vehicles and
active travel.

There are things that all streets should look to
—pachieve that is focused around people and which
gincludes;

M. Creating greener streets;

w
O+ Character;
H

*  Environment;
*  Sense of place; and
* Improving signage and identity.

The Masterplan proposes the improvement of
streets so that they provide an enhanced public
realm function. This section describes the various
roles that each street within the Masterplan

will play in doing so, creating higher quality
environments for people to enjoy.

Creating greener streets

One of the key aspirations for all of the streets for the Masterplan
is to increase the provision of green infrastructure and biodiversity
gains through a variety of interventions. An evolution from grey

to green, creating green infrastructure. The climate change and
biodiversity loss crises are inextricably linked and one cannot be
addressed without tackling the other.

Establishing a strong network of green streets will help connect to
wider open space assets including Union Terrace Gardens, St Nicolas
Gardens and the wider City Centre streetscape projects.

The suitability of each intervention will be determined though more
detailed design testing but could consist of a combination of new
features including;

* New tree planting
« Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDs) such as rain gardens

* Retrofit features to existing structures, for example green wall
features along existing dead frontages

« Mini habitats (for example bee/bug boxes, living roofs,
hibernacula and nest boxes)

* Street greening features such as shrub planting, wild-flowers,
edibles and sensory planting; and

* Green and living walls and roofscapes.

The projects can be delivered both in the short term and long term
and could consist of modest to more fundamental approaches which
could include carriageway re-configuration. There will need to be
balance between achieving green infrastructure within the existing
street sections and the impact on movement patterns across the
Masterplan and wider area.

Bringing colour and character

Streets across the Masterplan will facilitate
opportunities to introduce elements of colour
to enrich the character of the area, creating

a unigue sense of place. A co-ordinated
colour palette for the neighbourhood will
allow for both continuity and colour variation
across each street depending upon location
and activity levels. George Street itself

could become the recognisable centrepiece,
showcasing character, through colour.

Combinations of colour features could include;
« Co-ordinated vibrant street furniture
* Updated and improved material palette

* Introducing bold graphics and colour
bursts to spill out spaces and buildings

« Extension to the NUArt street art festival
further into areas of George Street

*  Bringing in bespoke lighting to areas and
buildings to help illuminate.

The introduction of colour and contrast must
be carefully balanced, to ensure the needs

and requirements of different user groups are
fully considered. As the Masterplan moves
forward, the needs of those with sensory and
neurodiverse sensitivities will continue to be
consulted, to help further refine and develop
opportunities for colour within the streetscape.

Using more sighage & interpretation

Developing a co-ordinated signage and
wayfinding strategy can help to further
identify George Street as a distinctive place
within the city centre and improve its links
with its neighbouring parts of the city.
Welcome and directional signage at entry
points to the neighbourhood can define arrival
points and create more visibility. Interpretative
and information signage can help to inform
people of the place and its local features.

George Street Masterplan | Finalised Draft




Each street within the Masterplan will have an important role
to play in providing enhanced public realm provision whilst
also ensuring its proposed movement functions. Each street
can fall broadly into the following typologies in terms of their
public realm role;

Streets transformed for pedestrians - will promote active

travel improvements that is suitable to the existing context

and that create a significant amount of space for people

within the street section. They will allow people to move

and dwell along the distinctive and neighbourhood defining e

George Street corridor. Creating more space will also support

space for outdoor seating, bio-retention verges and/or rain

gardens with pollinator friendly perennial planting, semi-

mature tree planting of pollution-tolerant species. Broadford

Interventions could be lower cost and initially more modest
which may initially begin as temporary installations. Examples
g include: parklets, flexible market spaces / exhibition space,
Q multi-purpose moveable planters and street furniture, and/or
wplayful artworks and road markings.

SCommunity connhectors - important streets that provide

onward movements to neighbouring areas and as a result
public realm interventions must work to support all modes
of travel. Improvements will include an increase in pedestrian
space, with cycling accommodated via a combination of
segregated lanes and on-road cycling, depending on the
unigue characteristics and requirements of each street.
Some of these streets will see reconfiguration to create
improved footway provision, a mixture of semi-mature tree
planting with below ground soil cells and/ or standard trees
in large planters (either on both or single side of the street),
accessible rain gardens with sensory pollinator planting and
planted green verges adjacent to roads.

Residential streets - quieter streets with predominantly
residential properties along them and which will be enhanced

1 Gadnel Siresl frailerplan Bograacy

Ewetng sopianes

Exstng siraels

Apkhie travel frdadly strisls
Community conmactors

g ko SErpeES

Colour strests

ool shnpots beryond mastorplan
BOunasry

Enhanoed junchors (o support ocfive
riwied

Oipparturchios for facade groarmg

wiristal planbng wall © art instalsisacrd 1o
Craats A AUFaCTiaD Do Tacachy 1o ha Bon

Accond Cpriro

to improve the quality of life for residents. These streets Ratonalsed stest carrbpeaay to nclude

. . . . .. = gy : .

will see improved footways, traffic calming, opportunities S P

for informal play, screened bin storage areas, tree planting, : + e

. . . Cioporturety 10 rpcontgung and enhance

integrated timber bench seating, grow spaces and planters wages of HESCOL carmpus

and colourful and sensory perennial planting. Onportunties to Morovs Cormecion
Betaamin gubie stepet And dnvale SHieis

Colour streets - those streets that are narrow and may not 0 E’;‘;";j" REVN AN MG Su T

be able to accommodate the same level of soft landscape
features as others but can still be transformed. Public realm
interventions along Colour Streets will include green walls,
colourful planters, building up lighters, lighting nets and
seating.

‘ R birsd Emialirig Dhes

Figure 13 - Proposed Public
Realm Strategy

George Street Masterplan | Finalised Draft



Places, Streets & Spaces- movement and access

A primary focus of the Masterplan is to ensure
that people travel ‘t0’ George Street and

‘not through’. To achieve this, streets must
offer a better balance between experience,
connectivity and functionality.

The street hierarchy, informed by the Urban
Realm Design Guide 2021, will inform future
public realm design and movement function
detailed in later sections. It will ensure

that all streets across the neighbourhood
promote active and sustainable movement, in
g accordance with National policy.

«Q
gStreet Hierarchy

OThe existing streets are identified, as part of

the Masterplan strategy, into the following
three categories:

Primary Streets = have a significant influence
over the area in terms of visual impact, modal
offering and built status. George Street, and
St. Andrew Street have been categorised as
primary routes, given their significant role,

or potential, in active and sustainable travel
modes and ‘place’ quality.

Pedestrians

Cyclists

Vehicles

These streets are framed by larger buildings
and businesses, creating a busier environment
than secondary and tertiary streets and will
carry a variety of users. They also convey a
greater ‘sense of place’.

Secondary Streets - provide routes for
vehicles across the area as well as active
travel, but are not defined by the same levels
of landuse activity. Spring Garden, Loch
Street, Maberley Street and John Street

are identified as secondary streets due to
their function, carriageway narrowing and
surrounding built character.

Tertiary Streets - are quieter in nature by

comparison, to secondary and primary streets.

Across George Street, tertiary routes are
profiled by their narrower street width and
quieter levels of vehicular and pedestrian
activity. Jopp’s Lane, Harriet Street, Craigie
Street and Charlotte Street as well as lower
sections of Loch Street have been categorised
as tertiary streets as they are more enclosed.
These streets offer points of intrigue off
busier routes, but will require environmental
improvements to ensure they are transformed
into pleasant, walkable streets.

Hounthooly

wart
g

Crunylf

e Court

Broadiord
Waorks
%
N
\ 4

Vd
Marischal
College

‘%"'-.

Kirk of 5t
Nicholas
Uniting

/ Primary streets

Secondary streets

) LUnian
/ Tertiary streets

Terrace
Gardens

Figure 14 - Proposed Street Hierarchy

George Street Masterplan | Finalised Draft



Cycle Accessibility

All streets across the Masterplan area should Mixed Streets

promote active and sustainable travel. The These streets will offer a ‘medium level

. « o . - . - #
extent of CYC“St specific mfrastructpre tha.t of service’ (term used to describe criteria Ny - 'f; O
can be achieved must also be considered in o . . . , T
. o S within Cycling By Design) and will require no y
balance with the Vision and objectives of the o o e : i Y gt e -
Masterolan and a ooriate r . additional lining within the carriageway. The i y N
asterpian and, as an appropriate response proposed designs for each, which consist { fr"" -
to the historic street grid and structure of the L . : a4 -
vironment. The or d imorovement of a reduction in lane widths and traffic {1\ NSl o
f tho M et r | iptfpisne w Ekovvﬁl me | Sol calming measures, will support cyclists to ~: T el
© the Masterplan street netwo cluae feel comfortable taking up a more positive - . I ;
traffic management measures to help reduce o I . -
. position within the lane as part of a 20mph, i g
the volume and speed of traffic through the . - .
) lowing the maiority of streets to b low speed urban environment. In terms of A B
?:oenacélﬁci?/e togoneroazjiycsllir?g SpeereCSyccl)ingeby providing a basis behind the decisions taken, - Warks |
- s . . . i -
Design. Where speeds and flows may limit the Cyc!mg .by De§|gn suggests that a Design o a -
: . Review is carried out. : o o e
level of service that on-road cycling would _ _ \ e
—Uprovide, segregated facilities are proposed. Each street will also look to include cycle r P e _.:/ -
Q king faciliti I li I i - ; i
Q Currently there are no formally segregated parking facilities, cycle delivery loading / N /| r
unloading and repair points to allow users to e Al
cycle routes through the area. The Masterplan . L L it |
, . . carry out any repairs to their bikes. \ -
Oaims to improve cycle accessibility by: - O, A S

& . The ultimate design of segregated routes / .
* providing a segrega_te_d cycle lane along and mixed traffic streets will be dependent - A :
Ga(ljlc_)vvgate emphas_,lsmghthe NCNlrolL_Jted upon more detailed traffic analysis and street 7w \
and its _Cormectlon nto the _repent y line design. It will also be designed in line with ’,__mr =yl m!&;;ﬂ'aﬁ
Upperkirkgate and Schoolhill Cycling by Design 2021 (or subsequent) (=1 mﬂn?:aw
+ providing a segregated cycle lane to part guidance and the Urban Realm Manual.
of Spring Garden and Loch St, allowing for
segregated cycle access between the NCN
Route along Gallowgate and NESCol, which

Existing road network

Sereets with Maticnal Cycle
Metwork Route status but
with no formal ProVISGN

is a destination generating cycle trips. This =
would consist of a 2.0m wide segregated iﬂﬁ;“:ﬁn“}mr;‘”'“
cycle lane both east and westbound -

Segregated cycle
infrastructure on MHaticnal

between the junction with Gallowgate and

the junction with Loch Street; Cyehe Metwaork
+ the remaining streets will be cycle friendly pey ROMGE Srasl Mixed traffic streets - lower
i . . b=1 pasterndan bodincdang g levarmr wolurme
by creating safer and accessible ‘mixed preserdd, lower valur

i AR BTy | x j sfreats (no Segragalod
streets’ across the Masterplan. s Bpile s P\ . : g b
Matonal Cyclie Metwork i ) i

Rouke status but with

iy Fererial prowiion

Livwer spaed. lower traffic
volume strests (no
segregated cyole lane
required) on Mational Cycle
heetwaork route

Figure 15 - Existing

cycle provision across ) i . : . . :
George Street 3 g , Figure 16 - Proposed Active Travel Routes

George Street Masterplan | Finalised Draft



Vehicular Movements

Managing vehicle access across the
Masterplan area can lead to:

 an improvement in local air quality;

* reduced vehicular conflict for public
transport and active modes of travel; and

* create more space within the street
for better facilities for public transport,
pedestrians, cyclists and spill out space for
local businesses.

Each of these combine to create a stronger

sense of neighbourhood and, in order to

achieve this, a number of changes to the

function and direction of traffic along certain
_Ustreets is proposed.

g Proposed Areas of Change

® The main principle for managing vehicular

oOaccess within George Street is to prioritise

Ulaccess to those who need to enter or exit
the neighbourhood (e.g local residents,
patrons to local businesses). This principle
is complementary to the Council’'s Roads
Hierarchy and City Centre and Beach
Masterplan requirements of a place as a
destination (a place to travel to) but not a
through route.

Robust traffic modelling work has been
undertaken to test the extent of through
routing across the Masterplan and the
proposed changes tested, in order to provide
wider benefit to the area and facilitate the
ability of the street network to provide more
active travel and activity as well as transform
the function of George Street itself.

The proposed vehicle movement strategy

for the Masterplan is detailed in figure 19
(overleaf). The following points below (A - G)
explain proposed changes to existing vehicle
flows across the Masterplan street network
and are highlighted in figure 18;

reeea
i | Goorge Street masterplan boundary

Crabegen noules

NN

Podedstrian priority J s8rece Bocess

T way gendral trafla sinseis

Cirsy weay gonnesl raffc strasts

T sy Dads g Lasi rosida

i wiany Bos roule and Eaki nbuda

NN

Phase 1
A. George Street south-bound to John Street

for general traffic with north-bound bus
route

B. John Street to become one-way west

bound from George Street to general
traffic with no general traffic entering from
Denburn.

. The section of George Street between

John Street and St. Andrew Street is to be
a service access only route, removing both
bus routing and general traffic movement.
This will allow for a greater focus on
pedestrian and cycle focused movement,
promoting active travel in the heart of the
neighbourhood and creating a new sense
of place.

. Blackfriars Street to be come one-way

south bound to general traffic and two-way
for bus and taxi east and north-bound

. In the initial stages of development,

St. Andrew Street would become one
way west bound from George Street

to Blackfriars Street for general traffic,
whereas bus and taxi routing will remain
two way.

Figure 17 - current direction of vehicle flows

Phase 2
F. St. Andrew Street would introduce

restrictions to private car traffic (potentially
via provision of a bus gate / or signage)
between Charlotte Street and Loch Street
junctions further reducing the dominance
of general traffic movement across the
neighbourhood.

G. Phase 2 would also restrict general vehicle

movement between Loch and Berry
Street at the St. Andrew Street junction
(potentially via provision of a bus gate / or
signage). General vehicle access on Berry
Street would be allowed for access to the
Bon Accord Centre car parking only and
service access.

Figure 18 - Streets within the Masterplan where
a change to the traffic flow is proposed

George Street Masterplan | Finalised Draft



Proposed Vehicular Movements

The proposed vehicular movement network Phase 2 of the strategy would take a more
across George Street comprises: radical approach, reducing the St. Andrew
Street carriageway, between Charlotte
Street and Jopp’s Lane to bus access only.
Streets that allow for vehicle movements in The lower section of Loch Street to Berry
both directions. They are located to the edges  Street would also reduce to bus access only
of the neighbourhood and they provide easy  too. Cars entering St. Andrew Street would
access to the surrounding strategic routes. be redirected northbound on Jopp’s Lane
2. One Way Streets to continue their journey. This bus priority
could be managed through restriction for
example bus gates or appropriate signage,
subject to further detailed design following
implementation of Phase 1.

1. Two Way Streets

These streets provide access along sections
of George Street, John Street, Jopp’s Lane
and along Harriet Street. Vehicles are directed
back onto two way streets. Their one way
movements through routing and create a lower mpacts on through routing

car environment around the George Street, A detailed traffic modelling exercise has been
@John Street, St. Andrew Street core of the undertaken to understand the movement
% neighbourhood. strategy impacts and benefits. The results of

w3, Pedestrian Priority / Service Access Streets the modelling have demonstrated that the
= proposed measures would introduce changes

that help deliver the Masterplan ambitions
through:

OStreets open to vehicle access and which
allow local users and patrons access to the
neighbourhood. These streets will be enhanced
to promote greater pedestrian and active travel * Traffic management proposals that reduce

movements and designed in a manner which opportunities for through-traffic in the
manages traffic speeds. area (circa 21% reduction in through-trips Y
across the day) while maintaining and, in /
4. Car Park Access Only some cases, enhancing accessibility for all = i™"% .00 street masterpian boundary
Berry Street must remain accessible to vehicles modes;

to allow access to the Bon Accord Centre multi

_ , * Displacing traffic from local roads in the 7 Strategic routes
storey car park (MSCP). It will provide access 3

core of the study area onto streets at

from Gallowgate and Loch Street and egress the top of the revised Aberdeen Roads / Pedestrian priority / Service access ?i
from the MSCP onto Berry Street. Hierarchy which are of a standard and a :

5. Bus Servicing capacity appropriate for higher volumes of f Tweo wiay general traffic streets

Phase 1 of t.he. vehicular strategy looks to Work ‘érra]f&ce, \If]veht|\ll\elor:wk|n$£n:lvcﬁc;tll’;.eaor:/;elra|| mpacts //" Cne way general traffic streets

with the existing bus routes as far as possible. ’ e

The only alteration to existing routing would * Balancing the accessibility requirements -(" Two way bus and taxi route

be along the section of George Street between across different modes. :

John Street and St. Andrew Street, where there

are currently no bus stops. Removal of bus proposals can deliver significant positive .2" Broad Street bus only 2one

movemeht from this shor’.t section will allow for change through reduced traffic flows on key
more active travel and spill out space to create streets that are central to the Masterplan Figure 19 - Proposed Phase 1 movement flows

a different environment.

] / One way bus route and taxi route
The modelling has demonstrate that the

objectives and priority projects.

George Street Masterplan | Finalised Draft



4. Transformational Projects

4__4




Delivering change

Transformational projects are those areas of

focused intervention within the Masterplan
that can crystallise the Vision and consultation
findings into tangible actions / projects that

can be taken forward and developed further.

There are 6 transformational ‘place’ projects
identified in the Masterplan which are centred

around physical change and regeneration:

80¢ abed

Enhancing and modernising the
streetscape including enhancements to the
public realm, de-cluttering and improved
footways, places to dwell and spaces to
host street events

Improve safety and crime rates in the area,
through enhancements to the public safety
such as more CCTV, better street lighting
and greater levels of activity (through
different uses and types of spaces) to
improve the sense of safety both during
day and evening, creating an identity
through lighting emphasising ‘place’

Introducing space to support meanwhile
uses and street greening, to introduce
more activity and animation to the area
with temporary seating, planting features,
signage and wayfinding

Improve the pedestrian experience through
enhanced materials, lighting, wayfinding,
pedestrian prioritisation measures and
managed streets that encourage active
travel and discourage through-routing

To make more of the Bon Accord Centre
and Norco House area of the Masterplan, to
create more activity and community space

‘ Transformational
Project Summaries

In addition there are also opportunities
for local communities and stakeholders to
contribute to, influence and assist in the

future delivery of these projects. Community George
and stakeholder group capacity building
will play an essential role in both helping to Stre.eht

shape these projects as they move forward
and to ensure that projects are supported
and informed by local residents, businesses
and institutions within the Masterplan, as the
main custodians and users of the George
Street neighbourhood.

Masterplan

George Street Masterplan | Finalised Draft



Transformational Project 1

Norco Place

This section sets out potential, illustrative future
proposals for Norco House and its surrounding
area which could become more widely recognised
as ‘Norco Place’. It explores two potential
development scenarios each with a different
approach to future development use and provision
of space to provide for the wider area.

These scenarios are not ranked in order of
preference but explore the art of the possible
whilst also demonstrating how each work with the
principles established within the Masterplan. It is
hoped that these help to re-frame the potential
mof the building and identify new potential design

Qresponses, uses and public realm opportunities

which re-establish the area as an important city
gwide anchor and diverse neighbourhood.

©Scale of change for Norco House

One of the scenarios assumes the retention of
the Norco House building, retaining the striking
and distinctive brutalist form of the building

and its distinctive elevations. This option works
to reactivate the building and assumes that the
current floorplate and column grid remain in situ.

There may be potential to retain the brutalist
exterior of the building but strip back the interior
floor plates to offer a greater degree of flexibility

%
T

Figure 20 - Location of Norco House

and accommodation of uses. This would require
further design testing and development and would
be subject to more detailed surveys. Historic
Environment Scotland have previously been asked
to consider this structure for listing. Following
their assessment it was found that the surviving
two principal elevations (to George Street and

to St. Andrew Street) met the criteria of special
architectural or historic interest. However, the
decision wa